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Ref No.: RSEZDOC/HO/2022/086
Date: November 7™, 2022
To: Registrar
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (“NEPRA™)
NEPRA Tower, Attaturk Avenue (East)
G-5/1, Islamabad

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF DISTRIBUTION LICENSE

[, Lyu Ming, Chief Executive Officer, being the duly authorized representative of Rashakai Special
Economic Zone Development and Operations Company (Pvt.) Limited (“RSEZDQC” or “Petitioner”)
by virtue of BOARD MEETING MINUTES dated Aug 2™, 2022, hereby apply to the National
Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the grant of a Distribution License to the Petitioner pursuant

to Section 20 of the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act,
1997.

I hereby certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are prepared and
submitted in conformity with the provisions of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021, and
undertake to abide by the terms and provisions of the above-said regulations. I further undertake and
confirm that the information provided in the attached documents-in-support is true and correct to the
best of my knowledge and no material omission has been made.

I further certify that the Petitioner has not been denied any license under the applicable laws and rules
of NEPRA,

A bank check in the sum of Rupees 3,346,530, being the license application fee calculated in
accordance with Schedule II to the National Electric Power Regulatory Autherity Licensing
(Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021 is also attached
herewith,

Yours sincerely,

For and on behalf of

Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development and Operations Company (Pvt.) Limited

Lyu Ming
Authoriz

Address: House No.2 Street 33, F-8/1, Istamabad, Pakistan. Tel: 051-2251986, Email: rse




N RIAA

RASHAKAI ‘Barker
‘Gillette

DISTRIBUTION LICENCE PETITION
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATIONS COMPANY

INDEX OF DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION

;"WSR"- “ U '-‘-”-ﬂgﬁﬁﬁoﬁnNé-DOCU'MEN‘[S/;INFORMATION o e o ,.Z’ANNE?"'Q"; '
SNo. s : T SR A

L APPLICATION 5
1 : Appllcatlon in the form speaﬂed in Schedule 1 of the Llcensmg -
" Regulations, along with duly authorized statement verifying that the
Petitioner has not been refused a license under NEPRA laws;

2. Extracts of Board Resolution along with Vakalatnama; -
3 ” Aff;d-avit of COF}..ECtnESS; - h o I i“- .

"4 Affidavit undertaking that the Petitioner has not been grantedany -
other license under NEPRA laws; :

"5 Application fee in accordance with Schedule Il of the Licensing . -

Regulations; : ‘.

II COMPANY [NFORMATION e : o W*“u R
6. Prospectus/DL Petition; -

7. Certified copy of the Cert:ﬁcé;iahaéf lncorporgfivgrvl; - At
'8 Certified copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association; a2
9. Certified copies of the annual}gﬁt_)];t—sm_ T o A-3w-
©10.  Last annual return submitted under Section 130 of the Compan:es Act a4
11, Details of authoﬁzed nssued subscribed and p pald up share capltal i I

(see: DL Petition); '
12, Details of sharehoider ownership (see: DL Petition); . -

. POWEROFF-TAKE S

13. - PESCO’s letter dated 19 January 2022 and technical sanction dated 3 B
 March 2022; i
Iv - FINANCIAL AND TECHNICAL CAPABILITIES | R
Cash balances held in reserve along with the bank certlflcates C1

15 b’é’féh?&f*a‘ﬁ?&ha%g”e’é orencumbrances; g2

e —_— R _ - L
16.  Latest audited financial statements; :




RIAA

RASHAKA] ‘Barker
DISTRIBUTION LICENCE PETITION Gillette
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATICNS COMPANY
'17. Expressions of interest to provide credit or financing along with c4
sources and details thereof;
18.  Documents describing the net worth and the equity and debt ratios; 5
19, Profile of Company, its management staff and its membersinthe ~ C6
electricity industry;
20.  Employment records (CVs) of engineering and technical staff of the ~ C-7
Petitioner proposed to be employed;
' 21.  Profile of sub- -contractors, if any, anng with éiorogélons ofinterestof :  C-8 o
such sub-contractors;
22, Verifiable references in respect of the experience of the applicantand =~ €9
its proposed sub-contractors;
‘ V mecinAﬁb TECHNICAL PROPOSAL - . —— L j
23.  Technical and financial proposals for the operatlon malntenance D
planning and development of the distribution project;
VI FEASIBILITYSTUDY B o B f
24, Fea5|b|hty study of the RSEZ project; E-1
25, The type, technology, model, technical details, operational - £2
~ characteristics, system interconnection and design of the facilitiesor
systems proposed to be acquired, constructed developed or installed;
26, The e‘x—pected life of the system; o =
" 27. The location of the system, or the territory with outer boundaries 4
within which the system is proposed to be instalied and operated by
the licensee, along with maps and plans;
g 'Fuelﬁt_\'/—oe_grrd avaﬁabﬁaty, e e
29, Infrastructure oroféc-:_{cost fméoi:lrrgglan ﬁnancmg terms tariff CE6 -
calculations and assumptions of financial calculations including
- economic/financial analysis;
30, Thevtgoé and details of the services proposed to be provrded E7
731, ' Theenvironmental impact of the system; . B8
32, Progress report of the distribution & supply infrastructure ~ E§
M VII' DETAIL'; OF THE DISTRIBL_I_T_IQE SYgEMW“k_wm__ _ R
33. Enwronmental and Social Soundness Assessment (ESSA) report. | F-1
34, System studies i E-2




TASHAKAI

AL LCCMOMIC 2001

DISTRIBUTION LICENCE PETITION

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATIONS COMPANY

‘RIAA
‘Barker
Gillette

35,
T
37,
38,

39,

* Voltage levels and regulation

. : Protection, control and measuring instruments

 Patrolling and inspection procedures.

- Maintenance plans and procedures

‘Fault location/trouble-shooting procedures
Training and development procedures

information and doc
© investment

of way, feeder maps

uments in support of distribution expansion and

: Tﬁé_c;f—distribution system and configuration,";e"r";igé territor—y—,—-r_i_éht

5
e

.' -Type of metering system tgt_JVeWLjAsed

. ‘_' Line eaﬁipment characteristics ~ F-10
. Back-up/ express feeder provision ‘ e

: Accident protectior-ﬁ;_r—w_d prevention procedures T ' Rz
.. Emergency provisions o L7

- "I\wf-ié't-g;i-ng installation and testing facilities

Communication systemns




\\J RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT &
KAl

RASHA OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

EXTRACTS FROM MINUTES PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
RASHAKAIT SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND
OPERATIONS COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED DATED AUG 2", 2022

RESOLVED that Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development and Operatiors Company (Pvt.)
Limited (“RSEZDOC"”) shall apply to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) for a
distribution license in respect of RSEZDOC’s distribution in Rashakai Special Economic Zone, and in
relation thereto, sign all requisite documentation, pay ali applicable fee and undertake all other necessary
and ancillary acts and deeds.

RESOLVED FURTHER that an application for a distribution license to be made to the NEPRA with
regards to the aforesaid distribution project (the “License Application™).

RESOLVED FURTHER that LYU MING, Chief Executive Officer of RSEZDOC, bearing Passport No.
PE1476327, be and hereby singly authorized to sign the License Application and any documentation
ancillary thereto, represent before and provide any information required by NEPRA in relation to the
License Application, do all lawful acts and deeds necessary and ancillary for the processing, completion

\y’/,y]\

Lyu Ming
DIRECTOR/CEO

CERTIFICATION

CERTIFIED, that, the above resolution was duly passed by circulation to the Board of Directors of RSEZDOC on Aug
20,2022

FURTHER CERTIFIED, that the said minutes has not been rescinded and is in operation and that this is a true copy
thereof.

e
\
Lyu Ming
Authorized Representative /

Address: House No.2 Street 33, F-8/1, Islamabad, Pakistan. Tel: 051-2251986, Email: rsez.digital@gmail.com
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VAKALATNAMA

We, Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development and Operations Company (Pvt.) Limited (the
“Company™), hereby appoint and constitute Mr Nadir Altaf, Mr. Fahim Khan and Ms Zoya
Mohyuddin (“Authorized Persons”) to appear and act for and on behalf of the Company as our
advocates in connection with the preparation, filing and follow up of the Company’s application for grant
of a distribution license (the “Licence Application™), in respect of the distribution project in Rashakai
Special Economic Zone, to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (“NEPRA”) and represent
us in connection herewith.

We also authorize the said Authorized Persons or any one of them to do all acts and things necessary,
incidental to or deemed appropriate for the processing, completion and finalization of the Licence
Application with NEPRA, as appropriate.

Dated: November 7%, 2022
For and on behalf of

N

Lyu Ming

Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development and Operations Company (Pvt.) Limited

ACCEPTED

RIAA BARKER GILLETTE

Address: House No.2 Street 33, F-8/1, Islamabad, Pakistan. Tel: 051-2251986, Emaijl: rsez.digital@gmail.com
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AFFIDAVIT OF CORRECTNESS

I, Lyu Ming, Authorized Representative of Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development and

Operations Company (Pvt.) Limited, do hereby solemnly affirm & declare on oath as under:
1. That the accompanying application has been filed under my instructions;

2. That whatever has been stated in the accompanying application is true & correct to the best of my

knowledge & belief and nothing material has been concealed in respect thereof; and

(&3

That, I have sought legal advice in the matter from my legal counsels and I believe their advice to

be correct and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

DEPONENT

R

Lyu Ming : 8
. N v
Authorized Representative / ar /iThigf EXecutive Officer
Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development and Operations Company (Pvt.} Limited

YERIFICATION

It is verified on oath at Islamabad on 7% day of November 2022 that the contents of the affidavit are true

& correct to the best of my knowledge.

DEPONENT

LyuMing
Authorized Representative /%
Rashakai Special Economic Zon

Address: House No.2 Street 33, F-8/1, Islamabad, Pakistan. Tel: 051-2251986, Email: rsez.digital@gmail.com
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AFFIDAVIT

I, Lyn Ming, Authorized Representative of Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development and
Operations Company (Pvt.) Limited, do hereby solemnly affirm & declare on oath that Rashakai Special
Economic Zone Development and Operations Company (Pvt.) Limited has not been granted any other
license under the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act (Act No.
XL of) 1997.

DEPONENT

N oda

Lyu Ming

VERIFICATION

It is verified on oath at Islamabad on 7" day of November 2022 that the contents of the affidavit are true
& correct to the best of my knowledge.

DEPONENT

Address: House No.2 Street 33, F-8/1, Islamabad, Pakistan. Tel: 051-2251986, Email: rsez.digital@gmail.com
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PETITION: For the grant of Distribution License on behalf of Rashakai Special Economic
Zone Development and Operations Company { “RSEZDOC” or “Petitioner”)

1 LEGAL REGIME

1.1 Under the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act (Act
No. XL of) 1597 (the “NEPRA Act”), the Authority is mandated to, inter alia, grant licenses for
generation, transmission, distribution and supply of electric power and perform such functions
which are consequential or incidental thereto.

1.2 The Petitioner has filed this petition for the grant of a distribution license (the “DL Petition”)
before the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (the “NEPRA” or the “Authority”)
pursuant to Section 20 of the NEPRA Act, the NEPRA Licensing {Distribution) Rules 1999 {the
“Licensing Rules”) and other enabling provisions of NEPRA Rules, Regulations, Codes and
Applicable Documents.

1.3 Specifically, the Petitioner’s distribution network will be located at the Rashakai Special
Economic Zone (“RSEZ”), District Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa (KP} for the sole and exclusive
distribution of power to the RSEZ.

1.4 The intended area falls within the service territory of the Peshawar Electric Supply Company
Limited (“PESCO”) pursuant to its distribution license No. 07/DL/2002 dated 30 April 2002, as
provisionally extended. Having stated the foregoing, the RSEZ is not connected to PESCO’s
distribution and supply network.

15 PESCO's exclusivity over power distribution in its service territory expired on 29 April 2022 and
its distribution license was provisionally extended by NEPRA vide its order dated 31 May 2022
on the following condition:

“PESCO shall not have any exclusivity for the provision of Distribution and/or Electric
Power Supply services and the Authority shall reserve its right to issue other licences in its
Service/Concessional Territories.”

[Emphasis Added]

1.6 In light thereof, the Authority is empowered under the NEPRA Act to allow the Petitioner to
undertake distribution activities at the RSEZ.

1.7 Furthermore, the Petitioner undertakes that it will be in compliance with the NEPRA (Supply of

Electric Power) Regulations 2015, especially Regulation 4(3) thereof, as the load of the
Petitioner’s proposed distribution network shall not be less than 20 MW and shall have its own
132 kV grid station.




THE PETITIONER - RSEZDOC

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

The Petitioner is a ‘special purpose vehicle’ of the China Road and Bridge Corporation (“CRBC")
and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic Zone Development Management Company (“KPEZDMC")
(collectively referred to as the “Sponsor”), incorporated and existing under the taws of Pakistan.
Copies of the Certificate of Incorporation, the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Petiticner are appended as Annex A-1 and Annex A-2, respectively.

The Petitioner has an authorised capital of Rs. 10,000,000 (Ten Million Pak Rupees) divided into
1,000,000 (Ten Hundred Thousand) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 {Ten Pak Rupees) each. All of the
Petitioner’s authorised capital has been paid-up.

The Petitioner has been incorporated by its Sponsor to inter alig undertake the development of
the RSEZ. By way of background, the Sponsor is the designated developer for RSEZ, an economic
zone duly sanctioned and approved under the Special Economic Zone Act 2012 {details of which
are provided in Part 3 of this DL Petition). In pursuance thereof, CRBC and KPEZDMC entered
into an agreement for jointly undertaking the development of this flagship CPEC project.

To make the RSEZ functional for the industries set-up therein and to provide seamless electric
power connectivity, the Petitioner now seeks to develop its own distribution network for the
RSEZ and is currently in the process of laying the required distribution infrastructure.

The Petitioner intends to procure power for distribution to the RSEZ from PESCO, initially at a
single-point, for which no wheeling will be required. PESCO’s commitment to sell power to CRBC
for this purpose is evidenced in the letter dated 19 January 2022 and technicai sanction dated 3
March 2022, appended as Annex B.

The objectives of the Petitioner will include inter alia engaging in the activities relating to the
business of construction, ownership, management, control, operation and maintenance of the
electricity distribution lines, electrical distribution facilities, electrical circuits, transformers and
sub-stations as weil as the movement and delivery of electric power on distribution lines,
undertaking distribution activities and distribution business, interconnection services and
facilities and the matters connected therewith and incidental thereto.

As the distribution of electric power in Pakistan is a regulated activity, the Petitioner requires
permission from the Authority in the form of a Distribution Licence. Separately, the Petitioner
has also applied for a Supply License to undertake supply of electric power in RSEZ.

THE SPONSOR— CRBC & KPEZDMC

3.1

CRBC is a muiti-billion doflar Chinese state-owned company with over 30 years of construction
experience in the Pakistani market. CRBC has been primarily involved in the construction and
development of key infrastructure projects in Pakistan, including the notable Sukkur Bypass and
Karakoram Highway. As one of the leading Chinese investors, CRBC is backed by the China-
Pakistan Economic Corridor and has full support of the Government of Pakistan. A company
profile of CRBC is appended as Annex C-6.
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3.2

3.3

KPEZDMC, a company incorporated and existing under the laws of Pakistan, is owned by the
Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa (“GoKP”) and has specialised and regional experience in
the development and management of special economic zones in the province of Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa (“KP”).

The composition of the Petitioner’s shareholding is as follows:

3.3.a CRBC {through its subsidiary company RB Industrial Investment and Development
(Hong Kong) Limited) owns 91% of the paid-up shares;

3.3.b KPEZDMC owns the remaining 9% of the paid-up shares.

THE RASHAKAE SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The RSEZ is an approved economic zone under the Special Economic Zone Act 2012 (“SEZA”) in
Rashakai, KP which will house various industrial and commercial enterprises (also referred to as
zone enterprises under the SEZA).

The approval of an economic zone is made by a high-level committee, titled as the Board of
Approval, comprising of inter alia the Prime Minister of Pakistan, Chairman of the Beard of
fnvestment and key federal ministers.

An approved special economic zone, which includes the developer of the economir. zone and
zone enterprises, receive special {(federal and provincial) governmental assistance, incentives
and tax rebates. The Board of Investment (“BOI") inter alia acts as a one-stop facilitating agency
between the Federal Government and developers.

BOI has entered into a development agreement with CRBC and KPEZDMC in relation to the RSEZ
project and consequently, extended its full support to the Petitioner to undertake distribution
and supply of power for RSEZ.

Section 29(5) of the SEZA provides that alt federal and provincial authorities, which includes
NEPRA, are inter alig required to fully cooperate with the BOI and special economic zones
authorities in facilitating the activities of developers.

In light of the national interest invalved and governmental support extended to the Petitioner,
it is imperative that the Authority favourably considers this DL Petition.

PURPOSE OF THE DISTRIBUTION LICENCE

5.1

The RSEZ is being developed to be the first of its kind economic zone under the SEZA with an in-
house power distribution and supply network.



5.2

53

5.4

5.5

5.6

As RSEZ is a large-scale industrial estate of an unprecedented size for Pakistan, the reliable
distribution and delivery of electric power is critical for the success of the project. CRBC has the
financial and technical prowess to set-up a strong distribution network which will meet the
needs of the zone enterprises in the RSEZ.

In pursuit of its objective, the Petitioner has already developed approximately eighty percent
(80%) of the distribution and supply infrastructure and it is expected that the total load shall be
202.6 MW. The progress report of the RSEZ project and the distribution and supply network is
appended as Annex E-9.

Neediess to say, the provision of a reliable electricity distribution and supply is key to ensuring
the viability of the RSEZ as a project. Moreover, RSEZ eventual self-sufficiency may serve to set
a precedent for other economic zones, which in turn will serve to reduce the load on the
overburdened distribution companies.

In light of the foregoing, the Petitioner requests the learned Authority to favourably consider
this DL Petition for the grant of a distribution licence, which will enable the Petitioner to reliably
distribute and deliver electric power to the zone enterprises of RSEZ . The grant of a distribution
license to the Petitioner will pave the way towards energy sustainability and electrical reliability
for other similar economic zones in the country.

The Petitioner has constituted a team of experts and consultants tc undertake the proposed
distribution activities. The profiles of the Petitioner’s management staff is appended with this
DL Petition as Annex C-7 and Annex C-9 as per the requirement of the NEPRA, which include:

5.6.a the curriculum vitae of the Petitioner’s senior management, technical and professional
staff; and

5.6.b evidence of the availability of adequate technical resources to the Petitioner to carry
out the distribution activities and such evidence consists of:

— employment records of engineering and technical staff of the Petitioner; and
— verifiable references in respect of the experience of the applicant and its
proposed sub-contractors.

DETAILS AND SALIENT FEATURES O~ THE DISTRIBUTION LICENCE

6.1

6.2

6.3

The proposed distribution infrastructure and the line route to be constructed by the Petitioner
are fully explained in Annex E-2, including the Load Flow Study, etc.

The Petitioner seeks the distribution licence in order to construct, own and operate an MV
distribution network with an installed capacity of 210 MW, consisting of two 132kV grid-stations.
More specifically the network will comprise of, inter alia, bays with associated control protection
and metering system, transformer bays, power transformers, single busbar arrangement,
incomers, Substation Automation System, grid station AC/DC auxiliary supply, etc.

The majority of the distribution network will be overhead and is designed to be a low loss
system, offering improved distribution efficiencies.
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6.4

6.5

All the material and equipment to be used and procured by the Petitioner will be in accordance
with NEPRA/NTDC approved specifications.

The land on which the distribution system is to be established is hard, solid ground, suitable for
the construction of the distribution infrastructure and for the setting up of other ancillary
equipment.

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

7.1

The Petitioner’ primary sponsor, CRBC, has demonstrably strong financial capabilities to fund
the development of proposed distribution network. Evidence of the financial strength of the
both the Petitioner and CRBC is appended as Annex C-3.

FEASIBILITY STUDY, SYSTEM STUDIES & SPECIFICATION OF EQUIPMENT

8.2

8.3

84

8.5

A comprehensive feasibility study for the RSEZ has heen undertaken which inter alia includes
the site layout and plan for construction of various facilities, including the distribution and supply
network, estimated investment and the socio-economic impact assessment of the project. The
said feasibility study is appended herewith as Annex E-1.

Separately, the Petitioner hired reputable consultants to finalize the feasibility study of the
electrical system (distribution and supply) of RSEZ. The feasibility study for the electrical system
(distribution and supply) specifying the type, technology, model, technical details, operational
characteristics, system interconnection and design consists of the following documents,
appended herewith as Annex E-2:

1. Grid Interconnection Studies, as approved by NTDC vide its letter dated 20 June 2022;

2. External Electrification Design Book of the 11kv distribution network;

3. General Layout Plan and Single Line Diagram of GS-1 substation, as approved by NTDC
vide its letter dated 25 November 2021.

The Petitioner has reviewed the relevant technical details of the distribution infrastructure to
be established with necessary specifications including the control and protection system.

The distribution infrastructure established by the Petitioner will be compliant with the
requirements of the applicable environmental laws and policy and the infrastrueture znd routing
alternatives of the Petitioner will be based on such environmental considerations including
construction activities, right-of-way clearing and impacts of construction and operation of
towers, access roads, substations and related facilities.

The details and specifications of the distribution equipment form part of the feasibility study.



9 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT AsSESSMENT (THE “E1A”)

9.1 The EIA (as approved) for the RSEZ project, which includes the distribution and supply network,
is attached herewith as Annex E-8 hereto.

10 METERING & TESTING FACILITIES

10.1 The details relating to metering and testing etc. are appended with this DL Petition as Annex F-
16 and Annex F-17.

11 COMMUNICATION

111 The Substation Automation System shall be used to collect data from instruments and relays
located at grid station and to transmit data at load dispatch center (LDC), RSEZ for monitoring
and controlling purpose. The collected data from relays and instrument shall be viewed on one
or more SAS host computers that will be located at LDC, RSEZ. Based on the information received
from the grid stations, automated or operator- driven supervisory commands can be pushed to
grid station control devices which are then referred to as the field device.

13.2 Further details relating to SAS and communicaticns etc. form a part of the Communication
System information, which is appended with this DL Petition as Annex F-18.

i2 O&M, TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT

121 The Petitioner shall implement the operation & maintenance, training and development
programmes that meet the Authority’s approved specifications. These programmes shall be
developed before the commencement of operations of the Petitioner. The Petitioner plans to
employ, inter alia, experienced and trained personnel to carry out the operation and
maintenance of the distribution system.

i3 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

13.1 The Petitioner shall provide NEPRA such further or additionai information, clarification or
explanation as it may require from time to time.

13.2 It is respectfully submitted that the Petitioner also requests the Authority to ailow it to

supplement and submit such information and supporting material that it may deem appropriate.
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14 PRAYER

14.1 In light of the forgoing, the Petitioner respectfully prays that the learned Authority kindly:

14.1.a  accept the instant DL Petition and grant the distribution licence to the Petitioner for
the purpose of undertaking distribution activities within the area of the RSEZ;

14.1.b allow the Petitioner to engage in the activities relating to the business of construction,
ownership, management, control, operation and maintenance of the distribution
network, including the distribution lines, electrical distribution facilities, electrical
circuits, transformers and sub-stations, the movement and delivery of electric power,
distribution activities and distribution business, interconnection services and facilities
and the matters connected therewith and incidental thereto;

14.1.c  aliow such other reliefs which is just, fair, proper, better and necessary in these
circumstances.

Dated: 11.11.2022

PETITIONER

Rashakai Special Economic Zone
Development and Operations Company

through

RIAA Barker Gillette

3" Floor, 65-W, Executive Heights,
Block H, Fazl-ul-Hag Road,

Blue Area, Islamabad

Tel: (051) 111-LAWYER

Fax: (051) 2852427-30
www.riaabarkergiliette.com



CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

ANNEX ~ A-1

RSEZDOC's Certificate of Incorporation is appended herein below.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

COMPANY REGISTRAT]ON OFFICE

CERTIFICATE OFVINCORPORATION'

2017 (XIX of 2017)]

of 201 7) and that the company

is limited by shares

Gwen under my- _and b3 Seventeenth. day of J.lL!LTwo
Thousand and’I’wentv ' TR A

i (Syed J amal Ahmed Zaxdl)
Addmonal Joint Registrar .
' Islamabad S
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Company Registration Office
ISLAMABAD

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FILING
[See-regulation-13 (1)]

No. ADR-1/0154049 Dated: 17.07.2020

In the matter of RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED - PLOT
NO.3D, STREET 65, MUSLIN MARKET, F-10-3,, ISLAMABAD, ISLAMABAD
Islamabad Urban Islamabad Capital Territory (I.C.T.) 44000

The receipt of the under mentioned document(s) filed, registered and
recorded pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), is hereby
acknowledged.

Application for Company Incorporatign 17.07.2020
Memorandum of Association dated |
Articles of Association dated 17.07.20

Jamal Ahmed Zaidi)
Additional Joint Registrar
State Life Building, 7-Blue Area,
Islamabad

Fee. Rs. 800 /-

Process ID: 3376212




F

ANNFX -A-2

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

\

RSEZDOC's Memorandum and Articles of Association are appended herein beIoM.
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Deputy Registrar
Company Redistration Office Islamabad.
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PRECIRETY

lae, Form-I1

COMPANIES (INCORPORATION) REGULATIONS, 2047

[See Section 16 of the Act and Regulation 5)

APPLICATION FOR COMPANY INCORPORATION

PART-I

{To b completed by the applicant in Bock letters)

i

1.1 Name of the Company | RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELDPMENT &

OPERATIONS COMPANY {PRIVATE) LIMITED

i
1.2 Fee Payment 1.2 Challan Na | 0183089871000097
Details 1 :
122 Challw Amount | 101,000.00
{Rs.) ;
PART-II
Section ~ A - Company information
2.1*  Correspundence Address . o ;
City ~ ] pistrit | ] Province ¢
Telephone Emnail i
Number A

Mobile Number

LR

T

S e £ T
A R A T R L RIS
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LR

¥

T

22 Repistered office Address.

it TPLOT NO. 3d. STREET 65, V18T IN \xw.:';'.' Plo

any | [SLAMABAD. PAKISTAN
City [ISLAMABAD | Distriet [NJL ] Province ©
Jelephone novz SI-225008672252080 | Wehsieril Inn T

Number

any)

Mobile Number

[ 03135900358

it
ipd

Principal line off
busiress (Brief objects
as per clause 3 (i) of the
Memorandum may be
mentioned) i

b e et

N!l

|
!

‘1 Email Address. rdb al\msezf“;vahoo.urn 1

YThe principal [ine of business ol the Compuny isidevelopment,
Flinancing, construction, murketing, manayenient mad operation of |
¢ special Econnic Zone in Rashakai, Tehsil, Dimkt Nowwskerd, |
'1 Khyber Pakhtunkhwa glang with any ancillary bisiiess thereto,

i

Seetion — B~ Capltal Structure

H

_~.‘.j Class? Kind , Nuomber of '{;t»mI Amoung
i Fuce Vulue ‘
p shares L o
3 e, ; N Tanit S VOE S e ] } ¥ r 5
5 24 Authorized Capital . Urdinary shazc PI\RIO 00 1.000.000/- P\E 00, [ O |
4 1 ACL%
: ‘ i N ,
3 25 Paid Up Capit . PRI000 |1 0000001 PRRI000.000
: 5 Puaid Up Capital Ordinary share PRR 1000 ‘x,uuo 000 310'1}{{1(3 (0,000 ;
k! [ PR 4 S
2
! Section ~ C — Special business information®
(Applicable in case of Banking Company, Non-banking Finance Company, Insurnme company,
Modaraba management company. Swock Brokerage business, forex, managing agency, business of

,—5 - providing the services of security guards and any ather business cestricted under any other law or
i as muy be notified by the Commission) j»
'f:’ - - - - ‘ W,
f 26 Nowwre of business in cuse of Nl : i
ﬁpuciuiizcd business roquiring ; ; j
ficense 7 permission / approval | '
i {plesse specify and also altach -
NOC 7 approval of the relevant ;
; autherity) e - - SO
(\p'\' WBg \
“iddditional documeniy will be reg; ;;g; }’I iﬁiung-“:"}
S NN \
: Seetion - D - Company subscribers. directors. chief executive office 2 *"k Ei
. v ¥ o
B gt &
“4'(,- ‘Q (\(’ .r‘f
T Zeiizse
i bk G R b T Ve o ﬁ*‘?-‘%’*.‘%ﬂm*“ L e R TS 4 57 4, 3. - ; S




4
¥

;.
2
bl
7

P
)
#
3
q

ey AT

e e e i e PRI

meniber company, nomineg
2.7 Sture Number of direetors lixed by subseribers:
[Please note that as per lew o compuny must have minimm director as foliows )
i Kind af Comipany ! Minimum aumberof | No. of propused
! ¢ directors required by - dirvetors
L law X !
!_E_r'ngie Member Company | 0] X o z
Provute Limited Compary 1 02 i 03 1
| Public Limired Company 103 N g
2.8 Details of subseribers, directors and chiel executive officer * :

i Nume | Fath | NIC/N| ** { Nationa | Residenti” NTN | Designa | & l

' ¢ er | ICOP | lueo | ity al (in ton | E i

: A ¢ rpor | {with address/ | case | (Direeto i i

| * Hus | coseof utivn | former regisfere ;© of v/ = !

' Cband | Pakist |/ ’ uational | doffice | diree | Subseri | < Py
P Nam D oani o Hegi i ityand | .2 address  ton ber/ | 2 ;( =
© ¢ | nation | Strat \ national | § or . wher | CEOY 'i ‘ =
: ahur | fon | ityof | § principal | e | Please ! % © g

E ; Pussp | Num the § office (in ! appli | specify g ! v
: or! ber | origin, | = ense of u | cable 2 2

Nofin if subscribe | ) *®
i ease of differen r other 3 ;
: ! loreig P than u 3 ;
1 ner) aataral 2 i
e ‘ person LA
i RB : | 7116 Uhits 06- , - Nipe
industri 4297 11, 23M/F hindred
tal Park | -000- KA wah ! and  ten

" tnvestm | 09- CTR 19i thousand

ent & f19.3 | {JAVA RD (910,000) |
' Develop t I . MORTH '

; ' . . POINT, :

: ’I HONG

! KONG ;

; b |

1 ! r

! ; :

: ! Compan P
CWAE S PE164 ' Chinese |y {Subserlb | :
Yaoguo i 5315 ' Empioye er I
J : ' l .e | :
Khyber J 0099 ! 120, - Niriety |
: Pakhtun - 947 i Industeial thausand ;
khwa _ B i Estate, 1  1so,000) |

AR SN e i O AR RS T R, 7

|
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¥
i

; Econom
ic Zones |
Develop

| ment & (

. Manage *

" ment
_ Compan
Py

represe
Mir.

Faisal
Saleem

|

i

| nted by

M
Saler __’
imour

Rahman

Rai

. man

!

16101-
47705
92-5

Pakistan { Compan
: Einploye
e

. Yaoguo
* Nomine

ment
; {(Hong
Kong)

ent &'
Develop |

“Mr, Sun

v

- Sun
‘e of RB
Industri |

al Park !
tnvestm

i

lested '

H
e e e b i bt Wb

: Ma\,»&z.'{u;z”
d,

* Peshawar

. Khyber

Pakhtuna

hwa,

: Pakistan

LMy,
Lhihuai
Nomine

 Industa

L ‘Mr.

‘i
: Lihai

e of RB .

“al Park :

¢ lovestm

“ent &

Develop :
ment
! {Hong
E Kong)
Limited

Subyscrils
er

.Lf'[_]” .

| PE164 |- Chinese | Compan - Difector | :
5315 : v Chizza / C&CED !
'. Employe |
: e Unis 04~ | ;
¢ . il 2 LI‘IF § [ 1
i Z : ‘
| KA WAK. =
it 19} i
; Jrta &P % |
: Nofut g
i P‘"’T; | :
: : sl g xnlh i :
. PEUGS S T Thinese | Compan | Bear 1 3 Daeaar T T
TSSO
I [
: 1S3 N0 .23 ’z
H ;
I #=frr | C
* i 3\4&1&4
! ! :
E ! | SR i -
. Chinese | Compan | Sefjlag |- | Director |
, | Employe : i i
! e ]
H
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Cab Park | 17 . 2
i Investm ﬁ‘dﬂjm
lent &: wat ;
. Develop i M“)
| (Hong | e
[ Kkong) ! i PP('
limited ’, China
Mr. Lyui Mr . PEZOT [ Chinase ; Compan | Sedieg ] -
Yan I Lyu 6010 % ¥ . Chisa o ;
Nemine | Ke | | Employe !
e of RB | : ! ! “"W"zy
Industri ' g*ﬂ,
al Park F-f/’ 5
Investm -
tent & ;
Develop i 'u‘ﬂ}. {
" ment ’
{Hong
" Kong)

Limited -

M | M
Faisal |
Saleem
Rahman | Rah
Nomine : man
e of |
Khyber !

’ Pakhtun
; khwa
! Econom .
' ¢ Zones
- Develop
~mant &

" Manage |

ment |
Compan |

i Salee
[ mour

; 16103- | -

. 47705

¥
i
i
i

92-5

Fokistan

Py

Compan

Employe
e

(

! Peshawar

i

i

[

PN
Director

]

L

}

j

6 - Park |-
Ayvenue,
University
Town,

Director | :

tails of Nominee (only in case of single member company - Nominee shatl not'oe a person
t than relalives of the member- nanrely, a spouse, father, mather, brother, -sister and son or

i
) i
T L B TR e P e T T B N R R A R e A A R A S S T KA 2




<nughter)
Name of Nontinee

NIC of Nominee

Residentiod address of Naminge

Telephone dumber of Nominee |

Fatl address of Nominee

Retutivnship of Nominee with
subseriber '

Signature of Nominee

Section — E- If the vompuoy Hmited by shares intends to adopt tables contnined i First

Schedule to the Act, tick the relevant tuble,

O Y ‘Tabic A~ Part | {Artictes of association of company Limiled by shares)

(] Table A- Part-11 {Articles of association of single member company Himied by shires)

Section - I~ The company limiterd by shares in.case-it has aot adopted articles of association
contuined in Fiest Schedule to_the Act , company limited by gograntee and unfimited

. company shall attach the articles of nssocintion.

Decliration under section 16

3.1 Declarant Name CMROLYUY
3.2 Declarant Profession / £1 Authorized Intermediary ‘o
Designation Tt v a person namst i the articles ax Director of the
{2
{Pleuse check relevant procosed comiping i

R A i L 2 ahnmen vms 3




A A
a0

Declaration 1 do hereby solemnly and sincerely declare that: ‘
i 4) | have been authorized as declarant by the substribers:
i by il the requirements of the Cempanies Act, 2017, and the |
i regulations made there under in respect of mattdes precedent |
to the registration of the said Company and incidental
thereto have been complied with i (
¢) lmakethis solemn declaration conscientiously behc\ ing the |
i___same to be true, ; j
Declarant Signature a M i
Registration No of

authorized intermediary, if ’ '
applicable ;
i

"“Q‘?X" Month _ g‘(car
5.6 Dae 71 o7 7 2 {'{F: [0
— e L A : i
Fnclosures: »

{i)  Original paid bank -hallan evidencing payment of fee; i
tii)  Memorandum of As; xiation, !

{iit) Articles of Association, where applicable;

(iv) Copies of valid NICNICOP of the subscribers/directorschief executive Ll'ﬂcer or copy
of Passport in case of a foreigher; |

(v} Copy of valid NIC/NICOP of Nominee only in case of single member coinpany or copy

of Passport in case of & foreigner;

Copy of valid NIC of witness in case of physiesl filing;

NOC/Letier of Infent/ License (if any) of the relevant regulatory authonty in case of

specinlized business; 1

Authority letrer for fiting of documents for the proposed company as pﬂ‘ ‘requirement of

clawse (vi) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 5.

Copy of valid NlC.’Passporl of person duly suthorized by the Board of dwectors of 4 body

corporate which is a subscriber along with copy of Board resolution hnd attendance

sheet. In case of d subscriber which is a limited liability partnership, copy of valid NIC/

Passport of designated pariner cmpowered to ace us suchy along with Lopy of instrument

empowering him;

!
Tn case the subscriber is a foreign company or & forcign body coeporate, the profile uf the
company, detail ol its directors, their nationslity and country of origin, deruhcd copy of
its Lharter statute or memorandum and articles eic.

CERYIFIED TO BE TRUE cOP\O\

et e 1 ISR A oS
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(xi}  In case of foreign subscriber/ officer, an undertking on stamp paper of fequisite value

duly signed, notarized

and witnessed to the effect that in case name ol sullseriberotficer

is not security cheared by Mol, the subseriberiofficer and the cnmpa}:y, shall tahe
nninediate steps for replacement and shall transfer shures i’ any, held by the subseriber,

Witness 10 above signatures: (For the documents suburitted i pivesical form;

Sigiitures

“Full Name (in Block Leters)

MR MUHAMMAD KHURRAM KHAN

- Futler's/ Husband's name

VIR AKHTAR ZEB KHAN T

Nationality

I PAKISTANI

TNICNe,

1330319413011

Usual residential address

“HOUSEA31272, STF20, SLC-1. ATRPORY HOUSING
; SOCIETY, RAWALPINDI,

O T

1%

He

¥

e ek s b e g
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
OF

* Rushakui Special Economic Zone Development & Operations Company ( Privie} Ligitad™

i The name of the company is Rashakai Special Economic Zone Development & Qjjcrations

Company (Private) Limited.

2 The registered office of the Compony will be situated in Islavabad Capitad Territary

3 (i}

{it)

i
The principal line of business of the company shall be 10 ey on the business of
development. fnancing. construction, marketing, management and operaion of Special
Eeonomic Zone in Rashakai, Tehsil, District Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa al}ang with
any anciliary business tharelo, under the provisions of Lhe Special Economic Zmaes At
2012, Spectal Economic Zone Rules 2013 andl other allied laws. H cup dead in atl typos of
devetoped and non-developed fand for various purposces of industrial, conunercial and
residential propertics mainly for the indusirial and comeercial purposes wxd dad types
of property as well as matters ancillary therete with the applicable appr&va!s and
permissions: from the concerned authorities and in compiiance with applicable laws and
regulations, i

Except for the businesses mentioned in sub<clavse (i) hereunder, the company may
engage in all the tawrid businesses and shal! be authorized 1o take alt necessasteps and
actions in vonnection therewith srad ancillary thereto.

Notwithstanding znything contained in the forepoing sub-clauses of his clawse sothing
contained heretn shall be constraed as empowering the Company to undertake of indulge,
divectly or indirectly in the business of a Banking Compasy, Nen-baskieg Finance
Company {Mutual Furl, Leasiog, Tnvestment Contpany, Investment Advisor, Rfe::l Fstate
Iavestment Trust management company, Howsing Finmnee Company, Vemuone Capitd
Company, Discounting. Services, Microfinamee o Micreredit busitess), Jisusanee

Page 2 of 5
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L4

w Business, Madoraba maragement company, Stock Brokerage business, forex, managing
i ngency, business of providing the services of security guards or any olhe] business .
restricted under any law for the time being in Torce or as may be specified by the
g Commission, ‘

: (iv)  Itis hereby undertaken that the company shall not:

b

A4 . . . -+ v 5

3 {8} engage 1n any of the business mentioned in sub-clause {iii) above or any unlawful
: operation; :

{h) faunch multi-leve] marketing (MLM), Pyramid and Ponzi Schemes. or other
related activities/businesses of any lottery business;

() engage in any of the permissible business unless.the requisite approval, permission,
consent o ficence is obtained from competent authority as may be reqgired under

any law for the sime being in forcy,

4. The fiability of the members is limitted.

A R Y B A A LT

3 The aulhorized capital of the company is Ry 10,000,000 (Rupees Ten Million Pak Répees anly)
divided into 1,000,000 {ten hundred thousand) ordinary shares of Rs.10/~ (Rupees ten only) m

A A

A |
4 !
4 '
- |
!
g
i

Page 3of 5 : i
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We, the sevesal persans whose names and addresses ere subscribed belaw, are desirous of boiby formed

ima a company, it purseance of this memorandim of association, and we respectively agree 1o ke the

sunber of shases in the capiial of the contpany as set cpposite pur respective names:

!
|
l
|

|
!
i

R ok e R N N T ¥

Nane NIC No. | Father's/ | Nationafity {lsynd Nember of
and (in case of | Husband's | {ies) with residensial sheres taken
sumame | foreigner, | Namein | any former address it full hy each
{present | Passport full Nationality 3 oé m_j subscriber (in
BT B g | rgiseay | TEPOMS) 2
01'!;1 L! l) 7 poncipal office 5
'"(. i 3 | adoress fora A
Hl?n‘k subseriber other
L o thn ratral
ctlers) [Ieryon J
1B Units G6-11,  [Nine l
tndustri 23AF KA bundred and i
al P'{rk WAHCTR  len thousand :
‘!n\"x:szm 191 JAVA  K910.000) !
et & RDNORTH {
e i
Develo POYN l
pment HONG
(HUHg E\‘)g\(.l.
Kong) CHINA
l.imi‘lt:d ,
Chinese - C:m
] Represe | p i :
n;¢d b‘\« Pb i 6“ 33 L‘:-":,_I i
Me Sun | 12 oxe ;
Yuoguo
Page 4 of 5




Kiyber Al 120, Ninety
Pakhiu INDUSTRIA [thousand
nlghwag L ESTATL, 906.000)
Evono HAYATABA

tic D,

Zones PESHAWAR

Develo R KI'EYBE’R:
pment Pf\%& HTUNK
& HWA,

i
7
Manuge PAKISTAN J :
rent \{)
Campa \”é
uy )
N

Represe

nted hy

2\1( R

BtIAHH 1770592- il

Saleem b5 Sateemur | |, .o | Com

o 5 Pakistani pany

Raham Rahmun empl

an ayee
Total number of shares taken (in figures and One million
words) {1,000,000)

|

i
only o

-

Ursted thel Tih day ol July, 2020

Wimess o above signatarss:  (For the documents submitted b phvsical form)

¢ Signoture l ‘\ms
Full Nume (in Block Letters) | MR MUHAMMAD KHURRAM KHAN | |
Father'sf Hushand's name MR AKHTAR ZEB KHAN i
Nationality PAKISTAN]
Occunation Senior [nvestrnent Adviser
NIC No. 13503-1941201-1
Usuad residential address HOUSE#312/2, ST#20, SEC-1.
AIRPORT HOQUSING SOCIETY.,
RAWALPIND],
%{ ¢ y
|ED TO BE TRYUE COPY

Page

Dep egistrar

Company Registration Office Islamabad
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- THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (XIX 0f2017)

53
i

<

(Company Limited by Shares)
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

Rashakai Speciai Eennomic Zone Development & Operations Com par:ny
{Private) Limited. :

PRELIMINARY
1. {1} In these reguiations-

{a) “section” means section of the Act;

(b) “the Act” means the Companies Act, 2017; and

(¢} “'the seal” means the common seal or official seal of the company as the caéc may be.

{2) Unless the context otherwise rcqulres, words or expressxons contamed in these
regulations shall have the same meaning as in this Act; and words importing the singular shall
mcludu the plursl, and wvice versa, and words importing the masculine gender shall include
femninine, and words importing persons shall include bodies corporar,

BUSINESS :
2, The directors shall have regard to the restrictions on the commencement of busmess imposed
by section 19 if, and so far as, those restrictions are binding upon the company. :

SHARES

3. In vase of sharcs in the physical form, every person whose name is entered us a member in the

u:m:ate.r of members shall, withoul payment, be entiticd to receive, within thirly fdays after
aliotment or within fiteen days of the application for registration of transfer, a certifidate under -
the scal specifving the share or shares held by him and the amount paid up thereon: |

Provided that if the shares are in book entry form or in ease of conversion of physical
shares and other transferable securities into book-entry form, the company shall, within ten days
after an apphication is made for the registration of the transier of any shares or other sécuritics to
a cenieal depository, register such transfer in the name of the central deposilory.

company shall not be bound 10 issue more than one cerdificate in respect of a share or
the physical form. held jointly by several persons and delivery ol a cemhmtc for a
¢ of several joint holders shali be sufficient delivery to all.

3&:‘% are certificate "in physical form is detaced, fost or destroved, it may be _icncwed on
of audl fet., if any. nol c\u.uding one htmdred rupces and on <.uch terms, if any, as 10




6. Except 10 the extent and in the manner allowed by section 86, no part of the funds of the
campany shall be ¢mployed in the purchase of, or in loans upon the security of) the company’s
shares.

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

7. The inswument of transfer of oy share in physical form in the company shall be executed both
by the transferor and transfercs, and the transferor shall be decmed o remain holder of the share
ontil the name of the transferee is entered in the register of members in respect thereol

8. Shares in physical form in the company shall be transferred in the following lurm orin any
usual or commaon frm which the directors shall approve: -

Form for Transfer of Shures
(First Schedule ta she Companies Acl. 2017}

Lo SIO v pessens B00vvseeeeennnne. (hereinafler called “the tomasferor™ in
consideration of xhe SUM . Of FUPRES v ceaisens paid 0 me by . §0
........ vrerrrreemrors Fermvanmmenecs (Hereinofier called “the transieree™, do hereby trm-lu lo the
said  transforee......... T theshsu{orshan’S)\xalhdnsnncmr:numbf*r.wlrnm

............. B IDCHISTVE, I e v, Limited, 10 hold unte the said
transferee, his executors, administrators and assigns, subject to the several conditions on which
held the same at the time of the execution hereot, and 1, the said transteree, do hercby agree to
take the said share {or shares) subject to the conditions aforesaid,

As withess our hands this.......eeene.. d8Y 0F. i rrevarreenesenn . 20.....

Signateee oo, Stgnalure .....ooiciennnls.

Transferor Transferee

Full Name, Father’s / Husband's Name Full Name, Father's / Hushand’s Name
ONIC Number (in case of forcigner. CNIC Nuiber (in case of foreigner,
Passport Number) Passport Number)

Nationality Nationality

(Oteupation und usual Residential Address Oceupation and usual Residential Address

Cell number
Landline number, if any
Email address

m&.ﬂ- Camﬂ
Y H . ‘)\ s,
Witness 1: Witness T e ZINN

S Sra
53 2 u‘?,_}'lr%;' .
Signawre............ vereernlle s Signat g <.

Name, CNIC Number and Full Address Name 1&g

D T



A5

Bank Account Details of Transferee far Payment of Cash Dividend
(Mandatory in case of a listed company or optional tor any other company) -

It is requested that all my cash dividend amounts declired by the mmp.m\r. may be
crediied into the following hank aceount:

Tile of Bank Account
Bank Account Number
Hank's Name
Branch Name and Adidress

It is stated that the sbove menticned information is correct and that | will intimate the
changes in the above-mentioned information to the company and the concerned Share Registrar
a8 suon as these oecur

Cla bt cigsarsars e avassataoraeinny

Signature of the Teansterse(s)

9, {1} Subject to the restrictions eonuined in regulation 10 and 11, the directors shall not refuse
to transfer any share unless the transfer deed is defective or invalid. The directors: may also
suspend the registration of transfers during the test days immediately preceding & gencral meeting
or prior to the determination of entitlement or rights of the sharcholders by giving seven days’
previous notice in the manner provided in the Act. The directors may, in case ol shares in
physical torm, decling to recognise any instrument of transter unless—

a) a fee noi cxceeding fifly rupees as may be determined by the divectors is paid w
the company in respect thereof; and

by the duly stamped instrumien: of transfer is accompanicd by the certificate of thé shares o
which it relates, and such uther evidence as lhe dircctors may reasonably reqms'u 10 slow
the right of the transferor 10 make the transfer,

(23 I the directors refuse 1o register a sransfer of shares, they shall within fifteen days
atter the date on which the transter deed was lodged with the company send to the tmns!'erec and
the teansferor notice ol the refusal indicating the defect or invalidity w the transferee, who shall,
alier wemoval of such defeet or invalidity be entitled o re-lodge the transfer deed with the

vomp :)}D’m\‘f saw,,
S 2

A h

s\?@ ive days imm thc date on which the instrument of Lransfer was !odﬂed
v @1 I{W'llldltv to the transferee who shall, after the removal of such defect
o ‘Ig' lodge the transfer deed with the company.

¢

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

10, The executors, sdministrators, heirs, or nominees, as the case may be, of & deéeased sole
holder of a share shall be the only persons recognised by the company to desl with the share in~
accordance with the taw, In the casc of a share registered in the names of two or mose holders,
the survivors or survivor, or the execitors or administrators of the deceased surviver, shall be the




only persons recognised by the company to deal with the share in decordance with the haw,

1. The shares or other securitics of 4 deceased member shail be transferred oo application duly
supported by succession centificare or by lawful award, as the case may be, in favour of the
successors to the extent of their imterests and thetr names shall be entered o the register of
- mepnbers.

12, A person may on acquiring interest in a company as inember. a\.pn.scnl;d by shaces, ui any
timie after acquisition of such interest deposit with the compony a nemination conferring vu 4
person, being the relatives of the member, namedy, a spouse, fadier. mother, brother, sister and
son or daughier, the right o protect the Interest ol the legal heirs in the shares of the deceased in
the everit of his death, as a trustee and w {acilitate the ransker of shares to the legal heirs of the
decensed subject to succession to be determined under the Islumic faw of inberitance tnil in case
of non-Musiim members, as per their respective law,

13. ‘The person nominated under regulation 12 shall, afler the death of the member, be deemed a5
a member of company till the shares are transferred 10 the legal heirs and if the deceased was a
dircctor of the company, not being a listed company, the nominee shall also act ais director of the
company Lo proteet the interest af the legal heirs, ’

14, A person to be deemed as u member under regulation T 12 and 13 w0 o share by reason of
the death or insulvency of the holder shatl be entitled to the same dividends und other advantages
to which he wotld be entitied if he were the registered holder of the share and exercise any right
conitrred by membership in relaion o meetings ol the company,

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL
L5, The company may, by special resolution-
(1) increase its authorised capital by such amount as i thinks expedient;

(b) consotidate and divide the whole or any part of its share capital into shares of larger
amount than its existing shares;

{£)  sub-divide its shares, or anv of them. intoe shares of smaller amount thun is fived by the
remorandum;

{d) cancel shares which. at the date of the passing of the resolution | \b 53 bel '1 we ot
been tken or agreed to be taken by any person, and dxmms;}gj ¢ a.rugum share
capital by the amount ol the share so canceiled. af° ,ﬁ?"\’ g 3 s
"”' 1;5:1
» s
16, Subject to the provisions of the Act, all new shares shall at (hegﬁr@ n{@w JegHlergd to
such persons as at the date of the offer are entitled 10 such isne in Fmapﬂ-gv% Jegly ihe

circumstunces admit, 1o the wnount of the existing shares o shich &.é’e@h 1

shall be made by letter of offer specitving the number of shares ole 4@3 é;?’ e 4 zime
withirt which the offer if not accepted. will deens 1o be deelined, and afier
time, or on the receipt of an intimation from the person to whom the offer is nmdu thit b
declines to accept the shares offered, the din:cmrs may dispose of the saune in such manner us

they think most beneficial to the company, The directors may like wisc so dispose of any new
shares which (by reason of the ratin which the new shares bear o shares held by persons entitied

to st offer vf new shares) cannet, in the apinion of the dircctors, he convendently offered wder

liis rerudation.




17.

The new shares shall be subject to the same provisions with reference to transfer.
transmission and othenwise as the shares in the original share capital.
18, The company imay, by special resolution-

. shares;

it

{a) cousolidare and divide its share capital into shares ol larger smount th'm its existing

(1) sub-divide its existing shaves or any of them inte shares of smaller amowpt than is {ixed
by the memorandum of assocition, subject, nevertheless, to the provisions ofs_ccﬁnn 3
{e) cancel any shares which. at the date of the passing of the resolution, Iave not been taken
or agreed 1o be waken by any person.
19,

The company may, by special resolution, seduce its share capital in any manner and withy, and
subject o confirmation by the Court and any incident authorised and consent required, by fuw

GENERAL MEETINGS
section 131, T

M The swlutery general meeting of the company shall be held within the period required by
210 A general ineeting,

i
!

to be cated annual general meeting, shall be held. in accordance with the
provisions of section 132, within sixween months from the date of incorpgraimn of the company
and therealfter once at least in every venr within a period of one hundred and mwemy days
folluwing the close of its financial year,

meetings

22, Al general meetings of a company other than the statutory meeting or an annual general
meeting mentioned in sectjons 131 and 132 respectively shull be called ex

tmordman general
23. The directors may, whenever they think 1it, call an extraordinary genéral mgeting, and

extraordinary general mectings shall also be called on such requisition, or in defieilk, may be
callest by such requisitionists, as provided by section 133, If at any time there are!nol within
Pakistan sulficicnt directors capable of acting to form a quorum, any dircctor of the company

et :
miry cull an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner us ﬂ-.m'ly as pnbf.lbin a¢s that in
which meetings may be called by the directors.

S

)?“\\

it
-

B

' brher pcﬂ:um.zgu of the p:ml up anlta] as may be :-.pLu[u,J are rwduxl in
any shall pmvidc thc t‘zu:iiilv ut‘vndno-!ink tu .sue,h munbcrs For ‘:umdmg




NOTICE AND PROCLEEDINGS OF GENERAL MuETINGS

25, Twentv-one duys’ notice at the keast {exclusive of the day on which the notice is served or

deemed w be served, but inclusive of the day fer which notice is given) specifying the plice. the

. duy and the hour of meeting end. s case of special business, the general nature of that business,

“. shell be given in manner provided by the Act tor the general meeting, to seeh pessans a8 are.

*:mdel the Act or the regulations of the company, entitled o receive such notice from the
com;mrw but the accidental omission tw give notice 1o, or the non-receipt of netice by, any
member shall not invalidate the proceedings at any general mecting,

20, All the business transacted ut 2 geneeal meeting shull be deemed speciol other than the

I

business sited in sub-section {2} of section 134 namely: e consideration of fin -uua!

staterients and the ceports of the bourd wad auditors, the declaration 0! any dividend, the slection

and appointment of directors in plnce of those retiving, and the sppolatment of the auditors and
fixipg ot their remuneration,

present at that lime when the meeting proceeds W business, The quoruy ef the general niceting
shall be- :

27. No business shall be transacted at any gencral meeting unless a quorum of nembers is

{a; in the casc of a public listd company, not less thun ten mentbers present persoraliy, or
through video-link who repeesent nol less than twenty-five pereent ol the total voting
power, either of theid own account or as proxies:

(hy o the case of any nther conpany having sliare capital, 2wo members present pe rmr‘:.:;!\ ur

through video-link who represent not less than beente-tive percent of he {owd voting
power, ¢ither of their own aecount or s proxics.

meeting, il called upon the reqmition of members, shall he disselved; i
smnd udjqumd lo the samic dm in lhc ne\:t wee ek al 1hc same time

resend
mrhm f![icen minues afler the time uppcunmi for the tmwm.. or % unwilling 10 et as
chairman, any one of the directors present may be elected to be chairman, and if fone of the
direetors is present, or willing to act as chairman. the mombers present shall chouse onz of their
i ber fo be chairman,

36, "The chairman may, with the cansent of any mecting at which a guotum is present-{and shall
i su directed by the meeting). adjourn the meeting from tine w time but no business shall be
transacied al any adjourned meeting uther than the pusiness lefl unfinished ot the meeting from
whicn the udjomnmem 1ock place. When a meeting is adjourned for lileen days or mbr. notice
of the adjeurned mecting shall be given a5 in the case of an originut mecting. Save as aforesaid, it
sholl nol be necessary to give any notice of an adjourment or of b business ( be ransactod 0t
an adjournzd meeting.



31, {13 Al any general meeting a rasolution put 1o the vote of the meeting shall be d&.cukd on gt
shay of tands unless a poll is (before or on the declarmion of the result of the show Of hands)
desnded. Unless a poll is so demunded, a declwration by the chairmyan that » resalutioh has. on
a show of hands, heen cardied, or carried unanimously, or by a pactieular majority, or Jek, and an
entry to thay efTeet in the book of the proceedings of the company shall be conclusive ev dence of
tiwe tuct, without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recarded in lavour of, or nbdmsx,

“ that resohution.

%
A
%

) Al any generat meeting, the company shall transacl such businesses ds may he
nontmu h\ the Comimission, ondy through postal ballot. :

32, A poll may be demanded only in accordance »with the provisions ol section 43,

33, Wa poll is duly demanded, it shall be taken in accordance with the manner laid down in
sections 144 and 143 and the resuli of the poil shall be deemed 1o be the resolufion of the
wigetng al which the poll was denanded. '

34, A poll demansted on the election of chainnur or ou a guestion ol adjourinent shal be taken

atanee.

35, In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on & poll, the chairman of
the ineeting at which the show of hands takes place, or at which the poll is demanded, shall have
and exercise a second or casting voie.

36, Lxcept for the businesses spesiiied under sub-section (2} of section 134 10 be conducied in
the sanual general meeting, the members of a private compuny or apublu: unlisted company
{having not more than fifly members), miay pass a resolution {ordinary or special} by umuh:wn
signed by all the mcmbcra for the time being entitled (o receive notice of a mcumu The
resolution by circulation shafl be deemed to be passed on the date of signing by the! last ol the.
signatory member to such resolution. '
!
YUOTES OF MEMBERS :

37. Subject to any rights or resirictions for the time being anached to any class or classes of
shares, on a show of hands every member present in person shall have one votd except for
election of directors in which case the provisions of section 159 shall apply. On d pn!l gvery
member shall biave voring rights as inid down in section 134,

I8 AEAGHYG ' ¢ X
pnca: =or, s{,)muy.h ¥idRy-link shall be sccepted W the exclusion of the vates of the wther joint-
holdRrstzing: ;

=
% \ h?@lr

sgd mind. ar in respect of whom an order has been mude b\ any court
acy, may vuie, whether on show of aids or on a poll or th:ﬁoul,h video
or other legal woardinn, and any such committee or guardian nay. on 4

40, On a poll votes may be piven cither personnlly or through video-link, by pmxy or through
postal ballol;

b
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Provided that nobody corporate shall vote by proxy as long as a resolution of is diractors
in accordance with the provisions of section 138 is in force,

44, {1) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or
of his attorney duly authorised in writing.

(2} The instrument appoiniing a proxy wnd the power-ufauomey or other antherity 61
v any) under which it is signed, or a notariaily certified copy of that pewer or authority, shali be
deposited at the registered oflice of the company not lexs than forty-eight hours before the time
for holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote and in
deiuult the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid,

42. An instrument appointing a proxy may be in the following form, or a form as near thcrato as
may be:

INSTRUMENT OF PROXY
...... ettt ereenenenn oo, Lomited

[ TR R SO ceeernevresrmsiissseces B i e D2I0R R
momber  of 3he e treevirienraen  Limiled.  hereby  oppoint
................................ S0 s ercereerieseemnse e LY et csistrssneaens e eeecereens 38 TY PIOXY 1O
attend 'lnd vate on my behalf at the (slatutory. annual. L\tmurduwr\ as 1‘1: tase may he) general
meeting of the company 1o be held an the ..o day of o, 2000 nod
any udjournment thereof.™

43, A votc given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shafl be valid
notwithstanding the previous deuth or insanity of the principal or revocation of the proxy or of

the suthority under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shargdii: Jg:@cuf of which
the proxy is given, provided thul po intimation in writing of such dea "éh‘-tmuv, n.‘('m‘ '
tansfer as aforesaid shall have been reccived by the comp’mgi\ bk fole the

commeneement of the meeting or adjourned meeting al which the proxﬁ’is u»"? &
ERT

DIRECTORS

44. "The foliowing subseribers ol the memorandum of association § mﬁ\@ }5 i hr; \gﬁa efors of
the o njrny, 0. however, that the number of dircotors shall nat in any €as Ko than thi

specified i section 154 and they shull hold office untit the etection of directors o the Hest annual
aeneral meeting:

{11 M Sun Yaoguo, soa of Mr. () L ¥} Chinese Nationality, having ONIC/Passport No, PE1643313
(23 M Li Zhibaai, son of My Li Lihai, Chinese Natiosality, having CNIC/Passport No. PEOGS9328

(3} Mr. Guo Meng, son of My, Guo Quanyou, Chiness Nationaiity, having CNIC Passpor No. PEGS4 1448
{4). Mr. Lyu Yan, sont of Mr Lyu Ke. Chinese Natiopality, having CNIC/Passport No. PE2036010

{3, Mr. Faisal Saleem Rahman, son of Mr Saleem ur Rahman, Pukistani Nationality ' mvmg L’\IC Na.
161G1-4770392-5

45, 'The remunerations of the directors shall from time (o time e determined by the comipuny it
general mieeting subject w the provisions of the Act.

T s AL et s

TSR ey



46. Save us provided in section 133, no person shall be appointed as » director unfegs he is a
member of the company.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

47, 'The business of the company shall be managed by the directors, who may pay all expenses
incursed in promoting and registering the company, and may exercise all such powsrs of the
company as are not by the Act or any statutory modiflcation shereot for the lime being in [orce,
or by these regulations, rcqmrcd w be exercised by the company in general meem-g subject
neveriheless o the provisions of the Act or to any of these regulations, and such resulations
being not inconsistent with the atoresait! provisions, as may be prescribed by the company in
general meeting but no regulation mxde by the company in general nreeting shall invalidaie any
prior zct ol the directors which would have been valid if that reguiation had not been mude,

J8. The directors shall appoint a chiet executive in aceordance with the provisions o sections
(86 and 187 !

49 The amount for the time being remaining undischarged of moneys borrowed or raised by the

ditectors tor the purposes ol the campany (othenvise than by the issue of share capital) shall not

al vy time, without the sanction ol the company in general meetmg, exceed the muuj share
capital of lhw company,

S0, “The directors shail duly comply with the provisions of the Act, oF any ssory mokiilication
thereof for the time being in force. and in particular with the provisions in rcg;ud o the
registration of the particulars of mortgages, charges and pledge affecting the property of the.
colmpany or created by it Lo the keeping of a register of the directors, and to the semling 1o the
regisicar of an annual Hst of members. and a sununary of particulars relaling thereto and natice of
any consolidation or increase of shure capital, or sub-division ol hh'll'CS. and copies lof special
resalutions and & copy of the register of directors and sotifications of any changes thervib,

MINUTE BOOKS
. Ve directors shall cause records to be kept and minutes to be made in book or houka with
l\'l_i_nt'd 1

{a)  ull resolutions and proceedings of genera! mecting(s) and the mr.‘i:*"g[.\’) ol
directors and Conunittee(s) of directors, and every imember present al atiy gencrul
meeting and-every director present al any meeting of directors or Commitice of.

stors shall put-his signature in a book to be kept for that purpose;
,Q,,')

uccordance  with the u,tew.ani regalations  specified hv thc. Commission whlcﬁ shall be
appropriaiely rendered Into writing as part ol the minute books according to the said regubations,

H




THE SFAL

32, The directors shall provide for the sale custody of e seul and the seal shalt not be atfixad e
any istrument excepr by the authority of @ resolusion of the boped of directors or By a committes
of divectors authorized in that behall by the directors and 0 e presence of at least two directors
and of the secretary or such other person as the dircetors may appeint for the purpose: and those
two directors and secretary oy other person as aferesaid shall sign every instrunsent to whieh the
seal of the company is so affixed i their presence.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

3. No person shali become the director ol a company i he suffers from any of the disabilities or
disgualifications mentioned in section 153 or disqualified or debarred from holding such office
under any of the provisions of the Act as the case may be and, it already a dirccior, \lmlkcase 0
hold such oftice from the date he so hecomes dnquah!ml or disabled:

51

Pravided, however, that no director shall vacate bis office b» reason toly vl pis being o
menther of any company which has entered {10 contraets with, or done any wodk tie, she
company of whick he is diregtor, tut such director shall not vowe in respect of any such contract
or work, and if e does so vote, his vote shall not be counted.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

54. The divectors may meet together for the disputeh of busitess, adjours and otherwise repulale
their meetings, as they think fit. A director may, and. the secreeary on the requisition ol a directur
shall. @ any time, stionton a meeting of directors. Natice sent o & director ll*mugh enaii
whether such director &5 in Pakistan or cutside Pakistan shalt be = valid notice.

33, e disectors may elect a chiinnan ol theie megtings and determine the period 1or which he

is W hold office; b, if no such chaioman is clected, or if i uny meeling the chairman is o
presert within ten minates afler the sime appoined for holding the same or is uowilling w ot as

chudrman, the directors present iy chease one of thelr monber 1o be chuirnun of the vecting.

36. At least one-third {mfd‘; of the total number of S s ot two (2) directors whichiever is
figher, lor the time being of the company, p o ’p-. MM\\W through video-link. shall
consLitule i1 quorum., A

“JF !’1&; \ﬂ

2
‘ t‘i:ﬂté:j at mectings of e board
thl bc delermmed by a mamrm ut voles o ;h Ao *‘ ﬁ'lgz persen or throdgit viden-
link, each director having one vote. In case of 3%&&@ LS Q'I‘ je. the chairmanshall have
a casting vole in addition to his original vote as pector. ‘*\
'5\9*1 oF ph\v\\v‘ :
cammensne®t ™
38 The dirzctors may delegate any of their powers nul mmmd to be exercised i their meeting
W commitlees consisting of sucl: member or members of their body a5 thev thisk i any
commitiee so formed shall, in the oxercise of the powers so delegated. conform 1 wn
cestrivtions that may be imposed on them by the direetors. )

39 (1) A commitice may elect a chairman of its meetings: but, il e such chairman is elected. or

i}



i at any miceting the chairman is not present within ten minwes after the time appeinted for
falding the same or is unwilling (o act a8 chairman, the members present may choose one of
their pumber to be chairman of the nceting.

{2) A vomnitiee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Questions arising al any
meeling shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members present. It case of ai equality
of voues. the chainman shall liave and exercise a second or casting vote.

AN All iets done by any meeting ot the directors or of 1 conmnittee of directors, or by rav person
acting as u director. shall, notwithstanding that it be atterwurds discoversd tha there was some
defect in the appointment of any such divectors or persons acting us tforesaid, or that thiey or any
of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such person had besn duly a ’\ppomk:u and was
gualitied 10 be a director.

61, A copy of the draft minutes of meeting of the board of directors shall be lurnlslu,d 10 every
director within seven working diys of the date of meeling.

62. A vesolution in writing signed by all the directors for the time being entitled to receive notice
of i meeting of the directors shell be us valid and eflectual as if it had heen passed at & mecting
uf the directors duly convened and held.

FILLING OF VACANCIES

63. A« the Dirst anual general mecting of the coinpany, all the directors shall stond retired from
flice. and direotors shall be elected in their place in accordance with seetion 139 foria term ol
threw yeaes,

84, A retiving director shall be eligible for re-election,

&3, Vhe dirzetors shall comply with the provisions of sections 154 to 159 2ad sections 161, 162
and 167 relating to the election of directors and matters ancillary thereto. :

66, Ay casunl vacaney occurring on the board ot directors may be tilled up by the dirdctors, but
the person so chosen shall be subject to retirement at the same time as if he had become a
director on the day on which the direclor in whose place he is chosen was lust elected a$ director,

67, Tw compuny may remove o divcctor but only in abcordance with the provisions of the A,

HYIDENDS AND RESERVE

; m 0Cnc|ai meum" .nay declare dividends hul no dividend shall éxceed the

1

time w wme pay 1o the members suci interim dividends .c ")pmr 10
y the profits of the company,

he aid by 1 company either in eash or in kind enly out of its prot‘ its. The
pay :mﬁu})r O nﬁ"egﬁc‘m nd shall unly be in the shape of shares of listed company held by the.
distrd mm‘yf Hoar

N




and loss account,

72, Subjevt t the rights of persons (G any) entitled to shares with special dizhts as to dividends.
alt dividends shiall be declared and paid aecording to the arowmws puid on the shages,

7301y The directors may, belore recomimending any dividend, set aside out of the profity ol e
compuiy such sums as they tiink proper as a reserve or reserves which shail, at the dissretion of
the Girecines, be applicable for meeting contingencics, or for cqualizing dividends. or for any
olber purpose to which the profits of the company may he properly applied, and pending stich
applivation may. ol the like discretion, either be empioyed in the business of company or bw
fvested osuch investments (oiher than shares of the companyt as the directors may, subject o
e provisions of the Act, from sinne to ime think 1L

{1 The directors may carry lovward any profits which they may hink prudend ot o
distribute, without setting them aside us a reserve,

74. If several persons are registercd as joint-hoklers of any share, any one of them. may give
effectual receipt for any dividend puyable on the share.

75, (1) Notice of any dividend that may bave been declared stiall be given jn manner Hereinafter
meniioned. to the persons enttled i share therein but, = the case of 8 publie canpany. the
conipany may give such notice by advertisement in a pewspaper chreulating in the Provines i
wlsich the registéred offics of the company is situate.. ’

{24 Any dividend declared by the company shali be paid to its regisiered sharchokders or
W eir erder, The dividend payable in cosh may be p-xid ay uhequc OF WIITHIL O 1L
electyanic mode 1o the shareholders enitied 10 the pavmeot o7 ke dividend. ss per their:freciion,

(3) In cuse of & fisted company, any dividend payable in cash shull onty be puid Grough
clectronic mode directly into the bank sccount designated b} the. enmiccl sharehu.m's

o ag_\ 5
,-?_f*',"”

"9 CGi' ~
76. The dividend shall be paid within the period Lid dowr F1 c Agf‘?’?y
pe )’ ”

ACC ()UNIS{
‘,l T\
77, 't directors shall cause o be kept proper books of ¢ dqmll Ms@ﬁ@% er sectipn 224,
\
J:T{QJ E '\‘E‘;%
78. The books of account shall be kept at the registered il fnpaty or ot such othe

plave as the dircctors shall think. 0t and shall be open o inspection by the direciors luring

business hours.

5. The directors shall Trom time %o time determine whether ard 1o what exiem: and aC what e
and places and under what conditions or regulations the wecoinms and books or papers of e
compiy or any of thern shall be open to the inspectian of members not being directars, avd no
member (nor being a director) shail have any rdght of inspeeting any account aud book or papers
of the company exeept as conferred by law or authorised by the directors vr by the company in
veneral mueting.

8U. The directors shail as required by sections 223 nnd 226 couse W be prepared and o be laid
béfore the compiny i general ntecting the linancial statemems dudy audited and reports us are
referved to in thuse secrions,



LS

The fmancial staitements and other roports reizrred to i repeintion 80 shall be mude out in
every veur and laid before the company in the anmual genersl meeting i aceordoiee with
sectiuns 132 and 223, f
82. A copy of the financial statements and repurts of directors und auditors shall, at lea st twenty-
une davs preceding the meeting, be sent to Lhe persons entitled to receive notices ut generul
mevtings in the manser by which naricey are to be given hereunder,

83, The divectors shall in all respect comply with the provisions of seclions 220 0 227,

84, Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated in sccordance with sections 246 w 249,

NOTICES

3.t1) A notice may be given by the company 1o any menher 10 his registered address or it he
has s registered address in Pakistan to the address, if nay, supplied by hiny 10 the c.m, iy for
ihe giving of notices to him against an acknowledgement or by post ur courier service ar Lhrough
clectronic means or i any other munner as may be specificd by the Commission.

{23 Where u notice is sent by post, service of the notice shall be deemed 1o be éffected by
prop erly addressing, prepaying und pu:lmq a letter containing the notice and. unless ihL contrary
is proved. 1o have been effected w the tive al which the ener will be delivered in lh: ardinary
course of pust,

86. A nutice may be given by the company 1o the joint-holders of a share by giving the notice to
the joint-holder named first in the register in respect of the share. :

8‘/‘. A notive may be given by the company 10 the person entitied to a share in consequénce of the
teall: or fnsolvency of a member in e mannee provided under regulation 83 addresssd to them

b\ tame, ar by the ttde or representatives of the deceased. or ussignees of the insoent. or by
any Lke description. at the address. supplied fur the purpuse by the person ul.mnmu w b 50
etitied.

mpany and also to (b) every person ensitled to a share in cons&qucrwc of
Ml a mumh:r who bul l"or his deam or iiwalvcncv would bci::vlil!‘.d 10

- the vompany, and. in the case of creditors’ volumary winding up, of a mecting of the creditors,

the liguidator shall exereise any of the powers given by sub-section (1) of secrion 337 ol the Act
w0z liquidator i 2 winding ujy by the Court inclading futer-vfic divide amongst the munbers, in
specic or kind, the whole or any part ol the assets of the company, whether Lis.y consist of
property of the same Kind or not,

(%) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidaior may setsuch value as he deems fair upon any
propeity tu be divided as aforesaid art may determine how such division shall be caivied out as
betveen the members or different classes of members.




. {3) The liquidator may, with the fike sanction, vest the whole or any parl of such assets in .
lrustees wpon such wusts for the benefit of the contributorics a3 the liquidater, with the ke

] " . - . B
sanciing, thinks 1if, but so thal no member shall be compellad to necept sy share, or other

securities whereon there is any liability.
INDEMNITY

U1 very efficer or ugent for the thme being of the company may be indemnified ma of the
gssets of the company against any lability incurred by him in defending any proceedings.
whetier civii or eriminal, avising out of his dealings i relation fo e oflaivs of the womprny,
exeept mose brought by the company against hin:. in which Judgment is given in his tisour or in
which he is acquitted, or in connectian with any application wider section 492 Iy which relivf'is
granted 10 him by the Court,

We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subseribed below, are desirous of being
- formed into a company, in pursuance of these articles of association, und we respectiveely ugree
to tuke the number of shares in the capital of the company set opposite our respective nunes:

L Name ! NIC No. Father's’ Naionality(i ;)l‘i"t‘,;‘]m Usual residential address ;! 15::[“"
and | (n ?“Sb‘"‘"d o in il or the registered
BT e, | Rne i fgmer addrlae oL subbciiber | Gagh
(prf.zcni Paﬁp?ﬂ' u ] ationalll other than natural person ;pbstribcr
L& 0 m ¢
formers | ; igures and
mo words)
1115] i :
{in Blovk !
lLewers) i : { i
l 3 - ! :
i ; Units Cb-11, 234T KAWAH fine Huncred ' :
Industriat H CTR 191 JAVA R NORTH and Ten :
Park ; POINT, HONG KONG [housand
‘Iéwesmwm (910,000
Developrien '
lj_Hu:;g P !
ong ¢ i
Limned ‘gdr T~
i I ‘ RN
FERIESENICIPL 1645315 Chinese  Zaypiytey| Jo,%5)
W by Mr ) A Pl N
Suii Un B NG
Yaoguo . .
K.hvber STRIAL ESTATE, Nmetﬁ :
Pakhiunkby . PESHAWAR, Thousand
. jaBeonomic o X HTUNKHWA, 190,630) !
F%nne 3 ZPAK&%}R ' !
cvelomren JU5nie) de ORE : :
AR sy gf ¥ '
Mastagerier ] i v A
ompany ; .
] \\x} i
Reprtﬁenlz i A
oy Mro heiol- M Cormpa 5
aSly ETI002S Baleemur | i | s
Rahaena, ahman  [Pakistani igmlu_\f Fad
' ~ : 3\\‘:\ H
; Total number of shares taken {in fgares i sonds) ' : ne Mo i
i 11,006.008 !
gor!ly H ‘
s s P

e
3



Daced the |7 duv of July, 2020

Witness Lo nbove signttures:  (For the doctanenis submitted in physicd! form

: Shonature

Tl Name (in Block Letics)

1 Father’s! Husband's name

“Nationality PAKISTAN] P
| Oceupation Senior Invesiment Adviser ;
. NIC Ne. 13503-1941201-1

| Usval residential address

HOUSERS12/2, §TIN, STC-1, ATRPORT
HOUSING SOCIETY. RAWALPINDI. -

s

CENHED 70 BE TRUE COPY




ANNEX — A-3

ANNUAL REPORTS

RSEZDOC’s audited statements are appended herein below.
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Yasim Adeel & Co. o rakaa
-#: Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY
(PRIVATE) LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED which comprise the statement
of financial position as at June 30, 2021, statement of comprehensive income, staternent of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity for the period from July 17, 2020 to June 30, 2021 and notes te the financial
statemenis, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of cur knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and the statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs
as at June 30, 2021 and of financial performance for the period from July 17,2020 to June 30, 2021.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan, Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process,

Audit | Tax | Accounting | Advisory | Litigation &Q

T

¢ 16th Floor, State Life Building # 5, Jinnahh Avenue, F-6 Islamabad.
Info@qaco.com.pk ] www.qaco.com.pk £5 051-8357873 B 0341-5001000
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A’A Chaﬁewmcﬁudﬁtisl & Co

' Auditor’s Respousibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
_ from material misstatement, whethet duc to fravd or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
, opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 8 guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
 Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statement

' As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contrel.

e Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report

l to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

report, However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going

CONCErnL

Bvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other maters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit. &
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t Chartered Accountants

' Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) Proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companics Act 2017 (XIX

! of 2017);
b) The statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in

conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with books of account

and returns;
' ¢) Expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the company’s

business; and
d) No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Adeel Mirza, ACA.

I
I
i
I
I
I

Place: Istamabad
. QASIM ADEEL & .
[ Dated: 14 BCT 200 (CHARTERED AC'COUN?I‘(A}‘\NTS)

|
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30,2021
2021
Notes Rupees
ASSETS
Current Assets
Security deposit -
Cash and bank balance 4 9,148,669
9,148,669

Total Assets 9,148,669
CAPITALAND LIABILITIES
Authorized Capital i
1,000,000 Shares @ Rs. 10 each 5 10,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Paid up capital 10,000,000

Unappropriated Profit (22,193,791

(12,193,791}
Non Current Liabilities

Loan 21,342,460
Tota! Equity & Liabllities 9,148,669
Contingencies and Commitments 6 -

Anncxed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

> &
R

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR &
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREWENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 17, 2020 T0 JUNR 30, 2021

Revenue
Costof sales
Gross Profit

Less: Administrative and General Expenses

Less: Pravision for Taxation
Net Profit After Taxation

Annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

e

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

2021
Notes Rupees

7 22.193,791
(22,193,791)

————————————

{ 22,193,791}

&

DIRECTOR
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 17, 2020 TO JUNE 30,202t

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation

Profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
(Increase} / decrease in current assets
Security deposit

Capital work in process

Increase / (Decrease) in accrued and other liabllities
Creditor, accrued and other liabilities
Cash used in operations

Net cash flow from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Introduction of Capital

Loan
Net cash flow from financing activities

NET CASH GENERATED DURING THE YEAR

. CASH AND BANK BALANCE AS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
" CASH AND BANK BALANCE AS AT END OF THE YEAR

Annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

W

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

2021
Rupees

(22,193,791)

1

T (22193,791)

-1

(22,193,791)

10,000,000
21,342 460
31,342,460

9,148,669

9,148,669

= .
-
DIRECTOR

A
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMIT
MITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN BQUITY ( )

FOR THE PERICD FROM JULY 17, 2620 TO JUNE 30, 2021

Unappropriated
Share Capltal profit Total
SR {11, 7. 1 S
Balance as at July 17, 2020 - - .
Capital Introduced during the period 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Profit after taxation (22,193,791) {22,193,761)
10,000,000 (22,193,791) (12,193,791}
Balance as at June 30,2021 10,000,000 (22,193,791} {12,193,791)

Annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

v =
\'” I% DIRECTOR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE @.
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FI.IANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 17, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021

1.

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Rashakal Special Economic Zone Development & OQOerations Company (Private) Limited company

incorporated in Islamabad under the Companies Act, 2017 with SECP on 17 July 2020. The Company is
mainly engaged in the business of development, financing, construction, marketing, management and
operation of Special Economic Zone in Rashakai, Tehsi, District Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa along with
any ancillary business thereto, under the provision of Special Economic Zones Act 2012, Special Economic
Zones Rules 2013 and other allied laws. It can deal in all types of developed and non-developed land for
various purposes of industrial, commercial, and residential properties mainly for industrial and commercial
purposes and allied types of property as well as matters ancillary thereto with the applicable approvals and
permissions from the concerned autherities and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. with its
registered office located at Plot No. 2, Street No. 33, Sector f-8/4 Islamabad.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the accounting and reporting standards

as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium Sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs) Issued by

the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) as notifled under the Companies Act, 2017; and
Provisions of and diractives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS for SMEs, the
provisions of and directives Issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Accounting convention and basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, without making any

adjustment for the effects of inflation or current values.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment loss. Cost includes direct cost, related overheads and mark up.
Depreciation on all property , plant and equipment is charged on reducing balance method 5o as to write off

the depreciable amount of an asset ever its useful estimated life at the rates mentioned in the schedule.

Full month depreciation is charged in the year of purchase and no depreciation is charged in the month of
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal is charged to income or expense for the year.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Renewals and improvements
are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the

cost of the item can be measured reliably, and the assets so replaced, ifany, are retired.
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 17, 2020 T0 JUNE 30, 2021

2.4 Siguificant Acconnting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements Is i conformity with the Accounting and Financinl Reporting

Standards for Small-Sized Entities issued by the Institute of Chortered Accountants of Pakistan which
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and labllities, Income and expenses. The estimates and assoclated
assumptions are hased on historical experience and vartous other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstanees, the result of which farm the basls of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilitles that are not readily appavent from other soutces. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting
estimates ave recognized in the period in which estimates are revised.

Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates In these financial statements relate to useful life
of depreciable assets, However, assumptions and judgments made by management In the application of
accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial statements are not expected to resuit in
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the next year.

2.5 Stock and stores
Stock and stores are valued at lower of net realizable value and average cost.

2.6 Trade and other payables _
Trade and other payables are stated at their cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in

future for goods and services.

2.7 Provisions

Provisions are recorded when Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of econamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

made. Provision are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2.B Financial assets

{a) At Amortized Cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

i) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financlal assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows and;
if) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding,
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 17, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021
|

(b} At Fair Value through Gther Comprehensive Income
A financial asset is measured at falr value through other comprehensive Income if both the following

conditions are met:
i) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and;
if) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

{c) At Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at

fair value through other comprehensive income.

2.9 Taxation :
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into

account tax rebates and credits available, if any.

2.10 Revenue recognition
Revenue from sale of goads is recognized on the basis of IFRS 15. Revenue is measured at the fair value of

the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized when it is probable that any future
econamic benefit associated with the item of revenue will flow to the entity, and the 2amount of revenue can

be measured with reliability.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances and highly liquid short term investments

with ariginal maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TCQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 17, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021

4 CASH AND BANK BALANCE
Cash in Hand
Cash at Bank

5 Share Capital
Authorized capital
1,000,000 Shares @ Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capitai
1,000,000 Shares @ Rs. 10 each

6 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies & commitments at june 30, 2021

7 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Advertising and Promotion
Bank Service Charges
Business Entertainment
Communication Expense
Consultation Fee
Daily Expenses
Design Fee
Forex Loss
Fuel Charge
investigate & Contact Fees
Office Supplies '
Other Charges
Payrall Expenses
Printing and stationary
Postage Fee
Professional Fees

Travel Expense
Vehicle Toll

8 DIRECTORS REMUNERATIONS
Chief Executive remunerarions
Directors Remunerations

2021
(Rupees)

9,148,669

9,148,669

10,000,000

10,000,000

226,586
26,048
126,359
5,000
1,902,900
350,626
215,986
75964
61,400
117,416
92,963
152,208
18,463,042
19,100
16,000
298,126
33,479
10,588

22193791
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RASHAKAT SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT & OPERATIONS COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 17, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021

9 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Ne any related party transaction occurred during the year.

10 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS .
There are no such subsequent events adjusting or non-adjusting providing further evidence of relating to the
period ended June 30, 2021, :

11 GENERAL
The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

12 AUTHORIZATION . ' .
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on

— 5T 202
HF b
\V/D/P‘ DIRECTOR )g/

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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ANNEX—A-4

LAST ANNUAL RETURN UNDER SECTION 130 OF THE COMPANIES ACT

RSEZDOC is in the process of making the requisite return before the SECP.
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ANNEX—-B

- PESCO’s COMMITMENT TO SELL POWER

PESCO’s letter dated 19 January 2022 and technical sanction dated 3 March 2022 is appended

herein below.



PESHAWAR ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY

OFFICE OF THE
CHILYF EXECUTIVE
PLESCO PESHAWAR

No. i (P&Ey 43~ 39 Dated 1] /01/2022

\/ Chief Executive Officer
Rashakai Special Economic Zone

Islamabad.

SUBJ ECT: DEMAND LOAD FOR PHASE-1 OF GS-1 AND GS-11 (22+4:>—67 MW) OF
' RESHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE,

Re t‘erence:.{CEO-:Ras}mkéi Special )Econo'fnib Zone Letter No. RSEZDOC/HO/2022/010
~dated.17/01/2022
Referred to the letter cited above, Load of 22 MW for GS-I and 45 MW for GS-1I
approved by the Competent Authority with following conditions,

1) For 45 MW of GS-I1, you will not exceed the load beyond 45 MW and in this
_ connection. you will have to provide an affidavit on non-judicial stamp paper worth
- PKR. 100/- to'the effect that your load will not exceed beyond 45 MW without the
" approval of Competent Authority.

ii) 22 MW of GS-I will not be energized until and unless NEPRA declares the Tariff and
you will have to wait for the decision of NEPRA.

(PLANNING & ENGINEERING)
" PESCO PESHAWAR

Copy to: e e ' ' ‘

Chief Executive Office PESCO for information please.
Chief Executive Office KPEZDMC for information.
Chief Engineer ( Development) PMU PESCO Peshawar
Chairman, CPEC Authority, Islamabad for information.

ol S



SUBJECT: -

FEIMAWYANS CLOW I NAW PO T & Wilimir rev s

OFFICE OF THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE PESCO
WAPDA HOUSE PESHAWAR

TECHNICAL SANCTION

SANCTION FOR NEW CONMECTION FOR  GS-1 (22MW),
RASHAKAI ECONMIC ZONE

Sanction for supply of power regarding 22 MW load in respect of above

named consumer is hereby accorded under tariff (to be determined by NEPRA) with
the following conditions.

1“.

-+ The-subject connection will.be given only through an independent 132 KV

consumer's own GSS near Rashakai Interchange Nowshera as single point

) supply under {to be determined by NEPRA). As the sponsor of the subject

case has informed this office regarding resale of power by further 29 Nos
feeders at the said scheme. The connection will be charged under tariff-C
until the clear instructions are received to this office from NEPRA for
actual tariff determination. :

“The proposed GS-l- 132KV consumer’s Grid Station shall be fed through

In/Out - arrangement under midterm- condition from 132 KV D/C
transmission. line with rail conductor from 220/132 KV GSS Mardan

; Rashakal SEZ at the cost of the apphcant

-,The alhed ZaKm Transm:ssmn Ime will be constructed according to
:_approved Dcsngn/SpeCffcauon of ‘WAPDA/PPMC/PESCO by P.D (GSC)
~PESCO Peshawar. The work should be taken in hand after confirmation of
ff_paymuat of (dpltd| cust by the “consumer and receipt of amount in

PESCO's account.

- Design of proposed GSS is already approved from Chief Engineer (Design)

NTDC Lahore. The consumer Grid Station will be operated and maintained
by the consumer himself as per 'PESCO/WAPDA policy/ rules.

3x50- M\/A Power T/F (132/11 KV) with allied material will be purchased by

~the apphcant from: WAPDA/PESCOS approved firms and receipt of the

same will be provided to this office. The said Power T/F will be inspected
from Chief Engineer MI) NTDC Lahore. The Inspection Report of the
same should be provided - to this office before . encrgization of the

: COﬂ!’\OCtIOﬂ

The consumer Grid Station will be provided with PLC communication and
11KV capacitor bank of adequate capacity by the consumer, as per

* ‘approved design/ drawing of WAPDA/PPMC/PESCO so that Power factor of

the consumer’s load shall not fall below 90%.

The Capital Cost estimate is for a tentative amount of the material / work
involved & the consumer shall pay to PESCO/PPMC any additional cost
with respect to capital cost charges for any alteration in route or due to

(Cont’'d on Page-2)
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escalation of prices of material/equipment involved, at the time of
execution of work or any other charges/amount due to any reason as
such Right of Way problems etc, beyond the control of PESCO or due to
instructions of PESCO/PPMC/WAPDA Authority issued time to time due to
change in policy of PESCO/PPMC/WAPDA. Mentioned amount will be
recoverable from the applicant/ consumer even after energization of the
load .

PESCO will not be held responsible for any delay due to shortage of
material/ equipment to be installed for the proposed transmission line.

" The consumer will be responsible for damages to property, cost of land

involvad and crops compensation and claimed if any etc.

All requirements dictated by PESCO/ WAPDA commercial procedure,
standard design instructions, electricity rules and tariff applicable should
be strictly met with according to -latest instructions issued by the
compc.tent Authonty/PESC O/PPMC/WAPDA.

(J_radl_ng/Prot_e_c_tron tnme co-ordination in relays of the VCBs of the
consumer shall be provided so that the consumer’s VCBs are disconnected
before PESCO's V{Bs in the Consumer Grid Station as well as at the

:PESCO Mardan Grld Statlon

it should be ensured that an lndEP&%ndeﬂt metering room for PESCO /

. WAPDA, i constructed by. the “consumer according approved Desing/

12,

13.

i4,

'drawmg in the yard and the consumer should have no access to this

roorm,

The consumer Grid Station shall be checked by the Energization
Committee to confirm that technical requirement of 132KV supply /
metering/ protection are according to instructions/ specifications of

PESCQ/WAPDA before energization of the connection.

Demand Note for capital cost estimate shall be issued by this office, The
amount of capital cost is based on tentative rough cost estimate and may
be revised according to variations based upon actual expenses at the time
of execution of work, due to Right of Way problems or technical clearance
etc: However, Demand Notice for Security Deposits, as per applied load,
will be issued, at prevailing rates, on request of the applicant after

_compietnon of deposut works/ installation of machinery.

| 'The contractor S wnrmg Test report, prepared at least by a class-E

Contractor of the provincial Govt. should be submitted by the
applicant to C.E (P&E) PESCO H/Q for verification before
requesting for constitution of energization committee .

(Cont'd on Page-3)



15.

16.

18.

\raygy<-w)

132KV 1200/1 Amps: metering as well as protection C.Ts shall be
nrovided if already not installed at the consumer’s end metering panel.
The Cts shall be purchased by the applicant from WAPDA/ PEPCO.
approved firms/suppliers and tested by Manager Technical Services (M&T)
PESCO Peshawar on recovery of requisite fee from the applicant before
installation in the panels The metering CTs shall be adjusted to match
with the sanctioned load..

The protection CTs setting / Relay Plug setting should not exceed 125%
of the Sanctioned load. The protection as well as metering CTs and Relay

~setting-should be sealed to ensure the above given limitations.

Mater testing and sealing job should be carried out by energization
committee, comprising of S.E (Op) PESCO Mardan Circle, Regional
Manager (M&T) PESCO Peshawar and XEN (Op) PESCO Mardan-1 Division
Mardan, XEN (P&I) PESCC Peshawar Division and D.M (T&G) PESCO
Peshawar along with his A.M (T&I), to be constituted by this office on
completion of the work/job, receipt of documents mentioned in above
clauses, payment of. security deposits and clearance of any excess
expenditure, incurred-on the work/job, by the consumer.

Al the ﬁé'qurﬁénts' and installations for supply of electricity to applicant's
premises and mstaliat:ons wzth in apphcants premises are to be got

 checked - by “energization committee prior to energization of the
_;connectnon The committee. should-  ~confirm and certify that these are

.+ according to WAPDA. [PEPCO - Standards and . Specifications. Purchase

19.

20.

orders - and omglnai receipt of purchase should be provided by the

consumer. As built detail drawing of the distribution system should be
submitted by applicant to committee which will be forwarded to this office
for reference and record.

NOC/clearance from KPEZDMC administration, Distt:/Tehsil administration
Railway department any PESCO's consumer and Highway etc, if needed,
as detailed above, shall be arranged and provided by the applicant.
Furthermore, the applicant shall make compensation for any damages to
the properties of the mentioned departments/ consumer, which may
happen during execution of above-mentioned constructional work of
proposed job.

All electrical installatioris, H‘T/L.T lines, cables, motors, capacitors and
distribution system etc, at the applicant's premises shall be checked by

~the Electrical Inspector Govt. of KPK  Peshawar to verify that these are

according to Electricity Rules 1937 ‘& Electricity Act 1910, including
amendments made from time to time. The equipments may be preferably
purchased from approved WAPDA firms/suppliers. NOC / Approval issued
by Electrical inspector Govt. of KPK Peshawar should be submitted by the
applicant to this office.

{(Cont’d on Page-4)
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21.  The Energization Committee should ensured before the energization of
this connection that there is nothing outstanding dues/ arrears against the
premises where connection is desired.

22 All other departmeh‘tal‘formalities should be observed while allowing
energization of this job/ connection. .

" PESHAWAR £LECTRIC SUPPLY
COMPANY PESHAWAR

Endist: M (PRE)/Rasnakai ss:z/ No. AQJ& go datedw_S /% 2022,

Copy to, ' ) -
S:E{Op). P!:S(,O"Ma"rdan CirCIe Mardan -
Regional Manager (M&T). PESCO Peshawar
o PD (GSC) PESCO Peshawar R
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ANNEX-C-1

CASH BALANCES HELD IN RESERVE ALONG WITH THE BANK CERTIFICATES

Duly verified bank statement of RSEZDOC for the period starting from 1 January 2022 to 18
October 2022, which shows the cash balance held by the company as of 18 October 2022, is

provided herein below.




YOUR ACCOUNT STATEMENT ACCOUNT RO : 0874-79011258-99 QF
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING: JANCL, 2022 TQO OCT18,2022 ISLAMABAD-CORPORATE BERNCH
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC PVT LTD ACCOUNT TYPE : CURRENT ACCOUNT - CN
HOUSE NO 2 CURRENCY : Yuan Remnminbi
STREET NO 33 PRINTING DATE : 20-10-22
F-8/1 FREQUENCY ; INTERIM / DUDPLICATE
PK PAGE NO : 1
b USER 1 884701

------------------- e e e T A ek e e ey T e R e T T e T R e e b % P T e e e e = = W A ..

|DATE  |VALUE |PARTICULARS

| DEBIT| CREDIT} BALANCE |
[--neee emsmse | mme e f=mammsmen e [smmemenmmennsnaas [-mmmmmmme e |
! | | BROUGHT FORWARD | | ] 1,482,266.33 |
|275am22 | [Transfer Debit 08747901200203 |} 800, 000.00] | 682,266.33 |
| i IDEAL NO 1936706 @ 27.30 f | | ‘ E
|11FEB22| | Swift Transfer CN09442501A | | 31,067,000.00| 31,749,266.33 |
| | |CN0O9442501A } [ | |
| | JRB INDUSTRIAL PARK INVESTMENT AND D| ] | i
9 | . leny 31,067, 000.00 | I | |
i | |07509651 | | | i
‘15PEB22| |Transfer Debit  08747901200203 | 403,000.00] | 31,346,265.33 |
| | |DEAL # 1942568 @ 27.50 | I | i
j24FEB22| | Transfer Debit 08747901200203 | 500,000.00] | 30,846,266.33 .|
8 | |DEAL NO 1545784 @ 27.40 | | | |
]‘d’smzzl ' |Transfer Debit  08747901200203 | 1,600,000.00] i 29,246,266,33 |
| | |PEAL NC 1950419 @ 27.65 | | ] |
| aomMaRr22) {Swift Tranafer  CRDKAG874CN76010 | 1,334,045.60] | 27,912,220.73 |
| QoMAR22 | | SWIFT CHARGES CRDKAQ874CN76010 | 17.78| I 27,912,202.95 |
joomar22 | |Comm on F. Funda CRDKAJS74CN76010 | 3,868.73] | 27,908,334.22 | .
}14maR22| | Transfer Debit CRDEACQB74CN76010 | 315.00] | 27,908,019.22 |
| [ |3RD BANK TT CHARGES AGAINST OUR ! | |
Jismarz22| {Transfer Debit 08747901200203 | 3,500, 000.00] | 24,408,013.22 |
N | |DEAL NO 1953832 @ 27.80 | ] !
stmaazzf | Transfer Dehit 08747901200203 | 2,000,000.00] | 22,408,019.22 |
v ! {DEAL NO 1955974 @ 28,00 | | | |
j28MAR22 | |Transfer Debit 08747901200203 |} 800,000.00] | 21,608,019.22 |
1 | |DEAL NO 1356605 @ 28.00 | | |
{27aPR22| | Tranafer Debit 08747901200203 | 500, 000.00| ] 21,108,018.22 |
I | [DEAL # 1967851 @ 27.80 | | i |
|29aPR22 | |Swift Transfer 51COR22000270984 | | 34,308,000.00] 55,408,019.22 - |
| 51C0R22000270984 | ! | |
|CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK CORPORATION| i |
| ewy 34,300,000.00 | ! | |
| 03409561 | | | ]
{Transfer Debit 08747901200203 | 2,100,000.00} | 53,308,019.22 |
|DEAL NO 1988485 @ 30.23 | | | ]

) This is a system generated account statement and doea not require z signature. \

A BLE 0574 SamABRD.




¥YOUR ACCOQUNT STATEMENT ACCOUNT NO : 0874-79011258-59 OF

FOR THE PERTOD ENDING: JANO1,2022 TO OCT18,2022 ISLAMABAD-CORPORATE BRANCH
RASHARAT SPECIAL ECONOMIC PVT LTD ACCOUNT TYPE : CURRENT ACCQUNT - CN
HOUSE NQ 2 CURRENCY : Yuan Renminbi
STREET NO 33 PRINTING DATE : 20-10-22
F-8/1 FREQUENCY : INTERIM / DUPLICATE
PE PAGE NO : 2

USER : §84701

|DATE  |VALUE |BARTICULARS

| DEBIT| CRRDIT]| BALANCE |

[-=mn-- |-mmnee emmemmmnneee REEELEE LI fmemmmeee e RO [oemmmrmmema e !
i ! | BROUGHT FORWARD | | j 53,308,019.22 |
{13JUL22 | |Swift Transfer CRDKA0874CNB7509 | 308,414.17] } 52,999,605.05 |
|13J0L22 | | SWIFT CHARGES CRDRAOB74CNB7508 | 16.29] I 52,999,588.76 |
[13duLaz] |cemm en F. Funds CRDKAOB74CN87505 | 894.40| | 52,998,694.36 |
| 15J0UL22] 130UL22 | Swift Transfer CRDKA0874CN87509 | i 308,414.17] 53,307,108.53 |
'|153UL.22 | 137UL22 | SWIFT CEARGES CRDKA0874CN87509 | f 1G.é9| §3,307,124.82 |
$150Ur22|13J0L22|Conm on F. Funds CRDKAOS74CNAT509 | } 894.40| 53,308,019.22 |
{15q0L22| |Swift Transfer  CRDKAOB74CN87769 | 308,414.17| i 52,999,605.05 |
T1squn22| | SWIFT CHARGES CRDKAC874CNB7769 | 16.27] | 52,999,588.78 |
J153Un22 | |Comm on F. Funds CRDKADB74CN87769 | 894.40| | 52,998,694.38 |
1350122 |Transfer bebit CRDKA0874CNE7505 | 315.00| f 52,998,379.38 |
(. I | 3RD BAMK TT CHARGES AGAINST OUR | | | ]
]iSJﬂLzzj {Transfer Debit CRDKA0874CNE7509 | 280.00| | 52,998,093.38 |
[ } |FOREIGN BANK CHARGES | i ] ]
|280UL22 | |Branch Settlemen IDC08740747122FK | 4,198,800.48] ] 48,79%,258.90 |
| 05AUG22 | |Swift Transfer 51COR22000254824 | | 33,899,798.00} 82,699,088.%0 |
| | |51COR22000294824 | | | |
| | {CCB BEIJING ADD. CCB BEIJING ] | | |
| | jowy 33,889,790.00 I | | |
] | 03409651 | | ] |
J1savea2| | Transfer Debit 08747901200203 | 2,900,000.00| | 79,799,088.90 |
}f ' | |DEAL NO 2002878 @ 31.10 i ] | o
}17AUG22| |Branch Settlemen IDC08740787422PK | 2,365,384.00] I 77,433,704.90 - |
}iaAuc:2| |Transfer pebit 08747901200203 i 4,400,000.00{ i 73,033,704.90 |
) | |DEAL NO 2004320 @ 31.27 | | | 4
l9sEp22| | Transfer Debit 08747901200203 | 4,000,000.00] ! 69,033,704.90 |

o [ I J

| |[DEAL NO 2014177 @ 33.28

Cpening balance 1,482,266.33
Total Debit Transactions 26
Total Amount Debited 32,024,676.25-
1; . Total Credit Transactions &
; . Total Amount Credited 99,576,114 .86
' Closing Balance 69,033,704.90
----------------------------------------------- End of statement------vcocmemic e -
. This iz a system generated account statement and does not require a signature. !

7 177} CORPCRATE BRANCH,
! 41 (0972) ISLAMABAD.
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FEASIBILITY STUDY



ANNEX—-E-1

FEASIBILITY STUDY OF THE RSEZ PRQJECT

There are two feasibility studies undertaken for the RSEZ. One relates to the economic zone
and the second relates to the electrical system (distribution and supply) of RSEZ. The

feasibility study of the RSEZ project is appended herewith below.



Feasibility Study Report

Rashakai
Prioritized Special Economic Zone

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa




Contents

Chapter | Industrial Orientation.............cccoueeee. e verneennas vrevesnennnernes |
T APrOJECE OMEMEAtON ... i e e e e st 1

1.2 industry selection principles and method analysiS ... e e 1

1.3 INAUSHIAl ANAIYSIS PTOCESS ..eviv vttt e ettt b e ettt et et 4

1.4 Development phase and scale predichion ... ..o 45
Chapter H Overall Layout Planning ...cccccocccooriiiiiinininnccciecnnccnnennes 46
2.1 Project location and construction CoONItIONS ... 46

2.2 OVEIAH PIAMMING ....ceeeeee e ettt e e s r b e s e 50
Chapter lll Construction Scheme ..., ..62
3.1 CONSIUCHON COMEITS ... .oiii ettt et eae et st et et e e s e e s e be et st st b et e et e et st eea s et aenrenneie e 62

3.2 TEChRICA] PrOPOSAL. .. .ot et ettt bt et ee e s eat e r e et e re oo nae s et e s so e rrenm s a e e ae e e naee e 62

3.3 G a Oy PrOIECHIOM ..ottt ittt e e £t ettt ee et en et e emn et e e 83

Chapter IV Environmental Protection ...........covcinvnnninccncerinnisssssesiannsn 89

A DESIGN DASIS Lo e s e s 85
4.2 Major sources of pollution and PolUtANTS ......coooi e e e 85
4.3 Measures for environmental ProteCiioN ... ... ..oiiii et v 86
4.4 Control measures against ecological Changes..... ... e e 89
G5 GIEBIING ... oottt et es s e oot eetee s s eeeesaaeems et 4ok s bane s seas e es e e a2 bn s b e n e e et er e s e et s ere et s ean e es e eae e nne s aes 89
4.6 Environmental monitoring and Management...... ..o e e e e 90
Chapter V Project Implementation .........ccococciininiinnnncrrceereceeennns 91
5.1 CoNStruction CONAIIONS ... ..ottt s bbb et b et bessena sttt asressssteneesesans 91
5.2 CoNSUCHON PEIIOU ...ttt e et ee s e s r s s enesan s eta s se s e etnserearereere 91
5.3 PrOJEC SCHBAUIG ... e 91
Chapter VI Investment Estimation............................. RO - X

Chapter VIl Analysis of Economic Benefits ..........c.cccucecvvrnnenee. R, T



Chapter Vill Business Mode....................... reerrasssmmmmmsssssssssesesseseeeaseavanns 85

8.1 DEVRIOPIMENEITIOUE.......ceceeeeeeeei et see e sas e mie st et are s ac et e eene s cac e ecem sr e s e eaeaen 95

8.2 MaNageMENt MO ... ettt e et et et et een ettt 1 e eee e ae e eesa e et erneeaeeesennessenane s 95

B3 PIOfit PAREIT (..o ettt e bt s kb et s he e bt e et e s s e e eneese e neesn e essnas srnennn 97
Chapter iX Policy Requirement and Support .......cccoccmvemmceecnininnrinennn. 98
Chapter X Risk ANalySiS ...occccouviireicrieeriisscssasnmcrernesncsmnnnsrresesessnnnesessssans 108
Chapter XI Problems and Suggestions .......cccvummmmmmecnceninnnncnnn, 121
11.1 Preconditions to be solved for 0peration............coec ettt 121

11.2 Further deepening the planning design and operation management mode ...........cccoevivecrnecnsnnenens 121



Chapter | Indusirial Orientation

1.1Project orientation

1.1.1 Development orientation

Tne Project will integrate the advantages and featured resources of KP Province in a
ratienal manner, sufficiently bring the strategic synergy effect of Rashakai pSEZ, and other
Ligects into play, and place special emphasis on building differentiated sub-zones such as
manufacturing, trading and exhibition center efc. to build a constantly upgrading and
oplimizing flagship complex of emerging industries led by modern comprehensive Industrial
Parks and Economic Zones along Ciiina-Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) covering
deep processing of metal smelting and processing, automotive, mechanical equipment,
household building materials, food processing, household appliances, consumer
electronics, taxtile & garment, and leather etc. DEVELOPER will take the lead to offer

substantial One-Window comprehensive services to enterprises in the Zone.

1.1.2 Main functions

Main functions of the Project include industrial and manufacturing activities leading to
indusirial and economic growth and providing the enterprises superior infrastructure
fazilites and a conducive environment to promote such economic activities, including but
not resiricted to product processing, manufacturing, warehousing and logistics, trading, and

support services.

1.2 Industry selection principles and method analysis

1.2.1 Industry selection principles

Table 1-1  Four Principles of Industry Selection

Industries no matter with self-advantage or introducing new technology must assimilate
into the local environment. On the basis of giving full play to the advantages of local
resources, the industrial chain shall be extended to be stronger and stronger.
Otherwise, it is impossible to gather enough energy for internal work and external force.




ain:

Industrial:c
';Uppierp

In terms of indusiry selection, choose the key areas available for development, and with
this as an axis, gather investment attraction and preferential measures on the whole

industry chain to form industrial support or synergy, as well as industrial coupling,
1forming the cycle of energy and materials between industries.

Diversiﬁed.-

Cultivate leading industries to develop inte featured industries with regional advantages,

industries -~ . |guide the development of various industries, promote industrial competition and
.l enhance the industry's ability to resist risks.

Green cycle For industry seiection, make rational use of advantageous resources to form a long-

development term perspective, take circular economy as a consideration, give priority to green

industry, enhance industrial continuity and ensure sustainable development of the
industry.

1.2.2 Industry analysis

Twenty two major ideas are applied to analyze the industry selection for the Rashakai pSEZ

from the perspective of Pakistan, China and peripheral radiation countries of Pakistan.

naiysis of Rashakai pS

Table -2 Thoughts of Industry A

-Selection' | Ideas ~ Details C
level _ L
Level 1: [idea 1 ‘ Thoroughly study the industrial structure of'Pakista‘n, upgrade and improve the
Pakistan specific industry

Idea 2 - | Thoroughly study the industrial structure of Pakistan and fill the gaps to
' strengthen it.

{ldea 3 |Comply with the demands by the government of Pakistan and capitalize on the

‘ specific industries supported by the government.
ldea4 |Rely on the self-advantages of strength and availability of natural resources in
. |Pakistan and choose the appropriate industry with greater protentional for
. |development
ldea 5 |Make use of relatively low labor cost in Pakistan to develop low-cost labour
' intensive related industries
Idea 8 |Vigorously develop the import substitution industry for the Pakistan market
ldea 7. |Develop the industry with special advantage, guided by the industrial structure
- |characteristics of the FDI distribution in Pakistan
- |Idea 8 - | Follow the faws of Pakistan's industrial evolution and develop the leading industries
. |that match the process of industrialization in Pakistan

Idea 9 Adapt to the process of long-term heavy industrialization in Pakistan and actively

' guide the related industries




Level 2:
China

ldea 10

Cuide the industry with advantage and surpius capacity in China by virtue of "the
Belt and Road" sfrategy and China-Pakistan international capacity cooperation
policy.

Idea 11

Further develop the suitable industries by taking advantage of the construction of
China—Pakistan Economic Corridor

ldea 12

Utilize the support policy of Chinese local government for "Go Globai” to guide

China's industry with local specific advantages

ldea 13

Analyze the core products of China's export to Pakistan, focusing on domestic
industries

Idea 14

Guided by the industrial structure of the distribution of China's foreign direct
investment to lead the relevant key industries

Idea 15

Actively guide the key industries that can radiate Europe, America and other
markets from the perspective of avoiding trade barriers for China's indusiry

Ide_a 18

Deeply study the industrial association between Pakistan and five northwestern
provinces in China to guide the related industries

Idea 17

Develop the linkage industry between Pakistan and China

Level 3:
Neighborin
couniries

ldea 18

Make fuli use of regional advantages of Rashakai transportation

ldea 18

Conform to the trend of city-industry integration in Rashakai pSEZ in future

Idea 20

Achieve industrial linkage with Hattar Industrial Park and Gwadar Port

Idea 21

Develop specific industries with the aid of the related superior resources of
Afghanistan and other surrounding countries

ldea 22

Develop export-oriented industries with the direction of radiation in the Middie
East, and the European and American markets

1.2.3 Synergy effect of Park linkage level

(1) In the short and mid-term, it will help promote industrial linkage with the
Rashakai pSEZ

The construction of Rashakai Special Economic Zone will help promote Industrial linkages

with similar Economic Zones and Special Economic Zones within the province, as well as

in the vicinities along Belt Road Initiative (BRI), so as to develop strategic synergetic effects

in both the depth and breadth of the industrial value chain.

(2) It can form a higher level of linkage with the Gwadar Free Trade Zone

The Gwadar Free trade Zone in Pakistan, which is under construction by CCCC, officially

opened on January 29, 2018. And it held the first Gwadar International Commodity Fair,




attracting nearly a hundred enterprises to participate. Pakistani Prime Minister and Chinese
Ambassador to Pakistan Yao Jing attended the day's related activities.

As the southern gate of the China~Pakistan Econcmic Corridor, Gwadar Port in Pakistan
plans to build an area of about 2,280.73 acres of Gwadar Free Zone. The southern part of
the free Trade zone is not only the first phase for project, it is also the starting area. It is
mainly to build trade and logistics development zone relying on existing docks, with
commodity exhibition, transit, trade, fishery products processing as the leading function.

fn the near future, the Rashakai Priuritized Special Economic Zone, under the CPEC
framework, will form a linkage with the Gwadar Free Zone.

Free Trade Zone at a higher level and will help to promote the optimal development of

Pakistan's export-criented industries and import-substitute industries.

1.3 Industrial Analysis Process

1.3.1 Automotive Indusiry

(1) Atiract Investment in Pakistan, by the Automotive Sector from China

The existing automotive industry in Pakistan is small, with a poor industrial foundation of
Pakistan, a smail automotive scale, with a production value of the automotive industry of
about USD 6.2 biilion, is contributing only 2.3% to GDP. In the fiscal year 2016/17,
production capacity of sedan in Pakistan was 186.9 thousand sets, 27.8 thousand sets of
jeeps and pickups and 7712 sets of trucks.

The automotive market development potential in Pakistan is encouraging. According to
statistics by the World Bank in 2009, the automotive inventory in Pakistan is 13 =ets/1000
persons. According to deduction through sales of automotive frem 2009 to 2016 (automotive
rejection and population growth not taken into account), the automotive inventory in
Pakistan is 19 sets/1000 persons. The automotive inventory in China is 140 sets/1000
persons. Comparatively, the automotive market of Pakistan has a great development
potential.

The automotive of Chinese brands has development potential in Pakistan. The Japanese
automotive occupies 100% of sedan market, 96% of light-duty vehicle market (LCV), 69%
of truck market and 62% of passenger vehicle market in Pakistan. At present, the Chinese-
funded enterprises in Pakistan include China FAW, Foton Motor, JAC and Dongfeng Motor,

mainly engaging in truck and light-duty truck business, without involving sedan market.

4



The new automotive industry development policy in Pakistan attracts foreign enterprises to
invest, and the Automotive Development Policy 2016-2021 newly released by the
Government of Pakistan regulates the automotive market and provides preferential policy
for new automotive enterprises into the market of Pakistan to break up monopoly of the
Japanese automotive. The policy includes lowering automotive part import tariff and

providing tax discount to enterprises establishing automotive preduction lines.

(2) Analysis of Foreign Investment opportunities for the automotive industry of
China

Table 1-3 Motive power, pressure and capacity for going-out of the automotive industry of
China
Chinese government boosts the internaticnal capacity cooperation of the

automotive industry;

Going-out is certainly the trend for the development of the automotive industry of
China;

Automotive enterprises of China have accelerated the trend of geing out;

Automotive enterprises of China have obtained sound achievements
overseas.

The sales growth of automotive of China is slowing;
The exports of automotive of China is declining;

The manufacturing cost of the automotive industry of China is increased;

i The competition of the automotive industry of China is increasingly drastic.

Capac_:ity The automotive output of China is ranking first all over the world;
The self-owned brand automotive of China is rising;

The potentiality of automotive enterprises of China is enormous;
The automotive industry of China has established the relatively complete
industry-chain supporting system.

(3) Selection and basis of key sub-sectors for the automotive industry
Basis for Selection

Type of Sub-
sector

Loaders The manufacturing capacity of lcaders in China is relatively powerful;

Loader enterprises of China have made investment and established piants
in Pakistan;




The production and marketing situation of loaders is excellent in Pakistan;

The China-Pakistan Economic Corridor and other infrastructure construction will
boost the market demand of loaders in Pakistan;

Loaders of China are low in price, fine quality and suitable for Pakistan.

Pickups

The production and marketing situation of Pickup of China is well established;
The gradual promotion of the ban-lifting policy for Pickup of China promotes the
overseas sales of Pickup;

The production and marketing situation of Pickup in Pakistan is sound in recent
years.

Passenger
vehicles

The manufacturing capacity of passenger vehicle in China is powerful;

| The typical representative of passenger vehicle enterprises of China has

completed the going out.

The production and marketing situation of passenger vehicle in Pakistan is sound
in recent years.

Passenger
cars

The production and sales volume situation of passenger cars of

China is severg;

The typical representative of passenger cars enterprises of China has developed
the overseas market;

The production and marketing situation of passenger cars in Pakistan is sound.

Special
vehicles

The customization proportion of commercial vehicles in China is constantly rising;
Automotive enterprises of China have possessed the experience of exports of
special vehicles to Pakistan,;

The project of China-Pakistan Economic Corridor has driven the market demand
for special vehicles in Pakistan.

Automotive
parts

The scale of automotive parts manufacturing industry of China is constantly
increasing;

The import scale of automotive parts of China is larger;

The production volume of part of automotive parts of China is taking lead all

over the worid,

Automotive parts enterprises of China possess the strength of going out;

Pakistan possesses certain production capacity of automative Parts.




1.3.2 Metal Products Processing industry

(1) Attractive Investment in Pakistan for the Metal Products Processing industry of
China

Rapid development of construction industry of Pakistan has driven the demand for the metal
products. In recent years, the construction indusiry of Pakistan has been developing rapidly.
in the fiscal years 2016/17, output value of 682.828 billion rupees (about 6.516 billion U.S.
dollars) has been achieved, with a reai growth rate of 9.05%. Rapid development of the
construction industry will greatly boost Pakistan's demand for metal products.

There are abundant raw materials of metal products in Pakistan, including 92,500 tons iron
ore reserves, 135,200 tons copper reserves and 2.24 million ounces gold reserves. So far,
there are about 58 kinds of metal and non-metallic minerals being mined in Pakistan.

The output of some metal products in Pakistan continue to grow. The metal products
processing industry of Pakistan develops rapidly, and the output of some metal products
enjoy a sustainable growth. Taking billet as an example, Pakistan's billet output was rapidly
increased from 1,616,400 tons in the fiscal years 2011/12 to 4,099,000 tons in the fiscal
years 2016/17. Pakistan's billet output was increased by 28.77% in the fiscal years 2016/17.
There is increasing demand for imports of metal products in Pakistan. Metal products
imports of Pakistan continued to grow in the fiscal years 2013/14-2016/17. Metal products
imports of Pakistan were 2.76 billion U.S. dollars in the fiscal years 2013/14 and increased
to 4.229 billion U.S. dollars in the fiscal years 2016/17. Metal products imports of Pakistan
were increased by 7.34% YoY in the fiscal years 2016/17. This shows that Pakistan has a
growing demand for importing of metal products in recent years.

(2) Analysis of Foreign Investment opportunities for the Metal Products processing

Industry of China

Table 14  Motive power, pressure and capacity of "going out" of the metal products

processing industry of China

~}



¥4 The Government of China formulates policies to encourage the metal products

‘ processing enterprises to "GO GUT™;

The Belt and Road initiative provide new opportunities for the metal products

4 processing industry;

The China-Pakistan Economic Corridor encourages Chinese enterprises to invest
in Pakistan.

Pakistan initiates the anti-dumping and anti-subsidy investigations for part of
China's metal products frequently,

With the continuous implementation of envirenmental protection policies, the
metal products processing enterprises will be under pressure without doubt,
The metal products processing industry of China is confronted with the pressure
of excess capacity;

The industrial contribution of China's metal products processing industry is
relatively low, with fierce competition.

Capacity -

1 The market scale of China's metal products industry increases continuously,

- | China's metal preducts processing industry has a batch of stronger listed

companies;

| The main business of China's metal products industry rises continucusly;,

China's metal products have been widely exported.

(3) Selection and basis of key sub-sectors for the Metal Products processing

st

Industry
Basis for Selection
Type of '
Sub-sector
Steel The output of China's steel structure industry is rapidly increasing;
structure

China has a group of stronger sieel structure enterprises; The steel

The import demand for steel structures of Pakistan is increasing
continuously.

ructure products of China have entered the Pakistan market;

bar

Reinforced | China s the largest country of output of reinforced bars in the world;
The import demand for steel products of Pakistan increases continuously;

Pakistan's anti-dumping investigation of steel products exported from China
can be evaded.




Aluminum profile | China is the largest country of production of aluminum profiles in the world;
The anti-dumping and anti-subsidy investigations can change the key
overseas markets of China's aluminum profile enterprises to Asia;

The overseas layout of China's aluminum profile enterprises has been started;

The import demand for processed aluminum products of Pakistan is on the
increase.

Bathroom The bathroom hardware products of China have the advaniages of high
hardware quality and competitive price;

The building industry of Pakistan is developing rapidly to stimulate the demand
for bathroom hardware products;

The construction of China-Pakistan Economic Corridor stimulates the demand
for bathroom hardware products of Pakistan.

1.3.2 Textile & Garment Industry

(1) Attractive Investment Opportunities in Pakistan for the Textile and Garment
Industry of China

Pakistan has obvious advantages in cotton resources. Cotton is the main economic crop
and export resource for earning foreign exchange in Pakistan. Pakistan is also the main
cotton producing area in the world, and its production ranks fourth in the world. In the first
nine months of the fiscal years of 2016/17, the cotton production in Pakistan was 1,816,000
tons.

The textile industry of Pakistan boasts a solid foundation and a good industrial base, with a
certain self-supply capacity. Pakistan is the world’s second largest country for producing
cloth, and the third largest cotton yarn producer as well as a large producer of towels and
clothing. In the fiscal years of 2016/17, the cotton yarn production of Pakistan was
3,428,000 tons, and cotton cloth production was 1.043 billion square meters.

The government supports the development of the textie and garment industry. The
Pakistani government has issued the 2074-2019 Policies for Textile and hopes to realize
the double of textile exports in five years by formulating a series of incentives which promote
the development of the textile industry, that is, increasing from 13 billion U.S. dofiars to 26

billion U.S. dollars and creating 3 million job opportunities.



The overseas market share is stable, and the textile and apparel products are the main
export products of Pakistan. In the fiscal years of 2016/17, the exports of cotton fabrics were
2.134 billion U.S. dollars, cotton and yarn were 1.258 billion U.S. dollars, knitted goods were
2.359 billion U.S. doliars, and bedclothes were 2.136 billion U.S. doilars. Europe and
America have been the largest export destinations for Pakistan textiles, accounting for over
60%.

In the years from 2012 to 2015, Pakistan applied to China for anti-dumping investigation on
polyester staple fiber every year. Investing and building a factory in Pakistan can avoid trade
barriers, and Chinese products can enter the Pakistan market more smoothly.

Pakistan has abundant domestic labor resources and 60.5 million working-age laborers.
The average monthly salary in fiscal years of 2014/15 was 14,970.70 rupees (147.79 U.S.
dollars). The average monthly salary in manufacturing was 13,477.76 rupees (133.05 U.S.
dollars).

Pakistan lies at the intersection of South Asia, Central Asia and the Middle East (Western
Asia). It is highly active in participating in regional economic cooperation. So far, Pakistan
has signed free trade agreements with Sri Lanka, China, Malaysia, SAARC and other
countries and regional organizations. It has also signed preferential trade arrangements
with Iran, Mauritius, Group of Eight Islamic Developing Countries and other countries and
organizations. In addition, Pakistan is a favored country of EU tariff preferences. The market
for the textile and garment industry of Pakistan has a wide range.

(2) Analysis of foreign investment opportunities for the Textile and Garment industry of
China

Table 1-5 Motive power, pressure and capacity for going-out of the textile and garment
industry of China
| The growth rate of finished products of industrial enterprises above designated size

| in the textile and garment manufacturing industry keeps increasing;

| China’s textile and garment exports have ranked first in the world for several
consecutive years;

The foreign investment of Chinese textile and garment enterprises is increasingly
mature;

China's textile industry has entered the stage of transnational layout.
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¢:| The internal demand of China's textile and garment market has declined in the last twd

years,
The labor cost of China's textile and garment industry is rising, and the profit space is
compressed;

The profitability of textile and garment enterprises is slowing down; The other
production cost of China’s textile and garment industry is relatively high;

China's textile and garment industry has a great pressure to upgrade and transform.

Capacity

The main business income of textile and garment industry keeps increasing;
The fixed assets of the industrial enterprises above designated size in textile and

| garment manufacturing industry are increasing; The production of Chinas textile and

garment industry is increasing rapidly;
China’s textile and garment enterprises have powerful strength, with more than 300

| listed companies.

Type of Sub-

sector

(3) Selectibn and basis of key sub-sectors for the Textile and Garment industry

Basis for Selection

Garment | Inrecent years, the overall garment production has been increasing in China;

The retail volume of Chinese garment has increased year by year,

| The rising cost of China's garment industry provides opportunities for Pakistan;
Pakistani garment radiates to Europe and America;

Rashakai has natural advantages in developing the garment industry. .

Home

The market scale of the home textile industry in China is expanding continuousty;
textites The home textile industry of China is advanced in technology;
The demand for the Pakistan market is increasing;
The home textile industry of Pakistan requires upgrading and transformation of
technologies.
Garment The overall export of Chinas zipper and button is on the rise;

accessories | The effect of industrial linkage development is formed with the garment industry.
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1.3.4 Leather Industry

(1) Attractive investment of Pakistan for the L.eather Industry of China

KP Province where Rashakai is located can provide sufficient raw materials for the leather
industry. In 2016, the breeding stock of cattle, buffalo, sheep and goat in KPK Province is
expected to be respectively 6,060,000, 2,440,000, 1,930,000 and 8,410,000, increasing by
37%, 35%, 14% and 36% respectively compared with that in 2006 (the breeding stock of
them was respectively 4,420,000, 1,800,000, 1,690,000 and 6180000). The leather industry
is an industry for foreign exchange by means of export in Pakistan, with a perfect industrial
basis. At present, there are a total of 720 leather enterprises, of which 30-50 are large-scale
companies and more than 5 are listed companies. in the fiscal years of 2016/17, the exports
of leather and leather products in Pakistan reached 944 million U.S. dollars, accounting for
4.63% of the total exports of Pakistan.

The European Union helps the development of the leather industry in Pakistan with financial
support. in June 2017, the European Union agreed to provide funds for Pakistan’s initiative
of improving the competitiveness of leather industry for the prevention and treatment of
cattle skin diseases in Pakistan.

The Pakistani government takes various measures to stimulate the leather industry. in
recent years, the export of leather and leather products in Pakistan shows a downward
trend. To address this issue, the government encourages the development of the leather
industry with many measures, such as encouragement of technological upgrading,
improvement of products quality, implementation of export tax rebates, abolition of import

duty on raw materials, and simplification of export procedures.

KP provincial freight hub and railway terminal project will make the traffic in Rashakai more
convenient. Rashakai pSEZ lies in the middle of China-Pakistan Economic Corridor, 70km
east of the Capital Islamabad and 40km west of the KPK Province capital Peshawar,
neighboring the middle section of Islamabad-Peshawar M1 Expressway. KPK province has
put forward the freight hub and railway terminal project of the central special economic zone.
The project will link to the railway main fine ML-1, making the traffic in Rashakai more

convenient.
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(2) Analysis of foreign Investment Opportunities of the Leather industry of China

Table 1-6 Motive power, pressure and capacity for going out of the leather industry of China
¥ The global leather industry transfer to the developing countries;

Going out is certainly the trend for the development of the leather industry of China;
China's leather enterprises have the strength of going out;
China's leather enterprises have some expsrience in overseas investment;

China's leather enterprises have some influence overseas.

The rising cost makes the profits of China's leather enterprises to decling;

The constraint on the environment of resources is increasingly tighter;

It becomes arduous o complete the task of eliminating backward production capacity
of domestic leather enterprises;

EU REACH regulations aggravate the export pressures of China's Leather industry.

Capat:lt; The main business income of China’s leather and shoe-making industries grews
it steadily;

The planning of the leather industry promotes the rapid development of the leather
- | industry of China;

| The production of light leather of China grows rapidly;
China's leather products are widely exported.

(3) Selection and basis of key sub-sectors for the leather industry
Basis for Selection

Type of Suib-
sector

Shoe- China is the main production base of the world’s jeather shoes and boots:
making The exports of Chinese leather shoes show a downward trend;
Chinas shoe-making industry has started the overseas layout;

Pakistani leather shoe industry has a huge potential for development and a
promising prospect.

Luggage | The global market demand for luggage is sharply increased;
The production of Chinese luggage has accounted for more than 70% of the

world's total production:

The production value of the iuggage industry of China grows rapidly;
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The export situation of the luggage industry of China is not optimistic; The imports
of Pakistani luggage keep increasing, with large domestic demand.

i.eather China is a big producer of leather clothing;
clothing The export situation of Chinese leather clothing is grim,;

Large number of export of Chinese raw leather increases the business cost
of the leather clothing industry;

Chinese enterprises can produce high value-added leather clothing products to
boost the export competitiveness of Pakistan.

1.3.5 Food Processing Industry

(1) Attractive investment of Pakistan for the Food Processing industry of China
Agriculture is the traditional pillar industry in Pakistan, with a high production of agricultural
products. In the fiscal years of 2016/17, the ratio of agricultural production value to GDP
was 24.65%. The main crops in Pakistan involve wheat, rice, corn, cotton, and sugarcane,
etc. Other important agricultural products involve fruits, vegetables, milk, beef and mutton,
etc. In the fiscal years of 2016/17 of Pakistan, the output of crops increased by 3.02%,
sugarcane increased by 7.59% and rice increased by 0.71%.

The agricultural products of Pakistan boast a large export volume and a certain market
basis. As the main export commodities in Pakistan, the agricultural products and related
products are mainly exported to China. the United States and European countries, where
have more advanced product markets. It is expected in the fiscal year of 2016/17 that the
export of rice would reach 1.607 billion U.S. doilar, the fruit, vegetables and their juices
would reach 591 million U.S. dollar and the flour would reach 175 million U.S. doliar.

The Pakistani government encourages the development of the food processing industry. In
order to attract foreign investment, the Pakistani government has introduced a series of
preferential supporting policies, such as permission of 100% foreign ownership and no
restriction on the minimum investment, etc. The Rashakai pSEZ will enjoy the incentives, if
any, offered by China under CPEC Framework.

Pakistan uses conventional agricultural techniques and needs modernization, and
improvement to enable vertical processing capacity of agricuttural products. The process

of agricultural modernization in Pakistan is relatively backward, which is greatly affected by
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the natural weather. Due to insufficient agricultural industriafization level, the abundant fruit

and grain crops due to lack of corresponding technoiogy and deep processing capacity,

results in a considerable waste of resources and thus urgent improvement of the deep

processing capacity of agricultural products is required.

KP Province where Rashakai is located has rich agricultural product resources for
processing. KP Province is suitable for planting various food crops, fruits and vegetables
while Charsadda, Mardan and Swabi are suitable for planting high-quality sugarcanes. in
the fiscal year of 2015/16, the production of sugarcane in Mardan close to Rashakai was
1,369,300 tons, accounting for 25.02% of the total production of the KP province; the totat
production of vegetables in KP province was 384,700 tons, with a year-on-year increase of
2.0%,; the total production of fruit was 336,000 tons, which was down 2.1% from the same
{ime last year.

(2) Analysis of foreign investment opportunities for the Food Processing Industry

Table 1-7 Motive power, pressure and capacity for going out of the Food Processing industry

of China
China's food processing enterprises benefit much from overseas investment;

Going out complies with the national policy and the corporate sirategy;
Solid foundation of overseas market of Chinas food processing products;
The Belt and Read Initiative creates new opportunities for food processing enterprises.

Rising of the raw material prices reverses the going out of the food processing
enterprises;

Environmental protection policy gives pressure to the food processing industry;
Imported foods occupies the domestic market shares;

Establishment of food processing plant in China by large-sized cross-country
corporation gives pressure to enterprises in China.

- Capacity | Sound development of Chinas food processing technology and system;
Total profit of Chinas food processing industry more than 200 billien Yuan;
Stable scale of enterprises of Chinas food processing industry;

Relatively powerful production capacity of Chinas food processing industry;

Many enterprises of Chinas food processing industry going out.
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(3; Selection and basis for key sub-sectors of the Food Processing industry

Types of

sub-sectors

Basis for selection

Sugar

Finished sugar production capacity in China lowered significantly;

High sugar production costs in China, near half of the sugaring enterprises in
2018 with losses;

Abundant sugarcane resources in Pakistan, large sugar production capacity;

Solid sugar industrial foundation in Pakistan, great sugar requirements in China.

Dairy
products

Production values of dairy products industry in China increased, and production
capacity also increased,

Well-developed dairy product enterprises in China, with the strength of Going
out;

Not high commercialization of dairy industry in Pakistan, and deep production
capacity to be improved.

Juice and
beverage

Well development of juice and beverage industry in China, with increasing sales
income;

Juice and beverage production capacity in China lowered in recent years, but
famous enterprises with the strength of Gaing out;

Abundant fruit varieties in Pakistan, relatively higher yield, providing sufficient
raw materials.

Muslim meat
products

The population of worldwide Muslim reaches about 2 billion, with great demands
on Muslim requirements;

The Muslim meat product industry of China develops rapidly;

The animal husbandry industry develops well in Pakistan, with a high breeding
stock;

Production capacity of Musfim meat in Pakistan increases stably to guarantee
supply of raw materials.

1.3.6 Household Appliance Industry

(1) Attractive Investment of Pakistan for the Household appliances Industry of China

With the rising living standards of the people in Pakistan, the household appliance market

is promising. As of August, 2017, the tota! population of Pakistan is approximately 208

million, with annual average growth of 2.4%. The growth of GDP per capita in Pakistan is
kept around 30%. The GDP per capita of Pakistan in 2016 is approximately 1443.6 US
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dollars. As estimated by iMF, the quantity of the rich consumers in Pakistan will be increased
by about 6% in each year.

The consumption potential of household in Pakistan is great, and the investment prosperity
of the household industry is promising. Pakistan has a large requirement of household
appliance, but the domestic manufacturing capacity is peor. in the fiscal years 2012/13-
2016/17, the import of household appliance is increasing. In the fiscal years 2016/2017,
imports of refrigerator and freezer, TV set and fuli-automatic washing machine are about
104.4 thousand US dollars, increasing by 21.82% compared with the last year. As for
imported househald appliance in Pakistan, 100% security shall be paid to boost local
investment by Chinese enterprises. As of March 17, 2017, according to regulations by
Pakistan Government, the importers of imported vehicles (complete vehicle or parts),
mobile phones, cigarettes, jewelry, cosmetics, individual skin care products, electronic and
household appliance, weapons and ammunition, shall pay 100% security when issuing
letter of certificates.

In year 2016, Haier Group and Ruba Group cooperated and established Ruba Industrial
Park. At present, the household appliance by Haier is leading in local market. Other
household appliance manufacturers mirror Haier, with the opportunity of popularity of

Chinas products, explore local markets and occupy market shares.
(2) Analysis of Foreign Investment opportunities for the Household Appliance
Industry of China

Table 1-8 Motive power, pressure and capacity for going out of the household appliance
industry of China
The Belt and Road Initiative creates new opportunities for

household appliance manufacturers;
Chinas household appliance manufacturers accelerates
worldwide layout;

Overseas market shares of Chinas household appliance
industry increasing;

Chinas household appliance industry mirrors various overseas
investment modes.
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In recent years, the production capacity of Chinas household
appliance grows slowly;
Increasing costs of Chinas household appliance industry;

Serious competition in domestic household appliance industry;
Serious trade barriers for export of Chinas household appliance
industry.

Capacity .

Powerful manufacturing industries of Chinas household appliance]
industry;
Well performance of listing companies of Chinas household appliancel
industry;

Broad export of the Chinas househeld appliances;

Enhanced R & D capacity of Chinas household appliance
industry.

(3) Selection and basis for key sub-sectors of the household appliance industry

Types of

sub-sectors

Basis for selection

TVsets

Powerful manufacturing capacity of color TV set in China,;

Limited growth of color TV growth in China, lowered sales;

Narrow profit space of TV set enterprises in Ching;
Typical representatives of TV set enterprises in China explored
overseas market;

increasing import of TV set in Pakistan, great domestic
requirements.

Fans

Powerful fan manufacturing capacity in Ching;
The scale of fan market in China shrinking year by year,;
Increasing export market for fans made in China;

Solid industrial foundation of the fan industry in Pakistan, well
developed.

Refrigerators

Powerful manufacturing capacity of refrigerators in China;
Export of refrigerators in China keeping stable growth;
Typical representatives of refrigerators enterprises of China
explored overseas market;

Relieving Pakistani's dependence on import of refrigerators;
Chinese enterprises mirroring successful experience from
Haier, and continuing to explore local potential.
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Air
conditioners

Powerful manufactiring capacity of China;
Increasing export of air-conditioners of Ching;

Typical representatives of air-conditioner enterprises of China invested
overseas;

Pakistan levies supervision tariff and stimulates localization
production by Chinese enterprises.

Pakistan has certain manufacturing capacity of air-conditioners.

Washing Powerful manufacturing capacity of washing machines in Ching;
machines Export of washing machines of China facing pressurized
production,
Typical representatives of washing machines of China expanded in
overseas market;
Large-sized washing machines of China based on Pakistan to
avoid anti-dumping by Europe and America,;
Increasing import of full-automatic washing machines of
Pakistan, greater requirements.
Small Powerful manufacturing capacity of small household appliance of Ching;
2::;’:::;2 Low profit rate of smalf household appliance of Ching;

Broad export of small household appliance of China;
Typical representatives of small household appliance of China
explored overseas market;

Small household appliance market of China of certain development
potential.

1.3.7 Packaging / Printing Industry

(1)Attractive investment opportunities in Pakistan for the packaging/printing industry
of China Pakistan can provide rich human resources for the packaging/printing industry;
besides, it is the sixth-largest country in the world by population and its total popuiation is
always on the increase. In 2016, the total population of Pakistan is 195 million, with a year-

on-year growth of 1.89%. In August cf 2017, the preliminary report of the Sixth National

Population

Census of Pakistan showed that the total population of Pakistan was about 208 million. The

packaging/printing industry is a labor-intensive industry, and Pakistan can offer ample

human resources for the packing/printing industry.
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It can develop in coordination with the packaging/printing enterprises in Hattar Industrial

Zone and Peshawar Industrial Zone. Both Hattar industrial Zone and Peshawar Industrial
Zone have a certain number of packaging/printing enterprises, and Rashakai pSEZ is
located in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa province where Hattar industrial Zone and Peshawar
Industrial Zone are also located, so it can develop the packaging/printing industry so as to
create the coordinated development effect of industrial cluster together with the
packaging/printing enterprises in these two industrial zones.

The import demand for packaging/printing materials of Pakistan increases continuously, and
paper and paperboards are the backbone of the printing industry and are the most important
materials of the packaging industry, and in recent years, the import demand for paper and
paperboards of Pakistan is on the increase. In the fiscal year of 2016/17, the import volume
of paper and paperboards of Pakistan was 592,200 tons, with a year-on-year growth of
14.16%; the amount of imports is 528 million U.S. dollars, with a year-on-year growth of
4.56%.

The investment potential of the packaging/printing industry of Pakistan is huge and the
printing industry of Pakistan is developing rapidly, and the current printing/packaging industry
has become the second-largest industry in Pakistan, second only to the textile industry.
Neariy all pieces of packaging and printing mechanical equipment are imported from foreign
countries, and every year, Pakistan invests a huge amount of money to meet the increasing
demand of packaging/printing products. With the economic development and an increase in
per capita income of Pakistan, the packaging industry will face the increasing demand in
Pakistan, while the printing industry will flourish with the prosperity of other industries.

(2) Analysis of foreign investment opportunities for the packaging/printing industry
of China

Table 1-9 Motive power, pressure and capacity of "going out" of the packaging/printing
industry of China
The Beilt and Road Initiative provides new opportunities for "going

out" of Cnina's packaging/printing industry;

The "Going out" operation of China's packaging/printing
enterprises are provided with policy supports;

An adjustment in the layout of global manufacturing industry brings new
gey development opportunities to the packaging/printing industry.
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With the continuous implementation of enviranmental
protection policies, the packaging/printing enterprises wili be under
pressure, The export volume of China's printing products are on
the decrease; Pakistan initiates the anti-dumping and anti-subsidy
investigations for part of printing products of Ching;
The industrial concentration of China's packaging industry is relatively low.

China has become the second-largest couniry of packaging industry in the
world;
The total production value of China's printing industry is steadily
increasing;
The income in the main business of enterprises above the printing
industry of China is steadily on the increase;
China's packaging/printing industry has a batch of stronger enterprises.

1.3.8 Mechanical Equipment Industry

(1) Attractive investment opportunities in Pakistan for the mechanical equipment
industry of China The import of mechanical equipment is the most and constantly
increasing in Pakistan and the mechanical equipment is the most important imported product
in Pakistan. The amount of imports of mechanical transportation equipment has been
continuously increased since the fiscal year of 2012/2013, and the amount of imports in the
fiscal year of 2016/17 were 14,999,000,000 US dollars with a year-on-year increase for
30.57%.

The market demand prospect of mechanical equipment is large in Pakistan. Pakistan is a
great agricultural country but 85% of cultivated land still adopts the traditional artificial tillage
method. The agricultural mechanization level should be improved urgently; Meanwhile,
Pakistan is also a country with a large population of Muslim with large demand for food
processing machinery. The demand of Pakistan for engineering machinery will be
continuously increase with the construction of China-Pakistan Economic Corridor.

Pakistan carries out the tariff-free preference for the import of mechanical equipment and
encourages the industrial development. Federal Board of Revenue is determined to carry
out tariff reduction and exemption for part of imported mechanical equipment on June 2014

and the government supports the development of mechanical equipment industry.

China’s mechanical equipment has been extensively exported to Pakistan. Currently, Chinas

leading enterprises of mechanical enterprises such as Sany Heavy Industry, Zoomlion and
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XCMG and so on have exported the rnechanical equipment products to Pakistan via China
engineering construction enterprise in Pakistan.

The traffic of KPK Province where the Rashakai pSEZ is located is convenient. Rashakai
pSEZ is located at the central part of China-Pakistan Economic Corridor, which is 70KM from
Islamabad, the Capital for 70km in the east, and 40 KM from Peshawar, the prefecture of
KPK Province for 40km in the west, adjacent to the middle section of Islamabad Peshawar
M1 expressway in the south and can radiate surrounding cities such as Afghan and Iran and

so on.
(2) Analysis of foreign investment opportunities for the mechanical equipment
industry of China

Table 1-10 Motive power, pressure and capacity for going out of the mechanical equipment

industry of China
The national policies encourage and support going out for

mechanical equipment enterprises;
International capacity cooperation is continuously boosted;
The Belt and Road initiative creates new opportunity for mechanical
equipment enterprises;

Going-out of the mechanical equipment industry is the inevitable
option for the industrial development.

The export of the mechanical equipment of China is declining
generally; The domestic mechanical equipment industry is faced with
the transformation and upgrading;

Trade barrier and other factors force enterprises of China to seek for
emerging markets;

The competition of the machinery industry of China is drastic and the
corporate profit is relatively lower.

Capacity The economic operation of the machinery manufacturing industry of
China is in good condition;

There is a batch of enterprises with international competitiveness in
the mechanical equipment industry of China;

The independent development capacity of the mechanical equipment industn
of China is constantly strengthened;

The mechanical equipment industry of China possesses the powerful
manufacturing capacity;

There are numerous listed companies with powerful enterprise strength in
the mechanical equipment industry of China.
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(3)Seiection and basis of key sub-sectors for the mechanical equipment industry
Basis for Selection

Type of Sub-
sector

Agricultural | The state encourages the development of agricultural
machinery machinery industry,

The development of the agricultural machinery
industry of China is fast and the value of output is constantly
improved;

The agricultural machinery industry of China is
faced with the pressure of exports;

The supply of agricultural machinery is insufficient in
Pakistan, which demands for the imports;

The agricultural development is good in Rashakai is better
and the market of agricultural machinery possesses large
market potential.

Food The category of food machinery of China is various with
machinery

superior quality;

The development of the food machinery industry of
China is faced with multiple pressure;

Going-out of food machinery enterprises of China
has been the inevitable trend;

The agricultural development in KPK Province
where Rashakai is located is better and the market prospect
of food machinery is bright.

Construction The revenue of the construction machinery
machinery

industry of China was recovered in 2016 and the industrial
development is stable; The construction
machinery industry of China is faced with the pressure of
exports;

The import of construction machirery in Pakistan is
constantly increased and the market demand is iarge;

The freight hub and railway terminal project in KPK
Province will promote the demand for construction
o machinery products.
Packing The revenue of the packing machinery industry of
machinery | China is constantly increased and the industrial
development is better;
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The packing machinery of China has obtained certain
overseas market;

The development of the food processing industry
will promote the demand of Pakistan for the packing
machinery.

Printing The printing machinery industry of China is constantly
machinery

developing stably.
The printing machinery of China has been extensively
exported overseas;

The printing machinery of China has occupied certain
market in Pakistan.

1.3.9 Toy Industry

(1) Attractive investment opportunities in Pakistan for the toy industry of China

The ftraditional textile industry of Pakistan provides sufficient textile clothes for the toy
industry, and the textile industry is the most important pillar industry and the largest export
industry of Pakistan. In the fiscal years 2016/17, the cotton cloth yield of Pakistan is 1.043
billion square meters, increasing by 0.38% compared with the last year.

The total import of toys in Pakistan is increasing, with great domestic demand. From July to
March of the fiscal years 2016/17, the import of toys, gaming and sports supplies in Pakistan
ts 78 million US dollars, increasing by 11.43% compared with the whole fiscal years 2015/16.
The ifabor costs of Pakistan are very competitive and Labor availability in Pakistan is
abundant. The population has been keeping growth since year 2006. The nationwide
average month salfary of the fiscal year 2014/15 is 14970.70 rupees, (about 147.79 US
dollars). The monthly average salary of the manufacturing industry is 13477.76 rupees, about
133.05 US dollars. The industry involves Iran with promising market. In August, 2013, lran
abolished the Law of Family Planning, which was enforced for 20 years, and invested 190
billion Riyals (about RMB 100 billion) to encourage childbirth, and set the population grown
to 150-200 million.

The domestic toy market potential in Iran is great.
(2) Analysis of foreign investment opportunities for the toy industry of China

Table 1-11 Motlve power, pressure and capacity for going out of the toy industry of China
s Rapid expansion of overseas market scale of toy industry of

, Ching;
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SWEEEE Exporting market of toy products of China for developed countries;

{

Rapid expansion of market scales of Asian and Oceanian market
y for toy of China;

| Rapid expansion of enterprises for developing expert business of]
toys.

Serious market competition of toy industry in China;

Poor profits of toy industry of
1 China; Increasing barriers of
foreign trade.

4 Capacity
' The toy enterprises seek transformation, and combine with the
culture industry;

The toy industry of China has cultivated many key enterprises.

1.3.10 Consumer Electronics Industry

{1) Attractive investment opportunities in Pakistan for the consumer electronics
industry of China With the increasing youth population and a huge market potential of
consumer electronics in Pakistan, most of the Pakistani population is young, under the age
of 30, and the popuiation of this age group is still growing. Taking mobile phone as an
example, at present, the market share of smart phone in Pakistan has increased from 30%
to 50% in the past two to three years, and there is a huge potential market for consumer
electronics products.

There is abundant labor force in the area around Rashakai and the [abor force of Pakistan
is low-paid. In 2017, Mardan had a population of 2.37 million, accounting for 7.8% of KPK's
population, which is the most populous area except for the capital of KPK province. In the
fiscal years 2014/15, the monthly average wage of Pakistan was about 148 US doliars, of
which manufacturing was about 133.05 U.S. dollars.

China's consumer electronics products enjoy a high popularity in Fakistan. The data show
that the market share of OPPO took the second place in the first and second quarter of 2017,
followed by MI-ONE. Most of the top 10 market sales in 2016 were almost entirely dominated
by Chinese brands.

Pakistan charges 100% deposit against consumer electronics importers, stimulating the
local production of Chinese enterprises. In February 2017, Pakistan announced that
importers of products including mobile phones, electronics and household appliances,
cigarettes and cosmetics should pay 100% deposit for Letter of Credit issued. The total value
of imported mobile phones affected by the policy is about 10 million U.S. dollars.
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There are also promising markets in the neighboring countries. There is great market
potential in neighboring countries of Pakistan. For example, the penetration rate of mobile
phone products in Afghanistan has increased from 4.8% in 2005 to 61.6% in 2015; the
amount of Iranian consumer electronics products in 2014 has reached 10.8 billion U.S.

dollars, and kept growing.
{2) Analysis of foreign investment opportunities for the consumer electronics

industry of China

Table 1-12 Motive power, pressure and capacity for "going out” of the consumer electronics
industry of China
Global consumer electronics market is increasing rapidly;

National policies boost the development of consumer
electronics industry of Ching;
Some consumer electronics companies of China have taken the lead in
"Going Global™;

China's consumer electronics products have been widely exported; Chinese
consumer electronics companies benefit a lot from establishing overseas
factories.

The smart phone market of China has gradually reached saturation;
There is flerce competition in the domestic market;

Rising costs and configuration enhancements increase the production cost of
| companies;

Saturated consumer electronics markets in developed countries force

companies to explore new markets.
L

Y

Capacity | The size of consumer electronics market is expanded in China; Consumer
..~ - -1 electronics industry of China plays an important role in the world;
A number of leading enterprises emerged in this industry;

Consumer electronics companies of China gradually improve their
technological innovation capability.

(3)Selection and basis of key sub-sectors for the consumer electronics industry

Basis for Selection
Type of Sub- S '
sector
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Smart phones

Chine has a strong capability in manufacturing smart
phones;

40%
The shipment quantity of Chinese smart phone accounts for
40% of the world;
Representatives of smart phone companies of China have
invested overseas;
Pakistan has become a major international market for
smart phones with great future potential;

Chinese branded mobile phones have occupied a
significant market share in Pakistan.

Computers

China has a strong capability in manufacturing computers;
There is high concentration of domestic computer brands and
small development space for many companies in China.
Representatives of computer companies of China have
opened up overseas markets;
There is a great potential for development of computer market
in Pakistan;

- Pakistani government has taken steps to solve tha
network problems in remote areas.

Audio-visual
equipment

Audio-visual equipment manufacturing industry of
China is developing rapidly;

The profits of audiovisual equipment industry of China
are dropped and profitability is also declined;

Some enterprises of China, who engage in audio-
visual equipment industry products, have invested overseas;

Audio-visual equipment of China has taken a certain market
share in Pakistan.

1.3.11 Trade and Exhibition City
(1) Setting the Basis & Analysis

N .
Level _ Basis - . Main Description
Pakistan's economy is Pakistan's GDP increased steadily in the fiscal
; expected to maintain its growth | years 2011/12-2016/17, with a rising growth
momentum. It is estimated that | rate. In the fiscal years 2011/12, Pakistan's GDP
by 2028, the total GDP will was 20 frillion rupees (about 224.652 billion US
Pakistan increase substantially. dollars), a real increase of 3.84%,
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and in the fiscal year 2017, Pakistan's GDP rose
to 31.86 trillion rupees (about 304.0515 billion
US dcllars), and the real growth rate rose to
5.70%. Pakistan’'s GDP is expected to reach
51.90 trillion rupees by 2027/28 fiscal year.

The rapid increase of per capita
GDP in Pakistan is conducive to
substantially raising  the
purchasing power of the
population.

Pakistan's GDP per capita increases
continuously in the period from 2010 to 2016. In
2010, the per capita GDP in Pakistan was
87430.33 rupess, or about 1043.3 US dollars. In
2016, the per capita GDP in Pakistan rose to
150,632 rupees, or about 1,443.6 US dollars,
which increases 3.4% year on year. It is
astimated that by 2027, the per capita GDP in
Pakistan will reach 208,411 Rupees.

Pakistan's large population
base and its continued growth
provide the space to the
consumer market.

Since 2007, Pakistan's population has
maintained its growth trend. In 2016, Pakistan's
total population was 195 million, which
increases 1.89% year on year. In August 2017,
the preliminary report of the sixth national
census in Pakistan showed that the total
popuiation of Pakistan is about 208 million, an
increase of 57% over the fifth national census in
1998, and the annual population growth rate is
2.4%.

Pakistan's domestic
consumption scale and
investment size support its
considerable market capacity.

In fiscal year 2016/17, the total nominal
consumer spending in Pakistan is estimated at
26.08 frillion rupees (about 248.832 billion US
dollars), which increases 11.98% year on year,
and accounts 87.22% cof nominat GCP.

In fiscal year 2016/17, total domestic investment
in Pakistan is estimated to be 4.74 trillion rupees
{about 45.25 billion US dollars), which increases
11.1% year an year, and accounts 14.88% of the
nominal GDP.

Pakistan's wholesale and retail
industry output continued to
maintain rapid growth
momentum to support the
potential of business markets.

In the period from fiscal year 2012/13 to
2018/17, the output value of the wholesale and
retail trade in Pakistan continued its rapid
growth, and the actual annual growth rate was
continuously increasing. By fiscal year 2016/17,
the output value of wholesale and retail trade in

Pakistan increased to 53.289 billion US dollars
with a real growth rate of 6.4%, which accounts
for 33.19% of service industry output value, and
accounts for 18.68% of GDP.

28




Pakistan's trade volume shows
that Pakistan has considerable
market capacity.

In the 2016/17 fiscal year, total trade in Pakistan
was 73.314 billion US dollars, which increases
11.88% year on year. Among them, the amount
of imports was 52.810 billion US dollars, which
increases 18.41% year on year, the amount of
exports was 20.404 hillion US dollars, which
decreases 1.84% year on year, the trade deficit
was 32.506 billion US dollars.

Pakistan's import and export
commodity structure provides
an important reference for
business category of business
projects.

Pakistan's major export commodities are
textiles, foodstuffs, jewelery, chemical products
{(including pharmaceuticals), leather and its
products, medical appliances, cement, sporting
goods, engineering equipment, carpets and so
on. The amount of export in Pakistan was
20.404 billion US dollars in 2016/17 fiscal year,
of which, the export of knitwear was 2.359 billion
US dollars, which accounts for 11.56% of the
total.

Pakistan's major import commodities are crude
oil and petroleum products, foodstuffs,
transportations, steel and plastic raw materials.
The amount of impart in Pakistan was 52.910
billion US dollars in 2016/17 fiscal year, of
which, the import of mechanical transportation
equipment was 14.999 hillion US dollars, which
accounts for 28.35% of the total.

The development basis of
Pakistan's transportation and
warehousing logistics industry
is good.

In 2016/17 fiscal year, the output value of
Pakistan’s transportation and warehousing
logistics was 38.237billion US dollars with a real
growth rate of 3.94%, which accounts for 12.7%
of proportion of GDP.

The Pakistani government
aflows foreign investors to
engage in wholesale, and the
retail trade and the trading
environment is relaxing.

Pakistan's policy on foreign investment is very
liberal. Foreign investors are allowed to engage
in wholesale and retail trade and Pakistan
implements its trade liberalization policy. At
present, the free trade agreements signed by

Pakistan include: The Pakistan-lran Preferential
Trade Arrangements, South Asia Free Trade

Area Agreement, Pakistan-China Free Trade
Agreement, and Pakistan-Malaysia Closer
Economic Partnership Agreement; preferential
trade arrangements include: The Pakistan-lran
Preferential Trade Arrangements, Preferential
Trade Agreement of the Group of Eight Islamic
Developing Countries (D-8), and Pakistan-
Mauritius Preferential Trade Arrangements.
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China

The import and export trade
volume between China and
Pakistan is considerable and
maintains a rapid growth.

The trade between China and Pakistan
continued to increase. In 2016, the bilateral
trade volume between China and Pakistan was
19.33 billion US dollars, of which, China's
exports to Pakistan reached 17.23 billion US
dollars, China's imports from Pakistan reached
1.91 billion US dollars, China's trade surplus
with Pakistan reached 15.23 billion US dollars.
The scale of import and export between China
and Pakistan is considerable and the trend of
rapid growth is maintained. China's trade
surplus with Pakistan is constantly expanding,
providing an imagination for the establishment
and development of an integrated commerce
and trade city.

The goods export from China to
Pakistan laid a good foundation
for the further opening up of
the Pakistani market for the
goods of China.

China's major export commodities to Pakistan
are mechanical equipment, steel and its
products, chemicals, electrical and electronic
appliances, computer and communications
products, fertilizers and agricultural products,
among them, the mechanical equipment
account for nearly 40%.

The structure of China's exports to Pakistan can
be used as an important reference for the
operation of the Trade City project. The scale of
China's exports to Pakistan shows that Chinese
commodities have gained a reputation in the
Pakistani market and laid a good foundation for
Chinese goods to further opening up the
Pakistan's market.

China is Pakistan's largest
source country of imports,
supporting the strong
competitiveness of Chinese
goods in Pakistan.

China is Pakistan's largest source of imports of
goods. From July 2016 to May 2017, Pakistan
imported the goods valued 13.884 billion US
dollars from China, which accounts for 28.69%
of the total imports, ranking the first place.

Development opportunities
brought by the in-depth
promotion of Chinas The Belt
and Road initiative.

Pakistan is an important country along the line
of the Belt and Recad initiative. The in-depth
promoticn of the Belt and Road initiative will help
improve the living standards of Pakistani pecple
and improve people's livelihood, resulting in
good news to the development of Trade and
Exhibition City Project in Rashakai pSEZ.

Deveiopment opportunities
brought about by the

Construction of China-Pakistan
Economic Corridor.

The radiation effects of the China-Pakistan
Economic Corridor will closely coliaborate with
South Asia, Central Asia, North Africa, the Gulf
Countries and etc. through cooperation in the
field of economic and energy to forge economic
resonance.
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Rashakai

Rashakai has a good business
foundation.

Prior to construction of the M1 Highway at

Rashakai Intersection, this small fown,
Rashakai, was known for its ShireenKotay
apparel market. ShireenKotay is recognized as
one of the top apparel markets in the KPK
province (and also in Pakistan). Although its size
has been expanding, over the years there have
been many other fabrics markets in Rashakai,
showing that the business foundation of
Rashakai is good.

The traffic conditions of
Rashakai is convenient, which
provides an important transport
guarantee for business
legistics projects.

Rashakai is close to the Nowshera-Mardan
Highway and the M1 Highway Rashakai
intersection. It is about 150 km from Islamabad
and only 40 km from Peshawar. Ma-Rashakai
intersection provides the convenient channel for
Nowshera, Mardan, KPK Province and other
regions.

Rashakai can provide a certain
hinterland market for the Trade
and Exhibition City project.

Currently, the cities around Rashakai such as
Mardan, Nowshera, Peshawar and other cities
are all lacking in large-scale comprehensive
trade projects. The large population of these
cities can provide a hinterland market for the
Rashakai Trade and Exhibition City project.

KPK Province has a population of 30,523,400
people in 2017, accounting for 14.9% of the total
population of the country. Among them, the
population of Peshawar is about 4,269,100
people, accounting for 14% of the total
population of KPK Province, the population of
Nowshera is about 1,520,000 people,
accounting for 5% of the total population of KPK
Province, the population of Mardan is about
2,370,000 people, accounting for 7.8% of the
total population of KPK Province.

Trade and
Exhibition

City

Business Logistics Park is one
of the types of overseas parks

.| encouraged by the Chinese

government.

The Chinese government has promuigated
poficies to encourage and support the
establishment of the comprehensive trade city
outside China, encourage the development of
cross-border g-commerce, encourage
enterprises to build overseas warehouses,
which enhance the motivation for the going out
policy of trade and logistics-related enterprises
of China.
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Good momentum of
development of overseas
business projects can increase
the motivation for further iayout
of Chinese enterprises.

As of the end of 2018, China has established
about 111 trade and commerce cities outside
China, of which 40 are in Asia, accounting for
36%; 31 are in Europe, accounting for 28%; 29
are in Africa, accounting for 26%,; 11 are in
America, accounting for 10%.

In the future, the number of China's overseas
business and trade cities will continue to grow.
The professional companies engaged with
business platforms will become the main force
of investment in the overseas business and
trade cities, and the investment regions will
focus on Europe, Africa and Asia.

Taking the success of Dubai
Dragon City as a model to
stimuiate Chinese enterprises
continue to fayout the business-
type project all over the world.

Dragon City, the earliest known as the Chinese
goods (Dubai) distribution center, is China's
largest overseas trade center of goods collection
and distribution.

Dubai Dragon Mall lies in about 15 km southeast
of Dila old town in UAE's second largest city,
Dubai. There are currently more than 3,000
shops, and the commodities include diesel
generators, auto parts, screws, butions,
batteries, the categories are various, and the
goods shelves are set intensive and ordered,
which attract about 65,000 visitors to shopping
and business dafly. The annual trading voiume
of commodities in Dragon City up to in the period
from 80 billion to 90 billion US dollars.

Chinas business projects have
the layout space in South Asia.

So far, China has only one trade city project in
the Gwadar Port of Pakistan throughout South
Asia, and this project can form linkage and
dislocation competition with Rashakai project.
There are 15 China Trade Cities in Southeast
Asig, including 5 in Vietnam, 4 in Laos, 3 in
Thailand, 2 in Malaysia and 1 in Cambodia.

At present, the competition intensity of China
Trade City projects in South Asia is relatively
low. There is a space for the development and
construction of China Trade City in Pakistan.
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According to the analysis of 25 bases carried out from the four levels, we think that the
comprehensive trading city of Rashakai pSEZ has a good value for investment. Under the
current background of constructing the China-Pakistan Economic Corridor and the sound
development of China's overseas trade and logistics park project, we should take advantage
of the opportunities brought by the rapid economic growth of Pakistan, carry out strategic
cooperation with China's commerce and trade platform companies, and actively promote the
faunching of the business and trade projects of Rashakai, to further lay the foundation for

the gverall development of the projects.

(2) Study on the environment of competition

Competition | Impacton Trade and Exhibition City in

Level ' ' Rashakai pSEZ
, Main Aspects

As of the end of 2016, China had set up

approximately 111 frade cities overseas. The

number of out-of-border trade cities will

continue to grow in the future. It is foreseeable
Qverall sithation of that, on one hand, these out-of-border trade

' cities will compete more fiercely for Chinese

merchants; on the other hand, commercial

. -| platform-based enterprises are seeking
China opportunities around the world thanks to their

' advantages in merchant resources,

management experiences, etc. Therefore,

.| there will be a growing number of investment
| projects related to commercial platforms.

‘competition for

Level 1
eve trade cities outside
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From a geographical point of view,
competitive threats for Trade and
Exhibition City in Rashakai pSEZ
mainly come from Chinas frade city
projects in Southeast Asia and South
Asia. For the moment, most Chinese

trade cities in Southeast Asia and
Competition from

Level 2 Chinas trade cities
in Asia There have not been any regional well-

South Area are targeting local cities.

known brands established yet, and the
environment of competition is merely
adequate. Besides, there are very few
Chinese trade cities set up in South
Asia only 1 at Gwadar Port of

Pakistan. There is still enough space
for Chinese trade cities to set foot in.

At present, Pakistan commercial
activities are mostly carried out in
trade cities that are mostly located ir.
| Competition from | Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad. There
Level 3 | Pakistan local trade | &€ SOMe clothing whoiesatg cities_in

o cities - | Rashakai as well, featured in clothing,
| cloth and daily necessities wholesales,
long history and poor shopping
experiences.

Linyi Trade City at Gwadar Port mainly
operate advantageous goods,
Cbmpetition from includ.ing build?ng apd decorgtive

, L R materials, engineering machinery,
Level4 | LinyiTrade Cityat | pogyare and E&M equipment, labor
Gwadar Port protection articles, work-site living
supplies, etc., which may impact the
Project to a certain degree.

For Trade and Exhibition City in Rashakai pSEZ, it is suggested to take full advantage of
the enormous growing space for commercial activities in Pakistan, and focus on strategic

cooperation with Chinese commercial platform-based companies so as to import their
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merchant resources and management experiences, introduce E-commerce platforms to
guarantee rapid launching and healthy progress of the comprehensive trade city project,

as well as o avoid homogenous competition with Linyi Trade City at Gwadar Port.

(3) Preliminary idea and strategic orientation

Trade and Exhibition City in Rashakai pSEZ will integrate the product exhibition & sale,
warehousing & distribution and online/offline interaction, and become a large commercial
complex providing services for product exhibition & trade, whelesale & retail, warehc;using
and transportation. Trade and Exhibition City in Rashakai pSEZ will rely on the existing
achievements of Shireen Kotay and other clothing cities, take advantage of the geographical
advantage of being in the proximity of Highway M1, seize the opportunities under The Belt
and Road Initiative of China, the development of the China Pakistan Economic Corridor and
economic growth of Pakistan to interconnect with three economic zones Hattar, Gilgit and
Gwadar Port so as to grow into a nationally reputed commodity trading center of Pakistan.
Strategic orientation of Trade and Exhibition City in Rashakai pSEZ: rely on the existing
good cloth trading market in Rashakai, integrate advantageous commercial resources of the
region; produce radial effects on Islamabad, Peshawar and other neighboring regions;
interconnect with all regions within the border of Pakistan, Afghanistan and the Xinjiang
Uygur Autonomous Region of China; grow into a comprehensive trade city for product
exhibition & sale, warehousing & distribution, and online/offline interaction; and repute for

the full range of commodities and high-class services.

(4) Functional division

Trade and Exhibition City in Rashakai pSEZ preliminarily involves five functional zones: the
Merchandizing Zone, the Trade Exhibition Zone, the Warehousing & Distribution Zone, the

E-Commerce Zone, and the Service Zone.
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: Commodity wholesale & retail

Exhibition & sale and promotion

—+ Commedity warehousing & distribution

1 E-commerce services

One-stop comprehensive services

1) Merchandising Zone
The Merchandising Zone is a commercial complex for commodity wholesale and retail.

Commodities involved in the Merchandising Zone include clothes, home textiles, shoes and
hats, clothing accessories, building materials, sanitary ware, furniture, home appliances,
consumer electronics, hardware and tools, and other small commodities. In particular,
clothes, shoes and hats are mostly locally sourced, while building materials, consumer
electrical appliances, home appliances, and hardware, etc. are mainly from China.

Most commodities involved in this zone are of middle and low classes. High-end
commodities are occasionaily available. Commercial activities are mostly wholesale
business with retail playing an aiding role.

Transit commodities are dominant in the Merchandising Zone. The objective is to integrate
local advantageous commercial resources of Rashakai and build the area into a naticnally
well-known commodity trading center in Pakistan, so as to assist in economic and trading
exchanges between China and Pakistan and explore the Pakistani and Afghan markets with

superior Chinese products.
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2) Trade Exhibition Zone

The Trade Exhibition Hall of the Trade and Exhibition City can be used for exhibition. In
normal times, temporary merchants are invited to provide recreational services for and sell
featured small commodities to customers. The hall can also be used to hold trade exhibitions
and product promotion events, etc.

3) Warehousing & Distribution Zone

The Warehousing & Distribution Zone provides services involved in warehouses, sites,
storage, keeping, loading, unloading and handling, and goods distribution, etc., mostly
staridard buildings.

4) E-Commerce Zone

E-commerce platforms are introduced into the zone. The City may cooperate with Chinas E-
commerce giants and reputed E-commerce players in the Pakistani market or independently
build cross-border E-commerce platforms to become a commodity gathering and distributing
center based on close online-offline interaction. The development of E-commerce platforms
and the concentration of massive orders can strengthen brand influences and improve actual
sale volumes of trade exhibition events. During the positive interaction with E-commerce
platforms, players of trade exhibition can continuously expand the scale and enrich the
category of commodities based on E-commerce platforms, so as to enlarge the scope of
business of E-commerce platforms.
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Gradually improve the influence, brand :
recognition and reputation of the trading
and exhibition park.

1. In-store experience

"-} in-store axperience

3. Information verificaionand

4. Gocds delivery and trac! ¥ delivery arrang.

he volume of commodity exhibition & sale i
keeps srowing. New products are imported !
to enlarge the scope of business of E- .
commerce platforms. i

§) Service Zone
The Service Zone is established to settle all matters in the City in a one-stop way, and it
integrates the management center, finance, insurance, talent cultivation, supporting

business services as well as living, recreational and entertaining activities.

1.3.12 ICT Sector

(1) Supports from internal environment

Level - No. o ‘ Basis

_ The rapid development of macro economy in Pakistan
4 | provides good condition for the development of the ICT
industry.

\
The Pakistani government issued the 2017 Digital
: 2 | Pakistan, which encourages the development of the ICT
Macro-environment industry.
in Pakistan

The Pakistani government proposes to boost the
3 development of the ICT industry by incubators.

The Pakistani government promotes the development

"4 | and planning of high-tech parks to boost the
development of ICT Sector.

Developmentofthe | ~ = | The information and communication industries develop
ICT industry in 1 | quickly in Pakistan.
Pakistan

2 | The export value of the IT industry in Pakistan in the
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2016/17 fiscal year hit a record high.

The home market of the IT industry develops fast in
Pakistan.

The development of the ICT industry in Pakistan helps
reduce the dependence on export of information
&communication products.

There are a large number of ICT engineers and
technicians in Pakistan.

With a considerable quantity of undergraduates, Pakistan
has solid talent foundation for developing the ICT
industry.

To sum up, the internal environment for building ICT Sector in Rashakai pSEZ is favorable.
The positive factors mainly involve that: the Pakistani government supports the development
of the information & communication industry, and issues preferential investment policies;
Pakistan has good foundation for exporting software and service, and the market prospect

stays promising in future; and Pakistan has a solid talent foundation for developing the ICT

industry.

(2) Supports from external environment

Level | No. ~Basis
1 ' The ICT industry is under development across the world,
with a targe market size.
Envi The offshore outsourcing of software and service from
nvironment 2 Europe and America has a large market size.
of the world
Extensive experience in the software industry and software
3 park can be learnt from neighboring countries, especiatly
India.
_ The development index of the ICT industry in China ranks
1 top 10 in Asia-Pacific Region, and the ICT industry sees a
stable development in China.
: China has many powerful enterprises engaged in the ICT
Environment 2 industry.
of China -
: China has many typical enterprises engaged in the ICT
3 industry and business in foreign countries.
With rich experience in building hi-tech zone, China is
4 positively expanding its share overseas.
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Chinese government starts paying atiention to the export of
soft power through the Belf and Road Initiative.

To sum up, the external environment for puilding ICT Sector in Rashakai pSEZ is favorable.
The positive factors mainly involve that: the software and information technology service
has a large market size worldwide, and the momentum fer growth in future is good; the
offshore outsourcing from such countries and regions as Europe, America and Japan is
large; Chinese government encourages the development of technology-oriented R&D park
overseas; many enterprises are engaged in hi-tech park development in China, and they

are positively expanding overseas.

(2) Supports from investment

Level No. Basis

The ICT Sector is beneficial to obtaining preferential policies
frorm Pakistani government.

The ICT Cector helps the developer negotiate policies with

2 Pakistani government.
The ICT Sector is beneficial to obtaining support and subsidy
3 from Chinese government in future.
icT The ICT Sector is beneficial to improving the overall image of
Investment | 4 the Zone.
inICT - .

Technology The ICT Sector is beneficial to promcting the development of
City 8 supporting sectors in the Zone.

To sum up, the investment for ICT Sector in Rashakai pSEZ is favorable, mainly in favor of
cbtaining relevant preferential policies from Pakistani government, helping the developer
negotiate policies with Pakistani government, obtaining supports and subsidies from
Chinese government, improving the overall image of the Zone, and promoting the

development of supporting sectors in the Zone. (4) Judgment if the competition
environment
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Impact on ICT

No. Competitor Description Technology Cluster in
- : Rashakai pSEZ
(1) By the end of 2016, China Most China-invested
has invested in about 23 overseas
technology-oriented R&D parks | technology-oriented R&D
Technology-oriented parks are located in
1 | R&D Parks invested | overseas, including 7 in USA, 4 | developed countries, and

by China overseas

in Russia, 2 in UK, 2 in Australia,
and 1in UK, France, Germany,
Austria, Belgium, Singapcre,
Thailand and Pakistan,

there are just a few ICT
parks. Therefore, the
impact there from on

respectively.

{2)The technology-oriented R&D
parks invested by China
overseas are mainly located in
developed countries, and most
of them are jointly operated by
local high-tech enterprises,
scientific research institutions,

‘| and universities. The main

purpose is to conduct
technology-oriented R&D,
transformation of research
results and talent cultivation.
(3)At present, Chinese

"1 government encourages and

*| supports the development of

| technology-oriented R&D parks

‘| overseas. The number of China-

invested overseas technology-

| oriented R&D parks will continue

to grow in future.

the ICT Sectorin
Rashakai pSEZ is
minimal.
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High-tech industrial
parks of Indonesia

The Indonesian government
attaches great importance to the
development of high
technologies, and intends to
deepen the cooperation with
China in the high-tech sector.

Among the neighboring
countries, Indonesia is
one of the countries to
fight for the ICT
Technology City against
Pakistan, so the impact
due to the competition
from Indonesian high-

tech industrial parks is
minimal.

High-tech industrial
parks of Malaysia

The Malaysian government
attaches great importance to the
development of high technology
sector, and mainly focuses on
such sectors as information
communication, bio-technology
and aerospace.

Among the neighboring
countries, Malaysia is
one of the countries to
fight for the ICT
Technology City against
Pakistan, so the impact
due to the competition
from Malaystan high-
tech industrial parks is
minimal.

High-tech industrial
parks of Bangladesh

The Bangladeshi government

.| has accelerated the pace of

constructing IT industrial park
after proposing the Digital
Bangladesh 2021. The
Bangladeshi government is
planned to huild 28 high-tech,
software and IT industrial parks
across the country. So far, 12
high-tech parks have been
approved, and 7 are under
construction and in planning.

Among the neighboring
countries, Bangladesh is
a major competitor of
ICT Sector of Pakistan,
so it has certain impact

on the ICT Sector in
Pakistan.
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High-tech industrial

International Tech Park
Bangalore is a well-known
technology park in India. India

Among the neighbering
countries, Ingia is a core
competitor to Pakistan
for developing ICT park.
India has good
foundation for ICT
industry development.
The International Tech

parks of Pakistan

least one state-of-the-art
software technology park in
major cities (federal and
provincial capital cities) in
Pakistan in future, to promote
the innovation and coordination
in the ICT industry in Pakistan.

5 . has stronger ICT industry base
parks of india than Pakigtan and the nrgmber of gP:ii;l‘(elzacr;g;al?nrieh;usta“on
technology park continues to in the world. So the
grow in India. competition from Indian
ICT Sector is fierce.
At of 2016, 14 ICT technology The construction of the
cities have been built in software and IT
Pakistan, and the most typicai | Industrial park in
, Pakistan is at the
ones are Aiwan lgbal Software starting stage, and wil
Technology Park, Sand River turn into a rapid
Complex Software Technology | development with policy
‘ Park and Evacuee Trust support froT TPakistani
- C e . Pakistani overnment. The
g | Highoch industrial | SRR TR SN, | mumber of software and

iT industrial parks will
continue to grow, and
the IT industrial parks in
Pakistan will face
increasingly fierce
competition.

To sum up, the ICT Sector in Rashakai pSEZ will face great pressure of
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competition. For one part, there is fierce competition from the core competitive country
India, and for another part, there is competition from increasing software and {7 industrial
parks in Pakistan. However, the good thing is that the information and communication
industry in Pakistan has noticeable advantages in salary level, the software and IT industrial
park in Pakistan is still at the starting stage, and the involvement from Chinese counterpart
will speed up the establishment and development of ICT Sector Project in Rashakai pSEZ.
(5) Strategic orientation

Strategically, the ICT Sector aims to achieve the win-win cooperation between China and
Pakistan in the ICT industry and focuses on the outsourcing of software and information
services. Centering on the R&D and manufacturing of ICT-related products and equipment,
the ICT Sector will fully integrate the resources from the market both in and outside
Pakistan, and mainly attract ICT scientific research institutes, software and service
outsourcers as well as relevant products manufacturers, and also attract IT business
groups and Pakistani universities and colleges to set up R&D base in the Zone. Its major
market covers such couniries and regions as Europe and America, Middle East, South
Africa and China that outsource software and IT services. The ICT-related products and
equipment produced wiil mainly be sold in the domestic market of Pakistan. Efforts wili be
made to build the ICT Sector in Rashakai pSEZ into a flag project of the ICT Industry
International Cooperation between China and Pakistan under the China-Pakistan
Economic Corridor.

(6) Type of services

The ICT Sector in Rashakai pSEZ is mainly involved with these services: software and
information service, production and processing of ICT-related products and equipment,
ICT technology R&D, ICT entrepreneurship incubator, and teaching-research training

base, etc.

1.4 Development phase and scale prediction

(1) Development phase

Through the specific analysis of each proposed subsector to be settled in the project,
considering the present situation and demand of adjacent industrial facilities in the KP
Comprehensive Special Economic Zone, and development and construction status of the
surrounding areas, this project is proposed to be developed in three phases with

infroduction of corresponding sectors at the appropriate time. Meanwhile considering the
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long-term elasticity development and according to the future development of the whole
regicn, recovery and functional conversion for preliminary used iand can be conducted.
(2) Scale prediction

it is estimated preliminarily that the land demand for the industrial park in the Project is
about 1,002.76 acres.

It is estimated that the total land for the Phase | development and construction of the Project
will be about 247.21 acres.

It is estimated that the total land for the Phase !l development and construction of the
Project will be about 355.74 acres.

It is estimated that the total land for the Phase Il development and construction of the

Project will be about 399.86 acres.

fn summary, the total land demand for this project is 1,002.76 acres.

Chapter Il Overali Layout Planning

2.1 Project location and construction conditions

2.1.1 Project location

Rashakai pSEZ is adjacent to Kernal Sher Khan interchange on M1, which is the main
motorway linking Peshawar with [slamabad and CPEC alignments. Rashakai pSEZ is 30
km from Mardan in the north, 35 km from Nowshera in the south, 40 km from Peshawar in
the west, and 150 km to Islamabad in the east, which enjoys a unique location advantage.
Rashakai pSEZ is located in the northwest of Hattar SEZ, where the linear distance is about
73 km.
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Fig.2-1 Project location map (Macro)

47



R Propo;ed
7 Gilgit Logistics

LR

rSEZ &

T L hos .

i

Fig.2-3 Rasha;;(ai pSEZ ‘;/ersus Hattar SEZ relative position

The project site adjoins to M1 motorway to the south, it is 3.1 kilometers away from
highway interchange to the east outlet, 2.3 kilometers away from highway entrance to the
west outlet, and auxiliary road on the west side connected to the M1 is closed. The iand
used in the plot is relatively flat, and there is river passing through the central area vertically.

The total planned area is around 1000 acres (about 4 km2).

2.1.2 Site Status introduction
(1) Climate

‘The project site has mild climate. May, June, July and August are the hottest months. The
temperature in summer from May to September is high, but the nights are relatively cool.

The highest temperatures throughout the year are in May and June. December and January
are the coldest months. The highest and lowest average temperatures in summer are
41.5°C and 36.6C, respectively, and 19.3°C and 17.9 C in winter, respectively. The rainfalt
is mainly in July and August. The average annual rainfall is about 597.6 mm, and the annual
refative humidity is 60.1%. The highest rainfall record is in August, with an average of 112
mm. At the end of cold weather, there are occasional thunderstorms and hailstorms. The
relative humidity throughout the year is high. The driest month is October, and precipitation

difference between the wet and dry seasons is 99 mm.
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(2) Soil and geology

The surrounding area of the site is sandy soil, and water can penetrate quickly. This type
of soil has a high permeability and helps prevent flooding. Most of the land on the north
side of the site is fertile plain. There are some gravel sandstones and some gravels below

the estimated water level inside the site. These are good materials for building tube wells.

(3) Natural environment

The terrain of the Project area is relatively smooth and is comprised of cultivated land, forest
land, construction land for towns and villages and water area. More than 80% of Project
land is cultivated land. In the northwest and southeast of the Project area, there is forest
land and a small built up area. Kabul River is located at the west of the project.

There are three seasonal streams. The natural ecological environment is relatively goed.
There is no municipal infrastructure available around the site, and the nearest municipal
pipe network is Mardan which is 10 Km away. As there are rare residences in the Project
area, thus it will be easy to remove and relocate the structures on the project area. The
current status of project area is divided into four major categories, including village and

town construction land, cultivated land, woodland and water area.
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Fig.2-4 and Use Status Map
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Fig. 2-5 Site picture

2.2 Overall planning

2.2.1 Planning concept

Through analysis of regional macro environment and internal resource advantages, the
general orientation of the project has been developed.

According to the regional industrial orientation and other planning research guidelines, it
selects the concerned industries and spatial layouts, implement the planning and design,
take advantage of each industry, maximize to use the space resources, promote
coordination and sustainabie development of the industries, to rationally allocate and guide
the industry development.

After completing the industry position analysis and spatial layout, the supporting facilities

and service system are properiy developed to achieve the overall sustainable development.

2.2.2 Planning principle

(1) Ecological and environmental protection, economical and reasonable

Kabul River is at west side of this project where there are also three seasonal streams in
the project area. Over 80% area is cultivated land with woodiand scattered inside. The
current natural resource and conditions are very superior. Thus, this planning scheme will
give first priority to environment protection, and take ecological concept to plan the project.
It will fully take into consideration the current landform and river system. The project may
also consider the aesthetics and fully utilize the beautiful scenery of the area through
protection and utilization of water system and neighboring ecological resource and

environment. While adhering to environmental protection and resource conservation, it
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shall also emphasize the compact layout, reasonable uiilization of land, efficient utilization
of existing resources to realize the optimization of investment economic benefits.

{2) High congruence in policies between China and Pakistan

China Pakistan Economic Corridor plans “1+4” cooperation layout focusing on the
cooperation Gwadar port, energy, transportation infrastructures and industrial parks. It
encourages both countries to cooperate in infrastructure, energy, telecommunicétion,
manufacturing, agriculture, textile, etc. On one hand, this project will introduce China's
advanced manufacturing and telecommunication sectors and establish power plant and
other infrastructures; on the other hand, it would establish the commercial and trading
logistic center by taking advantage of geographic location on CPEC, which is in compliance
with the national policy and will ensure the smooth implementation of the project.

(3) Integrity of standardization and customization

At the initial stage, it plans to establish a series of large, medium and small sized standard
workshops, which is in favor of attracting various smali sized enterprises at first. In the later
stage, in order to attract international famous enterprises of certain sectors. professional
and customized services will be provided to these enterprises, which would meet the
special requirements of leading enterprises. With combination of standardization at initial
stage and customization in the middle and later stage, it can not only be conducive to
promptly initiate project at the initial stage, also promote the project to transform and

upgrade to high value added and high tech sectors in the middle and later stage.
(4) Combination of guiding control and flexible development

On one hand, based on the analysis of national and local policies, environment, industrial
development status, space advantage, conditions and development vision, decide the
industry development orientation and priority in the future, and then guide and control the
industry development. On the other hand, it may reserve some flexible development spce
through constructing standard workshops at initial stage, which can facilitate investment
attraction and initiate the project at early stage. Through combination of guiding & control
and flexible development, it would ensure to promptly faunch the project at early stage and

ensure the sustainable development.
(5) Combination of viabiiity and perspective sight
Fully integrate with local social economy, human resource and space conditions, etc. to

guarantee the viability and maneuverability; meanwhile, introduce China's advanced
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design and construction concept to guarantee its progressiveness and perspective sight,
build a first-class modern high-tech industrial zone of international standard.

2.2.3 Design concept
(1) General orientation

The Project will integrate the advantages and featured resources of KPK Province in a
rational manner, sufficiently bring the strategic synergy effect and other projects into play,
and place special emphasis on building differentiated sub-zones such as ICT industrial
park, trading and exhibition park, etc. to build a constantly upgrading and optimizing
flagship complex of emerging industries led by modern comprehensive industrial parks
along China-Pakistan Economic Corridor covering deep processing of metal smelting and
processing, automotive, mechanical equipment, household building materials, food
processing, household appliances, consumer electronics, textile & garment, and leather
etc. DEVELOPER will take the lead to offer substantial one-stop comprehensive services
to enterprises in the Zone.

(2) Core concept: industrial priority, creating excellent investment environment to
be demonstrative regional industrial park

To fully utilize all the existing resources, lead and explore the future regional development
and properly plan the industrial layout, the advantageous industry and key industry are
developed in a collective way to promote population gathering, create good environment in
terms of industrial development, transportation, ecological environment. It shall also attract
settlement or visit of enterprises, clients and businessmen, greatly increase regional GDP,
create more job opportunities so as to lead the future development of industrial park and

the region at large.

2.2.4 Spatial layout
(1) Structure planned: One axis, three areas, three belts, three cores and muitiple

corridors.

The overall function of the Zone is composite commercial and trading, processing,
manufacturing, warehousing logistics with corresponding production and fiving support
facilities, and according to the current land use conditions and the corresponding industrial
orientation, it is planned with the functional structure of ‘One axis, three areas, three belts,

three cores and multiple corridors.
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One axis: Main axis of indusirial and space development in east-west direction which
connects all areas and guides the expansion of industrial space in east-west direction:

Three areas: they are three functional clusters divided by the current water system along
the east to west. The central cluster is to develop heavy industry, eastern and westemn

clusters focus on the development of light industry.

Three belts: industrial and space development belts in north and south direction along the
main road which guides expansion of industrial development space in north -south direction
longitudinaliy.

Three cores: three industrial and space development cores created at junction of east-west
development axis and north-south development belt to guide the inner space development

of the zone;

Muttiple corridors: natural landscape corridors along water system through the base which
beautifies park environment on the basis of reserving the current status to establish a

working and residential friendly multifunctional complex industrial zone.
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Fig. 2-6 Space structure planning diagram
(2) Land planning
The total planned area of the Zone is 1,002.76 acres.
Following is the fand use;
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(3) Industrial layout

The land scales are predicated and development sequence is proposed as per industrial

report so as to cenduct spatial layout of each sector.
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2.2.5 Road system planning
(1) Planning objectives:
Establishing a sustainable integrated transport system ;
Building a highly-effective and convenient external transportation system to ensure the
successful development of the Park;
Building road network systems with reasonable structure and improved functions.
(2) External traific planning
Firstly, itis planned to connect and transform the highway auxiliary road which is connected
with the entrance and exit of the M1 Highway on the eastern and western sides, and to
connect with the auxiliary road along the western side of the highway. It is recommended
to improve the ramp at the entrance and exit of the highway, so as to ensure the successful
passage of mass freight traffic in the future. The auxiliary road and ramp along the highway
on the east side is proposed to be upgraded to serve as the main external communication

channel for the project at early stage.
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Secondly, it should be considered to introduce highway entrances and exits during the
constiruction of phase [l work of the Park. A highway entrance which is directly connected
to the M1 Highway will be built in the middle of the Park, so as to guide external vehicles
driving into the park for passenger and freight diversion, but aiso serves an important
guarantee for the development of logistics transportation in the future.

(3) internal road planning

1) Road structure

The arterial road on the southern side is the main outgoing road, and the arterial road system
of “one horizontal and three vertical" is formed within the Park. An M1 Highway auxiliary
road wiil be constructed in the south to the project land and serves as the arterial road in
the Zone. Itis convenient for external traffic connection and favorable for full use of roads.
Efforts shail be done to build a ring arterial road system, so as to form an arterial road
network of "one horizontal three vertical" within the Zone and serve internal divisions. Import

road traffic facilities along the collector road in important blocks should be improved.

A branch network of reascnable density should be established.
2) Road classification

The roads in the planning area are divided into three grades: arterial road, coliector road
and branch road.

The arterial road is the traffic arterial road where bears the connection between functional
areas and the Park and the outside area, with restriction line 24m wide, inctuding16m-wide
two-way four lanes.

The collector road is secondary road within and between functional areas and also used to
connect branch roads to arterial roads. Such road can partially relieve the traffic pressure
from arterial road, with restriction line 17m wide, including 9m-wide two-way two-lane.
Branch roads mainly undertake internal traffic connection within functional area with a 15m-
wide restriction line.

The total length of the planned road is about 35.9 km, of which the main road is 13.8 km,
the secondary road is 7.1 km, and the branch road is 15.0 km.

(4) Road vertical planning

As per the road design specifications, it should be ensured the longitudinal gradient of roads

is greater than 0.3 %o, less than 5%.
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This plan makes full use of the current terrain to set up the road longitudinal slope.
Longitudinal slope of roads is planned between 0.5% ~ 3%, which meets the drainage
requirements and vehicle driving comfort.

(5) Parking lot

According to this plan, no centralized parking lot is established in the Park. Separated

parking lots will be constructed in the development stage according to respective demands.
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Fig. 2-9 Road system ptannmg diagram

2.2.6 Project planning sequence

According to the recommendations in the Project Industry Report, the site will be divided
into three phases for development. Combining with the existing development conditions of
the land and the leading role of the Phase | of the Project, it is proposed to adopt the
strategy of developing in phases from the middle to the two sides.

The Phase | covers approximately 247.21 acres, focusing on the development of metal
smelting and processing, automobile industrial parks, textile and apparel and integrated
trade center, with the construction of necessary facilities and surrounding roads to offer the
basic operating conditions. The Phase Il covers approximately 355.74 acres, focusing on
home building materials, household appliances, food processing, leather and

packaging/printing, aiming at the improvement in the manufacturing industry. The Phase i
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coves approximately 399.86 acres, focusing on the development of machinery and
equipment, tcys and ICT Sector, promoting the industrial park to a higher industrial level.
Main basis for development sequence

Priority shall be given to the development of land with convenient transportation facilities
and sound site conditions according to the fand conditions. Compared with the eastern part
of the Base, the western part has gentle slope and contains no water system, therefore,
site leveling involves less excavation, bringing about less difficult in the preliminary
development phase but conducive to saving investment, thus obtaining greater profits for
KPEZDMC.

Successful operation of the phase | works wilt lay sound foundation for the full use of the
land. Subsequently, appropriate measures will be taken to explore the land with unsound

site conditions and the park will be developed as a whole.

' Schematic Diagram of Phased Construction

Fig.2-10 Phased construction plan

(1) Phase | project
The Phase I project will focus on the development of metal smelting and processing, textiie

and apparel, automobile industrial park and Trading and exhibition zone.

The total area of Phase | will be 247.21 acres.
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(2) Phase li project

The Phase Il project focuses on the development of home building materials, household

appliances, leather, food processing and packaging/printing industries. The total area of
~ Phase I will be 355.74 acres.

(3) Phase lll project

The Phase II! project focuses on the development of toys, machinery and equipmeht and
ICT science & technology park. The total area of Phase Il will be 399.86 acres.
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Table 2-2 Rashakai Zone Stage Development lndicatqrs
' SR Percentage i’;n'?A'i"e-a’ n(.>f i ;'Percéhfagé In "I"o"ta’l': . Total Area of -
Phase Sector Total Area (0.000m%) | “pachehase(%) | - Area (%) S Earibiens
Metal smelting and 30.75 1181
processing 48.03 75 :
Textile and appare! 12.82 8.21 3.15
Automotive industry
mrl 34.30 21.96 8.43
pr-.rk
Trading and 3
exhibition zone 4.93 3.16 1.21
l.and for power .
supply facilities 8.06 516 1.98
Phase | Firefighting 0.28 0.18 0.07 -
P 156.20
Medical facility 0.28 0.18 0.07
Administrative land 0.25 0.16 0.06
Masjid 0.25 0.16 0.06
The training center 0.25 0.16 0.06
Sports facility 0.21 0.13 0.05
Water area 475 3.04 1.17
CGreen space 15.63 10.01 3.84
Road 26.16 16.75 5.43




Home building

Phase materials 49.49 32.78 12.17 148.94‘
il Household 29.41 19.48 7.23
: appliances
i.eather 14.87 9.85 3.66
Food processing 16.43 10.22 379
Packaging/Printing 10.68 7.08 2.63
Truck terminal 1.10 073 0.27
Refusling station 0.87 0.58 0.21
Drainaga land 2.79 1.85 0.69
Green space 310 2.05 0.76
Road 23.25 15.40 572
Toys 3.72 3.74 0.91
Machinery and 28.00 28.12 6.88
equipment
Phase | ICT Technaology Cily 33.04 33.18 8.12 ' 99.55
il Disposai Siation 1.69 1.70 .42 » R
Water area 2.35 2.36 '
Gresn space 12.05 12.10
Road ' o
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Chapter iif Construction Scheme

3.1 Construction contenis
(1) Consiruction contents
Construction contents of this Project consist of two parts:
1) Public facilities: including municipal supporting facilities and roads in the Park;
2} Park development: including the management building (built by the developer) and
factory buildings/warehouses (built by enterprise), supporting offices and supporting

businesses. .

3.2 Technical proposal

3.2.1 General layout

The general layout of the park fully embodies the status quo of the landform and surrounding
traffic conditions. The trading and exhibition park is arranged in the south of the base, close
to Peshawar and Mardan. ICT Sector is adjacent to the M1 Expressway. The supporting
service zong stays in the center to ease the surrounding industrial population. The
processing and manufacturing industry is arranged in a relatively separate place in the north
and west of the site to avoid interferences to other funciional zones. The wnole site falls into
three functional ciusters by the current conditions and industrial types.

In terms of the overall functional zoning, all industrial clusters follow the principle of
‘centralized arrangement for related industries, and proper isolation for special industries”.
In the park, the functional zones for light industries are appropriately separated from those
for heavy industries. Moreover, light and heavy industries are properly separated from other
industries.

For each cluster, the land is divided and arranged by the type of industry and the scale for
construction.

Western Cluster: focus on the development of industries involved in household building
materials, household 'appliances, food processing, leather, and packaging / printing, etc.;
plan and arrange the industrial land of classes | and Il

Central Cluster: focus on the development of the metal smelting & processing, automotive
industry park, textile and garment industry, Trade and Exhibition City; plan and arrange the

industrial land of classes | and Il. This ciuster also considers a reservation of about 19.76
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acres of land for constructing a power piant. To avoid interierences from construction of the
power plant to the surrounding land, the power plant will be arranged in a relatively separate
place in the northeast, ciose to the water system of the garden.

Eastern Cluster: focus on the development of mechanical equipment, toy industry and ICT
Sector; plan and arrange the land for commerce, business, education and scientific

research, and type-l and !l industries.

3.2.2 Construction program
{1) Construction scaie

The Project covers 4,067,000m? in total, and the management building to be built by the
developer coves 700 m2. The Project is divided into three phases. The Phases |, Il and il
cover 1,562,000 m2, 1,510,000 m? and 995,000 m?, respectively.

(2) Design concept

This Project will follow the foliowing architectural design concepts:

All buildings shall be designed according to the geological location of the Project. Buildings
should be designed in the principles of "practical, economic, beautiful and people-oriented”,
and to ensure each functionzl area is set up reasonably to avoid mutual

interference. I

Subject to functional requirements, the design scheme is required to be technnlogically-
reasonable, cost-effective, safe and reliable.C!

Building design scheme shall meet the requirements of fire safety, ventilation, lighting,
energy saving, e€nvironmental protection.”

(3) Architectural style

Pakistan is one of the coldest and hottest countries in the world and has a long and
uninterrupted architecture history, with mountains, green valleys, boundiess desert and long
coastlines. Such country's modern architecture falls into two main trends: one is established
based on local materials and design language; the other comes from international style using
modern technology, concrete, glass and aluminum cladding. Modern architecture occupies

a dominant position.
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This Project will be designed by following the mainstream direction of modern style,
highlighting the architectural form of trading and exhibition park and ICT Industrial Park to
show the Project's personality. The processing manufacturing park and Warehousing and
Logistics Base will be designed of modular form to improve the unity and rhythm of the
building, and highlight the personality dispiay of the trading and exhibition park and ICT

industrial Park.

g.- Arhitecul schmaic dgram o dig an ibitio par
The trading and exhibition park is mainly composed of muiti-layer commodity wholesale
market, cultural facilities construction, business office buildings, hotels, convenience stores.
It is the main place where external business is conducted and symbolizes the image of the
Project.

The ICT Industrial Park and supporting service area are mainly composed of ICT R & D
innovation center, Expo center, supporting office, staff dormitory, industrial workshop and
school buildings, which are mutually echoed with the frading and exhibition park and lay the

main tone of the Project.
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Fig. 3- 2 Schematic diagram of ICT Industrial Park

The processing and manufacturing park and warehousing/logistics base comprise single-
layer and double-layer workshops, warehouses, enterprise office buildings and supporting
buildings. It occupies the most of the project construction land and the buildings should be
designed in a cost-effective manner in consideration of its functional characteristics. The
park sets off and integrates with the international trading and exhibition park and the high-

tech park.

Fig. 3- 3 Architectural schematic diagram of Warehousing Logistics Base
The supporting service area buildings are mainly to meet the needs of the entire park staff

training, business services, accommodation, and office needs. It is planned to build a

65



management building of 700 square meters. Satisfy the needs of Midway employees’ daily

work, meetings, and reception.

{4) building structure

Multi-story and single-story buildings are proposed to adopt reinforced concrete structure,
economic and practical masonry walls are used. Pile foundation or strip foundation will be
used as foundation form, subject to the final geological report. Considering the cost savings
and the rationality of building structure form, is light steel structure is proposed to be used
for single-layer and double-layer workshops, warehouses. Color steel plates are used for
walls and pile foundation or independent foundation as foundation form.

(5) Main buildings
According to the previous market research and analysis, and under the principle of satisfying

functions of each area, the main buildings in the Project are arranged under the preliminary

planning, as shown in Table 3-1.

Table 31  Schedule of main buildings and structures

Phasel
) Floor ~ | Numb | Floor| Struct i
S/t Project area( A_X|s erof |heigh| ure Foundati Notes
N| name m?) Size | fioors | t type on type
- . Provide office
. Adminis 14X2 Frame| . T1& | space for the park
Self-puiltf 1| tration | 700 5 2 13.6x2 work foundatio| sqministration staff
building n of this project.

(6) Green building design
Green buildings can reduce the load on the environment, save energy and resources,
provide safe, healthy and comfortable living spaces and be compatible with the natural
envircnment to achieve harmonious coexistence and sustainable development of people
and buildings and the environment. Green building design will be considered in the Project,
which will be embodied in the following aspects:

1)Make a reasonable space design to save land resources while providing a healthy

and comforiable use space.




2)Use local environmentally friendly building materials to reduce the destruction of
natural resources and environmentai pollution;

3)Make energy-saving design of buildings to save energy, including thermal insulation,
solar energy, etc.;

4)Improve the self-disposal capacity of the Project with respect to the discharges to

reduce the pressure on the municipal facilities.

R

figure 3-4 Diagram of Buildings in the Park

3.2.3 Foundation treatment, road yard and bridge.

(1) Project overview

The total land use of this project is 1,002.76 acres, which is divided into three phases. The
total land use of phase | is 247.21 acres, of which the road lengths are 2023 meters of
arterial roads and 6307 meters of secondary & branch road; the total land use of phase Il is
355.74 acres, of which the road lengths are 1420 meters of arterial roads and 8814 meters
of secondary & branch road; and the total land use of phase Il is 399.86 acres, of which the

road lengths are 2739 meters of arterial roads and 6954 meters of secondary & branch road.

The main content of this chapter is the design description of fand formation, foundation

treatment and road site and so on.
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(2) Design conditions
1) Design standard
Allowable bearing capacity of shallow foundation {mainly refers to the bearing capacity of
backfill fayer of 3m depth)

[R}2120kPa
2) Design load
Road and warehouse location:
The uniform load of the site is 50KN/m2.
Mobile devices:
400KN flat-bed trailer;
Tr-60 container trailer.
3) Geological conditions
At present, there is no detailed geological and topographic data within the range of this
project site.
(3) Land formaticn
The current vertical elevation changes in the project planning range are relatively high, and
the current elevation is at +336~+3689m. There are forest lands, gully and agricultural land
distributed within the project land area.
According to the current situation of the site, the site clearance is required for the topsoil,
and the existing pond area shall be dredged before backfiliing of earthwork. In principle, the .
site shall be backfilled with its own excavated earthwork within the site for balance. If there
is any shortage, the backfill material will be purchased.
(4) Foundation treatment
For different geological conditions and application requirements, the foundation treatment
method is mainly divided into shallow treatment and deep treatment.
1) Shaliow treatment method: mainly used for shallow reinforcement of foundation soil.
Currently, several common methods used include replacement method, dynamic

compaction, vibration compaction and impact compaction and so on.
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2) Deep treatment method: mainly used for the deep and thick soft clay treatment of
high water content, high compressibility, low strength, and poor permeability. The methods
used include mainly preloading method, sand pile method, cement mixing pile method and
so on. According te the field survey of this proiect, the site has a goed geological condition

and is suitable for the shallow foundation treatment.

The dynamic compaction method is proposed for the foundation treatment of public facilities
site such as supporting management facilities, water and electricity facilities of the park to
reinforce the shallow fifling layer and silt fayer. Then the vibration compaction will be taken
for site leveling.

The dynamic compaction adopts twice tamping method and one common compaction, with
capacity of 1800KN.m and tamping spacing of 4.0m. The plum-shaped arrangement uses
the tamper for compaction. The capacity of common compacting is 1000KN.m and the
overlap compaction is taken.

The foundation of the road within the park area is to be treated with overcut and mixed ash
layer compaction.

(5) Site and road surface

Asphalt concrete or cement concrete and other materials are usually used in road and site
pavement, considering the main road of the park is mainly subjected to the flow of machinery
and the load is frequent. There are certain requirements on the flatness and wearability of
the surface layer.

Comparison of advantages and disadvantages of asphalt pavement and cement pavement
Comparison of pavement quality: asphalt pavement is smooth and driving is comfort; the
formation of cement pavement is relatively poor, but the adoption of modern cement paving
equipment can ensure the high level of cement pavement and high quality of the highway.
Comparison of pavement life: asphalt pavement has the disadvantages of aging and poor
water resistance, and the design life is 15 years while the design life of cement pavement is
30 years. For heavy traffic areas with large load, the design life of both types of current
pavement is difficult to achieve. It is very common that pavement requires to be repaired
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within a year or two, which is generally related to the poor construction quality and
overweight. For the road with neavy traffic and large slope, cement road pavement is better.
Comparison of road maintenance: the asphalt pavement is easy to maintain, and the traffic
will be open immediately after the maintenance is completed; while concrete pavement is
hard to maintain and the traffic cannot be open immediately.
Comparison of cost: Currently the oil price is high; for high-grade highway (grade Il and
above), cost difference between the two kinds of pavement is not large. But from the cost/life
ratio {the cost of life), the cement pavement is dominant.
To sum up, considering the site and road of the park is mainly loaded with the flow of
machinery. There is a certain requirement for the flatness and wear ability of the
surface layer. And combining with the design characteristics of the nearby industrial
parks, the asphalt pavement is recommended.
According to the local economic conditions and design characteristics, the proposed road
surface structure of the park is as follows:
3.5cm asphalt surface treatment layer, 20cm cement stabilized gravel base, and 25cm
gravel fill. The bedding of the surface layer is laminated and compacted with cement
stabilized soil.
The hydropower/sanitation facilities provided in the park area are mainly used for small
vehicles, and concrete siab surface is also recommended for the structural surface. The
recommended surface siructure is: concrete slab of 25 cm thick with bending strength of
4.5MPa, consists of 25 cm thick, with 15cm thick stabilized cement gravel base and 15cm
thick graded gravel cushicn underneath.
(6) Bridge structure

According to the site condition, some rivers or gullies exist within this project. For rivers
and gullies with small span (<£5m), it is recommended to adopt buried bypass culverts for the
drainage from both side of the road. For the rivers and gullies with span of 5m to 10m, itis
recommended to adopt permanent structures such as box culvert tc drain both sides of the

water channel or gully. For rivers or gully with span over 10m, it's recommended to build
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bridges for the traffic of both sides of the road. For bridge struciure, the superstructure of
precast reinforced concrete or pre-stressed concrete slab beam is adopted and the
abutment foundation on both sides can use light abutments of gravity type or the column
type according to specific condition. The interior of river channel or gully adopts pile
foundation beam structure, the pile foundation is recommended to use ihe drilling or
punching pile. In the wider gully or river channe!, the porous simple-support plate girder is
adopted, and the bridge surface adopts continuous structure.

3.2.4 Supporting works

In this Project, construction of water, electricity and other supporting works shall be
considered, and corresponding facilities shall be made available to the park accordingly.

(1) Water supply

1) Water supply source

On the south of the project site is the urban arterial road. Two parallel main water supply
and transmission pipes are arranged on the arterial road and isolating valves are provided
at each main interséction.

The Project is divided into three plots by taking the river channel as the boundary. Each plot
takes water from the municipal water transmission main through 2 access points. The pipe
diameter at each access point is DN500.

2) Forecast of water consumption

The total area of construction land of the Project is 404.69 ha. The water consumption is
calculated with land usage index method according to the land usage and area. Therefore,
the total water consumption of the Project is predicted to be about 18,200 m3/d. Specifically,
the water consumption for Phases |, il and il is 6,500 m3/d, 7,500 m3/d and 4,100 m3/d,
respectively. (As detailed in the table below):

Table 3-2 Estimation of Water Consumption of the Project

Water

Consumpti
SIN Sector Water Indicator onsumption Phase

(m¥ha.d) (md/d)
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Metal smelting and processing

60 2781

Textile and apparel 60 769.2
Automotive industry park

60 . 2012.4

Land for power 20 161.2

Phase
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supply facilities

Integrated trade center

5
80 394 4
g Waters 0 0
7 Green space 10 167.4
8 Road 10 291.4
Subtotal 6577
] Home building materials
60 2619
5 Household appliances
60 1764.6
3 Leather 80 1189.6
4 Food processing 60 925.8
5 Packaging/Printing 60 6414 | Phase
]
6 Sanitation sites 20 94
7 Drainage sites 20 484
8 Green space 10 794
S Road 10 261.1
Subtotal 7538.7
1 Toys 80 219.6
) Machinery and equipment
60 1594.8
3 ICT science & technology park
60 1970.4 | phase
4 Sanitation sites 20 1381
5 Waters 0 0
6 Green space 10 145
7 Road 10 189.8
Subtotal 41334
Grand
total 18249.1

3) Water supply pipe diameter calculation
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The hourly variation coefficient of water consumption is 1.5. The pipe shall be of nodular
cast iron pipe with a flow velocity of 0.8m/s - 1.2m/s.

The Project is divided into three plots according to the terrain. The diameters of service
pipes from the municipal water supply network will be determined based on the water

consumption of each plot.

The water consumption of Phase | is 6,600 m3/d and the maximum hourly water
consumption on the day with the maximum water consumption is 411m3/h, so the diameter
of the service pipe is set as DN500. The water consumption of north plot of Phase |l is
7,500m3/d and the maximum heurly water consumption on the day with the maximum
water consumption is 471m3/h, so the diameter of the service pipe is set as DN500. The
water consumption of Phase Il is 4,100m3/d and the maximum hourly water consumption
on the day with the maximum water consumption is 258ma3/h, so the diameter of the
service pipe is set as DN50O.

4) Water supply network planning

Each plot of the Project takes water from the municipal water transmission main to form a
loop water supply pipe network together with the water supply system within the plots. The
water supply pipes shall be arranged along the planned roads within the plot. The water
supply pipes shall satisfy the domestic, production and fire water demands. The water supply
pipe network is arranged in a loop.

No independent fire water supply system is provided in the plots. Fire water shares the pipes
with the domestic water. During the construction of pipe network, fire hydrant and fire-fighting
equipment will be arranged according to the requirements for fire protection.

(2) Sewage

1) Drainage system

Diversion of rain and sewage is adopted for the drainage system, with a complete sewage
collection and treatment system established.

2) Forecast of sewage guantity
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The composite sewage coefficient is set as 0.60. The total amount of sewage in the Project
is about 11,500 m¥d, including 4,200 m®/d for Phase 1, 4,800 m3/d for Phase Il and 2,500
m3/d for Phase Iil.

3) Sewage pipe diameter calculaticn
In consideration of local living conditions, the peak variation factor of the domestic sewage

takes 1.6.

The maximum design fullness of the sewage pipe: DN300, 0.55; DN400, 0.65; DN500, 0.70.
in the Project, the sewage pipes are also arranged in three separate areas. The maximum
hourly sewage guantity of Phase | is 78L/s and the sewage pipe diameter is DN500; the
maximum hourly sewage quantity of Phase Il is 89L/s and the maximum diameter of sewage
pipe is DNS0O0; the maximum hourly sewage quantity of Phase ill is 46L/s and the maximum
diameter of sewage pipe is DN400.

4) Sewage pipe network planning

The sewage pipes are in low side arrangements, parallel with the road center line. The
sewage pipe fransports the sewage by the gravity flow mode.

The minimum diameter of the sewage pipe is DN300, and the pipe should be buried deeper
than 2.5m at the starting point.

5) Facility planning

In the near term of the Project, the sewage from the plots will be disposed by the sewage
treatment facility built by the settled enterprises and then discharged to the water body
through rainwater pipe network; in the future term, sewage pipe network will be built to collect
the sewage to the sewage treatment plant for disposal.

(3) Rainwater

1) Drainage principle and drainage system

Separate the rain and sewage in the drainage system. Build rainwater drainage facility
according to the city standard. Adjust measures to local conditions and combine the gullies
and pipes. Take the natural gullies in the plots as the recipient body of rainwater. Make full
use of the collection capacity of the watercourse.

2) Pine network planning
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The rainwater in the pipe flows from high to low and then flows into the rainwater pipe after
being coilected by the gutter inlets along the line. Multiple water outiets are arranged, and

the water is discharged into the near waters in a distributed manner.

The calculation is made with the rainwater pipe in a full state. The minimum design discharge
velocity is 0.75m/s. Pipes are laid along the planned road in the form of gravity flow. In order
to avoid that the pipe diameter is too large, multiple water outlets are provided.

The minimum and maximum diameters are DN400 and DN1800, respectively.

(4) Fire protection
The total number of employees planned for the park is 15,000 to 20,000. The fire at the

same time is calculated once. The design water flow for a fire is set as 20L/s.

1) Planning of fire water supply facilities

The fire-fighting water is sourced from the urban water supply system. Fire hydrants are set
close to the intersection; if the street is wider than 60m, fire hydrants shall be set along the
two sides. If the fire hydrant protection radius is not greater than 150m and the spacing is
not greater than 120m, it is advisable to arrange the fire hydrants on the ground. If the fire
hydrants are arranged underground, obvious signs shall be set up.

2) Planning of passages for fire trucks

The passages for fire trucks rely on the road network system and are composed of roads of
all levels, internal roads of enterprises and public institutions, passage for building fire trucks
and the passage for fire trucks taking water from natural or artificial water source.

The width and free height of the passages for fire trucks shall comply with relevant
specifications.

3) Planning of fire communication

The urban fire communication commanding system is composed of subsystems including
fire alarm, fire alarm acceptance, commanding at fire field, comprehensive management of
fire information and simuiation training. The planning and construction of the urban fire

communication commanding system shall conform to relevant iocal regulations.
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(5} Power supply

1) Forecast of power consumption

According to the planned land purposes and the planned load index of unit construction land,
the electrical loads for Phases |, Il and |ll of the park are predicted to be 81.31MW, 77.76MW
and 50.01MW, respectively. The predicted total electrical load for the three phases is up to
200.09MW, and taking the simultaneous factor as 0.7, the calculated capacity is 146.36 MW.

Table 3-3 Electricaf Load Forecast of Construction Land

Planned
Load index of - cal
Unit Electrical LZ‘;:'C:
Phase Sector Construction | Load | Ph°
Land (VW) ac ase
(KWF'0,000 (MW)
m?)
Metal smeiting and processing
800 3842
Textile and apparel 600 7.69
Automotive industry park
800 27.44
Integrated trade center
800 3.94
Phase
I Power plant 250 2.02 81.31
Fire house 600 017
Medical station 600 017
Administration center 600 0.15
Mosque 800 0.15
Training canter 600 0.15
Sports site 600 0.13
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Waters 10 0.05
Green space 20 0.21
Road 20 0.52
Home building materials
600 29.69
Household appliances
700 20.59
Leather 500 7.44
Phase Food processing 800 12.34
il Packaging/Printing 600 6.41 77.78
Truck terminal 30 0.03
Filling station 200 0.17
Drainage sites 200 0.56
Green space 20 0.06
Road 20 0.46
Toys 500 1.86
Machinery and equipment 800 2240
ICT science & technology park
Phase 750 24.78
" . 50.01
Treatment station 200 0.34
Waters 10 0.02
Green space 20 0.24
Road 20 0.37
Total - 209.09 209.09
Simultaneous factor: 0.7 146.36

2) Facility planning

The 132kV/11kV step-down station in the park will be fed by the power plant established in
the park, and the power plant is not part of the Project. One step-down station will be set up
in the plots of Phases |, i and lll, respectively, three in total. The voltage level of the step-
down station is 132/11kV. Three sets of 132/11kv 40MVA main transformers are set in the
step-down station of Phase I; three sets of 132/11kV 40MVA main transformers are set in
the step-down station of Phase II; and two sets of 132/11kV 4CMVA main transformers are
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set in the step-down station of Phase ill. The three step-down stations serve respectively as
the 11kV power supply for the switching station in their respective range and for the
supstation within the plot. In the park, the corresponding 11kV switching station and
substations will be arranged according to the phased load center.

The three 132/11kv step-down stations and the 11kV switching station are not in the scope
of the Project. The 11kV substation in each plot will be built by the enterprises seitled in
the plot.

(6) Communication and information technology

Communication infrastructure will be built in the Park, mainly including telephene and data
communication system, public video monitoring system and information channel.

Table 3-4 Forecasting of Communication Faciiities for the Park

Weak-current Pipeline for Public Administrative
Rashakai Public Roads Monitoring Telephone
System
Floor
Descript| area Subto Index Subtota
escrip
ion (ha) Index tal Subtotal (Nr.) (20/ha) I (NF)
(km)
Arterial road (8
holes/km): 5km*g | 40
’ Collector road (4
Phase | 56.20 holes/km): 4.3km*4 17.2 98 20/ha 3124
Branch road (4
halesfkm): 2.3km*4 9.2
Total
Arterial road (8
holes/km): 4. 8km*8 | 384
14 Collector road (4
Branch road (4
holes/km): 5.0km*4 20
Total
Arterial road (8
Phase I 99.55 hoies/km): 4.3km*8 34.4 a8 20/ha 1991
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Collector road (4
holes/km): 0.8km*4 | 32

Branch road (4
holesfkm): 4.9km*4 | 198

Toial

Grand 193.2 290 8135

{otal

1) Telephone and data communication system

It is expected to install about 8,100 phones in the Park. In addition, demand for various data
communication business needs to be considered. Modular office of local
telecommunications system with the end capacity no smalier than 12,000 iines is planned
to be set in the public service area of the Park to provide phone and data communication

services for the administrative department of the Park and the settled enterprises.
2) Public road monitoring system

It is proposed to set video monitoring system in the public area of the Park to satisfy the
demand of traffic management and security. Surveillance cameras will be installed at the
squares and road intersections. The monitoring system shall be digital, and the images

shall be stored for at least one month. 3) Information pipeline

Informaticn pipeline is arranged on the arterial road and collector road of the Park for laying
of cables in the weak current systems. UPVC grille pipeline is adopted, with the buried depth
no smaller than 0.8m.

(7) Heating, ventilation and air conditicning
1) Heating source the natural gas from the municipal network will be supplied to the park

through the pipeline. The central heating may be used for the public and civil buildings on
the lands for the commercial services, public services and residential purposes. The design,
arrangement and charging of the heating station shall be carried out by the related municipal
departments according to the requirement of block planning requirements. For premises in

the industrial area that require the heating, but the requirements are greatly different, the
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relevant enterprises shall, according to their own process requirements, apply for municipal
heating or construct their own heating plant.

2) Air conditioning

according 1o the usage of buildings, and considering meteorological conditions, working
conditions and other factors, air conditioning in the civil buildings shail be designed in
accordance with the comfort requirements, and the air conditioning for industrial purposes
shall be designed in accordance with the required temperature and humidity in the process
and other requirements. The split air conditioner or centrai air conditioner may be selected,
supplemented by appropriate energy-saving measures to meet the air-conditioning needs
in the park.

3) Ventilation the natural ventilation shail first be used to meet the ventilation needs of

various buildings. Where the natural ventilation cannot meet the need, appropriate
mechanical air supply and ventilation system will be set up {o meet the labcr and health
needs. The energy-saving products or ventilation systems shall be preferred in the design
of mechanical ventilation.

4) Smoke prevention and extraction design

According to the local fire-fighting reguiations, the natural smoke extraction is given priority
and the natural smoke vents to the fire-fighting regulations are set up in the industrial land,
commercial and service facilities and public administration and service facilities and other
industry and civil building monomers in the park. Where the natural smoke extraction cannot
meet the requirements of fire regulations, the mechanical smoke extraction equipment will
be set up and subject to the review by the fire authority.

5) Thermal power

The thermal power demand in the park is mainly the demand on the natural gas, heating
and industrial gas. Natural gas and heat supply by municipal pipelines. The park use
galvanized steel pipe as the access pipe. In Phase |, the municipal natural gas pipeline will

be extended to the external wall of the office buiiding, with an expected pipe length of 250m
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(including valves and pressure reducing devices), a pipe diameter of DN50 and a buried
depth of 0.9m.

There will be 15,000 - 20,000 people in the park. Assuming the natural gas for each person
is 0.5Nm¥s, the total natural gas is 7,500 - 10,000Nm3/d. The park provides thg main pipes
and the settled enterprises may apply for pipe connection as requiréd. Industrial gas shall

be arranged by the settled enterprises according to the production or process demand,
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3.3 Safety protection

3.3.1 Security standards

Pakistan has established mature policies and procedures on safety issues. The
related safety measures of CPEC are very strict. All projects related to CPEC
will have security assurance from the Army. Also, Cape Province has
developed sop according to federal government directives. As a result,
KPEZDMC will prepare the safely plan for Rashakai pSEZ based on the

minimum standard.

3.3.2 Security pian

Rashakai pSEZ will develop a three-level response pian based on the concept
of a safe city. The Level 2 and Level 3 response is the responsibility of the
government; therefore nc cost will be involved. Coordination and safety
exercise will be the responsibility of the KPEZDMC safety department. The
preparation and implementation of Level 1 response is the responsibility of the
Rashakai pSEZ developer. The subsequent responsibility for maintaining the
safety settings during the operation phase wili be treated as service
replenishment. (1) Level 1 response

The internal safety response from the Rashakai pSEZ is the first level, which
will respond to any unexpected incident and strive for 20-30 minutes for Level
2 response.

The investment and construction contents of the developer inctude:

1) Built-in boundary wall of barbed wire and watchtower.

2) CCTV cameras around the control room.

3) Confrol entry/exit system/door.

4) Fast anti-power vehicles.

5) Peripheral search lights.

Operation/operating costs are about 3.5 million per month, including:

1) Manpower required for safety and security costs (KPEZDMC and Security
Company)

2) Maintenance cost of CCTV system.

3) Maintenance cost of fast anti-power vehicles.
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4) Maintenance cost of the searchlight.
5) Maintenance cost of communication system.
(2) Level 2 response

The police form part of Level 2 response, which will expel terrorist activities
from areas outside the economic zone and strive for 45-60 minutes for Level 3
response. KPEZDMC safety department is responsible for the coordination of
Level 2 safety response.

(3) Level 3 response

The Army, as part of Level 3 response, will be activated only when the terrorist
activity is beyond the control of the police or hostage is held. The safety

management of KPEZDMC will coordinate safety response and level 3.
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Chapter IV Environmental Protection

4.1 Design basis

According to the requirements of Pakistan Environmental Impact Assessment
(EIA) Procedures, the specific EIA methods for the planned industries of the
nroject, and the detailed overall practice nhave been made. When the project is
required to be checked and approved, the related EIA is mandatory.

The EIA work is carried out by the Environmental Protection Bureau and the
provincial environment department under Pakistan Ministry of Environment.
The application shall be submitted to the executive department by the
company settled in this park in accordance with the requirements of different

industries with the EIA expense paid.

4.2 Major sources of poliution and pollutants
4.2.1 Construction period

The major environmental impact factors of this project are piling operation,
surface leveling, monomer construction, equipment installation and other
activities. The main pollution factors are construction dust, construction noise,
waste oil produced by construction machinery, construction waste, and
domestic wastewater of construction workers and so on.

4.2.2 Operation period

(1) Air polluticn

There is no productive dust produced from the planning areas such as
warehousing and logistics, complex commerce and trade, technology research
and development, and production and living service facilities, and a small
amount of air pollution sources are the exhaust gas of the vehicles and dust

from ground.
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In the product processing and manufacturing industry, there are different
greenhouse gas emissions during the production procesvs of metaliurgy and
processing, automobiles, machinery and equipment, home furnishing and
building materials, fcod processing, household appliances, consumer

electronics, textile and apparel, leather and other industries.

(2) ‘Water poilution scurce

The main wastewater produced is domestic wastewater and production
wastewater.

(3) Noise poilution sources

The main noise pollution sources in the planning areas such as complex
commerce and trade, technology research and development, and production
and living service facilities are traffic noise generated by the working vehicles.
The noise sources of industrial park are mainly noises of equipment operation,
loading and unloading of warehouse and logistics, and traffic noise.

(4) Solid waste

The main sources of solid waste in the planning areas such as complex
commerce and trade, technology research and development, production and
life service facilities and so on are the daily garbage and office waste generated
during the working and living process of personnel.

The main solid waste in the industrial park is the waste of varicus industries in
the production process, and some of the waste products may be poiscncus

and harmful.

4.3 Measures for environmental protection
4.3.1 Construction period

The construction site shall be hardened and flat and unblocked to prevent
leakage of materials and supplies due to joit of transport vehicles at the

construction site. Any parts of the construction site that cannot be hardened
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shall be compacted, watered and cieaned on a reguiar basis to prevent dust
pollution. When stacking sand, stones and other construction materials that are
likely to cause dust, dust suppression measures such as covering, and
watering shall be taken.

The construction schedule and time shall be reasonably arranged and
operation with high noise equipment shail be done within the fixed time to avoid
the impact of construction noise on surrounding environment. Consiruction
machinery and transport vehicles with low noise and low vibration shail be
selected. Routine maintenance and protection of construction machinery and
transport vehicles shall be strengthened to maintain them in good service
conditions. The construction machinery and transport vehicles entering the
construction site shall be properly dispatched and controlled to reduce horn
noise.

The domestic garbage of the construction team shall be cleared and
transported by the contractor to the qualified garbage disposal plant in time for
treatment. The construction wastes shall be uniformly collected, classified and
treated as far as possible for the purpose of comprehensive utilization, and
shall not be discarded or disposed of at will. The construction wastes which are
classified as Pakistani hazardous wastes shall be entrusted to the qualified
hazardous waste treatment enterprises for harmless treatment.

4.3.2 Operation period

(1) Atmospheric environmental protection measures

Traffic in the general trade service zone, technical research and development
zone and production and life service facilities zone shall be well controlled to
reduce vehicles at idle speed and thus to reduce emissions of poliutants.

Cleaning vehicles shall be equipped to sweep the road to reduce the dust. The
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oil fumes from the commercial kitchens shall not be discharged unless treated
by the oil fume purifier and up to the standard.
The different types of waste gases from the industrial area shall be purified and
treated according to the specific contents of the environmental impact
assessment (EIA) procedures to meet the emission requirements of the special
EIA.
(2) Water pollution source control measures

1) Preduction wastewater
Some production wastewater generated by the power plant will be recycled
after treatment, and the remaining will be discharged into the river after
satisfactory treatment. The production wastewater of other plant areas will be
discharged into the municipal drainage pipelines or rivers after satisfactory
treatment. 2) Domestic wastewater
The domestic wastewater is mainly generated by the staff. The domestic
wastewater will be treated with the septic tank and then discharged into the
municipal wastewater pipelines.

The oily wastewater will be discharged into the sanitary sewers after oil-water
separation.

(3) Noise control measures

Equipment with low noise and high efficiency shall ke used. Maintenance and
service of machinery and equipment shall be strengthened to maintain normal
operation and reduce the noise.

Reasonable greening will not only reduce noise, but also beautify the
environment.

(4) Solid waste disposal measures
The domestic garbage and office wastes shall be classified and collected by
the garbage stations and shalt be regularty-cleaned up and transported by the

local environmental sanitation department.
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The construction wastes shall be uniformly collected, ¢lassified and treated as
far as possible for the purpose of comprehensive utilization, and shall not be
discarded or disposed of at will. The construction wastes which are classified
as Pakistani hazardous wastes shall be entrusted to the qualified hazardous

waste treatment enterprises for harmless freatment.

4.4 Conirol measures against ecological changes

in order to minimize the impact of the project on the surrounding ecolegical
environment, full consideration shall be given to protection of surrounding
ecosystems and corresponding mitigation measures shall be taken so as to
reduce and avoid adverse impacts on the species and the ecology caused by
various behaviors during development and construction of the project and
maintain the diversity and sustainable utilization and development of the
ecosystems.

Ecological changes due to construction of the project shall be restored as much
as possible. Destruction of vegetation should be minimized in the project. The
abandoned sand, stone and soil shall be iransported to the specialized storage
site and shall not be dumped into other ditches. After completion of the project,
the excavation surface and the open land for storage of abandoned sand, stone

and soil must be planted with trees and grass to prevent water and soil loss.

4.5 Greening

Greening supplemented by beautification is one of the important principles in
this design. The green land shall be built into lawns, and on both sides of the
road shall be planted with arbores and shrubs with good adaptability to purify

the air and reduce the noise.
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4.6 Environmental monitoring and management
Environmental monitoring is an important part of environmental protection work
and will be implemented by qualified organizations to provide basis and
services for environmental managemeni and pollution control.

After completion of the project, attention should be paid to the control of the
amount of wastes generated and reuse or recycle of the wastes to ensure that

the total discharge of pollutants will meet the requirements of the EIA.



ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
RASHAKAI PRIORITIZED SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

. NOC FROM ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (EPA)-03.04.2019

Il. RESPONSES SUBMITTED 8Y KPEZDMC TO EPA-28.03.2019

IIIl. RESPONSES SUBMITTED BY KPEZDMC TO EPA-15.03.2019

IV. PUBLIC HEARING AS PART OF THE REVIEW PROCESS OF THE EIA REPORT
ON 12-02-2019

V. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) REPORT DATED 14.12.2018
(ANNEXURE A)



Environmental Protection Agency
Forestry, Environment & Wildlife Department
Govt. of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

No. EPA/EIA/XPEZDMC/Rasbakai/19/ /(4"

Date:3_ /L /2019

Mr. Ali Muazzam Syed,

{General Manager — Infrastructurej,

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic Zone Development and
Management Company,

120-Industrial Estate Hayatabad,

Jamrud Road, Peshawar.

Subject: ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT REPORT OF RASHAKAL
ECONOMIC ZONE (1000 ACRE}

I am directed to refer to the subject cited above and to enclose
herewith Environmental Approvai/Decision Note on EIA Report of “Rashikai
Economic Zone, District Nowshera” for your information and further

implementation.

Moreover, Schedule VII must be submitted to this Agency within a
month on Stamp Paper as an undertaking for the compliance of terms and -
conditions as mentioned in the Environmental Approval as well as mitigation

measures proposed in the EIA Report. (Copy enclosed).

o\
eputyl D (EIA)

‘“\u&" I .“..!f\;:: .
o . '\.\
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SCHEDULE-VI

Decgision on EIA

Name, address of proponent:

Description of Project:

Location of project:

Date of filing of E1A:

Mr. Ali Muazzam Syed, :
(General Manager ~ Infrastructure), -

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic .; .0

Zone Development and
Management Company,
120-Industrial Estate Hayatabad,
Jamrud Road, Peshawar

Rashakail Special Economic Zone is

located near Kernal Sher Khan

Interchange on Motorway-1, District ..
Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
over an area of 404.69 ha (1000
acres). The estimated cost of the

project is $ 116.567 million. The. - * o

project consist of construction of '
main roads, link roads, -truck
terminals, Sewerage System, Water
Supply System, Parking Terminal,
Administrative Block, Fire Station
and Other Allied facilities. Combined
Effluent Treatment Plant will be
constructed for the treatment of all
effluents of proposed Special
Kconomic Zone.

Kernal Sher Khan Interchange on - -
Motorway-1, District Nowshera,

14/12/2018 (Ref: EPA/Diary No.720}

After a careful review, the Environmental Protection Agency, Govt. of
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa has decided to accord conditional approval of the
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA} Report of “Rashakai Special

Economic Zone is located near Kernal Sher Khan Interchange on

Motorway-1, District Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa” in line with the

guidelines issued by Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Environmental Protection Act,
2014 and IEE/EIA Regulations, 2000 subject to the following terms &

conditions:

}/\
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a)

b)

g

h)

i)

k)

The Proponent shall adopt all precautionary and mitigation measures
identified in EIA Report as well as any unanticipated impacts during
the construction and operation phase of Project. '

All effluents/emissions shall be kept within the permissible limits bf
National Environmental Quality Standards (NEQS).

The Proponent shall construct Combine Effluent Treatment Plant
(CETP) as proposed for Rashakai Special Economic Zone, keeping in -+ -
view the whole Industrial Estate waste water discharge.

The Proponent shall ensure proper zonation of industries in the

Economic Zone.

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa EZDMC shall bound all the industries to obtain . SR

Environmental Approvals from EPA at planning stage.

The Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic Zone Development and
Management Company (KP-EZDMC) shall strictly follow Disaster
Management Plan.

A nursery shall be developed inside the zone and annually block
plantation of at least 50,000 shall be planted inside the Economic
Zone which will act as a barrier/buffer zone between Industrial Estate
and adjacent community.

A Health, Safety & Environment (HSE) Unit shall be established in the
Economic Zone. An Environmental Science graduate and two
Foresters shall be employed to look after the environmental issues.
Traffic Management Plan shall be implemented.
Internships/apprenticeships program shall be encouraged for
technical graduates belong to surrounding villages. '
Social welfare program shall be carried out for the local people and
shall be communicated to EPA.

All the compensatien (Agriculture, civil structures, etc.) shall be paid

before the commencement of activity.

m} A grievance redressal committee shall be constituted to recommend

n)

o)

steps/actions particularly for the effectees whom land has been
acquired, the same shall be submitted to this Agency before initiation
of construction activities. '

A comprehensive plantation plan shall be implemented in the
Economic Zone.

A Flood Protection Plan shall be prepared and shared with EPA.
Page 2 of 3



q) Employment shall be provided to the local people of the nearest Union.- - : .

Councils in technical/non technical jobs. Detail of the same shall-be
provided to EPA.

6. The Proponent shall be liable for correctness and validity of the -
information supplied by the Environmental Consultant.

7. The Proponent shall be liable for compliance of Regulations 11,13,14,i7
and 18 of IEE/EIA Regulations, 2000, regarding approval, confirmation -
of compliance, entry, inspections and monitoring.

8. This approval is accorded only for the installation/ construction phase of

the project. The proponent will obtain approval for operation 6f the

project in accordance with the Regulations 13 (2} (b) and 18 of the e

IEE/EIA Regulations, 2000.

9, Any change in the approved Project shall be communicated to EIIDA,'
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and shall be commenced after obtaining the
approval.

10. This approval shall be treated as null and void if all or any of the
conditions mentioned above is/ are not complied with.

11. This approval does not absolve the proponent of the duty to obtain any
other approval or clearance that may be required under any law in force.-

12. There shall be no legal case pending in the courts against the project.

13. In exercise of the power under Section-13 of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
Environmental Protection Act, 2014, the Undersigned is pleased to
approve the EIA Report for construction phase of the said Project with

above mentioned terms and conditions.

Dated: Peshawar ‘g / (% /2019.

Tracking/File. No. EPA/EIA/KPEZDMC/Rashakai/19/ / Cf

3., - -
DIRECTOR GENE}AET‘

EPA, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.
3rd Floor, SDU Building,
Khyber Road Peshawar, Cantt.
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Foreword

Rashakai Special Economic Zone {RSEZ) is one of the recently approved prioritized Special Economic
Zones under CPEC. RSEZ has the potential to bring a paradigm shift in the industrial and socio -economic
landscape of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa., its unique geographic positioning and availability of resources would
be leveraged to usher industrial revolution in KP by bringing both local and foreign investors to invest in
high value addition industries to cater for national, regional and international markets.

The Market Study on Rashakai Special Economic Zone conducted by the Institute of Management
Sciences {iMSciences) Peshawar provides a holistic picture regarding tne market patential of RSEZ, The
study was conducted in December 2018. Key areas cove red by the study include the demand for land,
geographical location advantages, demographics and availability of skilled labor, competitor analysis,
availability of data for investment, legal framework and rule of law; and recommendations to ensure
succass of this important strategic initiative.

I am really thankful to IMSclences that provided its relentless support in conducting this excellent study.
Further, | would like to extend my gratitude to Dr. Muhammad Nouman and Mr. Muhermmed Ahmed,
who worked day and night to ensure that the study is aligned with the mandate of the RSEZ.

! look forward to participation of all relevant stakeholders in realizing the dream of ushering industrial
revolution in KP and making RSEZ the next success story of Pakistan,

Muhammad Azam Farooq
Coordinator HRDC-IM5ciences
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Fxecutive Summary

The "Market Research Study’ has been conducted to analyze demand of plots in Rashakai
Special Economic Zone for setting up of manufacturing units. It also gauges advantages of
wvesting in RSEZ compared to setting up units in SEZs of other provinces and presents findings
i line with the ‘Scepe of Work® that has eight specific parameters. These include Rashakai SEZ
being the first Prioritized Special Economic Zone of CPEC in the country that is significantly
increasing Demand for Land, Geographical Location Advantages, Demographics, Vocational
Trainings and Universities, Competitor Analysis, Data Available for Investment, Legal
framework and Rule of Law. The approach and methodology used for the assignment relied on
review of secondary end primary data collected from multiple sources and stakeholders
identified through a consultative ‘Stakeholders Mapping’ involving 43 stakeholders. Sources of
secondary data included more than 120 reports, studies, IC materials, web content, surveys,
assessments, vignettes, presentation materials etc. A systematic approach was used to
identify,select, review and analyze secondary data. For primary data Kils and findings from FGD
were also incorporated. A total of 37 conelusions and recomméndations have been presented at
the end.

Demand for land in RSEZ was assessed at three le-{els, applicant data, KP’s historical industrial
mix and the experts’ view of the industrial mix.Based on the three scenarios, we forecast that the.
number of units i RSEZ will be 440 with a + 5% variation. Results for demand i terms of eight
clusters ‘inc'lnding'marblefgmnjte, food processing, plastic, pharma, packaging, engineering, steel
and other sectors have been presented. There is ample evidence fo suggest investor interest that is
a very good sign for RSEZ’s potential. For geographical location, RSEZ’s advantages across
three categories have been identified includingproximity with CPEC network, reasonable.
availability of raw materials and human resources as well as access to a viable transportation
infrastructure. Relevant details have been presented. in the report. Our findings also suggest a
positive impact of RSEZ on demographics of the local area with approximately 37% increase in
household income, 153% increase in male employment and 291% increase in female

employment by 2030



Other socio economic factors also show positive signs of improvement. With a population of
approximately 523,000 for the areas surrounding Rashakai, there is a strong presence of
conswzer markets further sugmented by teeming populations in Mardan and Nowshera districts.
For vocational skills and higher education gaps have been identified particularly in terms of the
lack of alignment between the anticipated industrial mix that may emerge from the development
of RSEZ and the TVET and higher education skiilset and assortment that will be required to fill
the emerging human resource and labor force requirements. Our competitor analysis for RSEZ
has been carried out with other prominent industrial estates and SEZs(Sundar Industrial Estate,
M3 Industrial City Faisalabad, Quaid e Azam Apparel Park Sheikhupura) selected based on
significance of the progress made on thesz and for being the most direct competitors of RSEZ as
per our assessment. For pricing while the per acre price of 18.7 million is on a lower side if
compared with the existing Sundar Industrial Estate and comparable to others, it is justifiable
owing to international standards infrastructure including Combined Effluent Treatment Plant,
which will be the first plant in the country,a number of incentives specifically approved for
Prioritized SEZs, locational advantages, utilities and amenities where RSEZ outshines its
competitors. For rule of law and the overall security profile for KP in general and Rashakai in
particular, data reveals a significant improvement in the law and order situation of the province..
This includes a significant decline in incidents related to law and order,as evident from KP’s.
Home Department data from 2011 to 2018. Mor‘éover, the local population around Rashakai
including District Mardan has expressed more than 70% approval rating for performance of
police and civilian LEAs in the area based on our findings. from secondary data for 2017, This is
in addition to the special security arrangements that will be put in place as per CPEC protocols
for RSEZ that we have highlighted in this report.







sk MARKET RESERRCH STUDY

1.1, Baohzround of the stady

Rashakai Special Economic Zone (RSEZ), the first prioritized SEZ of Pakistan and the flagship
project of the province of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic Zones
De*&eiopment and Management Company (KPEZDMC) is spread over an area of 1000 acres.
This project is conceptualized from its initial stages by KPEZDMC; RSEZ will therefore have a
natural benefit of being an exceptionally pre-planned special economic zone that is expected to
meet international standards. Rashakai Special Economic Zone is strategically located on M1
Motorway at the intersection of M1 and Swat Expressway, and is linked to both China Pakistan
Economic Corridor (CPEC) routs through Swat Expressway and Burhan interchange. RSEZ also
serves as a bridging post to Northern Areas of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and has close proximity to
the Afghan border. Due to this central position of the economic zone in the province, it ‘is

envisagedas the imminent trade hub of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa.

i.2 Objective of the Study
The primary purpose of this market research is to analyze demand of industrialization in
Rashakai Special Economic Zone for setting up of industrial units. It also gauges advantages of
investing in RSEZ compared to setting up units in SEZs of other provinces and presents findings
in line with the ‘Scope of Work” provided below.
1.3 Scope of the Assignment
The consulting firm was required to submit a detailed Market Research Study Report. The
Report has the following parameters:
1. Rashakai SEZ being the first Prioritized Special Economic Zone of CPEC in the country
2. Demand for Land
Geographical Locatton Advantages

L

Demographics

Vocational Trainings and Universities
Competitor Analysis

Data Available for lnvestment

Legal framework

© L N A

Rule of Law




4 MARKET RESEARCH STUDY

The tasks performed umder the assignment included following key areas;

Demand for land in RSEZ for setting up manufacturing units including existing
applicafions, investor queries and through data from secondary sources with a focus on
type industry and area required sector wise.

eographical Location Advantages including location of RSEZ with respect to CPEC,
local area, road network, raw material availability etc.

Demographics inciuding age, gender, education and income level of people in adjoining
areas as well as inputs on labor force and consumer markets.

Vocational trainings and universities to assess skilled labor for industries in RSEZ
Competitor analysis with a focus on comparison of RSEZ with other industrial estates
and SEZs in other provinces or regions of the country — focus on pricing, services,
incentives etc.

Legal framework with a focus on incentives that KP offers compared to other provinces
Data available for investment with a focus- on nature and quality of data in comparison to
other provinces

Rule of faw with ‘a focus on security profile of KP in general and Rashakai in particular

as well as status of ‘One Window® and ‘Ease of Doing Business’
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2.0 An Overview of the Aporoach

during data collection, analysis and subsequent completion of the assignment

1.2, Bisieholders Mapping

stakehoiders is shared below;

R MARKET RESERRCH STUBY

This chapter mainty discusses the methodology adopted by team of experts to conduct this
assignment. Main headings include; the nature of data, steps taken by the experts to collect data,

the targsi respondents, techmiques used for presenting information and the limitations faced

As this assignment was focused on the Market Research on the Rashakai Special Economic Zone
(RSEZ), a multidimensional level of stakehelders needed to be approached by the experts. That
is why the original list of stakeholders identified was very comprehensive consisting of mare
than 120 stakeholders. However, keeping in view the short timeframe for this assignment the

team agreed on reducing the list to the most relevant stakeholders. The modified list of

S| - Category takeholder Name Catio
1 KP/Provincial | KP Planning & Development Department Peshawar
KP Economic Zones Development & Management
2 KP/Proviricial | Company Peshawar
3 KP/Provincial | KP Board of Investment Peshawar
4 KP/Provincial | KP Industries Department Peshawar
7 KP/Provincial | Sarhad Chambers of Commerce & Industry Peshawar
8 KP/Provincial Mardan Chambers of Commerce & Industry Peshawar
9 KP/Provincial | KP-Bureau of Statistics Peshawar
10 KP/Provincial KP-TEVTA Peshawar
11 KP/Provincial KP-Police Dept. Peshawar
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12 XP/Provincial KP-Finance Dept. Peshaw:
13 KP/Pravincial KP-HED Peshaws
14 KP/Provincial | Department of Agriculture Peshaw:
Punjab industrial Estates Development &
15 | Punjab Provincial | Management Company Lahore
16 | Punjab Provincial | Punjab Board of Investment Lahore
17 | Punjab Provincial | Sundar Industriai Estate Lahore
Faisalabad Industrial Estote Development &
18 | Punjab Provincial | Management Company Faisalahe
19 Federal Federsl Board of Investment Islamabz
20 Federal Ovarseas Chamber of Commerce and Industry Islamabe
21 Federal Ministry of Industries & Production Islamabz
22 Federal FPCCH {including R&D Cell} Islamabsz
23 Federal Planning Commission of Pakistan islamabsz
24 Federal CPEC Center of Excellence Islamabz
25 Federal Higher Education Commission (inciuding CPEC Cell) Istamabz
26 Federai Trade & Development Authority Pakistan Islamabz
27 Federal Pak-China Business Council islamabs
28 Federal SDPI Islamabz
29 Federal NAVTTC Islamabsz
30 Federal SECP Islamabe
31 Federal Pakistan Bureau of Statistics islamabz
32 Federal Export Processing Zones Authority islamabz
33 Federal CRBC
34 Federal Select Embassies in Islamabad islamabsz
35 | industrial/SEZ | Korangi Creek Industrial Park Hattar
36 industrial/SEZ | Hattar Economic Zone Hattar
37 Industrial/SEZ | (CPEC) Chine Spexial Economic Zone Dhabeji Dhabej
38 Faisalabad Chamber of Commerce & Industry
39 Islamabad Chamber of Commerce & Industry
40 Rawalpindi Chamber of Commerce & Industry
41 Karachi Chamber of Commerce & Industry
42 Lahore Chamber of Commerce & industry
43 Sialkot Chamber of Commerce & Industry
"Fable 2.1: Stakeholders Approached for Market Research Study




2.3, ata Celieetion, Data Source & Other Consideraton

Both primary & secondary data sources were considered for data collection. Secondary
data source included; a wide spectrum of reports, information and communication materials,
digital content on relevant websites and social media pages of stakeholders, case studies,
research papers, presentations, and any other published material gathered through search engines
like Google. Primary data was collected through Key Informant Interviews (K1Is), Focus Group
Discussions and through circulating an email Questionnaire. The KlIs targeted stakeholders from
KP particularly institutional stakeholders. In case of Klls® two separate tools were developed.
One was used to conduct KIls with important stakeholders through telephone. A list of these
stakeholders is provided below whereas another KII was used for stakeholdets who were
contacted in person. The FGD tool was used to collect data from business commumnity,

community elders, law enforcing agencies and locals residing in Rashakai and surrounding areas.

Department : Contact Person ‘Designation | Contact
1 | Sarhad Chamber /KPCCI Faiz Muhamrnad President 3008580090
KP, Bureau of Statistics Tarig Mehmud Director 5919211183
3 | KP-TEVTA Nazir Ahmad Director 3339418118
KP-higher Education Deputy Chief
4 | Department Naziruliah Planning 3440970355
Chief
5 | KPEZDMC Adil Salahuddin Commercial 3350099210
Deputy
6 | KP Industries Department Roshan Mehsud Secretary 919210801
7 | KP-BOIT Nazir Awan Acting CEO 3009592121
DPO
3 | KP-Police Department Manzoor Awan Rashakai 3454444488
Punjab Board Of Investment & 042 -9920
9 | Trade {PBIT) 5201-06
Dr. Mohammad Deputy
10 | Balochistan Board Of investment | Riaz Director 081-9203796
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021-

992075124

11 | Sindh Board Of Investment (SB!) | Abdul AzeemUtali | CEO, SEZ 03018507860

Punjab Industries, Commerce &

12 | investment Department Ms. Rafyah Sased | Add. Sec.SEZ | 4299213950

industries & Commerce Additional 021-

13 | Department Gov of Sindh Secretary office Secretary 99211291
Industries & Commerce Secretary

14 | Department Govt. of Baluchistan | Secretary office Industries 081-9211160

Table 2.2: Contact Details for Telephonic K1Is

In addition to KlIs and FGDs, the stakeholders outside KP (Federal, Punjab, Sindh) were
contacted via email-generated Questionnaire.

2.4, Limieations of the Study
Few of the factorsdue to which the assignment’s scope was limited included

1. The concept of SEZs itself is a relatively novice one for Pakistan. At the time of this
study no functioning SEZ exists in the country. Same is the case with RSEZ
Consequently, researching a phenomenon in a context that is yet to materialize fully
means that in some instances the team had to rely on perceptual information and opinions
rather than hardcore data that is validated and reliable.

2. Keeping in view the time constraints some of the key stakeholders® response was not
prompt i.e. multiple calls and emails to stakeholders to share data or their point of view
were placed with limited success. Wherever primary data was lacking, greater emphasis
was placed on collection of secoﬁdary data to overcome limitations.

3. Another important limitation was the limited availability of relevant, reliable and updatec
secondary data on Rashakai and its adjoining areas.

4, While all the secondary data reviewed and analvzed for this study was gathered from
original and authentic sources, the team did not have the means to verify them for
authenticity. Moreover, there were instances where discrepancies and mismatch in date

were observed prompting the team to exclude such information.
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Special Economic Zones are reckoned to be an important source for a number of reasons. This
includes the diversification of the economy, developing skills of the local labor force, reducing
disparities that are regional in nature, grouping economi¢ activities together with the local
industries. Other characteristics of RSEZs include transference of technology, spreading of
know-how, promoting additional industry-reiated aciivities, entrepreneurship development,
creating more competition, the attraction of both focal as well as. a foreign direct investment
especially for regions that are not as privileged. I increases employment, promotes exports and
facilitates management and administration. SEZ can be single or composite and it can house one

or many of the facilities indicated in the following figure.

's - /
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Figure 3.1: “Imminent Pmspenty at the Doorsteps of Honseholds: Evidence from Socio-kinetics
of Rashakai Economic Zone Using Dynamic Two Point Mode"! by Dr. Ejaz Gul and Prof. Dr.
Imran Shanf Chaudhry
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SEZs are usually described as self-contained when it comes to the procurement of raw materals.
This can be both from their local or intemnational market. They are also self-contained in
generating power, pollution mitigation, the treatment of sewage, and other supportive services.
Facilities such as transportation, cultural, and education institutes are developed concurrently
with the SEZ. Hence SEZs provide important insulation from both the uncertain external and

mternal environment,

SEZs have the privilege of having relaxation in customs and tax laws and regulations in
comparison to the rest of the country. These special econotnic zones are usually duty-free
territories for trade and manufacturing. Many fiscal, as well as regulatory incentives are provided
to investors, all within the zones by the local, provinciai, and national governments. Still, as
indicated by global experience, the decision to invest in an SEZ is hardly ever based on the
financial incentive alone, since these are not the key components to its success. The success
factors that contribute are; cost-effectiveness as well as efficient infrastructure, good governance
{one that will differentiate it from the rest of the country). The success of an SEZ stimulates the

economy, encourages provisions to public services even more effectively.

Successful SEZs are expected to introduce interventions relattvely quickly throughout the
country, through a mix of demonstrations and linkages with the local industries. They are able to
create cconomic spaces for their entries into ordinary and intermediate manufacturing. SEZs are
basically summarized as being strategic locations that help in addressing bottlenécks.arising from
structural and institutional issues. These can be complexities in procedures, deficiencies in
infrastructure, and hassles with bureaucracy, among other restrictive practices. These SEZs are

there to offier a climate of investment that aims to attract offshoring activities and outsourcing

ones as well.
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{t 18 rmportant to note that even though SEZs have played an incredibly important role all around
the world, they have stll been criticized for not being legally and socially protective of its
workers. Globally, the explanation offered for the failures of the SEZs are ‘rent-seeking™ by the
interest groups; taking wvmdue advantage of the mcentives such as tax holidays; other fringe
benefits offered; weak governance; issucs with regulation; and unresolved disputes. In order to
avoid soch problems and to make sure that management is efficient, ceuntrieé need to assign
decision-making roles that are decentralized in nature. Public-private partnership arrangements
also needs to be in place and conducive. This increases the inclusiveness with the institution and
the local community as well. Special Economic Zones are geographical locations with economic

laws different from the rest of the country and are more flexible.

The main obijectives of SEZs are to enhance foreign direct investments and also to become a
nurturing ground for the increasingly competitive international environment for exports, This
idea came from the fact that exports needed to be promoted more and that a level playing field is

deserved by the domestic mannfacturer and enterprises in order to be competitive.

Special Economic Zones kave yrown dramatically, especially in the last 20 y_eafs. The ILO’s
database from 1996 reveals that 176 SEZs are operating in about 47 covntiies. Then in 2006,
3500 zones were operating in 130 countries, This growth in results is evident despite the fact that
a plethora of SEZs have not met their intended objecﬁves. However, there are still several
examples that show a prominent contribution to exports, cmp.loym.ent', ang increase in FDI. They
have also played a role in global trade ihtegration, structural transformation, and

industrialization.

Surprisingly, SEZs have been very successful in countries with adverse economic conditions.
These countries with their imperfect structures and a complete refusal to adapt to change can

be used as experimental grounds in order to test and re-tune economic reforms before their

application to the wider economy.
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The People’s Republic of China is said to be a classic example of this phenomenon. SEZs are
very helpful in reducing regional inequalities cven in cconomies that are well-fimctioning o
advancig {econormicaliy) to higher levels. This is evident in Thailand as well as Vietnam. These
SEZs are a tool that helps in the concentration of population and the economic activities in big

cities Hike Bangkok and Ho Chi Minh City.,

SEZs also provide an improved business environment because they come with eflicient legal anc
regulatory framework. SEZs become the reasons for enhanced infrastrycture, trade facilitation
infrastructure development and cutting unnecessary red tape. SEZs aim at logistical, legal, anc
tax arrangements that are intended to facilitate developing countries in increasing exports of
manufacturimg concerns. This investment is otherwise very hard to attract. Factors such as weak
infrastructure, security threats for investors, higher regulatory duﬁﬁs, and restrictions i trade
undermine the progress of industries. The rationale provided for the existence of an SEZ is tc
decrease the costs that are associ'ated with aforementioned deterrents. This economic zone wil
create an environment that is both favorable and also within a geographic area. This. is why they
are cailed investment enclaves as well, The following table sumimanizes direct and indisect socio-

econoric benefits,

Sccnal benehts .

Static Beneﬁts‘ D i axmc Benaﬁts

Tcsnnff Flcld For Wlder
Economic Reforin
Technology imnsfer

Govemment Revenue

m.tegr?;f:iou_ into Global
Value Chains

Table: 3.1: ‘SEZs in India: Concept, Objectives-and Swrategies” by Dr. R. Shashi Kumar. 2015

'%.!
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Objectives underlined by the United Nations Publication of 1985 of the special economic zones

are the following:

«  (enerafing foreign exchange eamings
*  (Creating employment
*  Arracting foreign capital and advanced technology

» - Acquiring labor management skills

-3

{_reating linkages between EPZ, industries and the domestic econcmy
In similar vein, the Indian govemment passed the SEZ Act in 2005, According o the Act, the
core objectives of an SEZ are to attract foreign investment, increased exports, creating Jobs and

promoting regional development. In the government’s own words, the main objectives are;

{reneration of additional economic activity;
Promotion of exports of goods and services,
Promotion of investment from domestic and foreign sources;

Creation of employment opportunities;

O T o B

Development of infrastructure facilities.

3.3 Global and Regional Development

The literature on SEZs presented 1n a global context, they all point to thetr growth nodes
and how they are incubators of good practice. SEZs located on borders have more added
benefits by how they improve integraiion of international supply chains, even if such an
mnerease would require more cooperation and collaboration of authorities that are present
on both sides of the border. In the end, it is important to note that a SEZs” positive and
hegative impact should be focused and that they evolve over a course of many years. It is
accepted that their outcome will change with evolution and that their measure of success
would be to turn their good praclices into standard practices. The Asian Development

Bank observed that SEZs are basically a very good policy, damaged only by poor

,}\
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SEZs back from the 1960s have been known as free trade zones and depending on thelr
regulations in various regions around the world, have usually rapidly grown specifically in Latin
America, Asiz, and Africa. One universal feature that these zones possess is the duty-free

importation of goods. This, however, is a condition to cutputs that are exported fully.

Keeping in mind the international experience, one can conclude that physical and non-physical
factors have been underscored. These are factors that are contributing to the likelihood of
success. Priorities wise, some of the physical factors are the geographic location of the economic
zone, whether there is the availability of airports and other ports, personne!, infrastructure, and
other support services. Non-physical factors are then related to the reliability of the investment
environment, this includes both political and economic stability. Efficient governance is also
required so that operation of the economic zones i3 followed through with the minimum amount

of bureaucracy.

The main aim of why both local and foreign investment is attracted is so that these economic
zones can, directly and indirectly, influence employment. With a lot of location-based models;
these economic zones with breed economies of agglomeration. This is done through the
promotion of mferaction amongst companies, thereby raising their productivity through the
building up of conglomerates or by attracting facilities that are technologically advanced. In the
end, gaining static and dynamic outcomes in these economic zones will help in achieving the
desired socioeconomic outcomes. This is of coutse with respect increasing the quality of
employment and simultaneously making sure that decent wages are presented to the local

population.

Factors associated with the success or failure of these economic zones are very wide in range.
These are the drivers among which wages and productivity (in the region), preference of trade,
the outlook of the market, policies of the government and the macroeconomic environment,
incentives that are offered to investors, and execution of the program are all included. Still, a lot
of important intemnational studies will identify investment climate in these special economic

zones and also the access to a large amount of local and regional markets as the variables that are

most ciosely connected with the outcomes of these SEZs.




special economic zones. More than 1,000 economic zones are currently operating there,

3.4 Oricniation to the Concept of SEXs in Pakistan

moment under the Statutory Regulatory Ordinance.

It is possible for an SEZ to avail incentives that go beyond those that were initially stated in the
Act. This aims at promoting technology intensive industries in particular regions of Pakistan.
This is where the Board of Approvals (BOA) may extend more benefits and incentives to a

particular category of these special economic zones, zone enterprise, regions or sectors, The

following conditions apply though.

MARKET RESERRCH STHDY

Referring to the Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN), the competitive strategies, of
course, depend on the country’s stage of current economic development. It is known that
[ndustriai Parks and Special Economic Zonés are there to foster catch-up strategies in developed
countries. At the same fime, the innovation districts are there to accelerate innovation in the

already developed economies. All the countries of ASEAN have very widely made use of these

A comprehensive and legal framework for the regulation of the SEZs in Pakistan is provided in
the SEZs Act 2012 and SEZ Rules 2013. This is reckoned to be a useful initiative keeping in
view that in the past only a set of limited incentives were provided for promotion of economic
zones. This is one of the ruain reasons cited for why most of the Industrial Estates failed despite
the fact that they were given lucrative incentives. Legislation includes well-defined mechanisms
of accountability for concerned agencies such as developers of SEZ and government agencies;
guaranteed under the Act these agencies are responsible and accountable for provision of support
services to SEZs. It is anticipated that a conducive infrastructure will be provided to the
enterprises/businesses through the establishment of SEZs. These facilities cannot, however, be

withdrawn prematurely. Préviously, it was possible for the incentives to be withdrawn at any
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*  These benefits, in addition, are justified based on an assessment of the economic impact.

»  These benefits, if granted, are liable to be in forfeit if it is proved that the developer of
any zone or énterprise has not been able to comply with these conditions. The BOA also
has the authority to make the economic impact assessment of the SEZ within the first
five years of the commencement. Additionally, anything mentioned in this act does not
in any way limit the power of the provincial, federal, or local authority. They can still

grant addifional benetits 1f and when they please.

Other facilities that the SEZs can have are electricity, gas, and other utilities. These will be given
at the zero-point of the zone. Provision of security is one of the key requirements of SEZs

developed under the CPEC framework.

In today’s competitive business environment, Pakistan, through its flagship CPEC initiative, has
embarked on another journey of industrialization. Although industrialization initiatives in the
past haven’t been massively successful, Pakistan does have several clusters of the industry that

are opertaing substantially,

* [aisalabad, readv-made garments.

= Sialkot, surgical goods and sports industry
= (ujarat, pottery énd ceramic industry

" Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, marble clusters

= Hattar, Industrial Estate

v (yranwala, tannery and leather cluster

With CPEC agreement, Pakistan is in a better position to rely on China, with a renewed
conviction, to establish SEZs. China has around 1,800 SEZs and its success in the domain of

manufacturing needs no elaboration. Since 1980s, China has been focusing on skill and

knowledge development that is required for setting up special economic zones. Pakistan thus can

and should capitalize on Chinese experience in order to make sure that Pakistan’s proposed

economic zones becoine successiul foo.
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In order for these SEZs to become successful, it is critically important to attract and secure
foreign investments. For this reason, reliable and sustainable provision of economic incentives as
well as critical such as clectricity. gas, water cte. arc provided. In this regard, the federal
government of Pakistan has agreed to ensure provisions te these SEZs. Besides, for better
working environment of the SEZs, security risk factors needs to be minimized. Federal
government of Pakistan has shown firm commitments to ensure security of these SEZs. The
success of these SEZs will depend most on the socioeconomic conditions of the adjacent areas.
Looking at the case of Pakistan, the employment opportunities of the locals and their capacity

building is a primary congern.

In light of the rapid transformation happening on a global scale, it is important for Pakistan to
mvest in repositioning itself in the world market. The country has a lot of essential advaitages
and potential for growth, which can be used to prepare its economy in order to secure a huge
share in the competition of global production and exports. In the last four decades, the
manufacturing sector of Pakistan has shown growth potential at an average rate of 7%, despite 2
slowdown in recent years. This shows resilience of the Pakistani industries and entrepreneurs,
which indeed is crifical for sustaining a growth momentum. Certain challenges are threatening

‘Pakistan in the establishment Special Economic Zones. These challenges take various forms and

are related to transforming human, technological, financial, and institutional resources.
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4.1 Forvnmie Overview of

KP economy is the 3 largest economy of Pakistan and its share in Pakistan's total GDP is
10.5%. Key economic highlights of the economy are presented in the following table.

Tabled.1: Key highlights of KP’s Economy (exciuding newly merged districts of FATA)

30.50 million 49 654billion Dollars

6.09 million 5 percent

7.2 percent 1628 Dollars

49.2 percent

o Leather o Tobacco
o Dairy and meat g e Marble and
{ o Pharmaceuticals §  Granite
1 « Marhle and Granite s. Pharmaceunticals
s Engineeting
4 ¢ Plastic
¢ Food processing
1,388 * Maize
' d » Tobacco
s Peach
* Apple
e Persimmon
e Potatoes
‘o Vegetables
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42 Demand forecast

Demand forecast is based on the following information:

= Applicant database

& Secondery datavelaiad {0 major economic sector

@ Secondatv ecomomic data related fo connected districts of RSEZ

s Key Informant’s Intesviews (Kils)
Based on informal advertisement on its website, KPEDZMC hasreceived application for “plot
booking” of RSEZ. In response to this informal adveriisement, 769 applications have been
received, though no formal invitation has been advertisedtill date. These applications are further

analyzed for our study. The key highiights of the data are presented in Table.

Tabled4.2: Applicant’s Data

____SECTORS __ No.of Applications
Marble! Granitef Ceramies | -~ - - 398
others a9
Plastic industry L 54
Engineering: . | - ... . . .5
Packing B . .
Steel 6
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Industrial mix identified through the applicant’s
information has been compared with the historical
industrial mix of the Province. Additionally, in
order to better inform our seif and assess the future
beneficial ventures, we have conducted Key
informants Interview of the leading industrialists,
and field experts. These three scenarios are

presented in the following tables. Scenario 1 and 2

aré strongly correlated. In other words, applicant’s

preferential industrial mix is in accordance with

the traditional industrial mix of the province. Scenario 3 is based on the aspiratiens of the local
experts and emerging trends plus growing requirement of the local population. We as experts

also endorse scenario 3, and we anticipate that the most likely industrial mix will be Scenario 3.

‘Table 4.3: Three Scenarios of Industrial Mix

Engineering Engineering Automobile and Engineering

Food processing Food and beverages Food and Beverages including
: Jairy/meat

Warble/ Granite/ Ceramics Marble and chips Mechatronics/Medical equipment

Others Others Marble,Granite and Ceramics -

Packaging Packaging Pharmaceuticals.

Pharmaceuticals Pharmaceuticals Plastic

Plastic Plastic and Rubber Others

Steel

Based on the three scenarios, we forecast that the number of units in RSEZ will be 440" with a =
5% variation. The variation in the number of units is due to the three scenarios. Nevertheless,
the average size of the plot is calculated as 1.785 acres with a minimuin value of | acre and a
maximum of 50 acres, depending upon the nature of industry”. The following table illustrates the

_ ' 440 units arrived as total number of area (700 acre)/ average land size {1.78 acre)
* For the details see annexure....
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details of the applications regarding the demand for plot and sizes by different prospective

buyers. The cluster wise demand can also be observed.

Table 4.4: Cross-tabulation of Applicant Data
' Total.

U 75 Mﬁrb[ei i
Food | Gramite/ | -

'g-‘

Engineering | Processing | Ceramics | Others | Packaging
363 68

[ Re]
(=]
3
o

oloiololo|~|=lo|ulol5 |3
ololo|ololololof—|~i—~lwlg g | -

o [~ oo~ olojw |~ <3
ololo|o|o|-|o|o|~|o|ala|is

jolojol=lw|lo|o|ob=]=]=
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As per the study titled ‘Nine Proposed Priority SEZs under CPEC & SEZ Act; An Approach
to Indusirial Development” conducted by CPEC Centre of Excellence, following are the

locational advantages and key success factors of any SEZs:

Location of SEZs

Natural resources which will be used as raw material or input resources

Availability of infrastructure.

Availability of Human Resource (available skills, literacy rate, employment rate, human
capital index)

Availability of utilities

e W Tl ird
Dogation of RREZE

RSEZ is located at the. interchange of M1 and Swat expressway near Mardan. It is located at
Rashakai, District Nowshera and-close juncture of:

Motorway-M-1
Swat Expressway
National Highway -N-5

CPEC Western Route

RSEZ links to both CPEC routes through Swat Expressway and Burhan [nterchange at M1. It
also serves as a bridge for Northern Areas of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and located close to Afghan
border. Due to this central position, the economic zone has the potential to become a trade hub
for KP. It can be valuable in expanding transtt trade to Afghanistan and Central Asian countries.

The foilowing maps depict the geographical location of RSEZ and its positioning with respect to
CPEC routes: |
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Figure 5.1: SEZs under CPEC

SEZs under CPEC
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Figure 3.2: Map showing CPEC linking with Swat Expressway / Motorway i.e. N-95 & Di
Chitral CPEC route i.e. N-45

=N CHENA
= —
TIGHWAY NETWORK {/ T
[ S

& g o e

*--.. /u‘,"“‘ l‘wis

2o JAMMU & KASHMVIR I'E

IDEPUIRD TERKITORYY ;':

e

/et

¥

-dafolaofbiide

301




S8 MARKET RESEARCH STUDY

Figure 5.3: Locational Advantages of RSEZ (1)
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Figure 5.4: Locational Advantages of RSEZ {2}
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Figure 5.5: Locational Advantages of RSEZ (3)
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RSEZ is surrounded by five districts 1.e. Mardan, Swabi, Charssada‘,r Swat and Nowshera.
According to the 2017 census; the accumulated population of these districts is 9,441,985 (23% of
KPK total population). Distance of these districts from Rashakai is given below:

Table 5.1: Distance of Nearby Districts from RSEZ

Distance in KM from Rashakai

5 - 128 -

10,1 TSI . e e p—_— Distance in KM from
Rashakai

50 -

- Linear {Distance in KM
from Rashzhai)

Mardan. Newsharz Swat  Charsadds  swabi

5.1 Availability of Mineral reserves

District Nowshera, where RSEZ. is located, is rich with many types of minerals. Lime stone,
marble and granite, shale clay, dolomite, latrite, slate stone in particular, are produced in enough
quantity not only to meet the domestic demands but also regional demands, As per KP Bureau of
Statistics report on mineral deposits (Year 2012-13), production of lime stone is 2,596,531 tons,
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marble 6,661 tons, latrit2 17,57¢ tons, fire clay 5,098 tons, dolomite 14,155 tons, coal 9,344 tons,
shale

clay 516,263 tons, slate stone 55,549 tons and soap stone 1,830 tons. Cherat coalfield which
is located in Nowshera district has coal reserves of 7.4 Million tons. KPOGCL has identified
hydrocarbon deposit in Nowshera block which consists of Mardan, Charsadda, Swabi and
Buner districts presenting joint venture opportunity for natiohal and international firms for
exploration and production.

5.3 Agricuilture and live stock

This cluster of five districts is very rich resource in agriculture sector and significantly
contributing in provincial and national economy. Key statistics of major crops (other than
wheat) 13 given in following table.

Table 5.2: Major Crops in Five Districts Nearby RSEZ

oductiomin:fon KP 1ation
Tobacco 60,384 34% 60%
Maize 354 447 41% 6.2%
Potatoes 26,006 223% 0.65%
Onion 113,680 56.4% 6.5%
Peach 25,550 74 1% 54.6%

In addition, vegetables are regularly exported to Middle East from this region. Therefore, this
area is very lucrative for agro based industry and RSEZ play an umportant role for the
economic-development of this area.

Livestock is another important sector and have huge potential for value addition for local and
international market. Key information is as under:

Table 5.3: Livestock Statistics

T; umber of animals KP
Cow 134,879

Buitaloes 544 097

Goat 071,915

Sheep 264,249

331




8.1 Availability of infrastructure

RSEZ is connected to all connected districts/Pakistan through:
e Peshawar International Airport that is 58 KM away from RSEZ and Islamabad

International airport that is 90 Km away from RSEZ

» Dry port is 65Km away from RSEZ

o Railway Station is 25 Km away from RSEZ

RSEZ is located along Islamabad-Peshawar Motor way (M-1)
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This chapter has been prepared in light of the need for presenting the demographic data for
Rashakai and its adjoining areas including status of the local labor force and consumer and
business markets. Morcover, in order to assess the availability of skilled manpower for RSEZ it
presents information .on vocational training institutes, colleges and universities that will serve as
a source-base of workforce for RSEZ and skill profile. Deriving from the ‘Stakeholders
Mapping’, stakeholders included for collection of secondary and primary data included;

6.1. Population Prbﬁle for the Region

Rashakai Spetial Econoinic Zone is locatéd in Rashakai, one of the 47 Union Councils of
District Nowshera. Rashakai is also one of the 24 major villages of the District. The village lies.
at the border of the aﬁj_oinin g District Matdan’,_ therefore, the demographic data for both districts
has been included in this section. Table 6.1 provides some fundamental information.
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Pakistan Bureau of Statistics (www.pbs.gov.pk)
K.P Bureau of Statistics (www.kpbos.gov.pk)
NAVTTC

KP-TEVTA

KP Higher Education Department
Higher Education Commission Pakistan

Othier Stakeholders (including relevant reports of international agencies, donors etc.)




Khyber Pakhtunkhwa District wise Demographic Analysis
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18
Adminigtrative Houscholds Pop. Pop 1998 SEX Pop Pop Registertl:;l_ 18 above
Unity Increased | Increased Voter 30 ahove Po
2017 Ratio June 2017 P
Pop 1998- | %4 1998- Pop 1993
2017 2017 (%) (%)
Nowshera 198,808 1,518,540 | 874,373 | 106,10 | 644,167 73.63 699104 46,04 | 49.53
Mardan 311,868 | 2,373,061 | 1,460,100 | 10245 | 912961 62.53 1136449 | 4789 | 47.48

Table 6.1: District-wise Demographics (Source: Census Report 2017)

immediate vicinity of RSEZ;

e Demographics for District Nowshera
» Demographics for District Mardan

Further, additional demographics on Charsadda and Swabi are also provided.

Additionally, this section presents further demographic data for two adjoining districts within
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6.1.1. Demosraphics for Disirict Nowshern (2017)

Area 1748 Sq. Km
Population Density 368 / Sq. Km
Population Distribution
o Male ‘ 791139 (52.10 %)
s Female 727619 (47.90 %)
s Urban Population 25.96 %
» Rural Population 74.04 %
Average Household Size 7.64
Literacy Ratio (10 +) 42.50 %
s  Male 60.55 %
» Female 22.68 %
Administrative Units
o Tehsils 01
e Union Councils 47
o Mauzas 153
« Municipal Committees 04
» Town Commitiees 01
s Cantonment 03




Table 6.2: District Profile — Nowshera (Source: www.kp.gov.pk)
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Census Year Population Rural Area Urban Area
1951 222,527 170,072 52,455
1961 276,937 188,968 87,969
1972 410,718 307,783 102,933
1981 537,638 386,647 647,343
1998 874,373 150,991 227,030
2017 1,518,540 N/A N/A

Ry 1) DBEmE
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Table 6.3: Growth of Population since 1951 {Source: Pakistan Bureau of Statistics, 2018)

6.1.2, Demographies for District Mardan (2017)

Area 1632 Sq.Kms

Population Density 1454/ 5q. Km

Population Distributien

+ Male 1224499 (51.60 %)
~» Female | 1148324 (48.39 %)
» Urban Population 17.47 %
s Rural Population 79.78 %
Average Household Size 7.61
Literacy Ratio (10 +) 36.5%
s Male . | 53.50%
» Female 18.38 %

Administrative Units

s Tehsils 02
e  Union Councils 74
o Mauzas 168
» Municipal Commitices 02

o Cantt, | | | 01
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Tabie 6.4: District Profile — Mardan (Source: www.kp.gov.pk)

Census Year Population Rural Urban
1951 357,455 308,628 48,827
1961 481,297 400,184 81,113
1972 696,622 569,359 127,263
1981 881,465 715,163 166,302
1998 1,460,100 1,164,972 295,128
2017 2,373,061 N/A N/A

Table 6.5: Growth of Population since 1951 (Source:Pakistan Bureau of Statistics, 2018)

6.1.3. Demographics for District Swabi (2017)

{Area 1543 Sq.Kms.
Population 1624616 persons
1 » Male 817344 (50.31%)
» Female 807272 (49.69 %)
Population Density 1052.9 per Sq. Km
» Urban Population 225925 (13.91 %)
» Rural Population 1348691 (86.09 %)
Average Household Size 7.58
6.1.4. Demographics for District Charsadda (2017)
|Area ' 996 Sq.Kms.
Population 1616198 persons
+ Male 820520 (50.79 %)
» Female 795657 {4921 %)
IPopulation Density 1622.68 per Sq. Km
« Urban Population 270175 (16.72%)
« Rural Population 1346023 (83.28 %)
Average Houseliold Size

731
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6.2, Population Profile for Rashakai and Adjoining Areas

The Rashakai village including the RSEZ is located on M1 Motorway (Islamabad — Peshawar) at
distance of 140 kilometers from Islamabad and 50 kilometers from Peshawar. Rashakai is a
medium size town within District Nowshera with a population of approxitmately 118,000
individuals. The RSEZ is at a distance of 115 kilometers from Afghan border. Its central location
is expected to make it as industrial, frade and economic hub for the country (Gul & Chaudry,
2016). There are five major villages around Rashakai SEZ. These include;

1. Rashakai
2. Sowkai
3. Bara Banda
4. Risalpur
5. Raj Muhammad Kalli

Except Rashakai which has a population of approximately 80,000 people, population of
remaining four villages was almost same, 25 to 30 thousand. Besides these five villages, there
are small pockets of population scattered around Rashakai SEZ. Total population of households
in these viitages is approximately 523,300 individuals out of which 272,116 (52%) are females
and 251,184 (48%) are males. According to demographic estimate 52% of the male and female

population is of school and college going age.

6.3, Household Ineome, Labor Force, Consumer and Business Marvkets

Presently per capita income of households of the overall area is approximately Rs. 110,829 per
year. Presently most significant economic activity at Rashakai is cloth trading. Households are
also engaged il domestic agriculture activities. The household size in villages is 9 to 10
individuals per house. Houses are mostly made of bricks with 3 to 5 rooms per house. Existing
literacy rate in the Rashakai village is 35%. There are primary and high schools for males and
females separately. There is a rural health center at Rashakai; however,critical patients are taken
t0 hospitals at nearby urban centers that is Mardan and Nowshera. Pe()pleiiiave"ﬁelds on fringes
of villages where they do their subsistence agriculture, Electricity availability to households is
very less due to frequent power breakdowns. Households are using different sources of energy
mcluding generators: and:soldar panels, Clean dfinking:water.is-collected from underground
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aquifer through tube wells in the houses and fields. Houscholds have no elaborate arrangements
of sanitation except for 2 to 3 lavatories per house and unlived muddy drains. Similarly,
sewerage and waste disposal is being done by houscholds on self-help basis and there is no

organized system of disposal.

According to Gul and Chaudry (2016) the analysis of household data suggests moderate positive
skewness and negative kurtosis; positive skewness indicates that households with low mcome
were more than high income and negative kurtosis indicated that distribution is flatter than

Gaussian distribution with light tails. All variables had positive skewness and negative kurtosis

indicating that in 2016 proportion of deprived households was more than the blessed. Table
6.below provides further details
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Kurtosis -3.13 0.209 -2,83 -3.25 -2.58 -2.51 -0.76
Skewness 0.5867 0.1267 0.1946 0.5823 0.5598 0.2791 0.7363
Median 26389 9036 4390 20199 12613 20690 660
Standard 25839.01 3175.58 3126.62 2818.15 642215 12032.54 | 689124.0
Bewation
Average 110829 9993 4818 26120 18431 24415 689
Raj 89326 6135 2030 17826 9303 10933 566
Fhé ke ad
Risalpur 141612 12816 8406 37366 23619 38612 §69
Bara Banda 90619 8209 4390 20199 12613 16503 596
gowhal 26389 8036 1616 18919 10703 20690 660
Rashak:i 136200 . 13690 T650 36289 20916 35339 756
‘ = St o & - =
& = 2 — -
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Table 6.6: Demographic Data for Rashakai and Adjoining Villages (Source: Pakistan Bureau of

Statistics)
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In addition to the above-mentioned demographic profile, Rashakai and its adjoining areas are
characterized by economic activity and presence of labor force related to the following consumer

and business markets;

Fruits and Vegetables (wholesale and retail)

Foods {floor, grains, meats, poultry, packaged goods)

Packaging (small scale and low value addition)

-]

Cloth/Textile (wholesale and retail)

[

Stitching and Kuitting (household-centric)

In addition to the above-mentioned sectors, Rashakai and its adjoining areas are within reach of
certain key input resources (such as marble and granite) from the nearby districts and locations.
This can consequently influence the nature and types of industrial units in RSEZ from the
perspective of feasible investment options. The proximity of connected districts with available
input resources includes;
¢ Gemstone, Soap stone, Metal Ores, Magnesium and Phosphate at Abbottabad
(approximately 150 Km from Rashakar)
e Established clusters c}f hand & power looms, foot wears & sugarcané at Chaxsédda
(approximately 30 Km from Rashakai)
s  Gemstoneand Metallic Ores at Malakand (approximately 48 Km from Rashakai)
« Gemstone, Marble/Granite at Lower Dir {approximately 120 Km from Rashakai)
o Sugarcane and Tobacco at Mardan fapproximately 10 Km from Rashakai)

e Wheat, Maize, Tobacco, Maize, Rice, Sugar Cane, Mustard , Water Melon, Musk Melon,
Apricot, Guava, Pear, Peaches, Plum, Citrus and Mulberry plantations at Swabi
(approximately 30 Km from Rashakai}
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According to Colliers International (2018) the RSEZ site primarily consists of agricultural land,

however there are a few establishments nearby suggesting the nature and spread of the labor

force and business markets. These include ZRK Industrial Park towards the west of RSEZ site,

which is the largest wood based panel industry in Pakistan producing MDF and particleboard,

covering the building industry needs of more than 300 million people. Based opposite RSEZ and

on the other side of Motorway, two housing schemes have been announced by the names of
Khyber Motorway Town and Sher Shah Sum Housing Scheme. This sugpests the potential for

real estate market in the region. Additionally, the existence of the nearby Mardan Industrial

Estate suggests presence of a potential business market for RSEZ. The development of this estate

has been carried out in three separate phases over the course of almost four decades. Initial

buildout of this industrial area began in 1972, the second phase of expansion took place 12 years

later in 1984 and finally the last Ieg of growth occurred 26 years later in 2010. According to our

research and local enquiries, the first two phases of this estate contains a total of 160 plots, which

have managed to achieve an occupancy level of 100 percent. The third and most recent phase,

which was developed in 2010, has a total number of 100 plots. From these plots only 10 percent

have been occupied to date with 90 percent remaining vacant. The main reason for this low level

of occupancy is the lack of proper provision for utilities in the area. Electricity has only recently

'beex; provided with little to no distribution of gas. This situation and poor supply of facilities has

discouraged potential business groups and investors from setting up industries in this phase of
the industrial estate.

Other potential business markets include the Pakistan Locomotive Factory (Risalpur), which was

established in 1993. Another site worth mentioning is the Bara Banda Small Industries Estate

also located in the city of Risalpur. It is pertinent to note that there is not a lot of diversity with

regards to the types of industries that operate within Mardan and Bara Banda Industrial Estates.

The factories operating within both these estates can be classified as small to medium scale and

are essentially dominated by various companies producing granite and marble. However there

are 2 few paper and board mills in the surrounding areas as well. Moreover, Abbas and Al
(2018) suggest that based on the strengths of the connected districts and resource pool, the
economic zone has predominant investment feasibility for industries in fruit & food packaging

‘and textile.

S 6 e
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In overall terms, District Nowshera where Rashakai is located is one of the more economically
developed regions of KP Province. It is has a thriving agricuiture and horticulture sector along
with mining industries (marble), mineral reserves, and manufacturing industries (locomotive
factory, cement, tobacco factory, fextiles, beverages, ceramics, edible oil/ghee, and
soaps/shampoo etc.). For Nowshera to grow economically, the focus should remain on the
polishing the current sectors, which can make this district a “Multifaceted Hub of Mineral
processing, Consfruction, Manufacturing and Agriculture’. Additionally, KP Oil and Gas
Company Limited (KPOGCL) has identified hydrocarbon deposits in Nowshera block which
consists of Mardan, Charsadda, Swabiand Buner districts presenting joint venture opportunities
for national and international firms for exploration and production (District Profile, KP Govt.,
2018).

Similarly, in District Mardan adjoining Rashakai agriculture, horticulture and manufacfuring
(heavy industries like railway engines, sugar industry and other manufacturing concerns like
cigarcttes, textiles, beverages, ceramics, edible oil/ghee, and soaps/shampoo etc) remain the
~ sectors. This district has a minor potential to become a multifaceted hub of mining, heavy
manufacturing, agriculfure and fourism. The area is also suitable for olive tree cultivation
(District Profile, KP Govt,, 2018). | |

6.4. Anticipated Impact of RSEZ on the Demeographics of the Region
Gul and Chaudry (2018) have conducted a study on the anticipated impact of RSEZ on the
demographics of Rashakai and adjoining areas for the period 2016 to 2030. Figure 6.2 and

subsequent discussion provides some of the key findings from their analysis.

i -7 ESE
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Changes in Values of Variables for 2016 and 2030
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Figure 6.1: Ancipated Demographic Changes in Rashakai and Adjoining Villages Due to RSEZ
(Source: Gul and Chaudhry 2018)

As shown in Figure 6.1, all variables (I = per capita income, Me = male employment, Fe =
female employment, Em = male education, Ef = female education and E = energy) show an
increase by 2030 in different proportions except number of patients (H = health) which decreased
by 77.5% due to expected improved health facilities after construction of RSEZ. Maximum
increase was noticed in female education. This was because of the present low enrolment of girls
in schools {3.4% of present girls’ population of Rashakai and surroundings) which would
increase to 13.3% in 2030 after completion of SEZ at Rashakai. In fact, even with almost triple
increase i the school enrolments of girls, the percentage raised to only 13.3% of the total girls
population in 2030. An interesting fact was increased per capita availability of energy to

houseliolds of Rashakai and surroundings. Availability of uninterrupted modern energy to

surrounding households will definitely have immense socioeconomic impact.
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6.5, Skilled Manpoewer Sources: Vocational Institutes and Universities
6.5.1 Overview of TVET tn Pakistan
In Pakistan, there are 3,798 technical and vocational institutions, of which 1,139 (30%) are in

public sector, whereas 2,659 (70%) are in private sector.

The total enrolment in the technical and vocational institutions is 0.315 million, of which 0.137

million (44%) is in public sector, whereas, 0.177 million (56%) is in private sector.

It has been seen that 30% of public technical & vocational institutions are serving 44% of total

technical

& Vocational enrolment. While 70% of private institutes are serving for 56% of the private

sector enrolment,

The total male enrolment in the technical and vocational institutions is 0.225 million (65%),

whereas, the female enrolment is 0.119 million (35%).
The total teachers in the technical and vocational institutions are 18,207, out of those 9,139
(50%) are in public and 9,018 (50%) are in private sector. There are 13,903 (76%) male teachers

and 4,304 (24%) female teachers.

Source: Pakistan Education Statistics 2016-16 by Academy of Education Planning and

Management
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6.5.2 Labour Foree Challenges in KP

The national level labour force participation is 45.2%, however, the participation level in
KP is low and was reported to be 36.3% in 2014-15. The unemployment rate of the nation
dropped from 6.0 to 5.9 in fiscal vear of 2013-2014, while the unemployment rate in KP
also dropped from 0.54 million to 0.51 million in the same yvear. The most recent Labour
Force Survey (LFS) indicates a notable unemployment rate of 7.72% for KP when
contrasted with the national level 5.9%. These circumnstances are further intensified by the
low literacy rate of 53.94% in KP when compared with 61.75%, 62.98% and 55.54 % of
Punjab, Sindh and Balochistan respectively. The family size of 7.03 in KP is higher than

other regions of Pakistan.

The labour force in Pakistan has recorded an increase of 2.5 million personnel from 2010-
11 to 2012-13, which was further increased from 60.10 million to 61,04 million from 2013-
14 to 2014-15. The civilian labour force of KP increased from 6.58 million in 2010-11 to
6.72 million in 2012-13, which is an increase of 0.14 million, In 2013-14 to 2014-15 the

civil labour force further increased 0.15 million.
This increase has developed several challenges for the labour force of KP.

1. The national tevel labour force participation is 45.2%, however, in KP this
participation is recorded to be 36.3% in 2014-15 '

2. The unemployment rate of the country dropped from 6.0 to 5.9 from the year 2013~
14 to 2014-15. Comparatively, the unemployed labour of KP was also dropped from
0.54 million t0.0.51 million from 2014 to 2015, however, this decrease was recorded
mainly in male labour force, The number of unemployed females remain the same

in 2015 i.e. 0.20 million.
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The latest LFS suggested highest unemployment rate of 7.72% for KP as compared
to the national level i.e. 5.9%. Furthermore, the youth unemployment rate (age 10
vears above) is more alarming as it is calculated to be 25.37%. Similarly, the female
unemployment rate is 3.03% as compared to the national level of 2.15%
respectively. This also indicates that the KP economy is not performing well and has

not created many openings for youth.

. The labour force situation was further impaired by the low literacy rate of 53.94% of

KP as compared to 61.75, 62.98 and 55.54 % of Panjab, Sindh &Balochistan

respectively.

The growth rate of 4.3% in the province is also low as compared to a national
growth rate of 4.6%.

Considering the highest unemployment rate, highest population rate, lowest literacy rate,

lowest labour force participation and low economic growth (_4.3%), the revitalization ‘of

socio-economic status supported by skilled workers is the need of the day. This will

increase the supply side and will not only enhance the developmental statistics, but will also

augment the growth statistics. On the other hand, historically, TVET sector received a low

priority in KP for some of the following reasons;

As the pre .ent'ry/ladmission. requirements for TVET 1s low or even not required,
therefore, it has created an impression of low priority education. The image of
TVET was further mutilated by psychological, social and cultural factors such as
education for low caste and less privileged group. The opportunity cost of the less

privileged group makes it more repulsive to opt for education for their bread and

butter.
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e The ADP allocated for public sector TVET mstitutes 1s also not sufficient to make

these institutes work according to the needs of the job market.

a  The institutional and curriculum structure also makes it a vague qualification to
attain. Multiple curricula, issuing authorities with an overlapping mandates and the
absence of a quality curriculum iramework are the main concerns in making the

TVET attractive,

Source: Sector Study on Demand Driven Competency Based Training in Potential Sectors
of KP by GIZ, March 2017

The technical and vocational skill shortage has remained a major challenge for Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa over the decades in the industries especially in manufacturing, canstruction,
mining and service sectors. The privatization and economic restructuring programmes lannched
at federal level have caused further imbalance in the supply provision of skilled labour. The
soaring gaps between demand and supply of skilled labour have adversely impacted the
efficiency of the industry sector leading to less production and non-adjustment of surplus labour
available in the market. Consequently, the economic growth could not pick the required speed in
accordance with the market trends of labour position with respect to the arising situation. The
challenge of closing the gaps and reducing unemployment at national and provincial levels can
only be addressed with the exploitation of available potential in the Technical and Vocational,
Education and Training Institutions (TVET) through upgrading their skills as per: modifications
of technology. |

As per report prepared by NAVTTC, number of working vocational institutions stand at 569
numbers accounting for 95% in comparison with functioning of meagre 30 numbers of techaical
institutions which contribute to only 5% of total supply of TVET institutions. Moreover, the
strength of skilled workforce provided by the technical institutions in a year stand at 25,580
persons whereas skilled wotkforce supplied by vocation institutions consists of 73,912 persons
per annum in the KPK which is more than half of the skilled workforce produced by the technical
institutes. The 1,882 industrial units are working in the manufactoring sector whereas only 168
industrial units are found in the construction sector. The 1,150 industrial units are available in the
mining sector and only 624 units are engaged in the services sector. The highest workiforce
deficiency is found in mining sector which accounts for 99% of total skilled workforce followed
by service sector (98%) and construction sector (82%) while least skilled workforce deficiency
has been reported in manufacturing which makes up only 21% of total skilled workforce.
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The highest skilled workforce has been reported in the manufacturing with 80.9% foliowed by
service with 71.6%, mining with 50.4% and least provision of skilled workforce is in the
construction with only 4.2% of total workforce. The supply of skilled workforce on technical side
based on DAE civil (6,500), electrical (5,000), mechanical (2,000), electronics (1,000) and
telecom (less than 1,000) is more than the available demand of 3,000 and less than 1,000 skilled
persons in the market which means creation of awareness is required amongst the people for
investment in these sectors aimed at adjustment of surplus skilled workforce for utilizing their
skill in the development of economy. The basic computer and tailoring & dress on vocational
side have the capacity of producing 5,000 skilled persons each against demand of only 2,000 and
less than 1,000 skilled persons respectively

Source: Skilis Gap Analysis Khyber Pakhtunkhwa by NAVTTC, February 2017

6.5.3 Overseas Employment Trend in Last 10 Years

Table 6.7 below shows the number of Pakistanis who travelled abroad for employment registered
with the Bureau of Emigration and Overseas Employment during the period 2007-16. The share
analysis of overseas shows a higher tendency for skilled and unskilled labour from 2007.
However, the rate of skilled workers is increasing as compared to unskilled labour in the last 10
years. This clearly demonstrates that skilled workers demand is increasing overseas. |
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" Institutes in Ehvber Pukhtunkinwa ,
The following table provides comparative analysis of TVET institutes in various provinces in
Pakistan:

Teaentrs
Femala

Sraed Tt

Table 6.8: TVET Institutes in KP (Source: Pakistan Education Statistics 2016-16 by Academy
of Education Planning and Management)
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6.5.5. Annual Suppiy of TYET Instituiions in KP

The figure indicates annual supply of skilled workforce from both technical and vocational
institutions to meet the emerging demand of market in KP. The graph depicts that total number
of skilled workforce provided by the technical institutions. in a year stands at 25,580 persons.
whereas skilled workforce supplied by vocation institutions consists of 73,912 persons per
annum in the province which is more than half of the skilled workforce produced by the
technical institute. The notable phenomenon in comparison of data between two types of
institutes 15 on rise in the skilled workforce generated by the vocational mstitute over technical
institute. The reduced number of skilled workforce in the technical trades reflects radical changes
needed for improvement in the efficiency of existing technical instifutions and augmenting in its
numbers so that soaring demand of market may be met as per the evolving needs of the market.
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Figure 6.2: Annual Supply of TVET in KP (Source: Skills Gap Analysis Khyber Pakhtunkhwe
by NAVTTC, February 2017)
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6.5.6 Indusivial Units in Khyber Pakhiankhwa Sector Wise

The data in the graph shows deficiency of skilled workforce in different industrial units of KP
ranging from manufacturing to service sector. The rapid growth of production has slowed down
leading to decreased efficiency in the provincial economy or in case of filling the gap with work
based learner increase market value cost. Now the data is interpreted quantitatively to measure
the actual deficiency in the manufacturing, construction, mining and service sectors of the
province. The 1,882 industrial units are working in the manufacturing sector whereas only 168
industrial units are found in the construction sector. The 1,150 industrial units are available in the
mining sector and only 624 units are engaged in the services sector. The stark comparison gives
conspicuons results that manufacturing sector ranks top in terms of having availability of
industrial units whereas construction sector leads deficiency of skilled workforce. The status of
mndustrial units in mining and service sector lies in between the highest and lowest sector which
indicates acute deficiency of skilled workforce, The deficiency of skilled workforce in the
mining, service and construction needs to be bridged through increasing number of industrial
units m the province.
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Figure 6,3: KP Industrial Units (Source:Skills Gap Analysis Khyber Pakhtunkhwa by NAVTTC, February 2017)
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6.5.7. Supply vs Demand of Skilied Workivree [Techpical Trades)

The daia given in the table demonstrates comparison between supply and demand of skilled work
force in technical education leading to creation of substantial gaps. The findings depicts that
supply of skilled workforce is more than its demand in B tech civil, B tech electrical, B tech
mechanical, DAE architectural, DAE auto, DAE auto & farm, DAE cit, DAE civil, DAE
computer hardware, DAE electrical, DAE electronics, DAE foed, DAE mechanical, DAE RAC,
DAE telecom and DAE DDM. Likewise the demand of skilled workforce is more than its supply
in DAE Chemical, DAE Mechanical, DAE Mining, DAE Mold, DAE Pharmacy, DAE Land &
Mine Survey Tech and DAE Material.

The exceeding supply over demand has created demand gaps of skilled workforce after
comparison between its demand and supply and have been marked in DAE Electrical with 5,005
as the highest demand gap followed by DAE Computer Hardware with 3,422, DAE Mechanical
with 1,742, DAE CIT with 662, DAE Electronics with 645, DEA Telecom with 452, B Tech
Electrical with 402 and DAE focd with least demand gap of only 12. Similarly, the highest
supply gap of skilled workforce has been détected in DAE Land & Mine Survey Tech with 3,994
after comparison between its demand and supply. It was followed by DAE Mining with 3,143 as
supply gap DAE Chemical with 815 and least supply gap of skilled workforce existed in DAE
Material with only 05.

The trends in trade indicates that majority students prefer to join DAE Electrical followed by
DAE Computer Hardware, DAE Mechanical, DAE CIT, DAE Electronics and DAE Telecom as
a resuli of which surplus skilled workforce is available in the market whereas less opportunities
are available in DAE Land & Mine Survey Tech, DAE Mining, and DAE Chemical, DAE Mold,
DAE Pharmacy and DAE Petroleum. The planning is required to be made in accordance with
demand and supply gaps of skilled workforce for reducing such existed gaps aimed at adjustment
of surplus skilled worlforce in the indicated professions by creating opportunities in the market
while provision of shortage of skilled workforce is needed to be made to bring it in line with the
rising demand by involving technical institutions.
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TYET Supply vs Deanuni

Trade Supply bemand Gaps

B. Tech Civil 168 86 1 82
B. Tech Electrical 411 o R 402
B. Tech Mechanical 30 4] | 80
DAE Architectural 364 265 0 99
DAE Auio 143 3 1 138
DAE Auio & Farm 47 12 i 35
DAE Chemical 275 1,090 0 (8153)
DAE CIT 96 34 ] 662
DAE Civil 6,469 3,047 4l 3,422
DAE Computer Hardware 384 12 N 372
DAE Electrical 5,350 345 0 5,005
DAE Electronics 928 283 0 645
DAE Food 30 | 13 0 12
DAE Mechanical 2,309 567 0 1,742
DAE Petroleurn 91 123 0 (32)
DAE RAC 109 0 1 109
DAE Telecom 509 57 W 452
DAE DDM ' 123 0 a 123
'DAE Mining | 0 3,143 0 (3,143)
DAE Mold g 48 | (48)
DAE Pharmacy 0 39 1 {59)
DAE Land & Mine Survey Technolday 0 3,994 al (3,994)
DAE Material 0 5 a (5)

Tabie 6.9: Skills Cap Analysis Khyizar Pakhrunkhwa iy NAVTIC, Fehniaty 2017
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6.5 Universities in Khyber Pakbi{unlhwa

There are total 185 universities in Pakistan providing their services in both public and private
sectors of education, Qut of these universities, 110 (59%) are working under umbrella of public
sector, whereas 75 (41%) are working under the supervision of private sector.

The total enrolment in the universities, i.e., at post graduate stage, is 1.463 million. Out of this
enrolment 1.192 million (81%). students dre enrolled in public universities, whereas, 0.270
million (19%) students are studying in private umversities. Despite the {act that there are more
- universities in public sector, there are less students in these universitics as compared to private
sector.

The total male enrolment in the universities is 0.795 million (54%), whereas, the female
enrolment is 0.667 million (46%).

The total teachers 1n the universitics are 38,733 out of which 40,258 (69%) are in public and
18,475 (31%) are in private sector.

Source: Higher Education Statistics 2016-17 by Academy of Education Planning and
Management

As per Higher Education Commission web site, there are 41 universities in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
(both public and private sector).

i Loeation ~ | Established |~ Campuses— -~ | ‘Specialization | T

University

1 Islamia , _ S
College ‘Peshawar 1913 (2008)* ‘General | Public
University

2 Pakistan
Military . .
Academy, Abbotabad | 1947 Training

Kakul

Pakistan |
Army

3 University

T } _?Peshawar 1950 ' General Public
of Peshawar | i
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i
i

University |

Location

Established

Campuses

Specialization

Type

4 Gomal
University i

3 Pera Ismail

Khan

1974

Tonk?

Public

5 University |
of Enginesring
and
Techuology,
Peshawar

Peshawar

1980

Abboltabad, Bannu, Jalozai, Kohat

Engineering and
Technology

Public

6 University
of Agriculiure, |
Peshawar

Peshawar

1981

Mardan

| Apticuliore,
velerinary and
business

Public

7CECOS
University of
ITand
Emerging
Sciences

Peshawar

1956

T&
engitiseting

Piivale

8 GIK
institute of
Engineering &
Technology

Swabi

1988

Engineeting

Private

9 Kohat:
University of
Science and
Technology

Kbﬁm

2901

Ha’mgu

General

Public

10 University
of Malakand,
Chakdara

PR

Lower Dir

2001

{ General

Public
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University Location & Established Campuses Specialization | Type |
iIJL .Qurtt.xba Peshawar 2001 Dera Ismail Khan General Privatc

nIversity i - _
12 Sarhad i
University of | peghawar | 2001 Science & TT | Private
Science and = ‘
T
13 Fast .
 University, o ‘Tnformation o
Peshawar Pc_shaw;r : 2001 technology Private
Campus.
14 City :
Univyersity of STV IT, engineering | n .
Science and Peshawar 2001 & genezal Private
1T
[5 COMSATS i Abbofabad ., . o
University | Campus 2061 i P“@_“*"
16 Hazara e o L
University _ Mamehm | 2002 Génergl Pu_l;h@ |
17 Gandhara T e Medmal G
University ] Pe_sha_\a*ar_: - _2002. sciences | Private:
18-Northern SRR PRTery . -
University qu_;shera | 2002 | General Private
19 Institiste of - i merion
g veialis ISR ne Management P
: I\/@pggemcnt Peshawar 2003 Seicnces Public
Sciences : :
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University

Location

Established

Campuses

Specialization

Type

1
]

‘20 University
of Science and
Technology

21 Khyber

Medieal
University

Bannu

Peshawar

2005

2007

Abbottabad, Bannu, DI
Khan, Saidu Sharif (Swat)

General

Public

Medical

Public

22 Abasyn
University

Peshawar

2007

General

Private

23 Abdul Wali
Khan
Tniversity
‘Mardan

2009

‘Chitral, Pabbi, Shankar, Palosa

Campus, Timergara Campus

General

Public

24 Shaheed
Benazir
Bhutto
University,
Sheringal

Upper Dir

2009

Chitral

General

Public

25 University
of Swar

Swat

2009

General

Public:

26 Bacha

Khan
University

Charsadda

2012

General

Public

27 Shaheed

' Benazir

Bhatto
Women
University

Péshavear

2012

General

Public
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3
3

fistablished

University Location Campuses Specialization . Type
28 University | ., . . .
oFHaripur laripur 2012. General Public
20IQRA ‘

National . Peshawar 2012 General Private
University

30 Khushal | -
Khan Khattak | Karak 2012 General Public
University ¢

31 Univorsity |, . i o
of Swabi : Swabi 2012 General Public
32 Abbottabad

University of o Science & s
Technology '

33 Women i

University  Macdm 2016 General Public
Mardan ' ' o
34 Women ‘

University Swabi 2016 General - - Public
Swabi’ ‘

ISUNIVEISity ., v fan b T =
of Technology Nowshera 2016 ‘Technology Public
6FATA |, | . o
University | Akhorvial 2016 Gengral Public

b4 - R
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Established |

University Location Campuses Specialization | Type
37 Universily . - e
of Chitral Chitral 2017 General Public
3? Um\'e;rsw_v Buner 2017 -General Public
of Buner
39 University
of Engineering L
and Mardan | 2017 Pagnosing and | public
Technclogy ' : gy
Mardan
40 University
of Agriculture, | Dera Ismail . . -
Dera Ismail Khan 2017 Agriculture Public
Khan
41 University | _
of | LakkiMarwat | 2017 General Public
LakkiMarwat | o

Sowrce: Higher Education Commission WebSi.te‘ (wivahec.gov.pk)




6.6.1 Universities and their Faculty in Pakistan (Province wise)
Province wise distribution of university faculty is given below:
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$.6.2 University Level Enrelment Siatistics 2016-17
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7.1 Proposed 5EZs

Initially, the Board of Investment notified the following SEZs:

Khairpur Special Economic Zone, Sindh (136 Acres)

E{oréxngi Creck Industrial Park, Sindh (240 Acres)

Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Sindh (930 Acres)

Quaid-e-Azam Apparel Park, Sheikhupura, Punjab (1,536 Acres)
M-3 Industrial City, Faisalabad, Punjab (4,356 Acres)

Value Added City, Faisalabad, Punjab (225 Acres)

Hattar Economic Zone, Haripur, KP (424 Acres)

Subsequently, the following SEZs were proposed for inclusion:in CPEC:

Rashakai Economic Zone, M-1, Nowshera, KP

China Special Economic Zone Dhabeji, Sindh

Bostan Industrlal Zone, Balochistan

Allama Igbal Industrial City (M3), Faxsaiabad, Punjab
ICT Model Industrial Zone, Islamabad

Port Qasim, Karachi, Sindh '

Special Ecdnomic Zone at Mirpur, AJK
Mohmand Marble City, FATA
Mogpondass SEZ Gigit-Baltistan
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1.2 Additional Paclapge tor Preority Special Feonomic Lones under CPEC.

Board of Investment has approved additional incentives for priority special economic zoned
under CPEC. These include:

« Provision of plots on Installments (50% down payment and rematming 50% In four
biarinual installments)

= Markup support@ 50% of the markup to a maximum of 5% on the loans taker in
Pakistani- currency for financing the project. The support Is to be provided by the
respective governments for the zones in their jurisdiction

* Freight subsidy @50% on the inland transportation of plant and machinery for
installation in/development of any of the priority SEZ

*  One Window operation by SEZ — the provincial government to either delegate authority
for implementing labor, environment and other such laws; and collection of
local/provineial taxes or to 1 depute representatives of the departments in one window
office. Federal government departments (Utility companies, FBR, SECP etc.) to depute
representatives to perform similar finctions in the zone.

1.2 Comparisen of RSEZ with Other SEZs
Based o the progress tegarding the development of these SEZs, the following SEZs have been
shortlisted for companson with RSEZ:
1. Sundar ﬁlndu‘sﬁiat Estate; Lahore, Punjab
2. Quaid-e-Azam Apparel Park, Sheikhupura, Punjab
3. Allama lgbal Industrial City (M3), Faisalabad, Punjab

The following comparison tables are prepared for the purpose:

1. Pricing and Incentives.
2. Utilities, Amenities-and Facilities,
3. Industries / Sectors,
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f RSEZ with Other SEZs {Selacted) — Pricing & Incentives

Table 7.2: Comparison o
Compuyisen Factor | Rashakai SEZ M3 Tndustrial City - Sundnr industrial Quaid-e Azam Apparel
Faisalabad Estate Park — Sheikhupura

Pﬂu: not )’ci determined

Price Per Acre Land

{in million)

Maragement Fee

Comimercial Plots

30 f)c‘rcc:nl of

30. pbrutmi of iotal arca
reserved for commercial

total urca
reserved for plots, Commercial Plot
commercial plots | Unit is MARLA and Per
but Price NOT Marla charges are
determined vet 300,000/~

7.5Marla -

7.5 Marta —

Payment T
Ap p‘i‘icntiun & 5000/: 500/~ No Apphcau on F¢e N Application FEE
Prosessing Fee {(Application fee) | (Application Form Fes)
IS,GUO#

PHASE Ii

Rs.75m
Rs. 11.25m
IWMardda - Rs. I5m
PHASE IT1
5Marla - Rs. 12.5m

5 Marla -

10 Marla — Rs. 25 m

PERCENTAGE OF AREA

V1875 m

‘SMar}.x Rs.37.5m

Since this park is in its

development phase NO
RATES DETERMINED
YET, NOR the

RESERVED

Duty free unport of
eapital Goods for

oncetm]vlo rs
t cve pe:__r_
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Table 7.3 ¢ Comparison of RSEZ with Other SEZs {Sel mﬂ %ams. Amenities/Serviees, Commercial &

Residential Faeiiis

Comparison Facior Rashakai SEZ W3 Industrial City - Sundar Quaid-¢ Azam
Faigalabad Ingdustrial Apparcl Park -
Electricity YES YES Wapda YES
(210 MW) Facility provided Dedicated Power Piant,
To be provided by through 132 KV Grid Station 132KV
PESCOand NTDC at YAC Grid Siation
Zero Point
(underground
slectricity distribution
network inside the
_zone bv dcve!‘o%i;)

Water Charpes nthiy ' NOT Determincd
Dccided YET provide water
‘connestions but the.
water charges will be
the vsunt government
charges for water
supply and will be
paidtothe
sovernment of
Punjab and
NOT FIEDMC
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Cumparison Factor Roshakai SEZ M3 Industrial City - | Sundar Quaid-¢ Azam
Faisalabad Industrial Apparel Park -
Estate Sheikhupura

o

Secunity
boundary
waltl with
internal
patrolling

B8

YES
{5-Stay Holet)

Reéstat

otiv Coﬁrts

Amenity Area/ Fo

Com

munity

AR

Sports facilities

Table 7.4 : Comparison of RSEZ with Other SEZs {Selected) - Industries/Sectors

Comparison Factor

Rashakai SEZ | ™3 industrdal | Sundar Industrial Quaid-e Azam Apparel
City - Faisalabad Estate Park - Sheikhupura
— " >

CONSTRUCTION &
ALLIED

SR :

Home Buliding
Materials

“YES

EaL:

Fruit / Vegetahle
Processing {Pulp, nectar,
juices,

Pickies, ekc.) & Packing

YES

& Export Houses

Biscuits, breads and
other bakery products

YES NG
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Rashakai £z M3 Industrial | Sundar Industrial Quaid-e Azam Apparel
City - Faisalabad Estate Park - Sheikhupura

Seed Processlng& YES ‘ NQ NO NO
Dlstnbutlon

Compost & Other NO NO NG NO
Organic Fertilizers

AUTOMOTIVE &
ENGINEERING
Bicycle, Hand pump, YES NO NG NO
E!ectric Motor
Farm Equ:pment & NO
implements
Heavy Electrical NO TONO NO ' Nb

Engineering
e B "

Medicinal Herb
Processing

o Yt




Rashakai SE2

M3 Industrial

Sundar industrial

Quaid-e Azam Apparel
Park Shelkhupura

City -faisalabad

Estate

Apparel Zone

' Garmemmm'

Logistic Support
lndustry

Electronics & E!ec;r'lcal
Apphances

PVC Cabl es, Cement

Bags, Fiber optic cables,
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This chapter has been prepared in light of the need for assessing the status of data that an
investor can use to make the decision to invest in RSEZ. Sources of data and the relevant
organizations within KP were accessed to prepare this assessment. Additionally, the status of
data avaiiable with other provinces has 2lso been investigated to prepare a collation matrix for
KP with other provinces. Deriving from the ‘Stakeholders Mapping’, stakeholders included for
collection of secondary and primary data included;

KP Board of Investment and Trade (www.kpboit kp.gov.pk)

[ ]

o Bureau of Investment (www.boi.gov.pk)
e KPEZDMC (syww kpezdmc.orzpk)

e Export Processing Zones Authority (www.epza.gov.pk)

s  Punjab Board of Investment and Trade (www.pbit gop.pk)

» Sindh Board of Investment (www.shi.zos.pk)

» Baluchistan Board of Investment (Investment Facilitation Centre, Quetta at
www.boi.gov.plk/ContactUs/IFCQuetta. aspx)
« Small and Medium Enterprise Development Authority (www.smeda.org )

» KP Industries Department (www.industries.kp.cov pk)
s SEZ websites

# Interviews with business leaders

# QOther Stakeholders (including relevant reports of international agencies, donors etc.)

8.1. Nature, Sources, Format and Quality of Investor Data for KP
Table 8.1 below provides the status of data available for investment in KP in general along with

mputs on whether it relates to RSEZ or not;
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Turbine at RSEZ

s Data Label Data Source Titles: Format/Key Quality/Usefulness
No. Eleéments/Layout with reference to
RSEZ
1. | Structural KPEZDMC Besides general informaticn While data in the
Review of (www. kpezdme org.pk) about KPEZDMC, the data'of | form of reporis and
Investor- poiential interest to investors | documents is
Related available online includes; available it has not
Information s Proposcd been organized on the
Available EZsISEZs/PSEZs website with a focus
Cnline s  Existing on investor.
EZs/SEZS/PSEZs Navigation for the
«  Prioritized SEZs data is not oo casy. It
{lhat include two i.c | is likely that the
RSEZ and Hattar pqtcntial investor will
SEZ miss ot on any
Achi)c-:vemcnls relevant information
Plot Application as it has not been
Form provided m any
particular arder ot
| The “Downloads” scetion of | through some fomm of
tlic websilc has RSEZ related | Categorization that
dota in the following forms; | may be invéstor-
¢ Nine Feasibility centric
Cot Conn |4 erg gyt
Controlled FCOS 0. -
Atmosphere Storage, Pr_owd:cs the kcv
Citrus Cordial Plant, incentives on the
Cold Storages— 500, | homepage (3.
1000, 2000, 3000, | Mvestment Inceniives
4000 lons capacity) cfrqrcd;nndcr.l'.(?fs :
» Rashiakai Evaluation J_lndust.nal Pohc?:& 2
Report mc:g:g‘_twas specific to
s Incentive SEZs)
Ap, pl_lcal_mn . Contact information
. Docun.wnt List far for KPEZDMC
v |l atdes,
Brochure (English & Ev:ﬁ:{ﬂ:x’ omail) 1s
Chinese latignages)
s  Way Forward 2016
e KP Industrial Policy
2016
e Indistrial Building
Bye-Laws
¢ FAQsrelated to
Power Plauts at
RSEZ
s  TORs for Gas
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S. Data Label Data Souree Titles: Format/Key Quahity/Usefuluess
No. Elements/Layout with reference to
RSEZ
Stryctural KPEZDMC In addition to information ‘Whilc data in the
Review of available on KPEZDMC’s form of reports and
Other {nvestor- website a total of 25 other documents is
Related documents were assessed in avatlable it has not
Information terms of their potential been organized with a
Available with usefilness for investors. focus on investor
KPEZDMC While it remains queries in general.
KPEZDMC's prerogative Most of it is not

which documents it wanis to
share with the mvestor, the
oncs that may provide data of
inlerest to investors include!
¢ District Profiles (all
districis.of KP
including Nowshcra
& Mardau)
» RSEZ Marketing
Plan
s Rashakai Feasibility
&  RSEZ Submiited.

Applications Data

« RSEZ Valyation
Report

e Tax Imphcations of
RSEZ & Hattar SEZ

3  Deviopmental
Effects of SEZs

+  Guidelines on SEZ
Development

+ Data Collzction
Survey for SEZ

= SEZ, progress,
challenges ~ World
Bank report

s SEZ’ an
operational review
of their impact

available online.

His likely that the
polcntial investor will
tiss out-on any
relevant information
as it has not been
provided in any
particular order or
through some form of
calegorization that
may be investor-
ceuntric.
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Mines & Mincrals

8. irata Label Data Source Titles: Format/Key Quality/Usefulness
No. Elements/Layout with reference to
' RSEZ
s SEZ’s, KPMG
report
s SEZ’s: Lessons
learned
¢ SEZ’s: Promisc &
pending challenges
o  Econemic Impact of
SEZ
o  Comparative study
on SEZ’s
‘& Impact of SEZs on
Human
Development
Investment KPBolIT A-d0-page Booklet; prepared | None of the data and
Opportunities for KP Investment Roadshow | information in the
Khyber ‘ 2013 in Dubai; provides & document is with
Pakhtumkhwa reasons o invest in KP; reference to RSEZ;
20135: Energy s Presents 4
& Power, investment Primarily a ,
Tourism, opportunitics in promotional booklet
Housing, Energy & Power; designed.fo
Agricullore & e & investment encourage investment
Livestock, opportunities in m KP provinge in
Mines and Tourismn general through
opportunity in | different areas of the
Housing | province;
+  Zinvestment ]
' opportunities i Some &tatistical date
" Agriculture & | is inclhuded but
Livestock without
¢  3investment acknowledging
opportunitics in sources properly
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S. Drata Label Data Source Titles: Format/Key Quality/Usefulness
No. Elements/Layout with reference to
RSEZ
¥hyber KPBolT A 96-page document; The report provides
Pakhiunkhwa pressuls datg on: data and informafion
The Invesuneat Climate, | regarding the
Unreveaied Facilitation & investment scenario
Sory -~ Inceniives i District Nowshera
lovesment s Investment and District Mardan
Guide 2013 Opporaunities m 8 along with statms of
sectors including the industry however,
Energy & Power, no specific data
“Tourism; Mines & rclevant to SEZs 13
Minerals; Industries; | preseat
Public Transpost;
Housitig; Resource
‘Productivity &
Waste Management;
Agriculture,
Livestock and
Fisheries;
»  Legal and Faxation
Framework
Presentation KFBoIT A2 1-page document with Data is in the samc
Booklet input and data from the 40- forimat as (1)
Pakistan page docwment (KP
Invesitnent Investnent Opportunities
Conference 2015}
Structural KPBolT The data available ontine KPBoIT does not
Roview of {wwr kpboit by includes the following have its custom
Investor- ‘ information: website
Related e Investment Sectors ‘
Information s Tnvesiment Projects | Data is of general
Available s Proposed Investment | interest for potential
Online. 7 Projects investers:
»  Opportunities in Oil "
& Gas The *Downloads’
e Project Under Study | Section Is cmpty
" fastment | Nodata thatjs RSEZ-
ppertutntics in R
Hvdel Sector cchtric was found
v Investment
e Contact information
LD oriies for KPBolT (office
Pakhtunkhwa 2015: | 2ddress, phane, fax,
Encigy & Power, email available)

Tourism, Housine,
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PAKISTAN

8. Data Labei Data Source Titles: Format/Key Quality/Usefulness
No. Elements/Layout with reference to
RSEZ
a  Agriculture &
Livestock, Mines
and Minerals
s Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa: The
Unrevealed Story —
Investment Guide-
2013
»  Presentation Booklet
Pakistan Tnvestment
Conference
Investmentin | KPMG TascerHadi& Co. A 96-page report with The document
Pakistan 2017 information on; provides limited
e Overvicwolthe information on SEZs
Economy mcluding RSEZ.
s Scctor Profiles mainly on page 9 and
o  Regulatory pagc 55 mcludmg
Framework for rudimentary
Investors mformalion on SEZ
» Formsof Business | Act 2012
Presence
«  Foreign Exchangpe
¢ Mergersand
Aequisitions
s Taxations
¢ Labour Laws
Businessand | KP Oil & Gas Company Limited | A 3-page document wilh No data rélevant 10
fnvestment generic data SEZs or RSEZ
Opportunilies
in Ol
& Gas
Exploration
and Production
Sectors,
Khyber
Pakhtankhwa,
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s. Data Label Bata Source Titles: Format/Key Quality/Usefulness
No. Elements/Layout with reference to
RSEZ
Sector Study Deutsche Gesellschafifir A 47-page document focusing | While no specific
on Demand IntermationaleZusammenarbeit on possible TVET skills gap information has been
Driven (GIZ) GmbH in the top performing provided with
Competency sectors/sub seotors of KF. reference to RSEZ,
Bascd Offers a.prehiminasy list of | the document can be
Trainings in growth drivers inthe very useful fo
Potenlial province; identifies and potential investors in
Sectors of presents delails on four key terms of assessing the
Khyber sectors having TVET needs TVET scenario in the:
Pakhiunkinwa namety; proviace before
2017 +  Construction making an investment
¢ Tounsm & decision in RSEZ
Haspitality
o Manufacturing.
(Pharmaccuticals &
Light cngincering)
s Energy (Micro
Hvdel & Solar)
Sector Study. Deutsche Gescllschafifiir A 47-page document focusing | While no specifio
on Demand InternationaleZusammenarbeit on possible TVET skills gap. | information has been
Driven {GIZ) GmbH in the top performing provided with
Competency sectors/sub sectors of KP. reference to RSEZ;
Based Offers a preliminary list of | the document can be
Trainings in growth drivers in FATA; very usefal to.
Potential identifies and presents details | potential imvesfors in
Sectors FATA on:thiee key sectors with tetms of assessing the
2017 TVET nceds namely; TVET scenario in
«  Construetion FATA bofore making
«  Mining (marble) aninvesiment
¢ Agriculture based decision in RSEZ
busincsses (Pine
nuts)
Labor Force. Pakistan Burcau of Statistics The sarvey reporis present | While labor data
Surveys 1laborforce data for the whole | specific to KPis
country inctuding KP available itis not
province in terms of} present for
+ Demographics - specificplly for the
s  Migralions djs%rinisfmgimi in the
o Participation Rates | vicinity of RSEZ
» Industry-wise
Employment
-+ Qccupational
CGroups
o  Wages
s Formal, Informal
Sector Employment
o Others

i 5 q
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S. Data Label Data Source Titles: Format/Key Quality/Usefuliness
No. Elements/Layout with reference to
RSEZ
Labour, Planning Commission, Presents a situational anatysis | No data of relevance
Employment Govemnment of Pakistan on the subject along with investment in SEZs
and Skill identification of key or RSEZ
Development: objeetives and strategics for
11" Five Yoar- the five-year period
Plan 2013-
2018,
Government of
Pakistan
Labor Market | Danish Trade Council for A 3Y-page report that While an investor
Profile Intemational Development and presents the profile.in terms may develop an
Pakistan 2018 | Cooperation of 11 thematic sections; trade | assessment of the
unions, ¢mployers’ lahor market in
organizations, tripartite Pzkistan including
structures labor-related
{inc}. social dialoguc), legislations for KP, it
national labour legislation, ouly offcrs some
violations of trade union generic information
rights; working conditions, on trading with
situation of the workforce' | reference to SEZs but
(with subsections tto specific data
nemployment, sectoral relevant to RSEZ is
employment, migration, ‘present
informal economy, child
labour, gender, and youth),
education (incl, vocational
training), social protection,
general economic, _
_performance, and frade
Paldstan Labor | ILO Country Office for Pakistan | A4-page document with bricf | No specific data
Market ; input on Pakistan’s Labor relevant to RSEZ
Updates Market and a focus on female.
labor in particular
Pakistan Pakistan Burcau of Siatisticy Presents slatistical data on May offer a gencral
Employment employment trends in idca on cmployment
Trends Pakistan trends and belp an
investor assess the
suitability vis-&-vis

SEZs
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5 Data Label Data Source Titles: Format/Key Quality/Usefulress
No. Elements/Layout. with reference to
RSEZ
Structural Export Processing Zongs Data provides includes; No data specific to
Review of Authority » [ncontives RSEZ was found
[nvestor- {www.epza.gov.pk) » Facilitics
Related e One Window
Information Service
Available » EPZA Ordinance,
Culine Rules
¢ Production Oriented
Labour Laws
« Affiliations
+ SROs
e  Application Form
e Guidclines &
Eligibility
s [ovestor's Directory
Structural Board of Investment Data provided inchides; While useful data in
Review of (www.boi.gov.pk) e Eascof Doing terms of investment
[vestor- Business Stralegy scenario for Palastan
Related 2018 —2021 was available, no data
{nformation s Data on Foreign specific to RSEZ was
Available [nvestment in present
Online Pakistan
» 5 Reasonsof
Investment
Investiment Treaty
SEZs
Seclor Profile &
Data
+  Services{visa,
Qirport entyy,
security
tlearance/NOC,
Liaison Office)
s Interface for
Investor fo Share
Feedback
Structural SMEDA Data provided inclndes; No data specific to
Review of (ww smeda.ore) o Morcthan 150 Pre- | RSEZ was found
Investor- Feasibilities
Related o Facilitation for
Information Doing Business
Ava?l_able e Projects-
Online ¢ Regional Profiles
s Publications
«  Opportuni ities
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8.2. Comparison of KP Data with Cther Provinces

In addition to presenting the status of data available for investment in KP along with its
relevance to RSEZ, a province-wise comparison of the available data has also been carried out
including data relevant to five established SEZs so far (RSEZ, Hattar SEZ, Faisalabad IEDMC,
Khairpur SEZ, Quaid ¢ Azam Apparel Park). Table 8.2 below presents this comparison through a

‘Collation Matrix’.

“District Profiles " Yes es Yes Yes
e o A
Feasibilities Yes Yes Yes Yes
o ) A
Application Form and Guidelines Yes Yes Yes N/A
Evaluation Reports Yes Yes Yes Yes
Y » '
' e M L
IC (Information, Communication) Yes Yes Yes No
Materisls o “
Policy Documents Yes Yes Yes No
Sector Profiles Yes Yes Yes Yes
A ©) ) LY
TVET Data Yes Yes Yes Yes
’ » N
™ .y 9 L.
Labor Force Data Yes Yes Yes Yes
.Y )Y " A
Functional Websites of Economic Yes Yes No No
Zone Company (wwwkpezdme.org, | (www.pic.com.pk)
k)Y v, [iedme.com.
4y
Functiona! Website of SEZs Yes Yes Yes N/A
(including SEZ facilities-and wwgappk)
incentives, socio-gconomic "“‘—“""‘““‘““thﬁ}mc’cm
conditions; living conditions; -m @
residential and other facilities in the i
local area etc.
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Functicnal Website of Board of Yes Yes Yes No

Investment {vwvwknbaitkpoo | {(wwwpbit eop.pk) {swew.shigos pk)
A

Legal Framework Data Yes Yes Yes N/A
Security and Crime Data Yes Yes Yes Yes
SEZ-Specific Data

Land Pricing Yes Yes : Yes N/A
Incentives Yes Yes Yes N/A
Services Yes Yes Yes N/A
Facilities / Utilities / Amenities Yes Yes Yes N/A
Focused Sectors Yes Yes Yes N/A

T‘arble 8.2: Collation Matrix ~ Province-Wise Data for Investment

* Data’s Relevance to SEZ Investinent Decision of the Investor

Strong: @Mcdium; @Vcak: A
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Capter 9: Legal Framework and Rule of Law

This chapter has been prepared in order to present the status of legal framework and incentives
for investment in KP compared to other provinces including status of ‘One Window’ and ‘Ease
of Doing Business.” Further it presents an assessment of the security profile and security
infrastructure of KP in general and Rashakai and its adjoining areas in particular and offers some
comparisons. Deriving from the “Stakeholders Mapping’, stakeholders included for collection of
secondary and primary data included;

o Industries Department, KP

» Industries Departments of the other provinces

» KPEZDMC

s KP Police Department
» BOI

* KPBolT

o BOIs of other provinces
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9.1. investor Incentives in KP vs, Other Provinces: A Legal and Policy-Level Comparison
A review of incentives for investment being offered by the provinces has been carried out to

generaie a comparison, Provided below is ‘Infographic Template’.

[ Tncentives for Prioritized SEZs

| Federal Government Incentives
Corporate Income Tax

Exemption from all taxes on income for a period of 5 years for
| developers and 10 years for enterprises commencing commercial
production by the 13th June, 2020, in the SEZs for the next ten
years; “Provided that exeraption from all taxes on income for

| those zone enterprises ot firmas which commence commer  cial
production after the aforesaid date shall be for the next five

| years™.

Custom / Import Duty

Cne time exemption from all custom duties on plant and
machinery imported into SEZ except the ifems listed under
chapter 87 of the Pakistan Customs Tariff.

Freight subsidy of 50% on inland transportation
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¢.1.50tus of *One Window” and *Ease of Doing Business’

The Federal Govemnment passed Investment Policy 2013 to enable a business-friendly
environment. The following basic principles provide the theme of the policy:

¢ Reducing the cost of doing business in Pakistan

s Reducing the processes of doing business

* Fase of doing business with creation of industrial clusters and SEZs

e Linkages of trade, industrial and monetary policics for greater convergence

9.1.1. RKhyber Pakitunkhwa

Limited information on ‘One Window® facilitation is available. However, for RSEZ the
developer is planning to develop a one window facility for all the amenities including incentives,
govemnment liaison & trained human resource. The developer will provide complete

solution/assistance to industrialists to accomplish their goals as per Figure 9.1.

OaeWindow Operation
oS8 WaterSupply -
) WSty
SUNIE . . ,fﬁ '
T I~ S Sewarage&
Solidwaste vy - M’Efﬂuetﬁ?rcaxm
Management .07 e FACILITIES

5}:? PROVIDED I %
i EACH ;4{:

AL o  ECONOMIC
szreﬂed- - \ ZONE

Ae:css ~

o &’,ﬁ ?e&«cm 8« ﬂ'
mtrasm_;uurq

o . s o . Effcient 5
Vocatiomal ~ @"“" £ Road Nemork .
Training Centers i 1 o

Q

Centratized Commercial Ares

{ SupportServices |}

- fireFighting " Emergency Medicare

Figure 9.1: ‘One Window’ services to be offer
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9.1.1. Punjab
No specific data on ‘One Window’ was available for Punjab through PIEDMC (Punjab Industrial

Estates Management Company). However, PBIT has developed some mechanism in this regard

which is in the initial stage and further being developed.

9.1.2, Sindh

Sindh has recently established the Sindh Economic Zones Management Company — SEZMC in
August 2018. However, the company does not have a formally launched website. No public data
on ‘One Window’ facilitation or investment incentives was available. Similarly Siudh Board of
Investment (SBI) and Khairpur Special Economic -Zone (KSEZ) do not provide any stated

mechanism or approach either.

9.1.3. Baluchistan

No information on ‘One Window’ facilitation was available.

9.1.4, Ease of Deing Business (EODB)

In addition to “One Window’ facilitation, the Board of Investment has prepared an ‘Ease of
Doing Business Strategy 2018-2021°. The strategy provides data for 2018 and 2019 in terms of
Pakistan’s ranking on ‘Doing Business — DB’ and “Distance to Frontier— DTF.




Sl

Overall -outof190 136 51.65 5531
Starting a business (reform) 142 130 78.61 81.89
Dealing with Construction 141 156 59.72 53.59
Permits
Getting Electricity 167 167 42.39 44.15
Registering Property (reformj 170 161 41.41 4563
Getting Credit 105 (-23) 112 45.00 45,00
Protecting Minority Investors 20 26 71.67 71.67
(reform)
Paying Taxes 172 (-16) 173 4643 47.05
Trading Across Borders (reform) 171 142 41.94 60.12
Enforcing Contracts 156 156 4349 43.49
Resolving Insolvency 82 53 4583 '59.86

Table 9.1: Pakistan’s Recent ‘DB’ and ‘DTF’ Rankings on 11




in light of Pakistan’s ranking data, the BOI has outlined key reforms that are planned for the

above-mentioned 10 indicators. A review of these reforms reveals the following key information;
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Refnrm Action - Timelines - Responsibility
- Integration of Federal.and Provincial - Short Term : SECP
Company Registration Portals o ' " PITB and Govt. of
| S o ~ .Sindh.
- Availability of online fee payment facility at Short Term - SECP
federa] and provincial levels; PITBand Govt. of
: o o ) __ Sindh
Create asetof i mcem:wes t0 ensure uptake ShortTerm . SECP e
of the electronic business start -up inSindh . - ~  PITBand Govt. cf E
“and Punjab - : o . iSindh |
; Conductlng mappmg ‘of business permits .; Medium to Long | Punjab Govt.
- and licenses and integrate licensing and - term - Sindh Govt. !
- permitting with the busirness startup _ E
: - system in Sindh and Punjab;
Conduct mappmg of agenc1es authorzzed o | M;;ed_‘ium\ toLong Puﬂ}ab Govt.
 conductinspectionsand .~ integrate term . Smdh Govt.
1nspect10ns trackmg into the husmess ' S 5
' start-up system in Sindh and Punjab;

‘Table 9.2: Planned Reforms for ‘Starting a Business’




B8 MARKET RESERRCH STUDY

Refor haiion - timelines Resi)onsiﬁility

* Complete electronic database for ’Eh"écki'rig ShortTerm ) PLRA- ﬂ,
- for encumbrances (liens, mortgages, . Punjab/BOR-
- restrictions and the like) in Lahore and Sindh c
- make it available online; ' 5

PR SRR v 1 e e i 3 e o b 2 e £ L 7o £ e o e s §

Establish and publish statisticsonthe ~ Short Term PLRA-
number of land disputes . Punjab/BOR-
‘ : Sindh

“Online issuance of Fard - Short Term  PLRAPunjab

“Dnline submission ofFard ShortTerm~

' PLRA-Punjab

i
i

%lglvﬁtéi;;éa{fé’i"ﬁ}hent elthrQn,ié procedureto | Medium to Long term | Revenue
. obtain non-objection certificate o | Authorities

Table 9.3: Planned Reforms for “Dealing with Construction Permits’

Reform Action  Timelines | Responsibility

' Operationalization of e-registry Short SECP and.Finance Division |
.; - Term - e - %

. Complete implementation of the " Medium to SBP, SECP & FIN DIV
Collateral Registry Longterm |

Revise Secured Lending legalﬁffamework Mediumto | SBP, SECP & FIN DIV ,
. to ensure compliance with DB | Longterm | -';

- methodology :
:Mfr{z‘.—‘ihféq&ﬁie_ction and distribution of Méﬁiuxﬁkfggrsm’ & FIN DIV ] 1
. credit data from retailers or utility ' Longterm |

| companies i

‘Table 9.6: Planned Reforms for “Getting Credit’
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There are no planned refomls for ‘Protecting Minority Investors’

Reform Action Timelines Responszhility

“Reduce a number of payments. Compléte Short Term | PESSI & SESST
implementation of E-payments of social
security contributions;

" Complete implementation of E-payments | Short Term | EOBI-PESSI & SESSI
- of pension contributions; §
' Reduce time to obtain VAT refund | ShortTerm | FBR
- (Federal level reform) | |

lmprové risk-management system audits | Short Term. FBR

Enable filing and payment of all taxes | Short Term | FBR -PESS] & SESST
- and contributions electronically. S _

H

Table 9.8: Planned Reforms for ‘Paying Taxes™.

Reform Action * Timelines ' Responsibility B
Ensure 50% reduction of customs-related processmg" Short | FBR-Customs
time at the- border (Karach:) S s i Rerm
;Ensure avallabmty of on~1me Eéyment facilitiesat the | Short :FBR—Custofns.
. border of duty, taxes and all other charges Term
EQComplete integration of WeBOCWIth Plant Protection ;Sh;ort : ._-7-'FBRfcusto‘rﬁs?_
' Department; . - SR o o Term - LT
Complete Integratlon of WeBOC with Ammal | % ShOrt -FBR-_Customs
' Quarantine Department; : Term
Rediif:éwho.urs‘m‘pr_efpare import/export documents. Short ~  FBR:Customs
“from 5510 20 (export) from 143 to 50 {import) - Term SR

. through expansion of electronic documentexchanges. -

Estabfiaéhmenticf .National' One Window | éi'_.ong"l‘.erm FBR—CUSto'ms:

Table 8.9: Planned Reforms for “Imde acrosy Bcrdcm’




and accompanying Bench Book for Punjab and
“Sindh

| Operanonahze the Commercial Bench in Pun] ab
~and Sindh High and District Courts;

_the Commercial Bench in Punjab and Sindh to
~improve the Judicial Guality Index;

' Timelines Resnonsnblhty

ReformAction T

Introduce efficient rules for Commercial Court

Introduce provisions limiting adjournments at |
' term
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Medium to Long . ‘LH’C KHC
term

Mé&iﬁm to Long LHC,KHC |
term -

Medi{xm to Long LHC ke |

1

ﬂﬁprove case management system at Punjab and
. Sindh Highand District Courts in increase the
 Judicial Quality Index from 5 to 10.

| Medium to Long | LHC,KHC

term

the following key dimensions;

Registration Property

progress

fee within a maximum of 7 days

the Revenue Official in such deals.

Table 9.10: Planned Reforms for *Enforcing Contracts’

There are no planned reforms for “Resolving Tnsolvency’

In addition to the above, the: scenario for Ease of Doing Business in Khybér Pakhtunkhwa has

o Digitalization of the entire property record to improve the integrity of property documents in
o "FARD", the basic document certifying the title of land can be obtained by paying a nomiinal

o To bring transparency in the property transactions, a mechanism of periodic propefty
valuation by the deputy Commissioner (DC) has been placed for elimination the direction of

o Practice of collecting transfer / mutation fee by the Revenue Officer has been done away and

a system for payments by vouchers in the banks has been introduced.
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Construetion Permits

o]

One window Desk (deputing an officer of BS 17) to facilitate the visitors has been
established in Peshawar Development Authority (PDA),

All required information about procedures and requisite forms are being placed on the
official websites of Peshawar Development Authority.

PDA has introduced one-window-operation since 2006.

Procedure of transfer of plots/house/property in Peshawar Development Authotity (PDA)
streamlined and takes only 3-5 days.

Paying Taxes

O

o

Established 'Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Revenue Authority (KPRA)

Sales Tax on services has been collected through an online system. Registration and filing
both are being done online.

Dedicated counters have been established in most of the NBP branches in KP.

Fully computerized vehicle registration system is functional.

One window facility for Property Tax and Professional tax cstablished in the Districts of
Peshawar, Mardan and Abbottabad;

Record of property tax and professional taxes bas been made fully computerized m 16
districts of KP where these tax was 'applicable‘. '

Integrating Motor Vehicle Register with other provincial relevant

Other Reforms

G

o]

Establishment of KP-BOIT

Establishment of KPEZDMC

Establishment of Khyber Pakhtonkhwa Oil & Gas Company Limited (KPOGCL)
Restructuring of Pakhtunkhwa Energy Development Organization (PEDO)

The KP Right to Information Act; 2013

Public Private Partnership Act; 2014

Minerals Policy; 2014
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o Tourism Policy; 2015

¢ Industrial Policy 2016

o Hydro Power Policy; 2016
o Mineral Act; 2016

¢ Investment Strategy 2016
o Lease Policy 2016

o Investment Policy
¢ Private sector led Technical and Vocational Training Authority (TEVTA)

9.1.Security Profile and Services Witk Respect to RSEZ

The team accurnulated the information from national and provincial statistics along with results
from public perception surveys for District Nowshera and Mardan to come up with an
assessment. Additionally; information on security arrangements with respect to CPEC projects
has been presented that will apply to RSEZ.

The most updated figures on crime-related statistics of the cotmtry have been gathered from
Pakistan Bureau of Statistics for the year 2¢17. For KP, the following specific data on security .

and crime scenario was available;

2014 2015 2616 Graphs
Temrorism 290 131 90 e,
ATA Cases 45 37 39—
Came Agamnst Persons 3163 37132 £303 '\,,-—'
Crime Against Property 1833 179} 1808 T,
Traffic Related Offences 11219 5792 2T S~
Misc. 12268 11947 143

Table:9;12: Crime Statistics 2014 10 2016 {Source: KP Police Department)

100 -1




In terms of the overall strength of the security apparatus in KP Table 9.13 prowdes updated information,

Pohce and Levnes(F ederal + Provmcml)

| Posts
 Police Strength o ?92000
?.'"'Federal Levies 5
? Pté&iiﬁéiéi Levies 299 S
‘ lotal e e 98{)]0 I

TabIeQ 13: Slrcngﬂl of Cn lhan LEA inKP 2018 (Sourcc lIomc Dcparhncnl KP)

Data for the last cight vears in KP shows a marked improscunent in the provisce in tetms of security and
prevalence of peace. In this regard Figure 9.2.shows data on terrorism incidents from 2011 10 2013,
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@ Attacks against LEAs (1345) m {EDs & H. Grenades (1929)
5 Missiles / Rockets (219) & Target Killings (566)
:+ Suicide (92)

608 - e e e

1

° g
W . S B
014 s 201 2017 ms

Figure 9.2: Terrorism Incidents in KP (Souree: Home Department KP, 2018)
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Further, with regards to performance assessment of the security setup in the areas around RSEZ, we have
used findings from Transparency International’s Report on the Performance of KP Police for District
Mardan. Even though no data on perceptions with respect to Nowshera was available, it can be

extrapolated that the results will not be very different for the Nowshera either,

[

. Lowest

0 10 20 30 40 50 &0

Figure 9.3: Public Perception of Overall Performance of KP Police in Mardan (Source:
Transparency International 2017)

Figure 9.3 presents rating of the overall services of the police at a scale from 1 to 10,

1 being extremely bad, and 10 extremely good. 17.9 percent respondents rated the police from 1

to 4, and 70.6 percent of the respondents rated the police services from 6 to 10,

Moreover, In line with the Safety Protection mechanisms for all CPEC projects, RSEZ will have

the following key components
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9.3.1 Security Standards and Secarity Plan for RSEZ

Pakistan Government has established mature policies and procedures on safety and security
matters related to CPEC, which are very comprehensive and effective. All projects related to
CPEC will have security assurance from the Pakistani Army as well as local security forces. KP
Province has developed SOPsin accordance with the federal government directiveswith regards
to the safety and security of the CPEC projects. Moreover, KP police has a separate dedicated

wing to mamtain safety and securify of the CPEC projects.

RSEZ will develop a three-level response plan based on the concept of a safe city. The Level 2
and Level 3 response is the responsibility of the government. The preparation and implementation
of Level | (initial)respense is the responsibility of the RSEZ developer.Coordination with the

_government security agencies would be done by the developer.

Level I response _

The internal .safeiy response from the Rashakai SEZ is the first level, which will respond to any
unexpected incident and strive for 20-30 tninutes. for Level 2 response. The investment and.
‘construction contents of the developer include:

1) Built-in boundary wall of barbed wire and watchtower.

2) CCTYV cameras around the control room. |

3) Control entry/exit system/door.

4} Peripheral search lights.

Level 2 response
The police form part of Level 2 response, which will expel security concerned activities from

areas outside the economic zone and strive for45-60 minutes for Level 3 response.

Level 3 response

The military, as part of Le_v_el& response, will be activated only when the security concerned

activity is Beyond;the control of the police.
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In light of our assessment for different components of the Market Research Study, provided are

specific conclusions and recommendations for each area;

Investor Inferest

!. Being the first prioritized SEZ under the CPEC framework in the countrv, demand for
industrtal land is expected to be significant. This unique competitive advantage of RSEZ is
likely to attract significant investment from within the country as well as abroad.This
foreseeable demand for industrialization in RSEZ is expected to be the sinews of rapid sale
of plots.

2. A major drive for investment is expected to be generateddue to the infrastructure pertaining
to international standards and amenities that will be offered in RSEZ. Theamenities include
combined effluent treatment plant, underground electrification, gas distribution network,
water supply nelwork, international standard road network, fire-fighting system, 24/7
surveillance and monitoring systems, fiber optic connectivity, on-site security arrangements,
one window facilitation, and more importantly, stable and timely supply of electricity and
gas at the doorstep of RSEZ.

3. The existing applicant data provides a positive outlock of the demand from local investors.
There is ample evidence to suggest investor interest that is a positive sign for RSEZ’s
potential. However, so far, there is littfe data regarding demand from foreign (especialiy‘
Chinese) investors; which is important especially keeping in comsideration that the
Government of Pakistan wants o attract foreign direct investment.

4, The proposed land price of USD 140,000 per acre in RSEZ for Phase [,given the offered
amenities and faciliies,andbased on comparative analysis with two prominentindustrial
zones suggest that it is regionally competitive and rather attractive.

5. In addition to the industrial setup, demand for commercial plots in the existing industrial
estates in the Province of KP is significantly Iugh. Prices of commercial plots.in the existing

industrial estates in KP range from 8 to 20 times the price of industrial plot price.

Given the current demand for commercial plots at industrial estates in the Province of KP, it is
strongly advised that the developer should maximize the availability of commercial plots
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. in RSEZ which can be a suitable source of revenue. The lease of commercial plots will also

foster the required commercial activities in the zone,

Marketing of RSEZ to potential Chinese and foreign investors should be solicited through
CRBC and other forums.

The World Economic Forum has forecasted a paradigm shift in industrial manufacturing and
coined the term Industrial Revolution 4.0 for this transformation. A study may also be
undertaken regarding how the subject transformation will affect the composition of
industries, investment requirement and demand pattern in RSEZ with the passage of time.
Tnvestor Conferencesand effective marketing campaigns may be arranged, soliciting
participation from local and foreign investors, seeking their buy-in and commitments.

As part of one window facilitation, Industry/sector specific profiles should be prepared for
investor facilitation. Furthermore, facilitation to investors may be extended in ferms of
investment advisory and joint venture formation.

Industry/sector wise allocation of land both in terms of number of units and acres should be
prepared in order to maintain a balanced industry mix in RSEZ,

Given the growing focus on environmental concerns and related stringent regulatory
compliances, the availability of the combined effiuent treatment plantin RSEZ, will make
obtaining. NoCs and other related approvals from Environmental and relevant regulatory
agencies easier and faster for resident zone enterprises.

Given the type of amenitics and facilities, including the combined effluent treatment plant,
and stable supply of utilities such as electricity, gas, water, and ICT services, the resident
zone enterprises will be receptive to pay a reasonable fee that is sufficient to maintain all
such amenities and facilities.

As a benchmark for fee charged from 7one enterprises for maintenance of SEZs, the example
of Quaid-E-Azam Apparel Park at M2 may be considered which has a proposed fee of 0.5

million per acre per annum,

10. Due to the growing demand and scarcity of water in the country, the Supreme Court of

Pakistan has made certain important interventions to address the issue. As a result, the water

prices 'for_commercial use are expected to Tise. As the developer s providing a stable supply

of water in RSEZ,zone enterprises may be charged reasonable fees for water 'consumption.
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1. Instead of zone enterprises investing heavily in establishing their own effluent treatment
plants, the availability of the combined effluent treatment plant will prove to be more cost
effective and therefore, it is recormmended that zone enterprises.are charged a reasonable fee

that is sufficient for the O&M of the facility.

Geograpieal Location Advantages

2. RSEZ possesses unique geographical advantage coupled with proximity to CPEC network,
reasonable availability of raw material and hwman resources as well as access to a viable
transportation infrastructure in terms of airports (Peshawar & Islamabad), dry port, railway
station and most importantly the motorway network. Its unique position can be leveraged

both for industries geared towards national consumption as well as exports.

Demographics and Availability of Skilled Labor

3. For demographics, our findings suggest positive effects on population of the local area
surrounding RSEZ for the timespan 2016 to 2030 particularly household ncome increase by
36%, male employment increase by 153% and female employment increase by 291%.

4. Findings from KIls also suggest that Nowshera in particular has had a historical predilection
for industrial manufacturing evident from our data as well. Moreover, both Mardan and
Nowshera have remained ethnically diverse with social acceptance for various minority
ethnic groups particularly from Punjab and other parts of the country. This also suggests a
positive outlook for RSEZ.

5. Regarding vocational training and higher education our findings suggest significant potential
however, gaps in térms of supply and demand remain. Consequently we suggest that all the
technical, vocational, educational and training institutions in KP should be linked with the
website of NAVTITC for the purpose of planning, research, education, training and
employment opportunities for TVET graduates.

6. The linkages must be strengthened between government departments responsible-for various
policies affecting the skilled market and statistical agencies for effective institutional

collaboration and cooperation.
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TVET institutes should provide demand-driven technical training for which effective
linkages must be established with the potential industries from the perspective of RSEZ.
There is a need to increase the number of technical institutions and introduce new technical
courses in alignment with the skill requirements of the potential portfolio of
industries/sectors being established in RSEZ.
Techmical collaboration with televant national and international organizations should be
undertaken in order to introduce new technical training
Technical training institutes should also provide soft skills training to trainees in addition to
technical skills.

. Regarding universities and their graduates, there scem to be enough universities and

enrolments to cater for the university level graduate requirements of RSEZ, which constitute

a small percentage of the total labour requirements.

Competifor Analysis

One key factor to ensuring chances of success for RSEZ is the ‘One Window’ operation that

should be established to assist mvestors in smooth establishment and operations of units in

RSEZ.

Arrangements associated with transport and logistics should be strengthened.

A Business Center should be established to provide common business facilities including
small library, auditoriym, conference and meeting rooms.

A business incubation center should be established to encourage SMEs to initiate innovative

manufacturing oriented businesses.

10. SMEs require a host of business development services which investors in RSEZ would find

difficult to acquire from adjacent areas. Hence, it is suggested that a pool of business

development service providers (both individuals and firms) should be created and a Business
Development Center should be established to cater for these demands in the RSEZ.
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Data Avatlablie for Investiment

1. Data in short and focused form like “Snippets’ and ‘Extracts’ carrying key information
should be developed. It should be transformed into Information & Communication materials
like brochures, flyers, presentations, online static and dynamic content.

2. In our interactions with leaders of the business community from KP, it was noted that
investors, particularly those in the smail and medium scale bracket do not have a very strong
requircment for statistical data particularly complex numbers. Rather, there was greater
consensus that in terms of making an investment decision particularly for SEZs certain key
factors are of greater importance. Based on our analysis, it is recommended that the
developershould focus on creation and provision of sharp and focused information for
investors in the following categories in order to facilitate investment decisions in RSEZ and
other SEZs of the province;

¢ Locational Advantages of the SEZ

s Strength of Communication Technologies and Physical Ease of Access
o Social Life and Cultural Fit of the Region — *Welcome Feel”

¢ Skilled/Semi-Skilled Labor: Ease of Availability

e Availability of Key Energy Resources (Electricity, Gas, Other Facilities)
s Residential Facilities and Arrangements

»  Security Scenario _

3. The investment data in the above categories need to be developed and disseminated through a
third party like reputable business stakeholders that the investors trust. These may include
business leaders (opinion leaders) from the local area or those who have credibﬂjty and
reputation at the provincial and national level. These opinion leaders can serve as ‘RSEZ

Ambassadors’ and should take ownership of the data in order to strengthen the investors’

confidence in data’s genuine nature and usefulness.
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Legal Framework and Rule of Law

1. Even though three provinces KP, Punjab and Sindh make claims with regards to ‘One
Window" facilitation, more evidence of on-ground facilitation is needed. In this regard the
developerneeds to develop a ‘One Window Framework and Strategy’ that puts in place
processes and procedures along with key enablers, facilitators and their roles and
responsibilities.

2. In terms of EODB, the latest EODB Strategy 2018-2021 has a number of planned reforms.
However, no reforms specific to KP were present in this strategy document. There 1s a need
for the Province of KPto develop initiatives and reforms in line with this strategy and
strengthen the EODB scenario for the province in comparison to Punjab and Sindh. Key
areas that need consideration include ‘Getting Electricity’, Getting Credif’ and ‘Trade across
Borders” that have received lesser attention in KP’s existing EODB framework.

3. The overall assessment of the security profile for KP has shown significant improvement as
shown from our analysis. The public perception with regards to performance of Police and
LEAs for Mardan shows that 70.6 percent of the respondents rated the police services from
good to extremely good. Furthermore, the security arrangement for RSEZ will fall under the

CPEC security protocols.
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Executive Summary

A

The Rashakai Special Economic Zone (RSEZ) is located between the 220/132 kV Mardan and proposed 220/132 kV
Swabi grid stations of PESCO. The Rashakai SEZ comprises of proposed RSEZ CS-l and GS-Il, the interconnection
scheme consists of 24.32 km from 220/132 kV Grid Station Mardan to RSEZ GS-!f using S/C rail conductor, whereas
24.37 km Mardan to RSEZ GS-l using S/C rail conductor, As a second source 30 km from proposed 220/132 kV Grid
Station Swabi to RSEZ GS+ using D/C rail conductor, whereas 0.05km GS- to GS-f using S/C rail conductor.
RSEZ has total proposed toad demand of 202.6 MW which is divided into following phases.

Phase-| RSEZ Grid Station (GS-1) T 4 |soAwgaon
2 Phase- RSEZ Grid Stéfi'on (GS-) 22.09 ' 30-Aug-2022
3 - Phase:Il RSEZ Grid Station (GS-I) N 45.9 -~ 1 31-Dec-2023 .
4 F{hasefl-l ‘RSEZ‘Grid Station {GS-1I) B - 45 | 3 Pecember 2023
5 Phase-ifl RSEZ Grid Station (GS-) -~~~ ‘ 44;61 o p3tDec2025 '
Total demand load - L 202.6MW

PESCO grid system, after addition of the RSEZ has been analysed for load flow, short circuit, and transient
stability studies to determine whether the plant connection with the PESCO grid meets the NEPRA Grid Code
Planning Criteria requirements.

The latest and up-to-date NTDC/PESCO network model base cases have been used. The steady-state, sequence,
and dynamic data for the Rashakai Special Economic Zone is processed to build the steady-state, short circuit,
and dynamic medels in PSSE software format.

A detailed power system analysi;s study on the peak load demand of the Rashakai Special Economic Zone is
prepared and results of the study are listed below.

1. Load flow analysis

The analysis has been performed for the year 2022, the year 2023, and the year 2025. The power flow analysis
shows that the bus voltages and fine loadings in all the cases, with and without the addition of the RSEZ are
within the acceptable limit as per the NEPRA Grid Code Planning Criteria.

2. Contingency analysis

N-1 contingency analysis also has been performed for the year 2022, the year 2023, and the year 2025 and the
results were also validated as per the thermal and voltage limits in associated N-1 pest contingency conditions.
The results of the contingency analysis shows that there is no thermal and voltage violations under N-1
conditions in the NTDC and PESCO network due to RSEZ addition.

3. Short circuit analysis

Maximum short circuit levels have been conducted in the year 2025. Moreover, to see the short circuit current
contribution of 'Rashakai Special Economic Zone ', maximum short circuit levels at the substations located in
the vicinity of the project were also computed. The 3-phase and 1-phase short circuit currents at both 132kv
RSEZ GS-1 & RSEZ GS-11 grid stations are 16.3 KA and 11.1 kA respectively. This shows that the short circuit levels
of ‘Rashakai Special Economic Zone’ are well below the ratings of standard 40kA switchgear; hence it is
suggested to use 40kA Circuit breaker at ‘Rashakai Special Economic Zone.

Therefore, it is concluded that the proposed interconnection scheme holds good based on short circuit analysis
as well.

Final Report - Rashakai Special Economic Zone Project Interconnection with PESCO Grid June 2022 1



RSEZ FIWER-tek

GHion Mo puttces 2ice 1304

4. Transient stability analysis

The transient stability studies were carried out to check the dynamic impact due to potential faults in the PESCO
grid system and, in turn, the impact of disturbances in the proposed RSEZ grid stations on the PESCO grid system.
The RSEZ is found to meet all the transient stability requirements under Normal clearing 5 cycle opening time and
stuck breaker conditions of delayed breaker opening after g cycles and tripping of the associated circuit.

The results of transient stability analysis show that the power system is stable for the suggested interconnection
scheme of the 'Rashakai Special Economic Zone .

5. Reactive power compensaticn

To meet the reactive power demand and power factor of RSEZ for 202.6MW load in year 2025, 20 MVAR
switched shunt capacitors are proposed at each 33 kV bus bars of RSEZ GS-Il and 24 MVAR switched shunts are
proposed at each 11 kV bus bar of RSEZ GS-1,

6. Recommendations

RSEZ is required to install appropriate reactive compensation at its end to maintain a 0.95 (lag) power factor at
the point of interconnection. Also, it is noted that substantial attention needs to be given to the design of 11kv
and 33 kv distribution network, to optimize feeder lengths and voltage profile as well to increase supply
reliability for customers. Also, RSEZ shall conduct separate system studies for the installation of reactive power
compensation equipment (static/dynamic where necessary) within both RSEZ G3-1 and RSEZ GS-Il for reactive
powerfvoltage control and power quality mitigation based on size, location, and type of industrial loads.

Based on the study results overall, it is concluded that the proposed interconnection scheme for 'Rashakai
Special Economic Zone’ meets all the NEPRA Grid Code and Planning Criteria.

7. Compliance by PESCO

PESCO will make sure that its transmission network is upgraded as modelled in the base cases. Particularly the
following circuits will be completed before the commission of the Rashakai SEZ Load:

s Construction of 132kV Single Circuit (S/C) on Rail conductor from 220kY Nowshera to Pabbi

= Construction of 132kV S/C transmission line on Rail conductor from 220kV Chakdara-Salarzai-Daggar
Buner

* Reconductoring of remaining partion of 132kV transmission line from 220/132kV Nowshera-132kV
Nowshera Industrial on Lynx conductor to Rail Conductor

* 132kV Circuit 5/C Mardan-ZRK-Marble City-Nowshera City will be made in/out at Dobian”
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1. Introduction

o

1.1 Project Background

The total land areas of Rashakai Special Zone Project is 1000 acres approximately. Two grid stations G5-1 and G5-
It would be constructed/instalied with total demand of 202. 6MW.The total expected demand is divided into the
following five stages.

= First stage, 45 MW demand is proposed on 30-Aug-2022 at phase-| of RSEZ G5l

= Second stage, 22.09 MW demand is proposed on 30-Aug-2022 at phase-l of RSEZ G5-1.
*  Third stage, 45.9 MW demand is proposed on 31-Dec-2023 at phase-Il of RSEZ GS-I.

*  Fourth stage, 45 MW demand is proposed on 31-Dec-2023 at phase-ili of RSEZ GSHI.

= Fifth stage, 44.61 MW demand is proposed on 31-Dec-2025 at phase-ill of RSEZ GS-.

The indicative timelines for the provision of electric power are as under:

1. | Phase:l RSEZ Grid Station (GS-1I) |

R 30—ug_¢zzz” o
2 Phase-| RSEZ Crid Station (GS-) =+~ - B : ‘,1272.09 < | 30-Aug2022
3 Phas%a;ﬂiR‘SEZ.G.rid‘Sr_‘tatipn (G__S—|)‘ R , 459 - .31.-Dec-rzoz'3_‘ e
4 Phase-ll RSEZ Grid Station (GS—II)‘:_ '.45. 31 December 2023
5 'Pﬁ'a'éeﬂ-}_[i‘3SEiGrid_stéti§n (Gs-) - Jaast 31—pec_-'zozsf
;Téé‘;‘gliDe_imang‘i.l‘-oaq fi -,_-{:::_ “ .;—Vziovz.‘GMW._ T

Table 1.1.1 Demand phases

12 Plant data

Total Load Demand of RSEZ =202.6 MW
Proposed Demand of S =112.6 MW
Proposed Demand of G5-ll =90 MW
Transformers of GS-il in phase | = 60 MVA, 2 numbers
Transformers of GS-1 =50 MVA, 3 numbers
% Impedance of transformer at RSEZ GS-| & G5-lI =12.5%

Voltage Ratio of Transformers at GS-lI =132/33 kV

Voltage Ratio of Transformers at GS-| =132f11 kv

Proposed MVAR at 33 kV of GS-Ii = 20MVAR

Proposed MVAR at 11 kV of GS-| =24 MVAR
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1.3  The Objective of the Study

The principal objective of this study “Connection assessment of Rashakai Special Economic Zone to the PESCO
grid system" is to assess the impact of the proposed interconnection for the RSEZ on the PESCO transmission
system and vice versa and ensure the interconnection meets the NEPRA/NTDC grid code planning criteria
requirements. In this study, a most appropriate interconnection with the PESCO network is presented for the
project.

A detailed power system analysis study of the complete load demand of the Rashakai Special Economic Zone is
to be prepared. The scope of work including but not limited to system analysis studies for both grid stations,
and any other essential data, securing of necessary approval from PESCO for early commissioning of the Grid
Stations.

The detailed contents of the work of scope as under:
a. Load flow studies and contingency analysis
b. Grid interconnection and short-circuit studies
¢. Reactive power compensation studies
d. Transient stability analysis

e. Interconnection diagram for both sub-stations
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2. Methodology and Assumptions

a5 sy 4

2.1 Mobilization, information/data collection, inputs

e  Prepare preliminary (initial) data requirement list

e Kick-off meeting with project team

o Collection of data from PESCO and NTDC systems necessary to carry out the above analysis/studies
s Gather, organize, review, and analyze readily available data/inputs

+  Review available past planning and operation report(s)

e Build, gather, databases and review available data and base-cases

s Organize databases in desired formats of original and compiled data files

¢ Verify, validate, check, the databases

»  Prepare and deliver a list of additional data required, if needed

2.2 Develop connection aiternatives, review/update base cases

2 Review base case for data errors/checks using PSSE built-in functions and engineering judgment
¢  Confirm or assume any missingfincorrect data

o Modeling of the plant in PSS/E based on the developer/vendor-provided data

s Modify PESCOINTDC network PSS/E model to integrate the plant model

s Verify plant model based on vendor data and model confirmations

« Build base case model confidence and get PESCO review/confirmation

2.3  Power flow simulations and reactive power compensation studies, meeting the planning criteria

Carry out load flow simulations for all components in service for peak cases

e  Carry out detailed load flow analysis and reactive power compensation studies, under normal as well
as N-1 contingency conditions

o  Prepare overall simulations list and related automation files for selected N-1 contingencies in
consultation with NTDC

e Carry out contingencies runs and monitor violation (s)

» Identify critical contingencies for violation(s)

 Identify and confirm reinforcement/addition in the grid to overcome limiting constraints in case of
non-confirmation

e Carry out contingencies runs in reinforced network and monitor violation(s)

e Prepare a list of additional reinforcement and security required for overcoming violation(s)

2.4  Short circuit study

e Review data and perform short circuit analyses for peakfoff-peak cases for present and future years
+ Evaluate the impact of planned plants on fault level

*  Carry out detailed short circuit study to calculate the maximum fault current at selected stations

e  Suggest remedial measures if it has adverse impact

2.5  Transient stability simulations and analysis

¢ Review all planned commissioning/selected year case for dynamic data

¢ Prepare overall simulations list and fault condition to simulate as per iatanning criteria

»  Carry out detailed dynamic stability analysis on the existing transmission system under different system
disturbances

¢ Carry out transient stability simulation for selectedfagreed contingencies

* List violations as per planning criteria requirements

o lIdentify and confirm reinforcementfaddition in the grid to meet stability and security criteria and
identify any needs or to update remedial action schemnes
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o Carry out dynamic simulation and assessment to ensure system stability and security after
reinforcement
» List all the reinforcement required
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3. !nterconnection Scope

A 2t S0 M.,

The particular objective of this study is to develop and simulate an interconnection plan for the subject Rashakai
SEZ with a nearby transmission finefsubstations such that it meets the NEPRAINTDC grid code planning criteria,
and there is no physical limitation regarding the Right Of Way (ROW). POWER-tek analyzed multiple options for
the power Interconnection scheme of 'Rashakai Special Economic Zone ' and based on system studies the most
feasible interconnection proposal is suggestea.

The grid interconnection scope of ‘Rashakai Special Economic Zone' to the PESCO power system network is as
foliows;

e 24.32 km from 220{132 kV Grid Station Mardan to RSEZ GS-Ii using S/C rail conductor, whereas 24.37 km
Mardan to RSEZ GS-l using S{C rail conductor

e As a second source 30 km from proposed 220{132 kV Crid Station Swabi to RSEZ G5-| using D/C rail
conductor, whereas 0.05km GS-I to GS-ll using S/C rail conductor.

¢ Tomeet the reactive power demand and power factor of RSEZ for 202.6MW load in year 2025, 20 MVAR
switched shunt capacitors are proposed at 33 kV bus bars of RSEZ GS-ll and 24 MVAR switched shunts
are proposed at 11 kV bus bar of RSEZ GS-I.

The geographical location of the RSEZ is shown in the figure below and also provided in Appendix-1, whereas
the PESCO overall network geo-single line diagram is provided in Appendix-1.

Figure 3.1 Geographical location of the RSEZ

The bubble diagrams and proposed interconnection scheme development for RSEZ are provided below and also
providedin Appendix-3 with more details, '
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Figure3.2 Bubble diagram of the RSEZ
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Figure 3.3 Proposed interconnection scheme of of the RSEZ

There is a strang and robust existing network of PESCO which consist of;
s 220/132 kV Mardan GS -Mardan-11 132 kV GS, 6 KM double circuit transmission line.
e 132 KV Mardan-ll GS - 132 KV Jalala GS, 25 KM single circuit transmission line.
*  220/132 KV Mardan GS — 132 KV ZRK GS, 11 KM single circuit transmission line.
* 132 KV ZRK GS - 132 KV Dobian CS, 15 KM single circuit transmission line.

e 132 KV Dobian GS - 132 KV Marbel! city GS, 35.5 KM single circuit transmission line.

3.1 Understanding of the interconnection plan

Rashakai special econormic zone consists of first RSEZ Grid Station-l and second is RSEZ Grid Station-i{ with total

lcad demand is 202.6 MW, and their expected load is divided into following phases.

Final Report - Rashakai Special Ecanomic Zone Project Interconnection with PESCO Grid June 2022 8
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Phase-] RSEZ Grid Station (G5-11} 45 . | 30-Aug-2022
2 Phase-! RSEZ'Grid Station (GS-1} | _ 22.09 30-Aug-2022
3 Phase-Il RSEZ Crid Station (GS-1) 45.9 31-Dec-2023
4 Phase-1l RSEZ Grid Station (GS-It), 45 .| 3t December 2023
5 Ph_ase-ll[ RSEZ Grid Station (_GS-I)_ _ 44.61 31-Dec-2025
Total demand Load 202.6MW

Table 3.1.t Demand phases

This load demand is to be met via the nearest available grid facility of PESCO. The RSEZ GS-1is located at about
30 km from proposed 220/132 kV Swabi grid station of PESCO and RSEZ GS-Il is located at about 24.32 km from
220f132 KV Mardan GS.

This study was carried out to check the strength of the existing network and to verify if this meets planning

criteria and that this addition of load can be accommodated, or some extra reinforcement is required,

3.2 Approach to the system modelling and simulation

Following approach was adopted for modeling and load flow, short circuit, and dynamic analysis:

3.2.1 Load flow cases

.'Ph_ase-i_RSEZG I Station (GS-DICS) | 22.09/45 . - 30-Augr2022 :zolzq“‘ ,‘3.212,1-__,.
2. Pha;e-ll_RSéZ Grid Station (G‘S—l):( . 459 | 3tDec2023 .;ozj 23243
3 Phase;-l‘!‘RSE:Z_Glri:criSta’ti'qn(:‘GS-.l_I) o 45 _31;‘?Deic20243.;:'_ ' 3213
4 Phgse-l’l{Rs‘:éi'c;'_rid ’S;\;.atcién (cs:|)f,- R TR 3_1-Derc-#?:pz_5 20‘25"_,:.‘ 3:14 e
Total demand Load ' - _“‘-2:0.2_..6MW T

Table 3.2.1.3 Year-wise Demand phases

Bubble diagrams of PESCO existing network and year wise phases of RSEZ are provided below and also
provided in Appendix-3.
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_ Bubble diagram of PESCO existing network

Figure 3.2.1.1 Bubble diagram PESCO existing network

. Proposed 132 kV RSEZ G5/2022

Figure 3.2.1.2 Proposed 132 kV Phase-l RSEZ G5-1 and phase | of RSEZ (S5-Il -2022
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Figure 3.2.1.3 Proposed 132 kV phase |l of RSEZ GS- and phase H of RSEZ G5-11 2023

Progesed 132 kV RSEZ G5/2025

Figure 3.2.1.4 Proposed 132 KV Phase-lli RSEZ (5-1-2025

3.2.2 Short circuit case
»  The short circuit case of 2025 was selected for the 202.6 MW demand of the RSEZ to cbserve the
maximum short circuit current level at the proposed RSEZ and adjoining network of PESCO.

3.2.3 Dynamic case
s To observe the stability of the proposed 202.6 MW RSEZ and adjeining network of PESCO the case of
2022 was selected.
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4. DataProcessing

RS .

4.3 Site Surveys and Related Meetings

Rashakai Special Economic Zone (RSEZ), located near M-1 Nowshera, is set to be established in Khyber
Pakitunkhwa (KP). The 1000 acres of land of REZ will be develeped in three phases. The total area designated
for Industrial use is 702 acres and as per Federal SEZA Regulations, of which 159 acres will be developed in Phase
I, 279 acres in phase i, and subsequently 264 acres in Phase lll. For commercial use, an area of 76 acres has been
allocated.

4.1.1 Collection of Data
The following data is collected and used for this study:

¢ The latest up-to-date generation plan has been used for the subject study as incorporated in the
provided base cases:

» The optimal transmission expansion plans of NTDC and PESCO have been used considering the
load demand and generation requirements as incorporated in the provided base cases.

 That the augmentation of the transmission lines of NTDC and PESCO shall take place in accordance
with the transmission expansion plan, especially in the vicinity of the subject RSEZ.

o Theload demand forecast is most recent and revised as incorporated in the provided base cases.

e Appropriate study years for the subject system study are taken, which are the base case of the year
2022, the year 2023, and the base case of the year 2025.

4.2 Processing of RSEZ Data

The received data from RSEZ, PESCO and NTDC was processed into the PSSE software format to perform the
simulation studies.

This processed plant data is modeled in the overall PESCO network model as per the proposed connection
scheme. Updated PESCO network base case is then simulated by considering the N-1 contingency analysis for
each case using standard checks like convergence, mismatch, number of iterations, voitage and thermal limits,
and 15 seconds drift-run tests for dynamics run.

Above mentioned data is processed to build the following basic models in PSSE software format:
i. Steady-state data for load flow analysis
ii. Sequence data for short circuit analysis

fii. Dynamic data for transient stability analysis

4.2.1 Steady-State System Modeling

The 202.6 MW of power is evacuated to the Rashakai Special Economic Zone, which is evacuated in five different
stages as below.

Prase- RS_ Grid Sta ion (. -||) S : —‘5: , =3-A'ug2022_'.—; |
2 | Phase- RSEZ Grid Stg_ti;‘an(c._s{-l')'.'; T mes JoAugaon
5| PhasellRSEZGrd Station ()| 459 | 3vDecwons
4 | Phase-Il RSEZ Grid Station (CS-1) BT 31-5;December'262;; j
5| PhaselIRSEZGriaswton (G5 | 44 |3iDecaon
Tomidemandload | weww |

Table 4.2.1.1 Demand phaseé
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Steady-state models of transmission lines and transformers in RSEZ and its vicinity in the PSSE software are as
under:

e Transmission conducter suggested for interconnection of the proposed grid stations are modelled
having it’s per unit (p.u) resistance, reactance, and susceptance according to line length and MVA
rating.

o  Positive sequence parameters are employed in the steady-state model of the under-system study.

4.2.2 Sequence Data Modeling

Short circuit analysis for RSEZ and the network of PESCO has been conducted by using the following parameters
of the transmission lines;

s Positive sequence data
o Negative sequence data
e Zero sequence data

4.2.3 Dynamic Data Modeling

The dynamic simufation model of the entire network has been developed in PSSE software.
The two severe types of disturbances simulated to assess the stability of the Subject and the power
system a study as per the NEPRA grid code criteria are given as under:

e 3-phase fault at bus bar cleared in 5-cycles (100 ms)and tripping of the associated circuit.

o 1-phase to ground fault at bus bar cleared in g cycles (180 ms) (delayed clearing or stuck breaker
condition) and tripping of the associated circuit
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5 Load Fiow Analysis

e

5. Load Flow Study Objectives

A power flow study (or load flow study) is an analysis of the magnitude of bus voltages, line loadings, phase
angles of the bus voltages and power flows in a power system under steady-state conditions.

The main goal of load flow analysis is to develop a reliable connection arrangement between the ‘Rashakai
Special Economic Zone’ and the PESCO grid system under normal and N-1 contingency conditions.

The load flow analysis has been performed for the year 2022, the year 2023, and the year 2025. The power flow
conditions are studied on the system study cases that include up-to-date generation, transmission facilities, and
load forecast representing the queue position applicable to this project. The load flow studies Exhibits as
covered in this chapter are provided in Appendix-4.

For RSEZ GS-l overall results for three transformers with each capacity 50 MVA and for RSEZ Gs-i overall resuits

for two transformers with each capacity 60 MVA were tested and it was observed that all results and conclusion

remain same.

Following are the important abjectives of load flow analysis:

+  Confirmation that no voltage and thermal loading limits are exceeded as per NERPA Grid Code Planning
criteria.

s  Voltage profile of PESCO system.

s Transmission line loadings in terms of Active {MW) and Reactive Power (MVAR) flows.

e Active Power (MW) loss in the network.

o  Transmission network and transformation reactive losses (MVAR).

s Proposal of remedial solutions to any identified limitations or issues.

A relative approach has been used in the power flow analysis to determine the impact of the Rashakai Special
Economic Zone project on the performance of the PESCO power system network.

5.2 Load Flow Study Criteria
Load flow analysis is performed under the following conditions;

¢  Steady-state normal (N-0) operating conditions
¢ N-1contingency operating conditions around the plan

The gird interconnection studies are carried out by considering the operational data defined by NEPRA Grid
Code, which is listed as under:

5.2.2 Voltage Limit

For system pianning, the following voltage limits are defined for steady-state load flow analysis;
i, Under normal operating conditions {N-0 condition) all bus voltages shall be within the bandwidth of +5
% of Nominal System Voltage.
ii. Under N-1 contingency conditions, all bus voltages shall be within the bandwidth of 10 % of Nominal
System Voitage.

5.2.2 Component loading limits

Loading criteria for current-carrying components (transmission circuits, transformers, substation bus bars,
circuit breakers, disconnect switches, and auxiliary equipment) to evaluate steady-state load fiow studies is as
follows;
i.  Under normal operating conditions (N-0 conditions), all components shall be loaded below their
Normal Continuous Maximum Ratings.
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ii. Under contingency conditions (N-1 conditions), all components shall be loaded below their Emergency
Ratings.

5.3 Load Flow Analysis for the Year 2022 without Addition of Rashakai Special Economic Zone

The power flow analysis without the RSEZ to the base year 2022 in the power network of the PESCO system was
simulated first. This section summarizes the pre-contingent steady-state analysis for the PESCO system load flow
study.

Load flow analysis for the year 2022 without the addition of RSEZ has been conducted for the condition under
normal system conditions as provided in Exhibit # 1.0, The power flow through the transmission lines, the
transformer the RSEZ, and the surrounding network are presented in this simulation and the results are
summarized below.

The load flow analysis during the year 2022 has been conducted for N-1 contingency conditions. Whereas the
summarized results of contingency simulations are provided as Exhibit# 1.1 to 1.2 below:

Normal Case
14 0 |=Mardan-Mardanlifine out - -
12 .. | -Mardan-charsada Line out " -

Table 5.3.1 Contingency Conditions without RSEZ base case 2022

it is observed that before connecting the RSEZ to the PESCO electrical network, all the current-carrying
component capacities are within the range. No limitation is seen in any of the MW and MVAR flows.

5.4 Load Flow Analysis for the Year 2022 with total demand 67.2 MW {45 MW demand at RSEZ GS-il and
22.09 MW demand of RSEZ GS-I

Load flow analysis for the year 2022 with the addition of RSEZ has been conducted for the condition under
normal system conditions as provided in Exhibit # 2.0. The power flow through the transmission lines, the
transformer the RSEZ, and the surrounding network are presented in this simulation and the result is
summarized below.

The load flow analysis during the year 2022 has been conducted for N-1 contingency conditions. Whereas the
summarized results of contingency simulations are provided as Exhibit# 2.1t0 2.5 below:

20 | Nrmal Case 7 _
21| RSEZGS1-RSEZ GS-ll line quf -
22| RSEZCSiMardan Line c-mt'

23 2 .j:Mardanjl‘:—..charsacliarL-ihe oQt -

24 ._Mardan—rRS.EZ_GS‘-I Lineout

2.5 : Mardan-.‘l_\/lardan-ll‘i Ling out.

Table 5.4.1 Contingency Conditions With total demand 67.2 MW (45 MW demand at RSEZ GSJI and 22.09
MW demand of RSEZ GS-1 base case 2022
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5,5 Load Flow Analysis for the Year 2023 (without 220KV Swabi grid station) and with total demand 157.09
MW (90 MW demand of RSEZ GS-1l GS and 67.09 MW demand of RSEZ GSI

Load flow analysis for the year 2023 with the addition of RSEZ and without 220KV Swabi grid station has been
conducted for the condition under normal system conditions as provided in Exhibit # 3.0. The power flow
through the transmission lines, the transformers, and the surrounding network are presented in this simulation
and the result is summarized below.

The {oad flow analysis during the year 2023 has been conducted for N-1 contingency conditions, Whereas the
summarized results of contingency simulations are provided as Exhibit# 3.1to 3.6 below:

3.0(a) Normal Case

3.1(a)‘.7 RSEZ G5+~ RSEZ VGS‘-H line out
3.2(a) S .RSE_Z GS-I-Mardan Line out . w
3.3(;)7' ... | Mardan-charsada Line out. -
Ta@) | Mardam RSEZGS ine out
-3.5(a) | Mﬁ:.'dian-‘Marda‘m-lll' Line ;)ut

Table 5.5.1 Contingency Conditiohs without 220KV Swabi GS and With total demand 157.09 MW (go MW
demand of RSEZGS-I1 GS and 67.09 MW demand of RSEZ GSI base case 2023

5.5  Load Flow Analysis for the Year 2023 with (with 220KV Swabi grid station) and with total demand
157.09 MW {90 MW demand of RSEZ GS-ll GS and 67.09 MW demand of RSEZ GSI

Load flow anaiysis for the year 2023 with the addition of RSEZ has been conducted for the condition under
normal system conditions as provided in Exhibit # 3.0. The power flow through the transmission lines, the
transformers, and the surrounding network are presented in this simulation and the result is summarized below.

The load flow analysis during the year 2023 has been conducted for N-1 contingency conditions. Whereas the
summarized results of contingency simulations are provided as Exhibit# 3.1t0 3.6 below:

30 Normal Case .

31 | RSEZ qs_;l - ASEz ST ne out;
32 - — | RSlE.Z GS—I[;Mardan Line out

3.3 - Ma.r'dan- cﬁarsada Line out

3.4 - } _Nl_arldan- BSEZ GS- Line out - »
35 'sw;ibi new- RSEZ G5 un_eput__,.,
3.6 S | Mar_dan-“Mardan-_.l;li Liﬁe_ out

Table 5.6.1 Contingency Conditions with 220KV Swabi GS and With total demand 157.09 MW {90 MW demand
of RSEZGS-li GS and 67.09 MW demand of RSEZ G5! base case 2023
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5.7  Load Flow Analysis for the Year 2025 with total demand 202.6 MW (90 MW demand of RSEZ GS-l and
112.6 MW demand of RSEZ GS-

Load flow analysis for the year 2025 with the addition of RSEZ has been conducted for the condition under
normal system conditions as provided in Exhibit # 4.0. The power flow through the transmission lines, the
transformer the RSEZ, and the surrounding nmetwork are presented in this simulation and the result is
summarized below.

The load flow analysis during the year 2025 has been conducted for N-1 contingency conditions. Whereas the
summarized results of contingency simulations are provided as Exhibit# 4.1 10 4.6 below:

4.0 - Nbrmal‘Casér ,

PR R GSLE—RS[;ZZ'C?S-II.Ijne out |

42 f.'RSEZ. GS—VII-MaI‘dad Liné out
”:4'.3 h& Mardan- charsada LGe out.
44 o ~‘Mardan—RSEZGS—i Lmeout
: 45 ’;Mardan Mardan—lllL:ne out ‘
- 4. 6 e ._Swabl new- RSEZ GS—! i_lne out

Tables.7.1 Contmgency Cond|t|ons with total demand 202. 6 Mw (90 MW demand of RSEZ GS—II and 12.6
MW demand of RSEZ G5-1

5.8  Conclusions of Load Flow Analysis

The results abtained after conducting load flow analysis of above mentioned years with normal and N+
contingency conditions show that the proposed interconnection scheme of RSEZ has been found reliable in
various operating scenarios and fulfills the requirements of the NEPRA Grid Code and other applicable Planning
Criteria.

To meet the reactive power demand and power factor of RSEZ for 202.6MW load in year 2025, 20 MVAR
switched shunt capacitors are proposed at 33 kV bus bars of RSEZ G5-il and 24 MVAR switched shunts are
proposed at 11 kV bus bar of RSEZ GS-l.

Apart from the list of n-1 contingencies mentioned in the above table we analyzed some other n-1 contingencies
in the vicinity of RSEZ and results show that the power flow on all the circuits are within defined jimits and the
voltages and loadings are in acceptable range of defined study criteria.

Final Report - Rashakai Special Economic Zone Project Interconnection with PESCO Grid June 2022 17
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6. short Circuit Analysis

S N s ane o

6.1 Short Circuit Study Objectives

This section covers the short circuit analysis performed for the “Rashakai Special Economic Zone”, When
Rashakai Special Fconomic Zone is added to a system, the available fault current of that system increases.
Therefore, a short circuit study has been performed to determine if the circuit breakers of existing substations
near the Rashakai Special Economic Zone have adequate short circuit interruption duties.

Short circuit analysis includes the three-phase and single phase-to-ground fault simulations.
Short circuit studies would determine the following;

o Maximum fault current levels the Rashakai Special Economic Zone Grid stations.
¢ Total fault currents and contribution from the associated network.
+ Adequacy of short circuit capacity of switch gears at neighboring existing substations.

6.2 Short Circuit Study Assumptions and Criteria

Short circuit studies were carried out for evaluating the following short circuit levels of RSEZ at 132kV bus bar
and contiguous network;

s Balanced 3-phase fault
¢ Un-balanced L-G fault

Analysis was performed for the year 2025, as the case would have all the planned generation and transmission
systems components in service, which would produce the worst scenario with extreme fault level calculations,

Short circuit currents were calculated for maximum fault levels according to International Electro technical
Commission (IEC) standard {EC-909, with the following assumptions;

s  Forcalculations of maximum fault levels;

e  Bus voltage has been assumed as 1.10 per unit (p.u) i.e. 10 % above the nominal.
e Maximum dispatch of all the generation in the system has been taken.

+ Taps ratios of all the transformers to be assumed at unity.

s Charging of all the transmission lines to be assumed at zero.

* All the shunt compensations to be assumed at zero in a positive sequence.

6.3  Short Circuit Study with Rashakai Special Economic Zone GS- and RSEZ GS-li in the year 2025

To analyze the impact of the RSEZ on the system, Short circuit analysis is performed after connecting the RSEZ
GS-1and GS-I1. The base case year 2025 is simulated for the subject study.

The total maximum short circuit levels at the substations located in the electrical vicinity of the area of interest
have been calculated and are tabulated below;

Short circuit levels with the addition of Rashakai Special Economic Zone in the year 2025 are below and results
are in Appendix-5.

1, RSEZ GS-1 132kV 63 | oy
2, RSEZ GS-1t 132kV 16.3 .1
3. RSEZ G5 UKV 20.6 22.0
4. RSEZ G511 33KV . . 8. - 8.6
5. Mardan: 220kV . 21.3 : 15.7

Final Report - Rashakai Special Economic Zone Project Interconnection with PESCO Grid June 2022 8
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6 Swabinew l 132kV 229 16.9
7. Mardan 132kV 30.9 23.9
8 Swabi 220 kv 15.5 10.5

Table 6.3.1 Maximum Short Circuit leve] with RSEZ GS-1 and RSEZ G5-1t in the year 2025

6.4  Conclusions of Short Circuit Analysis

Maximum short circuit levels in the 2025 year are computed with the Rashakai Special Economic Zone GS-1 and
GS-11 for selection of circuit breaker ratings and relay coordination respectively.

Moreover, to see the short circuit current contribution of the '"Rashakai Special Economic Zone ", short circuit
levels at the substations located in the electrical vicinity of the RSEZ are also calculated. The findings show that
with the addition of this RSEZ, fault levels do not exceed the standard circuit breaker ratings of existing installed
equipment at the neighboring substations.

The short circuit levels of ‘Rashakai Special Economic Zone’ are well below the ratings of standard 40kA
switchgear; hence it is suggested to use 40kA Circuit breaker at ‘Rashakai Special Economic Zone.

Therefore, it is concluded that the proposed interconnection scheme holds good based on short circuit analysis
as well.
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7. Transient Stability Analysis

71 Transient Stability Study Objectives

The transient phase is the passage from the initial to the final conditions emanating from the disturbances in its
operating conditions either on RSEZ or on the network in its vicinity. To analyze these conditions, detailed
transient stability studies were carried out for the RSEZ,

The stability studies are carried out to check the dynamic impact on the RSEZ due to faults or disturbance in
proposed grid stations and, in turn, the impact of disturbances in the nearby grid stations.

The studies involved the choice of equipment and optimum regulation through control strategies which allow
the system to remain in stable conditions under potential risks. Transient stability studies provide the basis of
the power system for the subject economic zone as it determines the following;

» Transient stability of the RSEZ after any fault occurs in the system by the damping of fluctuations in
frequency, MW and MVAR, etc.

+ The capability of the system to damp the oscillations timely.

»  Operating limits of frequency, MW, and MVAR for RSEZ as imposed by the NEPRA Grid Code standards.

o Proposal of remedial solutions in the event of a problem.

7.2 Transient Stability Study Criteria
The benchmark criteria for transient stability analysis are;

¢ Three-phase short circuit fault application at important and selected buses (for N-1 fault contingencies
locations) is evaluated as per standards of NEPRA stability criteria.

e Transient stability analysis is simulated for the two following circuit breaker fault clearing time
durations;

»  Normal 5 cycle opening time, with the opening of the faulted system component.

»  Stuck breaker conditions of delayed breaker opening after 9 cycles, (without opening adjacent
breakers and as per PESCO/NTDC requirements and practices of simulations)

» Transient stability of proposed RSEZ Grid stations after tripping a nearby transmission line.

7.3 Transient Stability Performance of Rashakai SEZ

To study the transient behavior of RSEZ and system towards the disturbances, the following faults are
subjected:

o 3-Phase balanced fault at Rashakai Special Economic Zone cleared in 5 cycles.
*  3-Phase balanced fault at adjacent ends cleared in 5 cycles.
s 1-Phase to ground fauit at Rashakai Special Economic Zone cleared in g cycles
s 1-Phase to ground fault at adjacent ends cleared in g cycles.

To obtain the results, every simulation is carried for the steady-state condition for one second, to ensure that
the system is completely stable and steady before the fault is applied in the system (pre-fault conditions/drift
run test). Then the fault is applied and the system is simulated for the fault clearance time. After the clearance
of the fault from the system (post-fault conditions) followed by a certain contingency, the system is observed
for 10 seconds to ensure that oscillations in various quantities are damped and the system has re-instated the
stability conditions, dynamic analysis plots are attached in Appendix-6.

Furthermore the peak load case year 2022 has been selected for the stability analysis, the stability has not been
analyzed for year 2025 because at this project stage there is no additional information about the nature of load
is available therefore it is recommended that in future RSEZ shall conduct separate dynamic system studies to
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maintain the system stability and reliability within both RSEZ GS-| and RSEZ GS-Il for reactive power/voltage
control and power quality mitigation based on size, location, and type of industrial loads.

7.3.1 3-Phase fault at Rashakai Special Economic Zone cleared in 5 cycles — August 2022 year base case

The three phase fault is applied at the proposed Rashakai Special Economic Zone bus then each fault is removed
in 5 cycles (100 msec) accompanied by a particular N-1 contingency and transient stability response of the system

0 Bus
RSECGS-1132kv .+ - |RSEZGSH132kV - EY Bus Frequency
: ©.7 | RSEZ GS-11132kY One : :
Circuit Out. 52 . | - PowerandVARS
53 Rotor Angle .

Table 7.3.1.1 Dynamic stability analysis for 5 cycles

7.3.2 3- phase fault at adjacent end cleared in 5 cycles— August 2022 year base case

The three phase fault is applied on the adjacent end location of the line and the fault is removed in 5 cycles (100
msec) accompanied by a range of possible outages. The transient stability response of the system is monitored
for these conditions, which is summarized in the table below:

_ 54 -Bus voltage: .
“Mardan 132 kv . [RSEZGS-1132kV - |55 | BusFrequency
S0 - iMardan132kV One R _ SN
Circuit Out.1066-1070 | 5.6~ | =~ PowerandVARS '
Sl o 57 - | - RotorAngle
; _ 58 Bus voltage
. RSEZ GS-1132kV = - - ——
R P ; R . | . -BusFrequency -
RSEZ CS-1133kV gard-ampw;ne — i :
' C ' freutt Out.1063- - . 5do. " Power and VARS
1070 _
' 5.1 Rotor Angle
_ _ 5.12 - ‘Bus voltage
Mardan 1l 132kV : BENRNRR:
. i 543 Bus Frequency
Mardan 132kV :- . OMagjar,tsz :
‘ ne Circuit 514, Power and VARS
Out.1070-1071 S
R 545 ~ |. RotorAngle
o ' P : 5.16° * Bus voltage . -
Mardan220kV. - :/lard?n -220[132:\/ .g o
. 2 . n
= ransiorimer ou 547 - Bus Frequency
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5.18 Power and VARS -
5.19 Rotor Angle
5.20 Bus voltage
Tarbela 220kV- _ BusF
M ; 320KkY- 5.21 us trequency
Mardan 220 kv ard.an .2
one circuit 5.22 Power and VARS
0ui.200-150
5.23 Rotor Angle

Table 7.3.2.1 Dynamic stability analysis for 5 cycles

7.3.3 SLG fault at Rashakai Special Economic Zone cleared in 9 cycles ~ August 2022 year base case

The LG fault is applied at the ""Rashakai Special Economic Zone” and the fault is cleared in 9 cycles (180 msec)
to simulate delayed fault clearing situation, followed by a trip of a single circuit, If a system can overcome this
fault after time of 9 cycles then it is assumed to be stable in any of the possible delayed breaker opening
conditions up to 180 msec.

Transient stability response of the system under these special conditions is monitored, which is summarized in
the table below:

Busvoltage -
RSECGS1132kv . . | RSEZGSI32kv- [T 61 |  Busfrequency
.o |LRSEZGS-l132kvOne| - - ¢ S e
Circuit Out, 762 . ) . Powerand VARS .
‘ .63 - RotorAngle .

Table 7.3.3.1 Dynamic stability analysis for g cycles

7.3-4 SLG fault at adjacent end cleared in 9 cycles ~ August 2022 year base case

The LG fault s applied on certain adjacent end locaticns, the fault is cleared in 9 cycles (180 msec) accompanied
by a range of possible trips. The transient stability response of the system is monitored for these conditions,
which is summarized in the table below:

=

, _ | 64 - Busvoltage”
Mardan 132 KV RSEZ GS-H1 132KV - 6.5 . |  BusFrequency
T Mardan 132kV One ' ' L :
Circuit Out.1066-1070 6.6 .- Power and VARS
6.7 . - Rotor Angle -
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6.8 Bs vae
RSEZ GS-1 132KV -~ r ——F
Mardan132kV O .9 Us rrequency
RSEZ GS- 132kV arcant Sne
' Circuit Out.1068- 6.10 Power and VARS
1070 S
6.11 Rotor Angle
‘ 6.12 Bus voltage
_ {Mardan IIl 132kV - o L
; A3 us Frequency
-M 2kV
Mardani3akVv arﬁia13. K : :
I | oneCruit - 6.14 Power and VARS
Out.1070-1071 L
- 6.15 Rotor Angle
6.16 - 'Bus voltage
S i 6.17 Bus Frequency = -
: Mardan 220/132kV . ~ .
“Mardan 220 kV' : ! P "3 R
R | transtormer out 6,18 Power and VARS -
6.19 Rotor Angie
. e 6.20 Bus voltage
B Tarbela 220kV=" 6 — AN
L Do \ y30kV 621 Bus Frequency ..
‘Mardan 220 k¥ - - Marc_!.an - > R
o o one drcutt .. 6.22 - Power and VARS -
otit.200-150 s AN .
R 6.23 RotorAngle” ..

7.4 Conclusions of Transient Stability Analysis

Table 7.3.4.t Dynamic stability analysis for g cycles

The transient stability studies are carried out to check the dynamic impact on RSEZ due to faults or disturbance

in the national grid system for August 2022 year base cases and, in turn, the impact of disturbances in the
adjacent network on the grid system. The results of transient stability analysis show that the power system is
stable for the suggested interconnection scheme of the "Rashakai Special Economic Zone” for the faults on the
substations that might be near to or distant from the RSEZ. It is therefore concluded that, with the addition of
the RSEZ, there are no stability issues seen and it fulfills all the criteria for the generation connected with the

power system.
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&. overall Conclusions and Recommendations
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The Rashakai Special Economic Zone {RSEZ)is located between the 2201132 kV Mardan and proposed 220/132 kV
Swabi grid stations of PESCO. The Rashakai SEZ comprises of proposed RSEZ GS-l and GS-, the interconnection
scheme consists of 24.32 km from 220/132 kV Grid Station Mardan to RSEZ GS-1l using ${C raif conductor, whereas
24.37 km Mardan to RSFZ GS-I using S/C rail conductor , As a second source 30 km from proposed 220{132 kV
Grid Station Swabi to RSEZ G5-1 using D/C rail conductor, whereas o.e5km GS-[ to G5-if using S/C rail conductor .

There is the strong network of PESCO comprises of 220/132 kV Mardan GS ~Mardan-!l 132 kv GS, 6 KM double
circuit transmission line, 25 KM Mardan-li - Jalala S/C 132 kV transmission line, 11 km 220/132 kv Mardan GS - 132
kv 78K GS, single circuit transmission line, 15km 132 k¥ ZRK GS — 132 kv Dobian GS single circuit transmission fine
and 35.5 KM Dobian GS - Marbel city 132kV GS single circuit transmission line.

RSEZ has total proposed ioad demand of 202.6 MW which is divided into foliowing phases.

hase-lRSE _n ttok , - 45 30-Aug-2022
z Athase-_l-RSEZ_Gr_idLStﬁtidIn (GSH)- - . i2209 7 30-Augoz2’
3 Phase—i‘l:RSEZGridStation (Gs4) - © o459 . | 31Dec2023 R
4 - Phasg-ll,Rsﬁz'brid-Station (GS-1t) _ G . ‘45 ‘ 315"‘De;c=_mberzoz3 -
5 | Phasell RSEZGrid Station (GS). | 4461 | 3tDecaoss
,thalde_maﬁd_loéd w7 RIS ,2.02.6MW : R

PESCO grid system, after addition of the RSEZ has been anaiysed for load flow, short circuit, and transient
stability studies to determine whether the plant connection with the PESCO grid meets the NEPRA Grid Code
Planning Criteria requirements.

The latest and up-to-date NTDC/PESCO network model base cases have been used. The steady-state, sequence,
and dynamic data for the Rashakai Special Economic Zone is processed to build the steady-state, short circuit,
and dynamic models in PSSE software format.

A detailed power system analysis study on the peak load demand of the Rashakai Special Economic Zone is
prepared and results of the study are listed below.

1. Load flow analysis

The analysis has been performed for the year 2022, the year 2023, and the year 2025. The power flow analysis
shows that the bus voltages and line loadings in all the cases, with and without the addition of the RSEZ are
within the acceptable limit as per the NEPRA Grid Code Planning Criteria.

2. Contingency analysis

N-1 contingency analysis also has been performed for the year 2022, the year 2023, and the year 2025 and the
results were also validated as per the thermal and voltage limits in associated N-1 post contingency conditions.
The results of the contingency analysis shows that there are no thermal and voitage violations under N-1
conditions in the NTDC and PESCO network due to RSEZ addition.
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3. Short circuit analysis

Maximum short circuit levels have been conducted in the year 2025. Moreover, ta see the short circuit current
contribution of 'Rashakai Special Economic Zone !, maximum short circuit levels at the substations located in
the vicinity of the project were also computed. The 3-phase and 1-phase short circuit currents at both 132kV
RSEZ GS-1 & RSEZ GS-ll grid stations are 16.3 KA and 1.1 kA respectively. This shows that the short circuit levels
of ‘Rashakai Special Economic Zone’ are well below the ratings of standard 40kA switchgear; hence it is
suggested to use 40kA Circuit breaker at ‘Rashakai Special Economic Zone.

Therefore, it is concluded that the proposed interconnection scheme holds good based on short circuit analysis
as well,

4. Transient stability analysis

The transient stability studies were carried out to check the dynamic impact due to potential faults in the PESCO
grid system and, in turn, the impact of disturbances in the proposed RSEZ grid stations on the PESCO grid
system. The RSEZ is found to meet all the transient stability requirements under Normal clearing 5 cycle opening
time and stuck breaker conditions of delayed breaker opening after g cycles and tripping of the associated
circuit.

The results of transient stability analysis show that the power system is stable for the suggested interconnection
scheme of the 'Rashakai Special Economic Zone ',

5. Reactive power compensation

To meet the reactive power demand and power factor of RSEZ for 202.6MW load in year 2025, 20 MVAR
switched shunt capacitors are proposed at each 33 kV bus bars of RSEZ GS-ll and 24 MVAR switched shunts are
proposed at each 11 kV bus bar of RSEZ G5l

6. Recommendations

RSEZ is required to install appropriate reactive compensation at its end to maintain a 0.95 (lag) power factor at
the point of interconnection. Also, it is noted that substantial attention needs to be given to the design of 11kv
and 33 kV distribution network, to optimize feeder lengths and voltage prefile as well to increase supply
reliability for customers. Also, RSEZ shall conduct separate system studies for the installation of reactive power
compensation equipment (static/dynamic where necessary) within both RSEZ GS-1 and RSEZ GS-lI for reactive
powaerfvoltage control and power quality mitigation based on size, location, and type of industrial loads.

Based on the study results, overall it is concluded that the proposed interconnection scheme for 'Rashakai
Special Economic Zone’ meets all the NEPRA Grid Code and Planning Criteria

7. Compliance by PESCO

PESCO will make sure that its transmission network is upgraded as modelled in the base cases. Particularly the
following circuits will be completed before the commission of the Rashakai SEZ Load:

= Construction of 132kV Single Circuit {5/C) on Rail conductor from 220kV Nowshera to Pabbi

*  Construction of 132kV S/C transmission line on Rail conductor from 220kV Chakdara-Salarzai-Daggar
Buner

s Reconductoring of remaining portion of 132kV transmission line from 220/132kV Nowshera-132kV
Nowshera Industrial on Lynx conductor to Rail Conductor

= 132kV Circuit S/C Mardan-ZRK-Marble City-Nowshera City will be made infout at Dobian”
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Appendices
Appendix-t Geographical location
Appendix—z Bubble diagram & Proposed interconnection scheme
Appendix-3 Load Flow Analysis Sketches
Appendix-4 Short Circuit Analysis Results
Appendix-5 Dynamic Analysis
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“PROJECT REPORT”

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION OF RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE"

PROJECT REPORT

1. Location

N

Number Of Phases

3. Total Area

4. AreaPhase-I

5. AreaPhase-II

6. Area Phase-Iil

7. 132 KV Grid Stations

8. 132 KV Transmission Lines

=}

. Total Load (MW)

10. Total Load (Amps)

11. Type of Distribution Network
12. Load of Phase-I (11KV)

13. Load of Phase-II (11KV)

14. Load of Phase-III (11KV)

15. Total 11KV feeders

: RASHAKAI

: 03 Nos

: 1002 Acres

: 247 Acres

: 355 Acres

1400 Acres

: 02 Nos

: Mardan & Swabi

:210(90 (GS2) +120 (GS1)) MW

112,978 Amps

: Overhead / Under-Ground

:17.85 MW

:39.01 MW

:37.45 MW

: 29 Nos

(Existing 27 + 2 Future Extension)

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

INTERCONNECTION SCHEME BETWEEN TWO GRID STATIONS
WITH EXTERNAL 132KV TRANSMISSION LINES OF RASHAKAI
SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND GPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

INTERCONNECTION SCHEME BETWEEN TWO GRID STATIONS
WITH EXTERNAL 132KV TRANSMISSION LINES OF RASHAKAI

SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
132K OIC Tine
30 km with R
Tio-Up Point e
PESCORSEZ GS Susti
....... B Epod
"""""" 1 RESZGSAI | o coo
------------ SRR HE
SIS
o [ RESZGSY
22 ; .
== L
g %
23
e ™M
gx
20012107 68
Mardan

Explanation:
220/132kV MARDAN substation will provide 160MW double Circuit Transmission line and

220/132KV Sawabi Substation will provide 50MW to 132KV Rashakai Substation (GS-1
132/11KV substation and GS-2 132/33KV substation), this double circuit transmission line
will be ended in Substation like In/out arrangement.

GS-2 substation will get connection on one circuit from Mardan like in/out arrangement as
shown in above picture, GS-1 Substation will get direct connection on one circuit from Mardan
which will be connected to GS-2 through in / out arrangement and double circuit from Swabi
Grid Station connected to GS-1.

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Contingency Plan

Case-1:

GS-2 substation will be get connection on one circuit like in/out arrangement as shown in
picture, If in case there is some problem in circuit-1 then GS-2 will get supply from GS-1
substation from Circuit 2.

E—p Crut2

Cireuit-l

Gs-2 GS-1

g

Circuit-2  Circuit-1

Case-2:

GS-2 substation will be get connection on one circuit like in/out arrangement as shown in
picture, If in case there is some problem in circuit-2 then GS-2 will get continuous supply
from Circuit-1 and GS-2 substation will feed supply to GS-1 substation on Circuit-1.

Clrogit-2 M
£
Girouit-1
=
GS-2 GS-1

Cireuit-2  Circuit-1
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT} LTD

11KV SOURCE OF POWER SUPPLY, VOLTAGE DROP AND
TECHNICAL LOSSES
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONCMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

41KV INTERNAL DISTRIBUTIOM NETWCRK FOR RASHAKAI
SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

SOURCE OF POWER SUPPLY

The 11KV Independent feeders supply to the above mentioned Rashakai Special
Economic Zone to be Constructed by the Rashakai Special Economic zone
Development and Operation Company (Pvt) Ltd (RSEZDOC). All the Single Circuit
feeders comprising of ACSR Ospray conductor and will be emanating from
Proposed 132KV Grid Station No : 1. There are total 29 No’s of 11KV Feeders.

PEMISSIBLE LIMIT OF VOLATGE DROP AND TECHNICAL LOSSES

The Voltage drop shall be calculated shall be made from node to node as per
WAPDA/PESCO/NTDC Instructions. M/S RSEZDOC (PVT} LTD certified that the
tail end voltage drop and power losses from the proposed feeder shall not exceed
the permissible limits of 5% and 3.5% respectively.

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“LAND AREA CALCULATIONS”

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVF)LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE {RSEZ2)

(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

LAND DETAIL OF RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-]

Plot Size
{Sr. No.) Plot Type Industry Type Per
(10,000 m2)
1 M1 {1 Inchustrial Jand) 736
2 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 624
3 M1 {Mt Industrial tand) 5.23
4 M1 (M1 Induswrial land} 332
5 M1 {M1 Industrial lan«) 585
f M1 (M1 Industrial land) 5.03
7 M1 (M1 industrial tand) 477
8 M1 {M1 Industrial Land) 32
L] M2 (M2 Industrial land) 4.62
10 M2 (M2 Industial land} 343
11 M2 {M2 Industrial land) 2.63
12 w1 Logisties and Warchousing 277
13 Al Administrative offioe land 0.25
14 Al Administrativeoffice land 047
15 81 Commencial land 498
16 B4 Gas statiot a8
. s bttt
18 un Watcr supply land 012
19 um Watcr supply 012
20 b1l Water supply 0.15
21 uz1 Scwage treatment piant 504
67.44

TOTAL LAND AREA PER 10,000 M2

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELCPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

LAND DETAIL OF RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-II

Plot Size
(Sr. Na.) Plot Type Industry Type Per
{10,000 m2}
1 M1 (M1 industrial land) 761
T M1 (M1 Indestrial land] 346
3 Ml {M1 Industrial Lnd) 729
4 M1 (#1 Industrial land) 210
5 M1 {M1 ludusenad land} 5.4)
6 M1 {M! Industrial land) 4.88
7 M1 (M1 irdustrial land} 417
] M1 (M1 Industrial land) 428
9 M1 (M1 tndustrial lard) 498
10 M1 (M3 Industnal land) 520
1§ M1 {M1 Industrial land) 547
12 M1 (M1 Industrial tand) 331
13 M1 [M1 tndustrial tand) 4.08
14 M1 (M1 tndustrial land) 479
15 M1 {M 1 Industriat land} 533
16 M1 (MY Industrial land) 521
7 M2 {M2 Industrial land} 769
16 Mz (M2 Indostrial land) 347
19 Mz (_MZ Industrial laad} 10.61
20 MZ (M2 Industrial tand} 5.11
21 M2 (M2 Industrial fand} 471
22 B1 Commercial Iand 682
23 11} Commercial land s.19
24 13 Lommerdial land 2.6
25 w1 {1 Logistics and Warshousing) 394
26 Ul Water supply 001
27 yz2 Envirermental sanitatton 030
28 u3 (Fire Fighting) 029
29 R1 M1 Residential land} 020
30 U1l Wacer supply 0.14
n 1l Land for roads 1607
» Gl Park 451
33 E1l Rlvers 1.78
TOTAL LAND ARECA PER 10,000 M2 152.79
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATIGN COMPANY (PVT) LTD

LAND DETAIL OF RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-il

Plot Size
{Sr. No.) Plot Type industry Type Per
(10,000 m2})
1 M1 M1 {ndustrial land) 33.61
2 M2 (M2 ladustrial land) 6857
3 Al Administrative office land 0.02
4 A4 Sparts land 021
s A9 Religious land 025
6 Bl Commerdal land 1214
El 5t Land for roads 1112
3 Uil Water supply 049
b ur2 Puwer supply 246
10 v22 Environmental sanitstion 025
n &1 Park 18.65
12 E1 Rivers 6.25
TOTAL LAND AREA PER 10,000 M2 154.05
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“LOAD CALCULATIONS”

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

I::(— Plot Industry Type Plorl:rlze Powerload per unitarea Assessed Load Uitimate Load
o. | Type . (kW/10,000m2) (MW) (MWD
N (10,000 m2)
1 M1 (M1 Industrial Jand) 7.36 480 3153 240
] M1 {MT Industrial land) .24 400 250 1.70
3 M1 (M1 Industrial jand) 5.23 400 2.09 142
4 M1 {M1 Industrlal Jand) 332 400 133 0.90
5 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 585 400 234 159
6 M (M1 tndustrial land) 503 400 2.01 137
7 M1 (M1 Industrial land} 477 400 191 130
8 M1 (ML Industrial Jand) 32 480 1.54 1.04
9 M2 {M2 industrial land) 4.62 480 2.22 151
10 M2 (412 Indnstrial land) 343 20 0.07 0,05
t M2 {M2 Industrial land) 2.63 480 1.26 0gé
12 w1 Logistics and Warehousing 277 300 0.83 057
13 Al Administrative office band 0.25 500 013 0.09
14 Al Administrative office land 0.47 500 0.24 016
15 B1 Commercial tand 498 600 299 203
i6 B41 Gas station . [X:] 200 0.16 0.11
17 sS4 Land for traffic station 1.06 30 0.03 0.02
{Transport Depot}
in un Water supply land 0.12 200 0.02 0.02
19 u11 Water supply 0.12 200 0.02 ¢.02
29 o1t Water supply 0.15 200 0.03 002
21 u21 Sewage treatment plant 5.04 200 101 0.69
Ultimate Demand of Phase-| 26.25 17.85

DFSIGN PARAMETERS -

I pavel et Factor - (A3
clopment Facto " Ultimate Load (W) - (Assessed Load * Development Factor)/ Riversity Factor
Lo Diversity Factar: 125

] + A) = i F:
L poser Tactor ¢ 0B Vlumaie Load {RVA) = Ullimate Lead [MW) / Power Factor

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {(PVT) LTD

(sr. No.} Plot Type Industry Type Pk;:es:m Power load per unit area Assessed Load Ultimate Load
{10,000 m2) (kW/10,600m2) (Mw) (mw)
i M (M1 Industrial land) 7.61 400.00 3.04 2.07
2 M1 (M1 Indusertal land) 5.46 400.00 218 149
3 M1 {M1 Industrial land) 7.29 400.00 292 1.99
4 ML (M1 Industrial land) 2.10 400,00 o84 0.57
5 M1 (M1 Industrial Tand) 5.41 aveco 216 147
[ M1 €41 Industrial tand) 488 400.00 195 133
7 M1 £M1 Industrial 1and) 417 40G.01 1.67 1.33
a L3} (M1 Endustrial land) 4.29 40000 1.71 116
9 Mt (M1 Industeial tand) 499 40090 1.99 135
10 M1 (R1 Industrial Tand) 5.20 4n0.04 2.00 141
1 M1 (M1 industrlal land) 5.47 10000 219 149
12 M1 {M1 Industeial kand) 3.31 401,00 132 0.90
11 M1 (M1 Industriai land} 412 400.00 1.63 {8
1" ML {M1 Industrial land) 4.79 400.00 192 130
15 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 533 400.00 211 145
16 M (M Industrial Tandd) 5.21 400,00 2.08 1.42
7 M2 (M2 Industrial Jand) 7.69 4B0.00 3.69 251
18 Mz (M2 Industrial land} 3.07 480,00 147 1.00
19 Mz (M2 industrial land) 10.61 480.00 5.09 246
20 M2 (M2 Industrlal Yand) 5.11 180,00 245 167
2 M2 (M2 Industriat lang) 471 480.00 226 154
22 B1 Commerclal tand 682 £00.00 4.0% 278
23 Bl Commercial land 5.19 600.00 n 2.12
24 81 Commerclal land 2.6 600.60 160 1.09
25 w1 (M1 Logistics and Warehoustng) 394 30000 118 0.80
26 ut1 Water supply 0.03 200.00 0.1 .00
a7 uzz Fnvironmental sanitation 0.20 2080 0.01 0.00

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

Page 17




RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Plot Size ' Load Ulthmate Luad
o e sy TR (m,:uec: m2) in:ltvlvula:o?;;:.:lzt)mn msn(Snjle\::') (Mw)
28 L {Firs Fighting) 0.29 200.00 0.06 0.04
29 Rt M1 Resldential land} 0.20 200.00 0.04 002
30 Uiy Water supply 0.14 20000 003 D0z
3 st Land for roads 1607 20.00 032 022
32 61 Park 4.61 2000 009 0.06
13 k1 flvers Lis 20,00 0.04 0.02
Total Ultimate Demand of Phase-1} 5737 39,01

CESIGN PARAMETERS :-

1. Dewelopmeny Factor ¢

2. Uiversity  Fartor:

3. Puaer Factor :

0. 83

[RE]

W

Ultlmate Load (MWV) = (Afsessed [oad * Development Factar)/ Diversity Factor

Ulumate Load (MVA} = Uitimate Load {MW] / Power Factor
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL EGONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)

(A PROJECT OF GPEC)

LOAD DETAIL OF RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-IN

(Sr. No.) Plot Type Industry Type ”‘;:::“ Power load per unit area Assessed Load Ultimate Load
(10,000 m2) (kW/10,0001m2) (mMw) {MW)
1 1 {M1Industrial land) 33.61 A0.00 14,45 9.14
2 M2 (M2 Industrlal Jand) 68.59 480.00 32.92 22.3%
3 Al Administrative office land 0.02 560,00 0.m 0.61
4 At Sports land 0.21 13000 0.03 0,02
s A9 Retigtous laud 0.25 23000 0,05 0.04
A n1 Commercial land 12.14 600.00 729 A5
7 St Land for roads 112 20.00 022 o.15
[ 5] Watzr supply 049 200.00 0.10 0.07
I e u12 Power supply 2.46 200.00 0.49 034
10 22 Ervironmental sanitation 0.25 2000 0.00 eoe
1t G1 Park 1m.65 2000 o.37 025
12 El Rivers 625 20.00 012 0.08
Total Ntimate Demand of Phase 11T 55.98 37.45
DESIGN PARAMETERS i

b levekopment Faciny - 0,83
)

2 Biveinity Facioe; 1,25

3. fewer Factor @ BAR

Ultnate Load (MW) = [Assessed 1nad * Develnpmant Factar}/ Diversity Factor

Ult:mate Load (M¥A) » Ultimate Luad {MW} / Power Factor

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

Page 19




RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“GRID STATION DETAILS”
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“GRID STATION # 1”
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

"EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION OF RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE"

132 KV GRID STATION # 1

DETAILS

1. Location

2. Transmission Line

3. Total Sanctioned Load

4. Power Transformer Capacity

5. Power Transformers Ratings

6. Provisioning of Each Power Transformer

7. 11KV Qutgoing Panels

8. Reserved 11KV Qutgoing Panels for Future

Total Ultimate Load

e

10. Load Available for Future Extension

11. Control House Building

12. Residential Colony

13. Minimum Land Requirement

: RSEZ Phase-III

: Mardan & Swabi

:120MW T

: 150 MVA

:3x 50 MVA

:1Incoming & 9 Outgoing

:27 No

: 02 Nos

1 94MW

: 26MW

:Yes

:Yes

110117 SgMtr
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“GRID STATION # 2”7
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {PVT) LTD

“EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION OF RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE”
132 KV GRID STATION # 2
(Steel Mill)

. Location

. Transmission Line

. Total Sanctioned Load

. Power Transformer Capacity

. Power Transformers Ratings

. Control House Building

. Residential Colony

. Minimum Land Requirement

DETAILS

: RSEZ Phase-1

: 132KV Mardan

: 90MW

:120 MVA

:2x60MVA

:Yes

:Yes

: 4845 SqMtr
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

41 KV FEEDER CALCULATIONS”
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKA] SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE {RSEZ) PHASE-1

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDERS

MAIN ABSTRACT

(sr Ultimate
No )' DESCRIPTION Load
. (MW)
1 11KV Feeder No. 1 4.70
2 11KV Feeder No. 2 3.57
3 11KV Feeder No. 3 3.95
4 11KV Feeder No. 4 3.99
5 11KV Feeder No. 5 1.64
A. Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeders (1 to 5) (MW) 17.85
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 1103.21
Formula

Amperes (MW) = (Load in MW) x[1/{1.73 x 0.85 x 11)] x 1000

Amperes {(MW) = Load in MW x 61.82
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

SH PECIAI (] ZONE (RS |
LOAD D 1L 11 KV EDER P |
Plot Size
{sr. No.) Plot Type Industey Type Per Power load per unitarea Uitimate Load
o ¥ iyp KW/10,000m2) (Mw)
(10,000 m2} (kW/10,000m
1 M1 {M1 Industrial land) 585 400 159
2 M (#1 Industrial land) 5.03 400 137
3 M2 (M2 Industrial land) 462 480 51
+ M2 (M2 Inclustrial land) 343 20 0.05
5 [ L3} Gas statlon o8 200 0.11
G utt Water supply land 012 200 0.02
7 utt Water supgly Q.12 200 0.02
B uri Water supply 0.15 200 002
Land for tralfN¢ station
9 H (Franspert Depot) 1.06 30 0.02
A, Ultlmate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 1 4.70
B. Tatal Load In Amperes (Amps) 290.40
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT CF CPEC)

RASHAKA) SPEGIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE:|

LO DETAIL OF FEE 0. 2
Plot Slze
{sr. No.) Plot Type Industry Type Per Power load per unit area Ultimate Load
(10,000 m2) (kW/10,000m2) (MwW)
1 Al Administrative office land 0.25 500 009
2z Al Administeative office land 047 500 016
3 B Commerctal land 458 600 203
4 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 477 400 3 ]
A. Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No, 2 3.57
B. Total Load In Amperes {Amps) 220.95
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKA! SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-l

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No. 3

Plot size
ow nitarea Ultimate Load
(5r. No.) Plot Type Incustry Type Per Patwer load per unitare
(10,000 m2) (kw/10,000m2) (MW)
1 M1 (ML Industrlal land) 736 480 240
2 M2 (M2 Industrlal land} 2.63 480 ) D86
3 u21 Sewage treatment plant 5.04 200 0.69
A. Ultinate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 3 395
B. Tetal Load In Amperes (Amps) 243,95
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKAI! SPECIA ZONE (RSEZ SE-

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No. 4

Plot Size
Powerload perunitarea Ultimate Load
(5r.No.) Plot Type Industry Type Per

RE Y {10,000 m2) (kW/10,000m2) (Mw)

1 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 624 400 1.70

2 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 5.23 400 142

3 M1 {M1 Industrial land) 32 400 0.87

A.Uitimate Demand of 11 XV Fecder No. 4 3.99
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 246.68
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE {RBEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAXAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-|

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No. 5

Plot Size
Power load perunitarea Uldmate Load
Sr. No. Plot Type Industry Type Per

(10,000 m2) (kW /10,000m2) (MwW)

1 M1 {M1 Industrial land) 3.32 400 " 0.90

2 wi Logistics and Warehousing 277 390 0.73

A.Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 5 ' 1.64
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 101.24
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION
NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-II

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDERS

MAIN ABSTRACT

(Sr.No.) DESCRIPTION Um‘;‘;ﬁ;}““
i 11KV Feeder No. 1 4.70
2 11KV Feeder No. 2 415
3 11KV Feeder No. 3 469
4 , 11KV Feeder No. 4 4,47
5 11KV Feeder No. 5 4.05
6 11KV Feeder No. 6 3.77
7 11KV Feeder No. 7 3.90
8 11KV Feeder No. 8 4,67
9 11KV Feeder No. 9 4.62
A.Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeders (1 to 9) (MW) 39.01
B. Total Load In Amperes {Amps) 2411.71
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

LOAD DETA| F 11 KV FEEDER No. 1

(Sr. Nov) Plot Type Industry Type Pl‘:;:"e Power load per unitarea Ultimate Load
{10,000 m2) . (kW/10,000m2) (MW)
1 o1 Commerclal land 7 600 3
H wit {M1 Loglatlcs and Warehousing} 3.94 300.00 1
3 uit Water zupply 0.03 200.0¢ 0.001
4 uzz Environmental sanitation 0.30 2000 0.0041
5 Fi Rivers 178 2000 0.02
6 81 Commercial land 2.66 600.00 109
A. Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 1 4.70
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amips) 290.50
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-I

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No, 2

Plot Slze
(sr. No.) Plot Type Industry Type Per Power load perunit area ultlmate Load

(10,000 m2) {(kW/10,000m2) (MW}
1 ni Commerelal tand 519 600.00 21z
2 M2 (M2 lndustriat land) 5.11 400.00 167
3 L]} (Fire Fightng) 0.29 200.00 0.04
4 R M1 Residential land) 0zo 200.00 0.03
5 uit Water supply 0.14 200.00 0.02
6 St Land for roads 16.07 20.00 022
7 Gl Fark 461 20.00 0.06
A, Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 2 4.15

B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 256,70
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERMAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

PECIA EZ -
LOAD L. OF EEDER No. 3
(Sr. No.) Plot T Industry Ty, ”';: Size Power load per unit area Ultimate Load
» No. of e ndu e er
w Ty P (10,000 m2) (kW/10,000mz) (Mw)
t M1 (M1 Industeialland) 761 400.00 2.07
2 ML (M1 Industrial land} 546 400.00 1.49
3 M1 (M1 Industrialiand) 417 400,00 113
A, Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 3 4.69
B. Total Load In Amperes [Amps) 2R9.89
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

Al PHASE-N
LOAD Al V FE 0. 4
Plot Size
{sr. No.) Plot Type Industry Type Per Power load per unit area Ultlmate Load
(10,000 m2) (kW/10,000m2) (MW)
1 M2 (M2 Industrial land) 1061 480.00 3.46
2 M2 (M2 Industeiat land) 307 460.00 100
A. Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 4 4.47
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 276.04
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

H 1 1G Z E-
LOAD DET; F 11 FEEDE .
Plot Size
(Sr. No) Plot Type Industry Type Per Powerlead per unitarea Ultimate Load

{10,000 m2) (kW/10,000m2) (MW)

1 M2 {M2 Industrial land) 7.69 8000 251

Z M2 {M2 Industrlal land) 471 480.00 1.54

A, Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 5 4.05
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps} 250.21
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

HAKAI SPECIAL E 1C ZONE E ASE-1l
D TA |
Plot Size
(Sr. No.) Plot Type Industry Type Por Power load perunit area Ultimate Load

{16,000 m2}) {kW/10,000m2) (Mw)

1 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 331 400.00 0.90

2 M1 (M1 Industriat land} 533 400.00 145

3 M1 (M1 Industrtal land} 521 400.60 142

A. Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 6’ 3.77
B. Total Load In Amperes {Amps) 232.89
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELEGTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(R PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKA] SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-]I

LOAD DETAIL OF 1 V FEEDE 0.7

Plot Slze
(57 Na) Plot Type Industry Type Per Power load per unit area Ultimate Load
(10,000 m2) (kW/10,600m2) (MW)
1 ML (M1 Industrial }and) 5.47 400,00 1.49
2 Mt (M1 Industrial land) 4.08 400.00 111
3 Ml {M1 industrial land) 479 100.00 130
A. Ulthmate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No, 7 3.90
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 24113
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
{A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-II

LOAD DETAI 1 KV FEEDER No. 8
Plot Size
(5r. No.j Plot Type Industry Type Per Power load per unit area Ultiinate Load

{10,000 m2) (kW/10,000m2) (Mw)

1 [2}] (M1 Industrial laad) 498 400.00 135

2 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 2 400 0.57

El Mi . (M1 Industrial land) 5.20 400.00 141

4 M1 {MI Industrial land) 4.88 400.00 132
A.Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 8 4.67

B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 288.55
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT} LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKA| SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

BASHAKA] SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-|

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No, 09

Plot Size
(Sr. No.) Plot Type Industry Type Por Power load per unit area Ultimate Load
(10,000 m2) (kW/10,000m2) (Mw)
t M1 (M1 lndustrial land} 729 400.00 198
2 M (M1 Industrial land) 541 400.00 147
3 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 428 400.00 116
A. Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No, 09 4.62
B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps) 285.52
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT} LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION
NETWORK
RASHAKALI SPECIAL ECONOCMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKAI! SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-1lI

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDERS

MAIN ABSTRACT

Ultimate Load
(Sr.No.) DESCRIPTION

(MW)
1 11KV Feeder No.1 & 2 9.14
2 11KV Feeder No.3 TO 7 22.39
3 11KV Feeder No.8 &9 5.92
A. Ultimate Demand of 11 KV Feeders (1 to 9) (MW) 37.45

B. Total Load In Amperas (Amps) 2315.22
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {(PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKAI SPECIAL E MiIC Z RSEZ) PHASE-N

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No. 1 & 2

Plot Size Power load per unlt area

Ultimate Load

(sr. No.) Plot Type Indust: e Per
P ™y Typ (10,000 m2) (kW/10,000m2) (Mw)
1 M1 (M1 Industrial land) 33.61 400.00 9. 14

A. Uitimate Demand of 11 KV Feeder No. 1 & 2

9.14

B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps)

565.20
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
RASHAKAI SPEGCIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHA PECIAL EC MIC Zi EZ) PHASE-III

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No.3T0 7

Plot Slze
: Power load per unit area Ultimate Load
(Sr. No.} Plot Type Industry Type Per ° P
(10,000 m2) (kw/10,000m2) (MW)
1 M2 (M2 Industrial land) 68.59 480.00 22.39
A, Ultimate Demand af 11 KV Feeder No.3 TO 7 22.39
B. Total Load In Amperes {Amps) 1384.07
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

RASHAMAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)

(A PROJECT OF CPEC)

RASHAKAI SPECJAL EGONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ) PHASE-I!

EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION DESIGN FOR THE 11 KV DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

LOAD DETAIL OF 11 KV FEEDER No. 8 & 9
(5. No.) Plot T Industey T Pl"; Slze Power load per unit area Ultmate Load
. No. ot Type ndustry Type oF

{10,000 m2) {WW/10,000m2} (Mw)
1 n Commerclal land 1214 600.00 495
2 Al Administrative office land .02 500.00 0.
3 A4 Sports land a.21 150,00 0.02
4+ A9 Religlous land 0.25 250.00 0.04
5 $1 Land for ruads 112 2000 0.15
& u1t Water supply .49 200.00 0.07
7 U1z Power supply 2.46 200.00 [ K]

a uzz Environmental sanltation 0.25 20.00 0.0034
e 1 Park 18.65 20.00 0.25
10 [ Rivers 6.25 20.00 0,08
A. Ultlmate Demand of 11 KV Feeder Ne. 8 & 9 5.92

B. Total Load In Amperes (Amps}) 365.95

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

Page 45



RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

- “11KV DISTRIBUTION LAYOUT
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (FVT) LTD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK FOR RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
11 KV FEEDER NO. 1, 2, 3,4 & 5 PHASE-I

1 Z .
) T W%
7.69 M2 M2 U3t .
3.07 5.11 !
qu2i

CENTURY STEEL
GRID STATION NO. 2

M1
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mi UM
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Uiz 7.4
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i) ]

w1

LEGEND

@ HT STRUCTURE 45

0 HT STRUCTURE 36

—— 11KV FEEDER No. |
—-== 11KV FEEDER No.
HKV FEEDER No.

——- HKV FEEDER No.
—— 11KV FEEDER No.

[ T
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RASHAKAESPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
11 KV FEEDER NO. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 PHASE-II

M2
3.08

Z.46

GRID
‘Bl STATION-I
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033 nl
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL RECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND GPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
11 KV FEEDER NO. 7, 8 & 9 PHASE-II

[u]
il
j/’ Uit L .
[» M2 ";]
269 Gl &, T J
s M2 M2 M2 U3t /
387 10.61 5.11 471
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L U1 M2
r 208
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e 11KY FEEDER No. 8
——— 1KV FEEDER No. 9
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RASHAKAISPECIAL ECONDMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
11 KV FEEDER NO.2 , 8 & 9 PHASE-III

N

1.72
e e M2
[Uxil] o :
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
11 KV FEEDER NO.3 , 4 & 5 PHASE-III

.72
: M2
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21 o
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND) OPERATION COMPANY {PVT) LTD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)
11 KV FEEDER NO.1, 6 & 7 PHASE-III
D
11.72
M2
m - Uh
7
M2
. M2 M2 M2
19.99 419 7.95
GRID
STATION-1 Ut
1
b
M1 M1
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g
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“SINGLE LINE DIAGRAM”
T1KV NETWORK
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RASHAKALSPECIAL ECONGMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-01 Feeder 01
270 KVA 1776 KVA

0.154 KM
02/ " osp

03

OoSP

1.806 KM
OSP

132 KV
GRID STATION-01

0.270 KM o 0.525 KM
Nl

| 0.025 KM ¢
0% osp

{

- VAM 1281




RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-01 Feeder 02

1529 KVA

2209 KM o\ 0.425 KM

OSP OV osp
S
132 KV 0 | &
GRID STATION-01 = ©
o o
=P
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT)LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-01 Feeder 03

3530 VA
1483 KM o~ 0.584KM . 0.125 KM
OosP -~  OSP OSP
< D.074 KM
132 KV X% OSP
GRID STATION-01 ® 0O
S

VYAM 0001
o
:01 :
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Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-01 Feeder 04
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RASHAKAL SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OFERATION COMPANY (PVT)LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-01 Feeder 05

0.250 KM

©\2.179 KM
~J osp

132 KV 1325 KVA

GRID STATION-01
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RASHAKAS SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (FVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 01
| 1470 KVA

04

S lw

©|S
S
0375 KM

T,
B '_? . E

132 KV fg A

GRID STATION-01 0|0
o

0.025 KM
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RASHAKAL SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 02
3120 KVA

oo}
175

0.342 KM
OSP

0.388 KM
UG5S

132 KV
GRID STATION-01

0322 KM o\

3000 KVA
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0.722 KM

 0.315 KM (03) 0.283 KM
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RASHAKRAL SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT)LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 04

0.M7TKM o~ 0.682KM — 0.619KM =
UG5 Ny OSP x OSP

132 KV
GRID STATION-01

5088 KVA 1470 KVA
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RASHAKAL SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 05

3692 KVA
(04
=
X n
g 7p]
S0
S
0.417KM ,—~ 0.200KM ,— 0.05 KM
ugs VU osp 99 0osp

132 KV
GRID STATION-01

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAY, NETWORK-RASHAKA] SPECIAL ECONCMIC ZONE



RASHAKAISPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

- Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 06

1323 KVA
02
0.083 KM
UGS B
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RASIHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 07

b4

VAM LI6I
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DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASIIAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE P o8
age




RASHAKALSPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 08

1955 KVA

&)

=
X o
- D
~ 0
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-02 Feeder 09

0.835 KM
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 01

0.072KM /= 0.397KM ,— 0.860 KM
UG5 E\m/ uss o2 UGk
‘ X o X 8 0N
132 KV 2 S
1308 KVA
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OFERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 02

~ 0.348 KM o) 0.250 KM (02) 0.200 KM
UG5 OSP OsSP

132 KV
GRID STATION-01

3615 KVA 2819 KVA 1176 KVA
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 03

1.039 KM —~ 0.390 KM

ugs OV OSP

132 KV
GRID STATION-01

01

5625 KVA
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 Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 04

1.049KM o 0.485KM o 0.150 KM
UG5 " OSP OSP

03

132 KV
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

" Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 05

1.060 KM . 0.460 KM = 0.225 KM

uss Y osP z"z OSP
132 KV

GRID STATION-01 2012 KVA i,
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Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 06 |

0.683 KM
UGS

132 KV

GRID STATION-01 f
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RASHAKALSPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOFPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 07
2016 KVA

=)
(o8

0.039 KM
UG5

132 KV
GRID STATION-01

0.237 KM o\ 0.405 KM
=/

3870 KVA
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 08

0.348 KM = 0.8KM . 0.109 KM
UG5 N\ OSP £ OSP

@

132 KV

GRID STATION-01

0.009 KM -
OSP

2175 KVA
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PYVT) LTD

Single Line Diagram of 11 KV RSEZ PHASE-03 Feeder 09

0.348KM ~~ 0.200 KM _—\ 0.975 KM
| ues W osp  Posp P
~|
1350 KVA
GRID STATION-01 § ©

3000 KVA
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

“11KV FEEDER LOAD FLOW
ANALYSIS”

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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W A T RASHAKALSREGIAL EGONONHGZONE DRYELORMENT AND:ORERATION COMPANY((PNTPLTD I T v

LOAD FLOW ANALYSIS FOR -

L0AD aMps

11KV RSEZ P-01 £-01

(C:RSEZLY

{HIGH TENSTON AHALYSIS)
pata : 27/07/21

2 290.00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND T 9525 RVA EXISTING PF = 85 %
BUS  VOLTAGE : 11.0 Xv TATAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 KVa PROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER LOAD _FACTCR z 60 %
: SECTION  TRF. EXISTIHNG SYST¢EH H PROPOSED S5YS3TEHN
: FROM TG LENGTH SIZIE CUM : COND CAP, CURRENT % §{VOLY LOSS : COND CAP. CURRENT &  $vOLT Loss
L_HODE_ NODE_ XMTAS _ KvA VA KVAR aNPs LDNE. DROP RWATTS XVAR AMPs_ LONG, DROP KWATTS :
0.0 1.0 1.845 ¢ 3559 0se 290.v 4 2.3 57.256 290.0 442 2.3 57.256
1.0 2.0 0.25% 0 5559 0se 290.0 4% 2.6 7.758 290.0 44y 2.6 7.758
2.0 3.0 0,250 300 5559 ase 290.0 44 2.5 7.758 296.0  44% 2.9 7.758
3.0 4.0 0150 1776 5259 g5p 2714.3 4% 3.1 4,165 274.3 4% Id 4.165
4.0 5.0 0,323 3483 1483 OSP 18).7 28% 34 3,935 181.7  28% 34 3.935
£xTOTALRX 2,818 5559 §0.872 86.872
SY S TFM SUMMARY
r 3
ﬂ EXTSTING PROPDSED } RENEFIT J
Line Losses H 80.9 W 80.9 K4 0.0 KN
Transformation Losses T 0.0 KN 0.0 Xu 0.0 Kt
Total Power Losses z 80.9 XN 80.9 X4 0.6 KK
% Power Losses z 2% 2 % 0 %
finnual Energy Loss = 306068.2 KWK 306068.2 Xui : 0.0 XWH
% Annual Energy Loss 1% 1% 0s
3
A,
03P - 6608,

1g* Indicates Spot Load. |
v2* Ipdicates Voltage Drap above 5 %

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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2

WaTER ND POWER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC 20NE DEVELQ
PMENT AND OPERATION COMP
LORD FLO ANALYSIS FOR - 11KV RSEZ P-01 F-02 (c+RSEZ2) ANKATNE OHTARA;YS;?
pate : 27/07/2

L0AD ANRS T 220,00 ANPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND H 4192 XvA EXISTING PF ¢ 85 %
BUS  YOLTAGE = 11.0 Xv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 KVA pROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER _LOAD FACTOR __ = 60 %
. SECTION  TRF. : EXISTING SYSTEN : PROPODSED SYSTEHN
{ FRON  TO  LEMGTH SIIE CUM : COND CAP. CURRENT %  %VOLT 1053 : COND CAP.  CURRENT & %VOLT L0SS
2 HODE WHODE  XMTRS__ KVA__ kva : KVAR a4Ps__LDNG. DROP LNATTS @ VAR ANPs  LDHG, _DROP ENATIS :
0.0 1.0 2,200 0 4211 pse 220,033 2.1 39.2%1 0,0 3% 2.1 39.291
1.0 2.0 0.425 1529 1529 (8P 78.9 1% 2.2 1.001 19.9 {2% 2.2 1,004
1,0 3.0 0,125 2682 2682  (QSP 140,1 21% 2.2 0.905 14,1 218 2.2 0. 905
¥XTOTAL** 2.750 421l 41,197 41,197
SY ST FM SUMMARY
i 1
ll EXISTING PROPOSED } BENEFIT ll
Line Losses z §1.2 ¥ 41.2 W 0.0 XN
Transformation Losses : 0.0 X 0.0 KN 0.0 XN
Total Power Losses : 4.2 W 4.2 W 0.0 Wi
% Power losses : 1% 1% 0%
Annual Energy Loss z 155917.8 KN 155917:8 KWH 0.0 KM
% Annual Energy Loss : 1% 1 0%

0sp - 6604,
's” Indicates Spot load.
't* Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 %
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o ot TR U
ot g THTIR O T pigE RSN AR

ER AND POWER J,NQHvﬁ”f'ORIT\
PA
FHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND &PLPRAP%ISN %o (
LOND YLOW ANALYSIS FOR - 11KV ASEZ p-01 £-3 (C:RSELS) (KIGH TENSTON AHALYSIS)
pate : 27/01/21
LOAD AMPS = 243,00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND = 4630 RVA EXISTING PF = 853
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11.0 kv T07AL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 Kva PROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER__L0AD_FACTOR = 60 %
! SECTION  IRF. ‘ EXISTING S5YSTEY : PROPOSED SYSTEMN :
P FROM 70 LENGTH SIZE  CUM : COND CAP. CURRENT & %VOLT LSS : COND CAP. CURRENT § %voOLT 1035
1 NODE__NODE _ KNIRS _KVA  KXVA : KVAR____ AMPs LDNG. DROP _ _ KWAITS : RYAR____.aMPs_ LDNG. DROP . KNATZ§ :
0.0 1.0 1.845 0 4833 03P 3.0 Y LY 40201 3.0 31y 1.9 40,201
1.0 2.0 0175 2833 3633 0SP 192.7 9% 2.0 2.398 1927 % 2.0 2.398
10 4.0 0.445 1000 1000  0SP 5.3 8% 2.0 0.415 50,3 8% 2.0 0.415
2.0 3.0 0.140 1000 1000  0sP 50,3 8% 2.0 0.131 50.3 8% 2.0 0.131
BTOTALFE 2,605 4833 43,145 43,145
SYSTERM SUMMARY
, -
,
L B ‘<1:.T NG { PRAPASED i BENEF T ll
Line Losse; s 3.1 43,1 KW 0.0 ki
Transformation Losses H 0.0 ¥ 0.0 X¥ 0.0 K
Tatal Power Losses : 43.1 KW 43.1 KW 0~0 KW
§ Power Losses : 1% 1 '0 4
fAnnual Energy Loss 3 163296.1 ki 163296.1 KWH 4.0 KieH
% Annual Energy Loss : 1% {4 .0 H
|
SP - 6604, :

' Indicates Spot Load.
' Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 %

_RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY {PVT) LTD

ipir Wt il SR o

e

LOAD  axps

THIBA TENDLUR RAHLIILY)

bate : 2T/07/28

3 246,00 AMps TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND T 4487 KVA EXISTING PF = 8%
BUS  VOLTAGE = 1.0 v TOTAL SPOT L0AD DEMAND = 0 Kva PROPOSED PF = B85 %
- TRTTR T FEEOER._LOAD FACTOR = 40%
. . EXTISTING SYSTEM PROPOSED JYSTEN :
i.g;cn T0  LENGTH SIJE  CUM : COND CAP, CURRENT % %VOLT LOSS : COND CAP. CURRENT % SvoOLT 108§
RE__NODE__ KNIRS _ XvA _ xvA XVAR____ AMPs \ONG, DROP____ KWATIS : KVAR____ AMPs LONG, [DROP____ KMATTS :
0.0 1.0 1.980 670 4693 03P 246.0 I 2.1 44,214 2860 It 2.1 44,214
L.e 2.0 0.525 1023 1023 08P 53.6 8 2.2 8.557 53.6 8% 2.2 9.557
Lo 3.0 0.030 2000 2000 0SP 1048 18y 2.1 0.122 1048 16% 2.1 0.122
1ST0TAL %2 2.535 4693 44,893 44.893
SYSTE M SUMMARY
r -
.

l‘ EXISTING I PROPOSED } BENEFIT jl
Line Losses : 44.9 XM 4.9 N 0.0 o
Transtormation Losses : 0.0 kN 0.0 W 0.0 Kk
Total Power Losses : 4.9 4.9 K 0.0 ¥
% Power Losses : 13 1% 0%

Annual Energy Loss : 169912.2 KM 169912.2 XWH 0.0 T
% annual Energy Loss : 14 1% 0%

0sP - 6604,
*s? Indicates Spot Load.

sy' Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 %
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; WaTlER AND P O

LOAD FLOW ANALYSIS FOR - 1iXV RSEZ P-1 F~5 ({C:RSEZY)

WER DE VY EL
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONCMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AN

M N T aAUTHQO
D OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

RITY

0P E

(H1GH TENSION ANALYSIS)
pate : 27/07/21

LOAD ANPS = 101,09 aMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND H 1924 Kva EXISTING PF = 85 %
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11.0 v TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = d Xva PROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER__LOAD _FACTOR z 80 %
: SECTION  TRF. EXISTING SYSTEN H PROPOSED SYSTEN
» FROM 70 LENGTH SIZE  cUM : COND CAP. CURRENT %  &vOLT LS5 : COND cAP, CURRENT %  %VOLT Lass
: HODE NODE  XMTRS _ XVA Kva @ KVAR ANPs LDNG. DROP KKATTS » KVAR AMPs _ LDNG, DROP KHATTS ¢
0.0 1.0 2,884 1058 2058 Q%8P 101.0  1%% 1.2 10.856 10,0 15% 1.2 10.856
1.0 2.0 0,385 1000 1000 0sp 9.1 7% 1.3 0.342 49.1 7% 1.3 0.342
HTOTALTS 3.269 2058 11.198 11.198
SYSTEM S UMMAaRY
r I} ]
'L_ EMISTIMG PROPASED ! BENEFLT |
Line Lusse; : 11.2 KM 11.2 kW 0.0 Xi
Transfornation Losses : 0.0 X 0.0 KK 0.0 1
Total Power Losses : 11.2 KW 11.2 0.0 XN
% Power Losses : s I % 0%
fAinnual Energy Loss H 42391,2 KNH 42391.2 KWH 0.0 KWH
% Annual Energy Loss : 0% 0% 9%

059 - 6604,
's’ Indicates Spot Load.
'’ Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 §
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4 A T ERRSHARAIMNSFECIAIFECONOMICZONEDEYEKOEMENTPARD 9PERATION CGMPANY (PVT)RTD T v

LOAD FLOM ANALYSIS FOR -

11KV RSET Phase-02 feeder-01 {C:RSEIP2FL)

(HIGH TENSTON ANALYSIS)

bate : 27/07/2L

LOAD ANPS s 290.00 AHMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND T 5525 KVa XISTING PF = 85 %
BUS  VOLTASE = 11.0 kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEHAND = 0 KVa PROPOSED PF = B85 %
FEEQER__LOAD__FACTOR H 50 %
SECTION  TARr. EXTSTING SYSTEN ' PROPOSED SYSTEM :
FRON 10 LENGTH SIZE  CUN : COND CAP. CURRENT % svoL? 1058 : COND  CAP.  CURRENT %  %VOLT Loss
MGDE_ NODE__ XNTRS_.KVA___ KVA : KVAR____ gMPs_ DNG, DROP____ KWATTS : KYAR__ AWPS_ LONS, DROP____ KWATIS :
0.0 1.0 0.400 0 5813 Q%P 290.0 44% 0.5 12,413 290.0 445 0.5 12.413
1.0 2,0 0,450 3530 5813 08P 290.0  44% i.1 13,365 290.0 4% 1.i 13,945
2.0 3.0 0,025 1283 2283 (08P 115.9 178 1.1 0.120 113.9 1%t 0.120
3.0 4.0 0,030 1000 1000  OSP 9.9 8% 1.1 0.078 9.9 8 I.1 0,028
TOTALER 0.905 5813 26.528 26.526
SYSTE M SUMMARY
f T f }
kl EXISTING PRAOPISED Il BEMEFIT 5
Line Losses H 26.5 KK 26,5 KW 0.0 Ku
Transformation Losses : 0.0 XW 0.0 K4 0.0 K
Total Power Losses : 26.5 K 26,5 Xu 0.0 KK
% Power Losses : 1% 1 0%
Annual Enargy Loss 3 100404.4 KHH 100404.4 KEH 0.0 KWH
% Annual Epergy Loss : 0% 0% 0%
0SP - 6608, ¥

*s' Indicates Spot Load.

'$' Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 %
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4 1 ROSHAKALSREGIAL EGONOMIE ZANE DEVELYPHENTAND GPERATISN coMPANY (’;V% RaTY

(HTGH TENSION ANALYSIS)

LDAD FLOY ANALYSIS FOR - 11XV RSE7 Phase-02 Feeder-02 [C:RSEIP2F2)
pate : 27/07j21

LOAD AMPS = 256.80 AHPs TOTAL FEEDER DEKAHD 2 4877 K¥4 EXISTING PF = 85 %
BUS VOLTRGE = (1.0 Rv ' TOTAL 5POT LOAD DEMAND = 0 Kva PROPOSED PF : 85 %
FEEDER__L0AD FACTOR : 60 %
: SECTION  TAF. : EXISTING SYSTEN PROPOSED SYSTER :
©FROM  TO  LENGTH SIZE  CUM : COND CAP. CURRENT & &VOLT L0$S - COWD CAP. CURRENT &  &VOLT Los§s
: _HODE HﬂbE NHTAS__ XVA V8 : KVAR aNBs LDNG, DROP KWATTS ; XVAR AHPs LDNG. DROP YHATTS ;.
6.0 1.0 0,468 g 4885 ose 2560 9% 0.5 i1.318 23,0 39% 0.5 11.3i8
1.0 2.0 0.336 2495 4385  OSP 256,060 39% 0. 1.980 25,0 9% 0.9 7.980
2.0 3.0 0.342 2390 23%  0%P 125.2 1%y L1 1,978 15,2 1% 1.1 1.978
1T07ALS 1140 4885 21,276 21.276
SYSTEM SUMMAaARY
r T T
i EXISTING E PROPOSED J PEMNEFIT J
Lina Losses : 21.3 K% 1.3 % 0.0 XN
Transformation Losses H 0.0 Kk 0.0 Ki 0.0 K
Total Power Losses : 2.3 K% 21.3 ke 0.0 W
% Powsr Losses : 11 1 % 03
annual Enerey Loss : 80530.3 Kiii 80530.3 KWy 0.0 KN
% Annva) Energy Loss : 03 0% 0y
D3P - 608,

’s* Indlcates Spot Load. ,
'*' Indicates Vpltage Drop sbove § %
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DEVELOPMENT AUTHORTI

WwaTE N D POWER
RiSﬁAKATSPECIAL ECONCMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMM&‘“ &EY&P n‘rﬁ‘% 1)
pate : 27/07/21

LOAD FLOM AHALYSIS FOR - 11KV RSEI Phase-02 Faader-3 (C:RSEIP2F3)

TY

LORD ANPS = 289,00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND = 5506 KVA EXISTING PF = @54
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11.0 Kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 XVA PROPOSED PF = B85 %
FEEDER. LOAD FACTOR = §0.%
: SECTION  TRF. : EXISTING SYSTEM : PROPOSED SYSTEMN
: FRON  TO LENGTH SIZE  CUM : COND CAP, CURRENT % 4VOLT LOSS : COND CAP. CURRENT %  SVOLT 083 :
. NODE MODE_ KMIRS._ KVA__ KVA : KVAR____ AMPs LONG. OROP___ KWATTS ; KYAR __ AWPs LDNG, DROP____ KNATIS :
0.0 1.0 0.468 0 5518 03P 289.0 445 0.6 14.473 289.0 4% 0.6 14423
1.0 2.0 0.445 1330 5518 Q8P 289.0 448 1.1 13,715 289.0 4% L1 13715
2.0 3.0 0.300 1753 4188 0SP 219.3 3% 1.4 5,324 29.3 3% L4 5,324
3.0 4.0 2.500 2435 2435  0SP 12,5 19% 2.8 14.9% 1275 1% 28 14.9%
wIgTALes  3.713 5518 48.458 48,458
S YSTEM SUMMARY
] 1 2
i_ EXTSTIMG { PROPOSED 5 BEMEF LT 5
Line Losses H 8.5 KN 48,5 W 0,0 KN
Transformation Losses : 0.0 Ky 0.0 KW 0.0 %
Total Power Losses : 8.5 KW 48.5 KW 0.0 KN
% Power Losses : % 1 % 0
Annual Energy Loss : 183403.3 KW 1834033 KUK 0,0 KNH
% Annual Energy Loss : 1% 1% 0%

059 - 6608,
‘s’ Indicates Spot Load.
'** Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 §
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WA

T ER

AND
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

POWER

DEVELOPMENT

LORD FLOW ANALYSIS FOR - 11KV RBEL Phase-02 Feeder-4 {C:RSETP2F4)

AUTHORTI Ty

(HIGH TENSION ANALYSIS)
Date : 272/01/21

h

LOAD  AMPS 276.00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND : 5259 KvA EXISTING 9F = 85%
BUS  VOLTAGE =  11.0 kv TOTAL SPOT L0AD DEMAND = 0 Kva PROPOSED #F = 85§
FEEDER__LOAD _FACTQR : 60 %
: SECTION  TAF. EXISTING SYSTEH PROPOSED SYSTEMN :
: FROMN 70 LENGTH SIIE CUM : COND CAP. CURRENT % $VOLT 10SS : COND CAP. CURRENT % AVOLT L0sS
;_NODE HNOOE _ KMTRS __Kva KYA : KVAR AMPs  LDNG. DROP KNATTS & KYAR AMPs LDNG, ORQP KNATTS »
0.0 1.0 0,400 0 5250 osp 2716.0  42% 0.5 11.244 276.0 4% 0.5 11.244
1.0 2.0 0.250 0 5250 03P 276.0  42% 0.8 7.027 716.0 4% 9.8 1,027
2.0 3.0 0.425 4070 5250  0SP 276.0 4% 1.3 11.946 276.0 4% 1.3 11,946
3.0 4.0 0.300 1180 1180  @8P 42.0 9% 1.4 0.426 62.0 9% 1.4 0.426
TOTALSX 1.375 §250 30,643 30.643
SYSTEM SUMMARY
) T 1
ﬂ EXISTING I PRAPASED | BENFETT B
Line Losses z 30.6 kW 30.6 KW 0.0 ¥
Transforsation Losses : 0.0 K 0.0 o 0.0 KN
fotal Power Losses : 30,6 X 30.6 KK 0.0 X
§ Power Losses z 1 % 1% 0 %
finnual Energy Loss z 115978.1 KWH 115978,1 Kk 0.0 KiH
% Annval Energy Loss : 0% 0% 0%
03P - 4408,

'8’ Indicates §

pot Load.

's* Indicates Yoltage Drop above 5 §
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-

WATER AND POWER DEVEULOPMENT AUTHORT T

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEV AND OPERATION C crqy 2
LOAD FLOW ANALYSIS FOR ~  {1KV RSEZ Phase-02 Faedar~3 Téfﬁgffﬂi?gﬁ ON COMPANYEAVIEIII®DANALYSTS)

1

Date : 2/07f2y .

LOAD AMPS = 250,00 AWPs T0TAL FEEDER DEMAND = 4763 KVA EXISTING :: = By
BUS VOLTAGE = 11.0 Kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEHAND : 0 KvA PROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER__LOAD FACTOR _ : £0_% :
SECTION  TRF, : EXISTING SYSTEH : PROPOSED SYSTEM ‘
t FRON TO LENGTH SIZE  CUM : COND CAP. CURREKT % $VOLT LOSS : COND CAP, CURRENT % svaLT 1088 :
* NODE_ NODE _ XHMIRS  KVA _ KVA VAR AMPs LDNG. DROP _ KMATTS : VAR ___ ANPs LDHG. DROP____ XMWATTS :
0.0 1.0 0.410 0 4764  0SP 2500 38% 0.4 9.456 2500 38% 0.4 9,486
(.0 2.0 0,25 0 4764 09P 250.0 8% 0.7 5.764 250.0 38% 0.7 5,766
2.0 3.0 ¢.077 1811 1811 03P 95,0 14y 0.7 0,256 95.0 4% 0.7 0,256 .
2.0 4.0 0.850 2053 2953 Q%P 155.0  23% 1.3 7.535 155.0 2% 1.3 7.535
HTOTALFE 1587 4764 23,013 23,013
3YSTEM SUMMARY
- - 7
r K
H_ EXTISTING ] PROPOSED ( BENEFIT 5
Line Losses : 23,0 KN 23.0 K 0.0 XN
Transformation Losses : 0.0 KN 0.0 - X 0.0 KN
Total Power losses : 23.0 KM 23.0 X 0.0 Ki
% Power Losses : 1 % 1% 0 %
finnual Energy Loss : 87103.7 Kwd 871037 KhH 0.0 KitH
% fnnual Energy Loss : 0% 0% 0%
03P ~ 6404,

'§* Indicates Spot Load.
'’ Tndinataa VYnltase Neno above 5§ &
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DEVELOPMERNT

AUTHORTILI V¥V Y

WATER AND POWER
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMI ALY
LOAD FLOR ANALYSIS FOR - CTHRV RSEL Phed GZONE REVELQENIENT AND OPERATION COMPAW“;?E“?;,%?’}?[
LOAD AKPS = 232.00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND 4420 %VA g;éggggg :; gg:
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11.0 Kv TOTAL SPAT LOAD DEMAND 62 :\m
FEEDER. LOAD _FACTOR :
: SECTION  TRF. EXTSTING S5YSTE : PROPOSED sv’jmTLEn s
S FROM T0 LENGTH SIZE  CUM : COND CAP. CURREWT %  %VOLT L0SS : COND CAP.  CURRENT % T 3
. NODE_ NODE _ KMIRS  KVA__ KVA : KYAR _ AHPs LONG. 'DROP____ KWATTS_ : KVAR MBS LDHG, DROP ___ EKMATIS:
0.0 1.0 0.468 0 4455 08P 232.0 3% 0.5 3.295 2320 3% 0.5 9.255
1.0 2.0 0.210 1059 4455 OSP 232.0 3% 0.7 (171 23,0 35% 0.7 5171
20 3.0 0.600 0 33% 03P 1769 7% 1.2 6.928 6.9 21% 1.2 §.928
3.0 40 0,300 0 339 08P 169 M 1.3 1,155 176.9  21% 1.3 1,155
4.0 5.0 0.490 339 3396  0SP 176.9 2% 1.7 5,658 16,9 2% 1.7 5.458
BI0TALEE 1,868 4455 27,207 27.207
SYSTEM SUMMARY
I 1
ﬂ EXISTING } PROPOSED } BEMEFIT ]1
Line Losses 3 21.2 KN 27.2 ki 0.0 KN
Transfarmation Losses : 0.0 Ky 0.0 KM 0.0 KW
Total Power Losses H 27.2 K 27.2 K 0.0 KK
% Power Losses z 1% 1 % 0 %
Annual Energy Loss B 1029751 KwY 102975.1 KoK 0.0 Kwd
% fnnual Energy lLoss z 1% 1% 04

03P - 4408,
'8* Indicates

"*" Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 §

Spot Load.
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OPMENT AUTHORTITY

W A rhshaRar sPECiaPEcoNoMI¢ NE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

LOAD FLON ANALYSIS FOR -

{HIGH TEHSION ANALYSIS)

¥ RSEZ Phase-0% Feeder-7 (C:RSEIP2FT)
Hiw ® i ( bate : 27/01)21

DSP - 660R,

LORD ARPS T 240,00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND z 4573 RvA EXISTING PF 85 %
BUS  YOLTAGE 11,0 kv TGTAL 5P0T LOAD OEMARD = 0 KVR PROPOSED #F = B85 %
FEEDER__L0&D__FACTOR < 60 %
: SECTION  TAE, EXTISTING SYSTENM PROPOSED SYSTEHR r
: FROM 70 LENGTH SIZE CUM : COND CaP,  CURRENT % &vOLT L0SS : COND CAP, CURRENT % XVOLT 1088
« NODE__NODE  KMTRS KA KA : XvaR AMPs _ LONG, DROP KWATTS ¢ XVAR AMPs__LONG, QROP _XNATTS
¢.0 1.0 0,425 ] 4588  0OsP 2400  38% 0.4 9.033 240.0 &% 0.4 9,033
1.0 2.0 0,800 0 3282 Qsp 1717 28% 1.0 8.703 174,71 28% 1.0 8,703
1.0 5.0 0.202 0 1305 0SP 68,3 0% 0.5 0,348 68,3 10% 6.5 0.348
2.0 3.0 0.300 1753 3282 QP 17117 26% 1.2 3,264 171,17 26% 1,2 3.264
3.0 4.0 0,025 1529 1529  QSP g0.0 2% 1.2 0.059 80.0 1% 1.2 0.059
.0 4.0 0,150 1305 1305  OSP 68.3 108 0.5 0,258 48,3 0% 0.5 0.258
FETOTALRR 1,902 4588 21,665 21,665
SYSTEM SIUMMARY
N
F
lL EXISTING ] PROPASED BEMEF LT 5
Line lLosses : 21,7 21,7 M 0.0 X
Transforaation Losses H 0.0 XK 0.0 KK 0.0 XM
Tatal Power Losses H 2t.7 KW 21.7 KK 0.0 K
% Power Losses : [ R 9 %
gnnual Energy Loss : 82017.6 Ru 82017.6 KuH 0.0 XKH
% Annual Energy Loss : 0% R 0%

*s’ Indicales Spot Load.
's’ Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 §
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W A

LOAD FLOW AKALYSIS FOR -

¥

E R

AN D

POWER

DEVELOPH

E

11KV RSEY Phasa-02 Fesder-8 (C:RSEIP2FB)

N T

AU THORTITVY

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD
[HIGH TEASIGN ANALYSIS)

Date : 27)07/2)
LoAD  AHPS T 288.00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND = 5487 Xva EXISTING PF = 85 %
BUS VOLTAGE = 11.0 Kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 KVA PROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER__LOAD FACTOR : 50 %
: SECTION  TAF. EXISTING SYSTEN PROPOSED SYSTEM :
v FROM 7O LENGTH SIZE  CUM : CAP. CURRENT 3 %vOLT L0SS : COND CAP. CURRENT % AVOLT Lo§s :
» NODE NODE  XWIRS _ KvA %VA_: LVAR AMPs LDNE. DROP AMATTS XVAR AMPs __LDNG, DROP KHATTS 1
0.0 1.0 0.300 0 5560 288.0  44% 9.4 9,182 288.0 44% 0.4 9.182
1.0 2,0 0.050 1588 3902 02,1 31% 0.4 0,754 02,1 31% 0.4 0.754
i.0 7.0 0.040 1658 1558 85.9 13% 0.4 0.109 85.9 1% 0.4 0.109
2.0 3.0 0,050 0 234 113.9 18% 0.4 0.265 119.9 188 0.4 0.265
3.0 4.0 0.700 1564 1564 81.0 1% 0.6 1.695 B1.0 12% 0.6 1.635
3.0 5.0 0.202 ] 7150 38.8 4 0.4 0.112 18.8 6% 0.4 0.112
5.0 6.0 0.300 750 750 38.8 6% 0.4 0.167 18.8 6% 0.4 0.147
£3707TAL*E 1.642 5560 12.284 12.784
SYSTEM SUMMARY
r T 1
l' EXISTING PROPOSED J BENEFIT l‘
Line Losses z 12,3 X4 12.3 KN 0.0 K
Transformation Losses T 0.0 kW 0.0 KW 0.0 KN
Tatal Power Losses H 12,3 12.3 KW 0.0 W
% Power Losses z 0 % 0 % 03
finnual Energy Loss : 48516.9 KiH 456516.9 KWH 0.0 kil
% Annual Energy Loss : ] 0% 03
03P - g608,

$* Indicates Spot Load,

*" Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 %
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RASHAKAI SPECIALEGONOMIGZENE DEVELOPHMENTAND ORERATIGN GOMPANY BVT)KTB R 1 T \
{RIGH TENSIOH AWALYSIS)

LOAD FLON ANALYSIS FOR -

11KV RSEL Phase-02 Feeder-9 (C:ASEIPZF9)

Date ; 21/07/21
LDAD ANPS T 285.00 AMPs T0TAL FEEDER DEMAND : 5430 KvA EXISTING PF = B85 %
BUS  VOLTAGE : 11.0 Kkv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEWAND = 0 XVA PROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER__10AD__FACTOR __ = 40 %
H SECTION  TRF, : EXISTING SYSTEN : PROPOSED 8B¥STEM
: FROM TG LENGTH SIZE  CUM : COND CAP. CURRENT &  %vOLT 1035 : COND CAP, CURRENT &  tvoLT 1058
:_HODE_ NODE _ XHTRS _ XvA KY4_: VAR AMPs  LONG, DROP KRATTS @ VAR AKPs _EONG, DAOP RKATTS:
0.0 1.0 0.575 0 5422 05P 285.0 43t 0.7 17.234 285.0 43% 0,7 17.23{
1.0 2,0 0,400 1384 5422 058 285.0  43% 1.2 11.989 285.0  43% 1.2 11.989:
2.6 3.0 0.285 2329 4058  OSP 3.3 It 15 4,785 3.3 I LS 4,185
3.0 4.0 0,580 1729 1729 Q%P 9.9 Ny 17 1.677 %0.9 4% 1.7 1.617-
IITQTAL*S 1.810 5427 35,485 39,5685
SYSTEM SUMMARY
r 1
e BasTOG | peoposzd | meweRIT
Line Losses : 35.7 K¥ 35.7 KN 0.0 Kk
Transformation Losses : 0.0 i 0.0 X4 0.0 XN
Total Power Losses z 35.7 X 35.7 ki 0.0 Xi
% Power Lossas : R { 1% {1 1
Annval Energy Loss H 135066.2 KiH 135066.2 Kk 0.0 Kt
% Annual Energy Loss : 14 1% 0%
05P - ¢504,

'§* Indicates Spat Load.

3" Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 &
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT} LTD

WwATER AND POWER DEVELDRBPMENT AUTHORITY

L0AD FLON AMALYSIS FOR - 1INV RSEL Phase-03Feedar-1 (CiRSEIPSFI) (HICH TENSTON RAALYSIS)
Date : 2107121
LOSD AMPS - 242,00 AMPS TOTAL FEEDER OEMAMD = 4811 KVA EXISTING PF : 853
BUS VOLTAGE = 11,0 kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DENAND = 9 tva PROPOSED $F = B5 %
FEEDER LOAD FACTOR = 60 % - -
: SECTION  TRF, : EXISTING SYSTEH : P3aPOSED SYSTEHM :
T FROM 0 LEWGTH SIZE  CUN : COND CAP. CURRENT &  %voLT LBSS ¢ COND CAP. CURRENT & 3VOLI oss :
L MODE MODE  KMIRS  KVA__ AVA_: LVAR___ aMPs_LDNS. DROP _ KMATIS : AVAR _ AMPs LONG. ORDP  KNATIS :
0.0 1.0 0.125 1548 4sf6 03P 242,06 I 0.l 2,701 242.0 I 0 2,701
LO 2.0 0.425 2022 3068 03P 160.8 MY 0.4 4.035 160.8 4% 0.4 4.055
2.0 3.0 0.083 1046 1045 057 5.8 B 0.4 0.092 4.8 8% 0.4 8,092
HITALIE 0,433 4816 5.848 6.848
SYSTEM SUMMARY
ﬂ EXTSTING PROPOSED BENEFTIT }
Line Losses g 6.8 W 6.8 1 0.0 %I
Transforsation Losses : 0.0 X 0.0 0.0 W
Total Power Losses H 6.8 KN 6.8 W 0.0 M
% Poxer Losses z [ J % ¢ %
Annual Energy Loss : 25937.7 1 25937.7 WM 6.0 XuH
% Annual Energy Loss H [ 4 0% 03
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DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORTITY

WATER AND POWE R ON COMPANY (PVT) LTD
PECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATI
Loa BER AN vszlssron - 11KV RSEZ P-03 F-02 (C:RSEIP3F2) (HIGH TENSION AHALYSIS)
Date @ 27/07/21
LOAD AMPS = 319.00 AMPs TOTAL FEEOER DEMAND = 4078 Kva EXISTING PF 85 :
8US  VOLTASE = 1.0 kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 Kva PROPOSED PF = 85
FEEDER LOAD FACTOR __: 80.% )
: SECTION  THRf. ' EXISTING SYSTEHM H PROPOSED SYSTEN :
tFROM 70 LEWGTH SIZE  CUN : COND CAP. CURRENT % SVOLT  LOSS : COND CAP. CURRENT % vOLT  LOSS :
:_HQDE__NODE  XMIRS  Xva XVa @ £VaR AMPs LDNG, DROP KHATTS KYAR ANPs  LDNG. DRQP LWATTS ¢
0.0 1.0 0,325 0 64148 0SP 319.0  48% 0.4 12,204 319.0  48% 0.4 12,204
L0 2.0 0.240 0 6148  05P 319.0  48% 0.7 9,012 319.0 4B% 6.7 9.012
2.0 3.0 0.050 2892 148  OsP 319.0 48% 0.8 11877 319.0  48% 0.8 1.877
3.0 4.0 0,400 225 3256 (3P 168.9  26% 1.1 4.211 168.9  26% 1.1 4,211
4.0 5.0 0,350 1000 1000 OSP 51.9 8% 1.2 0.348 51.9 EH 1.2 0,348
3TPTALRE 1,365 6148 27,652 27.6352
SYSTFEM SUMMARY
" 1
,; EXIR’TING PROPOSED } BEMEFIT }
Line Losses : 2.7 W 2.7 KK 0.0 XM
Transformation Losses : 0.0 w 0.0 KK 0.0 KN
Total Power Losses : 21,7 KN 1.7 K¥ 0.0 Xi
% Power Losses : 1% 1 % 0 4%
Anaual Energy Loss : 104666.7 KWK 104666.7 XkH 0.0 XWH
% Annual Energy Loss H 0% 0% 0%

'03|P - 6608,
’S' Ind'icates Spot Load.
" Indigates Voltage Drop above 5 §

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

Page 93

\



¥ RASHAKRI SPECIAL RCONBMICYONEDEVELOBMENT ANY 0BERATION EOMP?&%‘[;V'IH] 1o

LOAD FLON AMALYSIS FOR - 11XV RSEL B-03 F-03 (C:RSEZPIF3)

LOAD  AMPS

I TY

(HIGH TENSTON ANALYS1S)
Date : 21/07/2)

08P - 6608,

’8" Indicates Spot Load.
's" Indicates Voltage Orop above 5 %

T 244,00 ANPs TQTAL FEEDER DEMAND T 4649 KVA EXISTING PF = 85 %
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11.0 ¥v TOTAL $POT LOAD DEMAND = 0 xva PADPOSED PP = 85 %
FEEDER _LDAD FACTOR z 60 %
: SECTION  TRF. EXTISTING SYSTEN PAOPOSED SYSTEN
: FROM T0  LENGTH SIIE CuM : COMD CAP.  CURREKT % XVOLT LOSS : COND CAP, CURRENT % $VOLI (RiH]
: NODE NODE _ KMTRS  XVA _ KVA : KVaR fMPs _ LDNG. DROP ENATTS ¢ KyaR AKPs LONG. OQROP KNATIS @
0.¢ 1.0 1.750 0 4670, Q5P 2440 1y L8 38,445 4.0 I} 1.8 18,445
1.0 2.0 0.110 1610 4670 08P 2440 Ik 1.9 2.417 2440 1% 1. 2.4i7
2.0 3.0 0.225 3080 3040 psP 159.9 24§ 2.1 2.123 159.9  24% 2.1 2.123
TETOTALSS 2.08% 4870 42,985 42,985
SYSTFEFM SUMMARY
r 1 1
tl EXISTING l PROPOSED BENEFIT |l
Line Losses : 43.0 XN 43,0 X 0.0 TN
Transformation Losses : 0.0 Xi 0.0 KW 0.0 Ki
Total Power Losses : 43.0 K 43.0 0.0 K
% Power Losses : 13 1% 9 %
Annual Energy Loss T . 1626B4.1 YW 162684,1 KR 0.0 XN
% Aanugl Energy Loss : 1% 1% 0%
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ELOPMENT AUDTHNDRITTY
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATIGN COMPANY (PVT) L

) (HIGH TE smu ANM.\‘S[S)
L0AD FLON ANALYSIS FOR - 11KV RSEI P-03 F-04 {C:RSEIP3F4) it

L0AD  ANDS : 301,00 ARPs T0TAL FEEDER DEMAND T 5735 KVA EXISTING PF : 85:
8US  VOLTAGE = 1i.0 kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 Ava PROPOSED PF = B3
FEEDER_ LOAD FACTOR = 0 %

: SECTION  TRF, : EXISTING SYSTEMN : PROPOSED SYSTEMN ,
: FROM  TO  LENGTH SIIE  CUM : COND CAP. CURREAT &  %VOLT 1055 : COND CAP. CURRENT %  tvoLl 1085 .;
3 BODE_ NODE  KMIRS _ XVA__ VA : (VAR AMPs LDNG. DROP___ KNATTS : KYAR____ AMPS_ LDNG, 0RQp____KWATTS ::
0.9 1.0 L7500 0 seed  OSP 301.0 46% 2.3 5B.506 1.0 4% 2.3 58506
1,0 2.0 0,135 750 5800 Q5P 0.0 48y 2.3 4.513 301.0 468 2.5 L5134
2.0 3.0 0.15 5050 5050 03P 2%2.1 4% 2.7 3.802 22,1 405 2.7 3.802
EATOTAL 2.035 3800 66.821 86.871
[

SYSTEM SUMMARY '

T 1

11 ENISTING PROPOZED il DE.NEFIT Jl

Line Losses : §6.8 KN 44,8 KK 0.0

Transformation Losses H 0.0 K 0.0 KW 0.0 KN

Total Power Losses 3 §6.8 I 66.8 N 0.0 kv

% Pouer Losses : [ 13 0 %

fnnual Eaergy Lass H 257887,2 KKk 252887.2 KK 0.0 K¥H

% Annual Energy Loss : 1% 1% 03

0SP - 660R,
's' Indicates Spot Load,
'$' Indicates Voltage Orop above § 3
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WwaAaTlER AND

LOAD FLON ANALYSIS FOR -

POWER

{C:RSE2P3FS)

DEVELOPMENT
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMP
114V ASET P-03 F-05

ANDTHORITY

AN RV LA 1s15)

pate @ 27/01/21
LDAD ANRS T 235,00 aMPs TATAL FEEDER DEMAND : 4477 K EXISTING PF : gg z
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11.0 &v 10TAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 v PROPOSED PF <
FEEDER LORD_ FACTOR : 60 % .
: SECTION  TRF. : EXISTING SYSTEM : PROPOSED SYSTEN Lassl
¢ FRON 70 LENGTH SIZE CUN : COMD CAP, CURRENT % 3vOLT 1055 : COND CAP, CURREAT % 3$VOLT o :
1 NODE  NODE _ KRTRS _ XVA Kya_: KVAR aMPs  1DNG, DRDP XNATIS : KVAR AM8s_ LONG, _OROP WNATIS
0.0 1.0 L.7%0 4500 4500  05P 235.0 163 1.8 36.477 235.0  18% 1.8 36.477
2TQTALYS 1,790 4500 16,41 36,477
IYSTFH SUMMaRrRY
1
| EXTSTING J PROPOSED BENEFIT |
b e e JRE N SN USSR
Line Losses : 3.5 K§ 36,5 W 8.0 M
Transformation Losses H 0.0 Ki 0.0 i 0.0 KN
Jotal Power Losses : 36.5 MW 6.5 N 0.0
% Power Losses : 1% 1% 03
Annual Energy Loss H 138048.2 KWH 138048,2 WK 6.0 Kitt
% annual Energy Loss : 1% 1% 0%

059 - 4608,
'S’ Indicates Spot Load.
"3* Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 §
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AND POWER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

L0AD RESHAKNESHECIAL ﬁ;q&glglog 7ONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

o F-06 (C:RSEZP3FS) (HIGH TENSIOK ANALYSIS)
s : :
I siz.goxnnps TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND = 6459 KVA EXISTING pfmfeﬂ/iml e
0k TOTAL SPGT LGAD DEMAND : 0 KVA PROPOSED pF = 85 % “’—
: TR = FEEDER, LOAD FACTOR _ = 60 4 )
) - : ISTING SYSTEM
: FRON T0 L : ; PROPOS :
: NODE WOOE ::f;; sxz\f; :3: P 0N CAP. - CURRENT % RVOLT L0SS : COND  CAP. c?masfno z“t?foTu” 0SS ¢
H KVAR____gKPs LDNG, DROP _ XWATTS : KVAR__ AMPs LONG. DROP_ KWATIS.:
0.0 1. : : ] )
1.0 0,650 6505 6305 0P 39.0 518 0.9 27,564 339.0 518 0.9 27.564
HTOTALE 0,650 6505 27,564
: 27.564
S Y S T
., Y TEM SUMMARY
Line Losses : ;
' : 2.6
Transformation Losses : 0.0 Y:f s 0.0 X
Total Power Losses : 7.6 KN o0 0.0 ¥
§ Pousr Losses : g 27'61 K;‘ 0.0 M
0%
fAnnual Energy Loss - 104313
: REL
% Annual Energy Loss : X 1043!3'60 :“” 0.0 KM
R 1

SIP - 6604,
’ Ind_icates Spot Load.
Indicates Voltage Drap above 5 %
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: Y
W A T RASHAKAPSPECPAL ECONOMICEORE DEVER) PMENTAND GPERATION COMP ARG (gt 1o | T

ERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD
LDAD FLOW ANALYSIS FOR - 11KV RSEI P-03 F-07 (C:RSEZPIFT) (HIGK TENSION ANALYSIS)
pate : 27/07/21
LOAD #MPS T 243,00 8MPs T0TAL FEEDER DEMAND H 4530 Kva EXISTING PF = 85 %
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11,0 Kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 kVa PROPOSED PF = 8% %
FEEDER_LOAD FACTOR = 60_% B
: SEETION  TRf. : EXYISTING SYSTEMN : PROPOSED SYSTEH :
-+ FROM 70 LENGTH SIif CUN : COND CAP, CURRENT % }VOLT L0SS : COND CAP. CURRENT %  3vOLT L08s
: NOBE __HODE__ XMIRS _ KVA KVa - {VAR BMPs LDNG. _DROP KHATIS : XVAR f4Ps LONG, DREP INATIS :
0.0 1.0 0.300 0 463 DSP 243.0 315 0.3 6,537 243.0 I 0.3 6.537
1.0 2.0 0.400 1544 1544 ns3p 80.9 12% 0.4 0.966 8.9 12% 0.4 0,966
1.0 3.0 0,215 3095 3095  OSP 162.1  25%y 0.4 2.085 162.1 2% 0.4 z2.085
3XTOTALYR 0.915 4439 9,588 9,588

SYSTEM SuUMMaRY

3 T 1
8 EXISTING } PROPOSED 1 BENEFIT J
Line Losses : 9.6 ki 9.6 K 0.0 X
Transformation Losses : 0.0 W 0.0 0.0 KH
Total Poser Losses H 9.6 KH g.6 Ki 0.0 K
% Power Losses : 0% 0% (13 1
Annual Energy Loss : 36299,2 KW 36299.2 Y¥H 0.0 KNH
% Annual Energy Loss : 0% 0% 0%

08P - 4608,
'S’ Indicates Spot Load.
'8’ Indicates Yoltage Drop above 5 %
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WA TER AND POUWER DEVELOPMERNT AUTHORT T v
RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMP@N\’ (PN ]ﬂmSls)

LOAD FLON ANALYSIS FOR - LikV RSEI P-03 F-08 (C:RSEIP3FE)
Data ¢ 27/07/21
LORD  ANMPS T 185,00 AHPs TOTAL FEEDER DEHAND T 3525 KVA EXISTING PF = 25%
8US  VOLTAGE = 11,0 kv TOTAL SPOT LORD DEWAND = 0 kv PROPOSED PF = 85 %
FEEDER__LOAD FACIDR = 60 %
: SECTION  THF, : EXISTINE SYSTEM PROPOSED SYSTEN :
: FROM TO LENGTH SIZE  CUN : COND CAP. CURRENT % SVOLT L0SS : COMD CAP.  CURRENT &  $VOLT Loss ¢
L NODE MODE _RMIRS KVA  XVA_: KVAR AMPs  LONG. DROP-  KHATTS : Kvag AMPs LONG,  0AgP LHATTS :
0.0 1.0 0.325 0 3770 6sP 185.0 8% 0.3 4,104 185.0 28% 0.3 4,104
1.0 2.0 0240 ¢ 11 Q3P 185.0 2% 0.9 3.08 185.0  28% 0.5 3.031
2.0 L0 0432 2170 3770 0%k 185.0 28% 0.8 5,456 185.0 7B% 0.8 5,456
3.0 4.0 0.979 1000 1000 03P a1 7% LD 0.8647 8.1 7 1.0 0.847
$3T0TALSS 1.972 I : 13,458 13.458

SYSTEM SUMMARY

¥ T

|| EXISTING PROPASED E REMEF 1T 5
tine Losses : 13,5 XN 13.5 X 0.0 K
Transformation Losses : 0.0 Ki 0.0 1 0.0
Total Powet Losses z 13.5 ¥ 13.5 AN 0.0 v
% Power Losses z 0% 0 % 02
finnual Energy loss : 50943.8 ¥id 50943.8 KKH 0.0 Xef
% Annual Energy Loss : 0% ¢s 0

05P - g604,
"S' Indicates Spot Load,
* Indicates Voltage Drop above 5 %
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WwAaTER AND P OWER DEVELOQPMENT AUTHORTTY

RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD
(HIGH TENSION ANALYSIS)

LOAD FLOW ANALYSIS FOR - 11KV RSEZ P-03 F-09 (C:RSEIP3IF9)
pate ; 27/07/24
L0AD AMPS o 176.00 AMPs TOTAL FEEDER DEMAND : 3353 KvA EXISTING oF - 8BS %
BUS  VOLTAGE = 11.0 kv TOTAL SPOT LOAD DEMAND = 0 KvA PROPOSED 9oF = B5 %
FEEDER LOAD _FACTOR : 40 % )
: SECTION  TRF. : EXTSTING SYSTEH ' PROPOSED SYSTEMN :
« FROM 70 LEKGTH SIZE  CUM : COND CAP. CURRENT § 3VOLT LOSS : COND CAP,  CURRENT %  AvOLY 1033 :
: NODE HOOE _ KMTRS 1va £VA - VAR AMPs  LDNG. DROP KHATTS KVaR AMPs_ LDKG, DROP KNATTS ¢
0.0 1,0 0,35 0 33 a5 176,0  27% 0.2 375 17,0 1% 0.2 3.5
1.0 2.0 0.240 ¢ 330 osp 176.0  27% 0.4 2,743 176.0 27% 0.4 2.743
2.0 1.0 0.800 1685 3370  QOSP 176,00 21% 0.9 6.858 176,0 21% 0.9 6,858
3.0 4.0 0,100 1885 1485 08P gg.0  13% 0.9 0.284 88.0 IR 0.9 0.286
13.402 13,602

EIOTALE 1.265 3370

SYSTEM SUMMARY

I T R
L EXISTING PRAPNSED | BEMEFTLT ||
Line Losses H 13.6 KW 13.6 KN 0.0 X¥
Transforaation losses : 0.0 X¥ 0.0 K 0.0 W
Total Poser Losses H 13.6 KN 13.6 K 0.0 XN
¥ Pawer Losses : 0 3 0 % 0%

Annval Enargy Loss T 51489.5 KWH 51489.5 &WH 0.0 KiH

+ Annval Energy Loss z 03 0% 0%

; U'SP = 6608,
'S' Indicates Spot Loag,
*" Indicates Valtage Drop above 5 %
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RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

COMPLETE LAYOUT OF
11KV NETWORK
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RASHAKA] SPECTAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELCPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK FOR RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)

11 KV PIPE DUCT LAYOUT FOR PHASE I, II & III

e o
[ ] T B
® | ® AN
4 |
L T
F l ! 3} :
| 10 ! i
CENTURY STEEL 0717 83 >
(4348 Sq my 1] e iy NN
/ GRID STATION MO, 2 "‘“ﬂ T " o e a LEGEND
(.. K O 3x4 MonHola
® 23 Nualole
) @ (S) @ 22 MonHols
\ @ 202 HanHols
ke a—a 34 DUCT LINE
*—o X5 BUGT LNE
@ o e X2 DUCT LKE
e 44 DUET LHE,
P
e B Y m

DESIGN BOOK FOR 11KV EXTERNAL NETWORK-RASHAKAL SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE

Page 102



RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION COMPANY (PVT) LTD

HT DISTRIBUTION NETWORK FOR RASHAKAI SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE (RSEZ)

11 KV FEEDERS LAYOUT FOR PHASE I, IT & III
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: NATIONAL TRANSMISSION & DESPATCH COMPANY LTD

CHIEF ENGINEER DESIGN (NTDCL)

A < L .
No.CED/NTDC/MGS/G/22/ '}:\ G $)""' ! i I):\ten?f SH]/ZOZI
" Chief Executive Officer. Rashakai
v Special Economic Zone Development

And Operations Company Private Limited
HHouse # 02, Street No.33, F-8/1, Islamabad

Subject: CONTOUR APPROVAL/VETTING OF CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS
FOR 132KV GRID_ STATIONNO.G1 (120MW) & 132KV _GRID
STATION-I¥ (90 MW) JOB NO.1804-N: RASHKAI SPECIAL
ECONOMIC ZONE

Refi- i) Your letter No. RSEZDOC/HO/2021/105 dated 23.11.2021
it) Your letter No. RSEZDOC/HO/2021/103 dated 16.11.2021

With reference to your letter at Ref[i], the following drawings of the subject
wark have been reviewed and one copy of the same duly approved with remarks marked
in red thereon, to be incorporated is enclosed herewith for further necessary action.

Sr.No . Description Drawing No.
1 Single Line Diagram GW-2019-0001-132KV-ES001
(2 General Layout Pian GW-2019-0001-132KV-Z01

Approval from this office does not relieve the Contractor from his
responsibility to do the work in accordance with the contract. :

In case of any incompatibility in drawings with the actual site conditions,
the case may please be referred to this office for remedial measure/advice prior to start
ol the work. '

D.A as Above
Copy to:
i- Chief Executive Officer, PESCO, Peshawar
2- Chie Engineer (Dev.) PMU PESCO Peshawar
- Master File/ Relevant file

e e ]
143-WAPDA HOUSE Lahore Ph.#.042-99202638 Fax #. (42-99202502
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ANNEX ~E-3

THE EXPECTED LIFE OF THE SYSTEM

The expected life of the system will be approximately 30 years.



ANNEX — E-4

THE LOCATION OF THE SYSTEM, OR THE TERRITORY WiTH OUTER BOUNDARIES
WITHIN WHICH THE SYSTEM IS PROPOSED TO BE INSTALLED AND OPERATED BY
THE LICENSEE, ALONG WITH MAPS AND PLANS

The RSEZ is adjacent to the Kernal Sher Khan interchange on M-1, which is the main motorway
linking Peshawar with Islamabad and CPEC alignments. The RSEZ is also 30 km from Mardan
in the north, 35 km from Nowshera in the south, 40 km from Peshawar in the west, and 150
km to Islamabad in the east, which enjoys a unique location advantage. RSEZ is located in the

northwest of Hattar SEZ, where the linear distance is about 73 km.

Micro and macro maps of the RSEZ are provided herein below.

Further, land documents pertaining to the acquisition and possession of the service territory

(1000 Acres of land) is provided herein below.
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Office of the
Tehsildar Jehangira

(Phone No0.0923-310229, E-mail: ACJehangira337@egmail.Com)

No. V& rTehiden2019

&£ _March, 2019

To

Li Zhihuai

General Manager

China Road and Bridge Corporation (Pakistan),

House No 2 Street No 33 F-8/1, Islamabad, 44000, Pakistan.

Sub: Non- Encumbrance Certificate (NEC) for the Rashakai SEZ Land (RSEZ)

With reference to the above subject, we would like to submit the Non-Encumbrance
Certificate (NEC) for the Rashakai SEZ land. The Project Land is not subject to any
encuinbrances or legal disputes other than the existing Court cases related to the Enhance
Price of the land. The Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic Zone Development and Management
Company filed an appeal before the Hon'ble Peshawar High Court against the Enhance
Price of the subject land.

The land has been acquired through Land Acquisition Act 1894 vide Award Notification
order dated 28-05-2010 by fulfilling all the Jegal and code! formalities .The land Measuring
approximately 1000 Acres Expansion of Nowshera Industrial Estate at Misri Banda,
Mishak, Ali Muhammad and Mughalki on Peshawar Islamabad Motorway (M-1) District
Nowshera.

/ 4

‘ehsildar, Jehangjra
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KRHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA
ECONONMIC ZONES DEVELOPMENT
& MIANAGENENT COMPANY

Ref No: KPEZDMC/RSEZ/03 Date: 12/17/2018

The Deputy Commissioner,
Nowshera,
Govt of KPK.

Subject: Land demarcation of Rashakai special economic zone en urgent basis

Respected Sir,

It is to bring in your kind information that KPEZDMC is in progress to initiate Rashakai
Special Economic Zone as per government poticy. In this regards KPEZDMC Management had
meeting in your office on dated 12/11/2018, KPEZDMC has initally decide to demarcate the
land of SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE RASHAKAI as per your permission,

Therefore KPEZDMC is requesting you to provide all the concerned Halga Ptwaris one at a time
( MisriBanda, Ali Muhammad, Mishak, Mughalki,Nandrak) for land demarcation of all sides

with solid reference points and provide security.
\! ~
AR |

KPEZDMC will highly appriciate your prompt action and support.

Your F aithfﬁl
- e Estate Manager Rashakai SEZ
vt )
f\ ' v w-} M. Asif Khan
ok "\\.'1 l.\»
a




KHYBER PAKHTUNKHWA
Economic Zone Development & Management Company
RESZ.

Gont: of Khyber Pakbtonkiivg

o RESZ and!

-
i)alcti:_i‘_{}//éj 204y,
/

The Assistant Commissioner
lehangiera.

Subject: DEMARCATION OF LAND AT RESZ.

| am directed by the competent authority and to state here that the: (RBC {chines based
company) are going on to start survey in adjoin land of the acquired 1000-acre land uf RESZ. Therefore,
it is to request you to please depute the concerned revenue staff (halga Patw iri and Girdawar) to
demarcate the boundaries of acquired land measuring 1000 acres of RESZ on 1 rgent basis so as to
facilitate the foreigner company in the site work. ; - .
. :{M
" - state Manggdr

RESZ, KPEZDNIC

cC:

1 The DC, Nowshera .

2. The MEQ, KPEZDMC, Peshawar. N

3. PSto CEQ, KPEZDMC, Pesh S e )
A i - -
i f’ . L /,:,// 4 \;




Office of the 5%
Deputy Commissioner
Nowshera

{OFive Phones 14239220009, fie s GO73-92201 59, Epwil: donsrok@ivahoo.com)

12 August, 201%;

NOTIFICATION !,
l
No.o_ [DR/DCALT 2018-19/NSR. In pursuance of Bogrd of Revenue, Revenue & Estate
Depanment, Government of Khyber Pakl-lumhwa ieller No. AS(S)3/249/Swabi-P-1/27953-74
dateri 17.07.218 and in supersession of this office Notification No.£82-812/DK/DCNVT. 2017-
18NSR dated 31.072017, revised valuatica teble for the year 2018-14 is nolfied for istrict
Nowshara @ per Marla for the purpase of evaluation of Stemp Dmyl Mutation ieef Registration’fze
15 per schedule attached to this notification showing rate of difiersnt lypes of land. JThe va&haho /
table shall lzke place with immediate effect and shall cemain in force il fun?wr"m\er&

G QL — AoH iDKDCNT 2618-19/NSR I

Copy forwarded for information {o the:-

1-  Senior Member of Revenue, Government of Knyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar,

2- Comniissionsr | Peshawar Division, Peshaviar

3. Sewstaty-l, Board of Revenue, Govemment of Khyber Pakhiunihwa, Peshavar.

4. Director Land Records, Government of Knybar Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar,

5- Distriri Nazim Nowshera.

6- Director General Excise and Taxation,Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar.
'I -

Controiler, Government Printing press, Peshawar, for publication in next issue of
government Gazette. '
~—————8~ Assistant Secretary (Stamps), Board of Revenue, Government of Khyber Palthtunkbwa
Pashawar wit ta his cffice letter quoted above.  *
9. Additional Depu ty Commissioner, Nowshera.
' 10~ Executive Engineer (C& W), Civision Nowsher
11- Executive Officer, ("antmmeﬂ‘ Board, Mowsheraf Rizalpur,
12- Militery Eswates Officer, Nowshara,
13- Assistant Commissioner, NowsheralJehangira.
14- All Additional Assistant Commissioner in District Nowshera.
15- Tehsil Municipal Officer, Nowshera/Pabbilletangira.
18- Account Officer Deputy Commissicner Nowshera & Gavernmant Gazette.
17- Tehsiidar, '
Nowshera JPabbi/Jehangira.
18- Naib Tehsiidar, Khairabad.
19- Sub-Registrar, Nowshera.
20- Office Copy.

-t

PR 5 i e b s 3 et iy AT -

“r

{(From $¢ 17t 19 ) For necessary acting & witluthe ¢ 'g
divection w affix at conspicuous places and at

PatwarK haras for the informotion of general publ];

Pt

!

a— e a s

Distiicy %'!ector
5,‘ b—h:';(/s.hu.ra
/

¥ s




- s ‘///( l//[) /1/3( //J)z//“ @'

: COUIT DFDISTRICT OFFICER (R&EVE OLLECTORNWSHERS, a

cvpad Under seeton 1T of the 1, "m,l \ct'ni\'it".o‘n Act 1894 in respect of the fand acyuired
s ﬂw purp_n'v' af "F\p m\mn nf \uuslnra m(hmrnl ]sl'm i@t \Iesn B.nul.‘! Mcsh:lk,

1 . 7

The Acquiring De nnm~-m l S;mnd D..\elumrcnt Anth d:]!;.r Guv of Khvbcr Pukiitoon-Khwzeer.
s requesicd vide Ris lerte : No. 53 L’\H O.a-r\.'nf) 18 dated 19,04, 008 to ,m.nzc a‘cqu:.s;l]duﬁ«?'”
proveeding for the fand measuring OF"J Aere for “I}.(p.msmn~01' Noiwshera Iudus(rml Lstate at Mesri
Banda, Meshak, A Mulmmmad and Mu;,hulkj én Pc‘gmusm’ I::l.u:mbml dlatamyay DiSlﬂ

Feonwshici,

&,

Accordiogly, Draft Notitication U/S-4 cft‘*c Lanid Acquisi:iou Act, 1894 wes notifled vidc this

aificy Motification Mo, 620-26/ D(‘)IU\‘.(._NM'] 7.06.2008 and copies thereof e sdorsed to all
'
werns Lo List of Khasia aumbers s nolmcd/mcnuoncd u} !lp,Na:iﬁcaiion Under Scctioa —-} is

aliached o Annexure - AL '

>
The Revenue Officer Circle/Tebsildar Nowshera wdc e N o.&.;()/‘)OIUAcq 30.06.2008 m.s
dirented we bwnish Ausat Yaksala bused on ihe rates of amnations attested l'rom '18.06. 2007 o

VT80 Ty

N8 Hie Revenue Cnticer Circles Naib Ichs:!dar Kn‘nm.md has fumlshf‘d \-.>u. Yaksal vm-”

inaczidorsement Noo 201/ T dated 27.08.2008. Da.::l of reies 3s per Ausat Yaksali is s :mdcr:*""'s'

ii.}"'.v-‘f | Natwie of muza | Kiwd of land Asnsur Yaksala _}::r Kanal
; 1. | i dlalaaymend Baruni = 1452886

-

ira 137150
HESR00 (A
{ Banjig, Ged '{,Qﬁﬂe T G (A 1
T Gha:n\@m.:n e 20076 (A adj ‘ ) T
fh-;;f.';f; “_-%Ai):.{)‘.‘l_.“ VT
‘ le;r Montkin u';.’_ﬁ_ﬁ"‘(x.(adj) “s o
Nl G T: 75050 '_ _ .
. Mera P ! TAIGRY ] - LR
Barani iiiing 1 - -7 N

| Ghair Mumbkin ir(ﬂ “‘()U/u(}( \LIJ)

ng i Oacleens 5639720 .

L | Misrl Baida Barani - 14693/87 . ’ 4 N
ST e W Chabie | 220881

10 o | B Qudeem & e -
6 o Mera = NN

17 i(’u o wo;':‘uf;w\'tunxk}‘fig -‘J"ﬁ():ﬂ_;f{f/f,d _ R ——

Lot e o

. . “

It s mentaned that lhc ran: of WNul Chahi kind of ar:cj has beun cetermined:-from the piseent Mz -

Sushuk, whereas te s of Ban;cr Qadt.c:h kind of land has been u‘ud.ui vui lrom Lhc aedj €43 Muza Mughalki,

wiike the rae of Chair Mmkin King 4501“ land of Muzs Ali M'1ha| Rad sz been carricd 99% from ”’”'ﬂd}ﬁﬁ’ﬂf“

adjrant Mg »-co,gl Banda and e ru i¢ of Ghate Mumka kind of fad off o deasin "M'

Fofusa Mesri Bancls and the ge of Guz- ¢ Mismkin kind of laad -q Thuza Lieshak Las b ¥ SOMIC ul "“‘ﬂ U-C
)ﬁ\ v Muginadh Fhias b

liou lh, an'!Lcn \1uJ..| Miesri Ii.nd i




'

13

- bccn delermined I’rom the adjacent Muzas. {

: ‘Slmh 'SIO Mumn.lr residents of Muglsihi, (V) Flagi Alsar Ullal $70 Ghan Ullal ets (v Inavat ur Rehman S7O
. ’ﬁulmn Muliamiad RIO Meshak (vii3 Amic Mubammed $:0 Neer Mutummad eie (vin) Shah Wall $/0
; Muthammad Hanif and Muhtaram 5/0 Abdur Rashid A Mesri Ba

14
I~
!hUT land! being an A"ﬂCU“urc and enly saurce of their income may be exviuded Som the said acquisition. ’; -.{ =
. =]
PR R
Later on 2 mccimﬂ regarding scicction of sites for China Pak Fconomic Zones was held under KQ o3

,2! 03.2009 1) cleposu estimated cost Rs,14,70,51 /.83/~ to this office 1o proceed in the matter, in

~ Acqutrm" Dcpmmcm vide T\o 229/DOR/Acq dated 15.07.2009 10 deposit the remaining amount Rs.
" 8 70, 51 283/- a8 r;qum’.'d

urmshcd u cross cheque No. 6953652 datcd 01.08.2009 for an amount of Rs.43000000/- which has
) thc Acqumng Dcp'!rtmem vide No. 241/DOR/Acq dated 31.08.2009 to remit the remaining amount i.e

r.; aQquc No, 7014547 dated 01.09.2009 for an amount of Rs. 4,40.51.000/- vide mano No.
DAl

« 1t is menticoned:ithat the mte of Ne! Chahi, Bar ier Qudeem, Ghair Mumnkin kind of fand of Muza Ab

4

:
Al
/u-nmrn..d. ulnnr ‘Aumkln hind of tand of Muza Meshnh and Gheie Mumikin Lind of Tand of Moza Mughaiki ‘.1.73‘ [

Aller issuance of Notification U/S-4 of the Land Acquisition Act, 1894 the land vwners namely {h\_,

Mechmood Rabbani $/0 Ali Akber, (i1} Sadbar S#Q Lajher £1if} Shah Fuisal Alridi $O Khan Kiel (iv) Tayyab Ali

g t
W}
’,
sabmitted applications stating therein 'lg{{; PRl

,cllmrman ship of the Chief Secretary Govt of Khyber Pukhitoon Khwa arp 06.03. 009 wherein it bas been dcudcd\
that !000 Acre of land would e ﬂcqmred from Rashakai inter Change towards Islnmnb:u[ ot M-1 Matorway.

" In compliance a corrigendum Notification US4 of the LAA. 1894 has been issued vide No.

O /Avq dated 16 03 2009 and the tand reduced from 12903 K m.|l 13 Marla e 8000 Kanal and 13 Marla,
Cbgcm.um Vutnfcmon U/S 4 of she LAA. 1894 is attached as Anncue ~B.

Thc Acqmung Dcpdmnem has requested vide this oifice imemo: NoSO/DOR/Acq dated

n:aponsc the Acqmrmg D;panmmt has remilted an amouni of Rs.60000000/- bearing Cheque
\10 6311624 dated 14 07 2009 instend of demanded amount Rs.14,70,51.283/- which has been deposited

in lhc Govt treasury’vide ciallan No. 10 duted. 21.07.2009. Therefore this oflice requested the

* In response the Acquuuw Department vide No. SDAMNIE/PCEZ1684-89 dated 03.08.2009 has

bcen“dﬁposxted in the Gow Treasury vide challan No. 16 dated 17.08.2009. This office sgain rcqucsud

 Rs. 440,51 283/— so that further proceed in the matter. ‘Consequently the Aequiring Departnent has sent

QONNIDCPE/JI??S sJ dated 03.09.2009, which has aiso been depesited in the Govt Treasury, vide
" “tan No.22 dated 10. 9 2009,

“Amu

.

l'he Acguiring Dcpartmﬂnt submitted Drafl Netification U/S-6 & 17 of the Land ACquisilioﬁ

|894 for further’ procccdmg,. Accordingly, this office signed the said Draft Notification and

I"orwardcd it ‘to worthy s Commissioner Peshawar Division Peshawars vide this office

O’SI/DOR&LMC(] dau.d 16 19.2009 for countersignawre and issuance. The worthy Commissioner

Pc.,hawnr Division I’CShawqr sng,md the said Netifications and isseed vide No. AC(RYPesiv3-17/1874-
81 and No AC(R}f'Pesh/.s 1772 009-18&2—90 dated 09.10.2089 respectively,

vT!vis oflice rcqqr:stcd‘.vidc Ne, 279-81/DOR&EMNeg dared 22.10.2009the Executive District

officer {(Works & Services). the Excomtive District officer fAgriculture) and Divisional Forest Officer

Nowshern (o make spot visit [or assessment of the value of Super Structie, Firewood Trees and Fruit

Plants erccted upon on the preposed land.




© roncern office may be contacted in this repard vide No. 968/T datvd 05.11.2009. Resyltantly, this ofiice

I

; fq
N
Pe
3.

P
Ph
R}
| No
‘ f’)asS

i

*requested the Di\-Esion Forest Officer Mardan Division Mardan {er e

ot
- action has Been taken by the cancerned departments. Beside this o meeting of ali concerned was called /;,f'"“ "\5}
4

T
-

Frar S/0 Mirwas Khzm Fazal Wahid, Khawas Khan. Javed luml residents of Muza Mesri Bunda

1
- N
. ; {’ )
: : N -7
i =+ N ;
} : Ia o "

In response. lhu. DFO Peshawar Forest Division Now \hm has intimated vide No. S/DORY

ALg
dated 11.11.2009 that thr soid arca is under the Jurisdiction of Mardan Forest Division. iherefore ('h[, 9 )
;_! }‘ { :, ‘. :

t' o

e

i \_/ ’/
carly achOnN. e

This anu: reminded the departments concerned W expedite the assessment process vide this
=1 ]

oflice No. 348/DOR&E? Acq dated 21122009 aad No. MODOR&IVAcq dated 21122000 but nemememe

; ) . o i
on 07.01.2010 in the .ol‘ﬁc'- of the undersivned and express gear concern over the slow process TIL, e r”\\
: e
. e
assessment and d:.’cctcd the p'umc;pamt te espedite the assessmen: precess. Minutes of the meet ing, _,\ 3
: N \\—"
v

issued to all concern vnc‘c No. 12/DOR&E/Acq dated 15.01.2010.

1\UliCC U’S—‘) (1) of the Land Acguisition Act. 1894 was issued vide this office

'/D()R.IAcq d‘ued 24. 10 2009 wherein the concerned land (mtk’s were informed (o attend this
‘coul on 11.11.2009 pcrsonaily ar through avthorized ageal o file their claims/objections (f'._m The

land owners of'mu'f'{ Mughatki and Mesri Bunda namely Maiik Fuiv.-‘ ultaly Khan §/O Mir Zaman, Gul

atiend this court and’ slmcd in writien that the mte fixed for is meager, (h.\.n the market rate but they have
not substantiated thc;’r claim throvgh supparting documents. Henee, this court rejected their objections.
ft is forther added the fand owners submitied an application o Chic! Mintster Khyher Pukhtaon
Khwa through the Federal Minisier of State for Local Govte Mr. Musuod Abbis Klattak, stting in
"\ppiic:liin:l l'hm ﬂ:cir Tand may be exoinpted fron acquisition as m agriculiue aad esiy source af their
‘inconje. In this rcgajrd a mecting was field with the Chict Minister Khyber Pukbtean Floavs in peesence
of Mr. Masoad A'nl;ms Khméak a5 2 local MMNA of the locslity. The Senior Member Board of Revenu,
the Cemm:sqmncr Peshawar Division Peshuwar, the District Cooxdination Qffieer Nowsher wavl the
undemgncd attend’ ‘the said mesting and it was decided that a spot visit may be made and assure the kind
of land, sg that the grievances of the land owners may be redsessed. In compliance the wndersigned
visited the arca und it was observed (hat the mostly tand is harraaed and the report furaished by the Field

Revenue Stafl n.gardmg kind of land is correct and bused on fect.
The instant case was inftidied on 17.06.2008, as per guidelines cvery acquisition case has o be
'_ﬂctcd within (6) months, which tock about two years. The Acquiring Dc?:truncnl as well ax the
hish-urvs-pres_sipg hard for passing of award in the best interest of public. Therefece [intend 0 pass

award of fand only 50 for as the award of Super Structure, {Trewvod/tuit trees is concemed it will be
; ‘ . ¢

announced as and when the assessiment process is completed.
. L]

To proceed further acquisition proceeding. tis offics made x request o the Commissivner

st Pantha s L L

Peshawar vamcm Peshawar lor grant of approval ag the estiny szd cost of the land is more then five :

omillion which is required to be approved from the competent autherity vide Mo, 49/DOR&E Acg dated

15.03.2010. In vesponse the Commissioner Peshawar Division Peshawar has conveyed the approval vide i

hl's lettcr No. AC (P/D)Pehs/3- 172010 dated 16.03.2010. o é ! :
' 2 iy

-

_,B—P

NINET
Tée hOWs} K




- Ther cfor: [i mrco. announce the award of

4

the fand as per detrid ziven below:-

I
&

SNo | Name uf‘\tuu if Kiad of land fand required itate per hanal | Tetal amauat
I N IN 5 ‘ !
Ao Mesei Banda, ! Barani 18 4] i s L6387 [ Rs 1734611733 \ : N
X o TNl Crai I ] e, 70562070 | ~
3. ~do- Banjer Qudecin 26 09 - VHs.333603/53
4, | o Mer, T Rs. 11203576 | K. 19422225001
S, o] Ghair Muizkin 3807 | Es 6020066 | Rs.2308695/31 o
6. Al Muhammd Barani, 344 00 15528730 | Reassmer2e || ‘;’:"_-‘("/
| 7. -do- | Mera 1608 10 | Ks.$715/20. | Ks. 5763779720 1 iy
L 8. -do- i Nul Chali SH2GE | s 257500 | R, 14211601/
D 0. -do- | Banjer Oadeam | 44 03 lis. smsw:ut R5250295718
fa ! "EU- R :‘ Ghair Muwkin 158 16 Rs.(rozonmoé Rs. #559864/80 P
‘ T Meshak. '1 Barani io 5 Fs. 95620 | s, [02868/90
12, -do- . ' Ghair Mumkin St 17 | s, 492742402
13 —do-- i Nul Chaii. 208 60 165 3558406740
W e T e T T TR 1 s, 30337002736 |
i : i57 | Mughalki | Barani TR T R 1010 | 0 18956802799
16, ~do- " Glhair Mumkin | 49 ) Es. GUAGGG | s, 2085952774
17, ~do- [ Ranjer Qadeem ) 03 I Rs. 360w | 5,323 ti t4
i “Total Land 8000 13 101-?1 s 125509
15% Compulsory Acquisition Charges. o
l - ‘Wmm—o_nn&_ T T T T T T e
Khumas Fee. Rs.  993G0/-
I ' Grand Total: s, 14,70,51,283/-

i

Under (lu_ circumstances  explained above, [ hereby pass an wward  for Rs. 14,76,51,283/- in

I n:spcd of the .m(wr. land. The land owaers shall be entitled for their shiare_as enfered in the Register

s o,
7
Diskict-Ceer,
Reve & Estate/Collecror,
Nowshori
i

}luqdamn-c-Zasmn. in the owner ship coluran, therein,

N (-:_if_—/_cﬁl POR/ACq:NSR Dated Nowshera lhceg.‘ a3
Copy forwarded for information to:-

1. The Cemmissioner Peshmwar Division Peshawar,
2. District Ceardination Offieer. Nowshera.
3. The Secretary Doard of Reveuus Khyber Mukbtoon Kinwa, Pesicawar.
i 4. The Divettor (1'&A) SDA Peshawar.
5. The General Manager (Tech} SDA Peshawar.
6. The Manager (Planning) SDA Peshawar,
7. The Praject Manager Nowsheru industrial Estate, Risalpor.
8. The Nuit Izhsildor, Khairabad for information. He is aiso dirceted Lo enter & attest mutations in
the name o7 sequiring department and also prepare Acyenintuee Roli, Nagsha Tajweez! and
Fieid bonk Sihe 1«.qumd tund within one month positively. /
: _ i’_."-""‘?-'h'c, g_f‘ EV/

Liiceit Qe
Hev: & Esiate/Collector,
A}\'u nwkera
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: S.No. | Name of Muza | Kind of Land Land to be Rate per |
f Acquired Kanal
| K M
Ll:__ Misri Banda 3anda 118 01 Rs. 14693/87
2, ~do- Naul Chahi 344 16 Rs.. 22784/81
3. -do- Banjir Qadeem 26 09 Rs. 12612/61
4. -do- Mera 1733 14 |Rs. 1120276
5. -do- Ghair Mumkin 38 07 Ps. 60200/66
y73 B r A ———
6. Ali Mohammad | Barani 344 (0 Rs. 4523/80
% - do- | Mera 1008 10 Rs. 5715/20
l'éﬁ.  do Nul Chahi s62 03 Rs. 25280/80 |
% 9. -do- Banjir Qadeem 44 03 Rs. 5669/20 -
10, -do- Ghair Mumkin 158 16 | Rs. 60200/66
2117 12 ———
11. | Meshak Barani 110 15 Rs. 9569/20
12. ~do- Ghair Momkin 81 17 Rs. 60200/66
BRRE? -do- Nul Chahi 208 00 Rs. 25280/80
- { 14 -do- Mera 1867 19 Rs. 16240780
2168 11 S —
T |15 [Mughalk Barani 1397 17 Rs. 13561/40
- 16. -do- Ghair Mumkin 49 12 Rs. 60200/66
17. -do- Banjir Qadeem 05 14 Rs. 5669/20
1453 03 ——
Total 8000 13
Total Caost of land Rs. 125599558/

153% Compulsory Acquisition Charge

Rs. 18839934/-

2% Mutation Fee

Rs. 2511991/-

Khumas Fee

Rs. 99800/-

Grand Total

Rs. 147051283/-
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OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT COORDINATION OFFICER/ADMINISTRATOR
NOWSHERA

No.”7/ = ~ 7.~ IPS/DCO/NSR/2012
- -, February 23, 2012

To:
The Chairman,
Sarhad Development Authority,
Khvber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar
Subject: - Joint Application for De-Notification of land acquired for Pak

China Economic Zone Motorway M-1

Enclosed please find herewith a joint application received

from residents of Misri Banda, Mughulkai, Ali Muhammad and Mishak, Tehsil and

“ District Nowshera, wherein they have prayed for de-notification of land acquired

for the establishment of Pak China Economic Zone along with Motor Way.

Sarhad Development Authority has purchased land for Pak
China Economic Zone Motorway M-1 and payment has been made. The land
owners were aggrieved against the acquisition of their land and were making

frequent request for its de-notification.

The District Government Nowshera agrees with the
contention of the land owners and requests that the land acquired for the subject

scheme may kindly be de-notified as requested by the residents of the above

" mentioned villages in their joint application.

~

Muhammad Ayaz Mandokhel
District Coordination Officer/Administrator

L % ) Nowshera
%"“‘ X No. & Date Even.
s N
g{f ' \»\ Copy to the: -
’:ﬁ v “r 1. Commissioner, Peshawar Division, Peshawar.
2w 2. Project Manager, Industrial Estate, Nowshera Risalpur.
3. District Officer, R&E, Nowshera.
\ \ District Coordination Officer/Administrator

i, \‘ > Nowshera
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. SARHAD DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa’

P 1A, Building Arbab Road, Peshawar Canu: (Pakistan)

Post Box No.172 Fax No.9211605

Tele:9211608 - 9211609

Website: hipy//www.sda.ors.ok

RS

No.SDA/D(P *I)} ! EN/ 1365 Dated 26.06.2013

The Deputy Commissioner/
Land Acquisition Collector,

Nowshera

SUBJECT:- POSSESSION OF 1000 ACRES LAND AT M: NEAR RASHAKAI

INTERCHANGE FOR EXPANSION OF NOWSHERA INDUSTRIAL
Dear Sir,

The Provincial Government had approved a scheme for acquisition of 1000
acres jand @ M-I near Rashakai Inierchangé Nowshera for which the SDA has already
deposited Rs 147,051 millien in 2009 on afc of acquisition of 1000 acres land. Besides
abave, the SDA  has also deposited Rs 13.508 million for acquisition of 398 kanals and

03 marlas land to provide connectivity to the 1000 acres land through approach road.

The Provincial Government has allocated a sizeable amount in the ADP for
2013-14 for master planning of the said land. keeping in view the importance of the project
as the same will promote industrializadon and create adequate job opportunities in the
province. You are, therefore, requested to kindly direct the Revenue staff to give physical
possession of 1000 land to the Industrial Estate Manager Nowshera at the earliest. Moreover,
the case for the award of additional area of 398 kanals & 035 marlas land may also kindly be

expedited,

Dire
{(Planning & Implementation)

ce o]

1. General Manager (Plazning), SDA, Peshawar with the instructions to follow up
the matter with the Deputy Commissioner Nowshera.

Z. Industrial Estate Manager Nowshera with the advice to please pursue the matter
' vigorously,

3. i.’.S' 1o Secretary Indusiries, Commerce & Technical Education Department,
Govt. of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Peshawar, :
<
pi

4. ‘P.S. to Chairman, Sarhad Development Authotity, Peshawar.

A Y

=

g




. Nowshera Industrial Estate ?
- SARHAD DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Govt: of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

Nowshera Mardan Road, Risalpur

Tel/Fax: 0937/880111

No.SDATEMINSR, /57— 74

Dale 2.5~ z’f;%f_’ 3

The Deputy Comissioner/Collector,
District Nowshera.

Subject;- MASTER PLANNING OF INDUSTRIAL ESTATE NOWSHERA ALONG
M-1 {1000 ACRES)

' I am directed to please refer to G.M (Planning) SDA letter dated 23-04-2013
(copy enclosed) pertaining to taken-over possession of the acquired land measuring 1000
acres along Motorway for the establisiiment of Pak—Chine Economic Zone.

It is pertinent to mention that SIDA has deposited the entire awarded amount

A, Fia it of gt Pe 2T 5 K
i-¢ cost of acquired Lmdland Award & Mutation has already been issued in favour of

Nowsheru Industrial Estate, SIJA.

[t is, therefore. requested to Kindly depute the concerned Revenue Staff for
demurcation and handing-over the possession of 1000 acres land to SDA management at the

earliest, as the Provincial Govt: is pressing hard for early completion of the scheme in order T?
to achieve the desired goal please.

. With regards.

Industrial Estate Manager

Nowshera.
Copy to:-

1) Director (Finance) SDA.
2) Director (Planning & Implementation ) SDA.
3 Agstt: Commissionet/LAC, Nowshera.

4) G.M (Planning) SDA-----w/r to his letter as quoted above please.
5) P.S to Chairinan. SDA.

-
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OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER /DISTRICT COLLECTOK
NOWSHERA

NOTIFICATION U/S-5 OF LAA 1374

Wheregs the Commissioner Peshowar 2 2o Foashowa s s s
he and notified under saction-V of the land Acguisifion Ao, vide Distac! Culte
) g V7t .:Lc'o"?
Nowshera notificaiion No.‘ﬁ;—*‘é'sﬂ?- = IUOR&S/ACQ..NS? cind
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Agnvgiivbﬁ.xagczi 2] ok

Voot e L,

Nows 1here.ore in exercise of ihe powsrn Jndo sechion =V of ' 2 .

Acguisiion Acl, 1894, lme Commissioner Peshavsar Division Peshuwar has Leen
i \ i N M ‘ ‘ PO .
salishied that the iond spe\Ciﬁed below of which giuns « e inspoutad o2 o
of the Land Acquisition Colleciar Dislrict Nowshera.
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ANNEX —E-5
FUEL TYPE AND AVAILABILITY

Fuel type and availability is not-applicable/relevant as RSEZDOC will provide grid load to all zone

enterprises.



- ANNEX—E-6

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT COST, FINANCING PLAN, FINANCING TERMS, TARIFF
CALCULATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS OF FINANCIAL CALCULATIONS INCLUDING
| ' ECONOMIC/FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

These details will be provided at the time of tariff petition.



ANNEX ~ E-7

THE TyPe AND DETAILS OF THE SERVICES PROPOSED TO BE PROVIDED

Services proposed to be provided shall include professionally handling of all issues relating to:

i.  Un-interrupted power supply to the zone enterprises in RSEZ throughout the year;
ii.  Maintaining quality of power with respect to internal voltage deviation, frequency
variation, and harmonics;
iii.  Safety standards and its implementation;
iv.  Operation of electrical system with high reliability & availability;
v.  Maintenance of system with least power outages and durations;

vi. Customer services;

vii.  Billing after providing power connections to zone enterprises;
viii.  Tariff structuring and management of other tariff related matters and dealing with
NEPRA from time to time;

ix.  Preparation of performance reports;

X. Maintenance of data and records in respect of provision of electrical power services.

——



| ANNEX — E-8
THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT OF THE SYSTEM

The environment impact is covered within the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) of the RSEZ

project, as approved, which is appended herein below.



ANNEX —E-9

PROGRESS REPORT OF THE DISTRIBUTION & SUPPLY INFRASTRUCTURE

Progress of the RSEZ Project:

o As of 18 QOctober 2022, the accumulated progress has reached 73% which meets
requirements of the entire construction period.

a The site camp, 3.1km permanent boundary wall, 1.1km temporary wall, 7 watchtowers,
steel structure of main gate, reception center, guard room of reception center and ancillary
works in the site have been completed.

s Structural work: concrete pouring, reinforcement binding and brick masonry have been
completed 100%; Decoration work: the exterior wall works and roof works has been
completed 100%, the putty works for internal wall and external wall plastering has been
completed 100%, the indoor floor tiles and ceiling suspenders installation has been
completed 100%, emulsion paint construction is in progress.

e Warehouse: the foundation works, site area and indoor concrete ground have been
completed, the steel structure has arrived at the port, and customs clearance is in progress.

e Fire control pump station and fire control water room: the concrete pouring, reinforcement
binding, brick setting external and internal wall plastering have been completed.

e Water tower: the concrete structure of 1 # water tower has been completed, and the
decoration and installation works are under construction. The shaft of 2 # water tower has
been completed to 75%, and the frame has been erected to the bottom of the water tank.

e Rainwater open channel: this work has been completed.

* Sewage pipeline: sewage pipe installation has been completed 100%.

* Roadside power cables and street lights: 93% of the roadside power cables and street lights
have been completed.

¢ Plane communication pipeline: 94% of the roadside communication pipeline has been



compieted.

e Plane water supply pipeline: 100% of the roadside water supply pipeline has been
completed.

e Gas pipeline engineering: 100% of earthwork excavation and back-filling for gas engineering
and pipeline, pressure test and ancillary works has been completed;

e Road Construction: There are eight roads for the phase | (three main roads are concrete
pavement and five branch roads are asphalt pavement).

s The surface clearing and earthwork of the sub-grade range have been completed 100%; the
sub-grade excavation, the sub-grade filling and the sub-base have been completed 100%;
The concrete pavement has been completed and the asphalt surface pavement has been

completed by 60%.

Construction Progress of Distribution & Supply Infrastructure

e Grid station: Boundary wall, masonry works and main structure of comprehensive house,
main structure works of distribution room, transfermer foundation, accident oil pool and
regulating pool have been completed, decoration of comprehensive house and distribution
room have been completed. 80% of the lighting works, 90% of the lightning protection, 90%
of the grounding works, 97% of the civil works and 95% of the site facilities works of the grid
station have been completed.

o 11kv Distribution Network: The excavation work of pole foundation have been completed
100% and the concrete work of pole foundation have been completed 100%, 100% of cross
arm hardware installation and 100% of overhead conductor installation have been

completed. Installation of pole mount circuit breakers and ring main unit is in progress.




SITE PICTURES

Main Gate




Water tower # 2

Grid Station
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installation of 11kV Switchgear

Installation of 11KV Conductor




VII.

DETAILS OF THE DISTRIBUTION

SYSTEM




ANNEX—F-1

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL SOUNDNESS ASSESSMENT (ESSA) REPORT

Please refer to the Environmental Impact Assessment appended hereinabove as Annex E-8.



ANNEX - F-2

SYSTEM STUDIES

Please refer to the grid interconnection study and load flow study appended as Annex E-2.




ANNEX —F-3

PATROLLING AND INSPECTION PROCEDURES

Routine day/Night patroliing of cable route and overhead lines route will be carried out with
trained staff. {The inspection sheet will be available with these teams).

The inspection teams/patrolling team will notify any emergency condition by mobile phones
and/or UHF sets (if allowed by govornment} to dispatch maintenance crew.

The team will also contact load dispatch cenire and control room for any emergency
shutdown,

The patrolling team will also look for any encroachments on the route of cables and
distribution lines.

The standard operating procedure (SOP) will be prepared for patrolling teams.



ANNEX - F-4

VIAINTENANCE PLANS AND PROCCEDURES

The grid station will be manned by switch board operators and therefore 24/7 monitoring
will be in place.

The daily monitoring of equipment will be carried out as per following sample:

Hourly reading of ammeter, voltmeter and energy meters, temperature, pressure etc will
be carried out by the Switch Board Operators (SBO).

The SAS system will also record all values necessary and transients to centralized Load
Dispatch Centre (LDC).

On the basis of monitoring by SBO and SAS, maintenance will be carried out; however
routine maintenance of all equipment will be carried out as per recommendations of
manufacturer.

For planned maintenance the weekly, monthly , guarterly and annually maintenance
schedule will be performed .The planned maintenance will be carried out in winter season
(NOV-to-FEB) to avoid any load shedding.

The distribution system design with ample capacity for load transfer and to take any
element out of service due to planned and emergency maintenance conditions.
Maintenance team will be available to take care of emergency and planned routine
maintenance.

The testing relays will also be part of planned maintenance and schedule will be prepared
as per recommendation of manufacturer.

The standard operating procedure for maintenance will be prepared and will be

implemented as per international codes and standards.



ANNEX - F-5

FAULT LOCATION AND TROUBLE-SHOOTING PROCEDURES

Teams will be deployed at fault location along with equipment.

The latest equipment with facility of pin pointing underground cable fault will be available
to minimize the maintenance time.

Testing equipment for locating faults in CT, PT etc to check internal faults will be made
available with qualified testing engineers.

Team of engineers with different skills will be deployed for relay testing, breaker testing
and Cable Testing.

Automatic isolation of faulty portion will be done by relays and SAS system.



ANNEX - F-b

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURES

in house training facilities will be available to train employee, skilled and protessional and
managers.

Safety trainings will be conducted in routine.

Specialized training for equipment will be given by manufacturers.

On-job training shall be imparted during construction of the installations.

Maintenance and operation manuals shall be available to train engineers for the following :
—  Overall maintenance and monitoring of the grid station and distribution system;
—  Circuit breakers, operating mechanism testing, routing maintenance;

—  Monitoring and testing of power transformer, current and voltage transformer

and routine maintenance;
—  Protection relays;
—  Operations indications, testing including control and indicating instruments;
—  Distribution transformers switchgear and metering;
— MV feeders and distribution lines lying and maintenance;

—  Earthing systems and its routine testing and measurement.



ANNEX — F-7
INFORMATION AND DOCUMENTS IN SUPPORT OF DISTRIBUTION EXPANSION AND

INVESTMENT

Please refer to the information provided in Annex E-2.



ANNEX — F-8
TYPE OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND CONFIGURATION, SERVICE TERRITORY, RIGHT OF

WAY, FEEDER MAPS

General

The total land area of the RSEZ is approximately 1000 acres. The expected power demand of RSEZ,

when fully developed, is 202.6 MW, spread over in the following phases:

Type of Distribution System and Configuration

The distribution network will consist of two grid stations, GS-1 and GS- Ii, to meet the expected demand. The
RSEZ is located between the 220/132 kV Mardan and proposed 220/132 kV Swabi grid stations of PESCO.
The interconnection scheme consists of 24.32 km from 220/132 kV Grid Station Mardan to RSEZ GS-ll using
S/C rail conductor, whereas 24.37 km Mardan to RSEZ GS-1 using S/C rail conductor. As a second source 30
km from proposed 220/132 kV Grid Station Swabi to RSEZ GS-I using D/C rail conductor, whereas 0.05km

GSH to GS-H using S/C rail conductor.

The electricity is proposed to be fed through extra high tension 132kV transmission lines, two in number for
serving the two grid stations mentioned hereinabove. The 132 kV transmission lines shall be laid overhead

between the grid stations. The 132 kV cable shall be single core (XLPE type).



The GS- would step down power from 132 kV to 11kV through 40 MVA power transformers estimated to
be about 4 in number, and GS-Il would step down power from 132 kV to 33kV through 60 MVA power

transformers estimated to be 2 in number for meeting the entire load of the area.

For distributing power, about 29 (27 existing and 2 future extension) 11 kV feeders shall be laid, feeding
distribution transformers as required from time to time, when the entire area of RSEZ is fully

developed.

Service Territory

RSEZ is located at the district of Nowshera, KP along the Peshawar-Islamabad Motorway and is

60km away from the city of Peshawar. The service territory is shown at Annex E-4.

Right of way

As the Petitioner has full possession of the land, comprising of 1000 Acres, the right of way available

and utility corridors have been planned for 132 kV and 11 kV cables by the developers and planners.

Feeder Maps

Feeder maps are provided in the External Electrification Design Book of the 11kv distribution

network, on pages 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, and 52 thereof. The complete map is provided herein below.
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ANNEX - F-9

VOLTAGE LEVELS AND REGULATION

The distribution system voltage level shall be as per NEPRA regulations and performance
standards.

The voltage levels of medium voltage distribution lines shall be 11 kV with voltage regulation
of + 5% at the receiving end and single line contingency condition (N~1). The medium
voltage distribution lines shall be overhead.

Voltage level of transmission lines shall be 132 kV with voltage regulation + 5% at the
receiving end and it shall be + 10% under single outage contingency. (N-1 condition as per
NEPRA regulation and performance standards.) The said transmission lines are constructed,
owned and maintained solely by PESCO.

The voltage drop shall be calculated from node to node as per WAPDA/PESCO/NTDC
Instructions. The tail end voltage drop and power losses from the proposed feeder shall not

exceed the permissible limits of 5% and 3.5% respectively.



ANNEX—F-10

LINE EQUIPMENT CHARACTERISTICS

All material and equipment supplied and installed shall be designed, manufactured and tested to
meet the following system and climate conditions unless specifically stated otherwise for any

material /fequipment.

All system shall adopt following main standards, wherever applicable, and the design criteria shali

meet the following.

Design Codes and Standards

All system shall adapt the following standards:

> International Electro technical Commission (IEC).

> NTDC Specifications

Design Criteria

The Electrical Distribution System meets the following requirements:

> High reliability

> Safe operation

> Route protection



> Redundancy

> Reliable technology

> Easy to maintain and troubleshoot
> Environmentally protected

> Cost effective

> Fire proof

System Conditions

Normal System Voltage - HV - 132,000 Volts
- Mv 11,000 Volts
Highest System Voltage - HVY 145,000 Volts
- MV 11,500 Volts
Phases ‘ - HY 3

Wire/Conductors

- Mv 3

Conductors/Wire

Frequenc , : Hz
d Y _ HV/MV 50



Rated short circuit current

BIL (Basic Impulse level)

Lightning Impulse withstand Voltage {132 kV)
Lightning Impulse withstand Voltage {11kV)
Power Frequency withstand Voltage {132kV)

Power Frequency withstand Voltage (11kV)

System Earthing

Climate Conditions

Max Ambient Air temperature

Max Daily Average temperature
Min Ambient Air temperature
Horizontal surface

Highest Radiation intensity
Max relative humidity

Isokeraunic level

- HV 40
- MV 25
- 650
- 95
- 275
- 36

kA

kV
kv
kv

kv

Earthing is provided as per NTDC

Standards

- 50°C

- 40

- 0°C

- 60°C

- 1000 W/m?
- 95%

- 9.7 Days / Annum



Altitude - 285m(935ft) above

Sea Level
Location ' - Semi desert
Pollution - Wind blown sand
The line equipment characteristics shall be as follows.
A. 132 kV Grid station Equipment
1. Power Transformer
i.  Rated 40 MVA
ii. Voltage ratio : 132/11.5 kv
iii. Winding arrangement Delta /Star
iv.  Tap position 23 (+11)
v. Impedance at principal tap - 10%
vi.  Vector group Dyn11
vii.  Tap change range ' | 23(+11)
vili.  Earthing method Neutral is Directly

connected to grounding mesh



2. AlS Switchgear

I. Rated Voltage 145 kv
il. Operating Voltage 132 kv
iil. Rated 3 - Phase, Short circuit breaking current A0 kA

iv. Rated 3- Phase, Peak short circuit making current 100 kA

v. Rated bus bar current 2000 A

3. 132Kv Protection Equipmenti/Relay Data

i. Bus bar differential CU {Schneider UK) MICOM P741

il. Bus bar differential PU (Schneider UK) MICOM P741

ili. Line Distance Relay (Schneider UK) MICOM P543

iv. Line Backup HV OC&EF (Schneider UK) MICOM P141

v. Line Differential & Distance Relay (Schneider UK) MICOM P543
vi. Line Backup HV OC&EF (Schneider UK) MICOM P141

vil. Transformer Differential (Schneider UK) MICOM P642
viii.Transformer Backup HV OC&EF (Schneider UK) MICOM P141
ix. Transformer Backup LV OC&EF (Schneider UK} MICOM P141
X. Transformer Mechanical {Schneider UK) MICOM P143

Xi. Line Bay Control Unit (Sifang China) CSI-200E

xii. Transformer Bay Contro! Unit {Sifang China) CSI-200E



xiii. Common Bay Control Unit (Sifang China) CSI-200E

xiv. GPS Time Synchronization {Sifang China) C5C-196

Xv. Protocol Converter (Sifang China) CSD-1321

xvi. Substation Automation System {Sifang China) CSC-2000
xvii. Fault Recorder Device {Qualitrol-UK} IDM+
xviil. Protocol Converter (Sifang China) CSD-1321

xix. Energy Meters ISKRA-SI MT680

B. 11 kV Switchgear

Vi.

Vii.

Vili.

Rated Current 630A outgoing and Capacitor panels, 2500

A for Incomer, bus bars and bus Coupler

Rated Voltage 11kV
Rated Frequency 50 Hz
Rated short circuit breaking current 25 kA for 1 Sec
Rated short circuit making current 63 kA
Rated 1 minute power frequency withstand voltage 28kv
Rated lighting impuise withstand voltage 75 kV

Operating sequence 0-0.3 sec-CO-3Min-CO



X.  Operating times:

C. Switching station

Closing time Max 80ms

Opening Time Max 60ms

o The switching sub-station is outdoor type either of 3 way/4 way MV

switchgear panel arrangement as per design requirement.

e The sub-station Contains MV switchgear panel with vacuum circuit breaker

(VCB) to accommodate outside MV cable circuit designated as incoming and

outgoing.

¢ The sub-station is mounted on RCC platform with provision for MV cables

circuit entry and connections.

e V(B switchgear panel for connecting outside MV cable shall be complete in all

respect shall be pre wired and equipped with the following

i.
ii.
iii.
v.
V.
vi.
vii,

viii.

Single Ratio Dual core current transformer for protection
Numeric over current and Earth Fault Relay.

Digital Ammeter

Ammeter selector switch ( ASS)

Earth fault indicator { EF)

Earth switch to ground cable.

Cable live indication.

Cable termination arrangement.

e The protective equipment and EFl is smart and intelligent Electronic

Devices (IEDs) having provision for remote on line two way data and fault



indication communication and provision for integration with AMI for
distribution Automation ( DMS and EMS) to achieve smart grid concept.
The instrument /relay compartment in MV panel contains sufficient space
to accommodate the devices necessary for remote data transmission arid
for control/monitoring through SAS.

The VCB and earthing switch shall have potential free 6/12 NOs of
Normally open and 6/12 Nos of normally closed (NC) contacts for ON and
OFF indication and control through SAS.

The metering and Instrument relay compartment shall have sufficient of

various size/capacity of spare terminals.

MV cable and Straight through joint /Termination.

The cable shall be three core stranded aluminium conductor, XLPE
insulated, triple extruded, PVC bedded, steel wire armored (SWA) and PVC
sheath overall.

The cable shall be laid in tranches on cable raceways/Hangers

D. Distribution System { 11 kV}

1. Transformer

Rating - 500/750/1000 kVA
Voltage ratio 11000/400Volts
Tap position Principal Tap

Vector group Dynll



V. Impedance voltage (500kVA) 4% (With IEC tolerance)

VI. Impedance voitage (750/1000kVA) 5%(With IEC tolerance)

2. 21 kV switch gear

i.  Rated voltage 15,000 Volts

fi.  Operating voltage 11,000-Volts
iii. Rated 3 phase short circuit current (1 sec) 25 kA
iv.  Rated 3 phase short circuit making current 63 kA

3,11 kV cable

I.  Size 3x300mm?
. Type Copper conductor XLPE insulated steel
tape

.  Rated Voltage 15kv
IV.  Noof cores 3

. Size ACSR Ospray 1x300mm?

0. Type Insulated Aluminium Conductor

18/4.465stranded

Ill.  Rated Voltage 15 kv

IV. Noofcores 3



ANNEX—-F-11

PoweR QUALITY CONTROL

The power quality will be maintained according to NEPRA regulations and codes.
Harmonics and voltage deviations and frequency variation will be
monitored automatically through SAS.

Loading of the equipment and terminal voltage shall be monitored.

Connection points, heating points shall be monitored and maintained.

Capacitor bank to improve the power factor, as stated in the Single Line Diagram.




ANNEX —F-12

BACK-UP/EXPRESS FEEDER PROVISIONS

Back up MV feeder provision is provided for each sub-station to provide backup in case of

fault on service feeder.

Similarly 132 kV overhead transmission line of 800 mm? sizes consist of two (2! circuits with
a possibility of further expansion to additional two (2) circuits to meet {n~1) criteria the

other circuit shall be capable of taking peak load demand of the RSEZ.



ANNEX - F-13

ACCIDENT PROTECTION AND PREVENTION PROCEDURES

stancd @rd operating procedure (SOP) for operation and maintenance of all equipment will be

prep & red.
safety Procedure will be developed considering the voltage levels.

All operation and maintenance personal will be equipped with safety gears and personal
safety gadgets.

All ea uipment will be tagged properly to avoid any accident.

The earthing of all equipment will be carried out as per IEC/IEEE/ WAPDA/NTD'C codes and
Staﬂdards.

The forms for handing over or taking over equipment of maintenance will be developed.
shut down for maintenance of normal line/equipment will be communicated in writing.

proper communication will be done to shut down for maintenance of normal line element

a5 well as for handing over for re-energizing of element after maintenance.

All operation with time, and persons responsible, will be tagged properly, in registers at

instatlation, to avoid any accident.

The SOPs prepared will define duties of personnel involved in operation and maintenance.
The proper warning signs will always be in place.

The equipment for maintenance will be not accessible to any unauthorized person.

The fire extinguisher system will be placed, at necessary place, along with manual system
for high voltage equipment like transformer and grid stations. Furthermore, the control
puilding will have fire and smoke detectors installed for fire prevention.

The underground mesh will be installed to control step and touch voltages within {imits.

rirefighting training will be given to operation and maintenance crew.

The illumination level will be such to prevent any accident due to low light standards.



All codes and standards used by the company will be as per the NEPRA distribution code and
standards.

The health and safety protocols will be developed for eh1p|oyees.

The equipment will be tested as per the aforementioned SOPs to avoid accidents.

All equipment installed will be made inaccessible by installing barriers and putting warning

Signs.



ANNEX—-F-14

EMERGENCY PROVISIONS

Fire tenders with at least state of art equipment will be available.
Automatic alarms will be initiated in any emergency conditions.

SAS will be used to cut off the lines or consumer supply remotely to minimize the effect of

any fire or hazardous situation.
Ambulances with medical aid will be readily available in case of any medical emergency.

The communication system will be designed to minimize reporting time to limit loss.




ANNEX - F-15

PROTECTION, CONTROL AND MEASURING iINSTRUMENTS

General

Protection system shall be designed to protect all the essential equipment installed in the
electrical network of RSEZ. The general aim of the protection equipment shall be to isolate every
fault on the network with reliability, speed, selectivity and simplicity, avoiding unnecessary
operation and in the minimum time possible. The protection system shall comprise state of the
art, high speed, highly sensitive numerical relays and associated equipment. The protection
system shall be designed in such a way that it shall facilitate easy maintenance and repair of the

components. All components shall be suitable for the locai climatic conditions.

Transmission Lines Protection

Distance/differential relays shall be used as primary protection for high speed fault clearance on
transmission line with maximum sensitivity and selectivity. Qver current relays for phase and

earth faults shall be used as back-up protection.

132/11 kV Power Transformers Protection

Differential protection shall act as the main protection for the 132/12 kV transformers. HV and

LV aver—current and Earth Fault Relays shall be provided for transformer back-up protection.

11 kV Feeder Protection

Protection of 11 kV feeders shall comprise over—current relays for phase and earth faults. Effective
grading between the over-current and earth fault relays of the outgoing feeders at grid stations

and those relays at the downstream 11 kV network shall be ensured.



ANNEX-F-16

TYPE OF METERING SYSTEM TQ BE USED

It is proposed that RSEZDOC will utilize Automatic Reading Meters (AMR) for the project, as

explained below.



ANNEX—F-17

VIETERING INSTALLATION AND TESTING FACILITIES

Energy measurement system is designed to calculate energy in and out from power
transformer and energy exported to various medium voltage 11kV feeders and 132kV
transmission circuits.

All metering instruments and summation equipment are designed to be of the smart IED/AMR
type and are designed to communicate with the SAS.

The energy meters shall be compliant with the following standards of the International

Eiectrotechnical Commission (IEC):

I. IEC62052-11;

ii. IEC 62053-21;
li. 1EC 62056-21
iv. 1EC 61036

v. EN50470-3;

vi. 1EC 62053-22;

vil. IEC 62053-23.
The metering devices shall allow to measure MWh or kWh and MVArh or kVArh and as an
option measuring of import and export of active and reactive energy in the same instrument.
The combination meters (kWh/kVArh) shall be able to register the two rate MWh~ or
kWh-tariff (two registers) for one direction, or a single rate MWh- or kWh-tariff for two
directions (import/export), a single rate MVArh or kVArh tariff for leading and lagging reactive
energy (twao registers).
The meter shall have two independent electronic output contacts (one for MWh or kWh and
one for MVArh or kVArh) for re-transmitting to an external totalizer.
The MWh- or kWh-meters the accuracy shall be of class 0.25/0.5S according to IEC
62052-11 and {EC 62053-22, the MVArh-or kVArh-meters shall be of class 3.




The meters must be able to register a low initial reading, i.e. shall start at less than 0.05 % of
the load.
On-site calibration facilities shall be provided to enable the service engineer to modify/offset

the error curve with defined very small values/steps.



ANNEX - F-18

COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS

Substation Automation System (SAS)

Substation Automation System shall be used to collect data from instruments and relays located at
grid station and to transmit data at load dispatch centre (LDC), RSEZ for monitoring and controlling
purpose. The coliected data from relays and instrument shall be viewed on one or more SAS host
computers that will be located at LDC, RSEZ. Based on the information received from the grid
stations, automated or operator- driven supervisory commands can be pushed to grid station

control devices which are then referred to as the field device.

Following signals shall be provided in SAS Signal list:

1. Circuit Breaker Faulty or Spring Uncharged signals for afl 132kV Circuit Breakers

2. Circuit Breaker Ciose or Open signals for all 132kV Circuit Breakers

w

Circuit Breaker Motor faulty signals for all 132kV Circuit Breakers
Auto Recloser in service/ out of service

Auto Recolser Blocked signals

Breaker Failure stage-l signals

132kV Busbar protection out

Sync-check successful / unsuccessful signals for 132kV Circuit Breakers

vo® N o ok

All relevant Protection & Control tripping signals

10. AC and DC MCBs trip signals for all protection & control panels/equipment.
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